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Pearson at a glance

Finanaal highlights

Sales

£4.5hn
-5%
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Adjusted operating profit

£723m
-3%

IMAGE REMOVED

Average annual growth 1n
headline terms 2010-2013

Adjusted earrings per share
-1.9%

Operating cash flow
-16.3%

Dividend

+6.1%

© To read about our KPIs go to p14

Throughout this repart growth rates are stated ona constant exchange rate {CER) basis unless otherwlise stated Where quoted, underlying
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growth rates exclude both currency movements and portfolio changes




Section 1 Dur business

Ahout Pearson

Strategic report

0

Pearson is the world’s learning company, with
global capabilities in educational courseware

and assessment, based on a strong portfolio of
products and services, powered by techinology.

We believe that our strategy of combining

these core capabilities with services enable our
partners to scale online, reach more people and
ensure better learning outcomes, providing
Pearson with a larger market opportunity, a
sharper focus on the fastest-growing education
markets and stronger financial returns.

Our mission is to help people make progress
through access to better learning. We believe
that learning opens up opportunities, creating
fulfilling careers and better lives.

This strategic report1s formed of three sections ‘Our business’,
Our performance’ and ‘Soca! impact’, (p02-67), and was approved
for issue by the board on 4 March 2016 and signed on ts behalf by
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Coram Williams
Chief financral officer
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Chairman’s introduction

Sidney Taurel
Charman
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“My focus will be on helping,
guide Pearson back to growth,
supporting the management
tearn and all of our employees
in our mission: to help more
people make progress in their
lives through learning.”

Dear shareholders,
I am proud to introduce our annual report for the first
time as Pearson’s chalrman

My predecessor, Glen Moreno, made amajor
contribution to Pearson during his long and successful
tenure as chairman |am sure my fellow shareholders
will join me in thanking Glen and wishing him all the
best for the future

This is an important tme to be jothing Pearson
Qur 2015 performance was not what we would
have wanted, and we now have a plan in place to
return the company to growth

The company has a strong purpose atits heart, and has
made great stndes in focusing on education My own
focus will be on helping guide Pearson back to growth,
supporting the management team and all of our
employees in our mission to help more pecple make
progress in their lives through learning

Our Immediate priornities

This 1s a challenging time for businesses inglobal
education, with rapid changes taking placein the sector
Digital technology 1s revolutionising education just asit
has all other aspects of the way we work, communicate
and dobusiness In an era of constrained spending,
there1s a big productwvity challenge, as governments
and education leaders seek to achieve better outcomes

atthe same or lower cost The value of a university
degree continues to grow, but many students and
institutions face cost pressures These changes offer
big opporiunities for Pearson, but also present risks
and transitions that we will need to manage in some
of our traditionally strong businesses

With these factors in mind, myimmediate priorities
are clear

*1will be supporung our managementteam to
ensure that we stay focused on our biggest strategic
growth objectives

>l will offer gutdance to help them to make further
progress on simplifying and Integrating the business
We need to make sure that Pearson Is better able to
leverage our assets, skills, and technology platforms
inorder to deploy our products globally

>{ will be supporting the team to ensure that capital
1s allocated m away that provides better returns for
shareholders, ultimately creating a better, more
sustainable company for the future

we will engage transparently with shareholders on
our capital allocation plans and progress againstour
strategic goals, as well as on ali importantissues

We plan to hold our dividend at the 2015 {evel while we
rebuild cover, reflecting the board's confidence in the
medium-term outlook for our business, and we are
commutted to increasing total shareholder returns

These priorities require strong leadership,
dedication and hard wark from me, the board,
and the management team

Our leadership team

We have continued to enhance the strength and depth

of our board, incuding the appointment of Coram Withams
as our chief financiat officer Coram has a decade’s
experience working directly for Pearson and helped to
lead our jointventure, Penguln Random House, through
a successful company mtegration as its first CFO

Like me, Lincoln Wallen jotned the board on 1 January
2016 Lincoln s chief technology officer for Dreamworks
Anmmatton, and his appointment further strengthens
our digital capabihities Like thousands of Pearson
employees across the globe, he also has a background
in education and teaching

We have an expenenced executive team, and committed
employees around theworld | look forward to working with
John Fallon and the executive team to deliver our agenda

Read more about our board on pages 72-73 @
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Shareprice performance
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Source Datastream to 31 December 2015

Total shareholderreturn (TSR)
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Source Datastreamto 31 December 2015

Building a company for the future

!ed Elt Lilly, a businessn the global health sector, as
CEQ and Charr for ten years | seesome clear paraliels
between health and education thatl believe provide
opportunities for Pearson -

Like health, education affects every atizen of the world
in adeep and personalway Both sectors have seen
dramatic increases In the use of digital technologies
for the benefit of users - our case, teachers and
students For us, this means personalised, adaptive
learntng, with the ability to measure and improve
outcomes at an individual level

So we are continuing at pace on cur mission to become
more digital and service-driven, and a simpler, better
integrated business, with efficacy atthe heart of
everythingwe do Read more on our ongoing
commitment to efficacy on pages 46-53 @

Pearson's future

I would like to thank you for your continued support

of Pearson it has been atough 2015, and there are
undoubtedly challenges ahead Pearsonis a company
with strong market positions, real competitive
advantage and a sigruficant medium-term market
opportunity The board believes thatthe plans we are
enacting will help to build on these strengths and enjoy
sustained growth

I see an exciting future ahead for Pearson - as with
my experience in the health sector, | am inspired by
working in a company with a strong sense of purpose
As chairman | am fuliy focused on helping the
management tearn develop our strategy and deliver
long-term value for our students, customers and you,
our shareholders

IMAGE REMOVED

Sidney Taurel
Charman

Read our full Governance section

Governance overview p70-71 Q)
Leadership & effectiveness p72-81
Accountability ps2-20 @
Engagement p90-93 o
Report on directors’ remuneration po4-117 o

Additlanal disclosures p118-123 (5]
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Chief executive’s strategic overview

John Fallon
Chief executive

IMAGE REMOVED

“2015 was a year of change
and challenge at Pearson,
which ultimately will leave
us better placed to meet
the huge unmet demands
in global education.”

Qur strategy

Dear shareholders,

2015 was a year of change and challenge at Pearsan,
which ultimately will leave us better placed to meet
the huge unmet demands in global education

The biggest change was that, with the sale of the
Financial Times Group and our stake in The Economust,
we completed Pearson’s exit from the financial news
and information market We thought long and hard
about these disposals, It)s not easy to part with such
globally respected brands, which have been an
important part of Pearson for many years After
careful consideration, the board concluded that these
transactions made strategic sense, achieved a good
financial return for sharehclders, and were in the best
long-term interest of both The Economist and the
Financial Times

The pace of disruptive change in new technology -

in particular, the growth of mobile and socral media -
poses a direct challenge to how leading news
organisations produce and sell their journalism

The best way to ensure continuing success s to be part
of a global, digltai news organisation that is compietely
focused on the business of journahsm We concluded
that new owners with strong track records inmedia
woutld help growthe FT and The Economist's global
reach and reputation in a digital age, just as we
secured Penguln’s creative and commercial future by
combining It with Random House to create the wortd's
largest consumer pubhisher, Penguin Random House
That business, of which we own a 47% stake, continues
to perform well, as you can read on page 33

Short-term priorities

Strategic growth drivers

Deliver transformation

Simplhfy our business

Stronger cash generation

A growing company

Digital & services

Build on cur global strength
In educatonal courseware
and assessmentwith
leading digital products
and services, where we see
the greatest potential for
growth, scalability and
Impact on learner progress

Market presence

Our strategy to build on our
leadhing presence in developed
markets, and the opporiunity
to meet growing global demand
for education
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Challenges in 2015

A clear strategy

These disposals enable us to focus more fully on our
education business, which was where we faced our
biggest challenge last year The cyclical and policy
related headwinds we face in our major education
markets - which we have described in previous years
and which we cover later in this report - are persisting
for ionger than we anticipated They are also having a
more pronounced impact on our profitabiity thanwe
expected, reducing our annual operating profit by
approximately £230m from its peak These headwinds
are largely cyclical and, over the next two years, they
should finally abate

This means that, although operating profit and earmings
per share were only down marginally in underlying
terms on the previous year, they fell short of the goals
we set at the start of the year

Our strong competitive performance

Pearson’s competitive performance remains strong
We held or increased our market share in higher
education courseware, school courseware, andin UK
general qualifications [n professional testing, virtual
schoolmg, onhne higher education and other areas
we Increased our capabilities, our reach and our
commercial success substantlally You can read more
about our operating performance on pages 16-33

We are also confident that education remains an
attractive investment opportunity with the growth
potentsal to enable us to serve more students around
the world and deliver good, sustainable returns to
our shareholders

Our strategy to capitaiise on this opportunity 1s clear
As the world's learning company, Pearson has world-
class capabilities and products in educational
courseware and assessment, powered by learning
technology By combining these capabilities with
teaching and learning services, we help schools,
universities and others to scale online, reach more
people and ensure better learning outcomes Aswe
do so, we provide Pearson with alarger market
opportunity, a sharper focus on the fastest-growing
education markets and stronger financial returns

This approach recognises that education 1s undergoing
a number of structural changes The economic value
of an education remains large Inthe US, for example,
the earmings premium of a university degree has never
been higher However, the cost of education s going up
faster thaninflatron ~ and public funding for education
1s under real pressure This presents our customers -
university presidents, schoo! superintendents,
teachers and facuity, students and their parents -

with a real challenge

It is compounded by the fact that nsing costs have
not brought any real increases in learning cutcomes -
which remain uneven and variable - and thereis an
alarming mismatch between the expectations of
educators and employers For example, according to
Gallup research from 2014, 96% of chief academic
officers i the US rate therr institution as scmewhat
or very effective at preparing students for the world
of work Yetonly 11% of business leaders agree

Measurable outcomes

Our efficacy programme 15 our

long term commutment to delivering
measurableimpact 1tInforms all
strategic decision making across
Pearsaon, including our product

and services strategy Wewilll

begin reporting formally on this
impact from 2018

Our constant goals

Generate sustainable returns by

Deiivering long-term growth

Extending our global presence
and reach

Building on our [eading
education position

To deliver measurable impact
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Chef executive’s strategic overview continued

Helping teachers to be more effective
and students more successful

We know that technology can help to address these
challenges, by making learning more accessible,
flexible, personal and affordable For example, we
are drawing on the latest digital advances to develop
products which further customise and personaiise
learning Sowe are embedding learning analytics in
our new courseware offerings, such as Revel, to help
teachers use data to teach students more effectively

For students themselves, we are using adaptwe
learning technologies to focus therr studies on
concepts which require more time and attention

We are developing new qualifications and certifications
that help students to transiate education into
employment by assessing career-relevant knowledge
and skafls, providing quality assurance to schools,
universities and employers For example, last year we
ran nearly 50 million practice or actual assessments
for students on digital devices in the US using our
TestNav application, aligning these new teststo

higher standards for career and college readiness

Online degree and virtual online school programmes
represent 10% of Pearson today, from nothing five
years ago - and are growing at double-digit rates each
year With a solid platform and market position in the
US, we are now growing these businesses globally
With the global online programme management
market set to double in the next five years, there will
be many more opportunities for Pearsen to partner
with universities to improve learning

This opportunity is highlighted through our long-
standing partnership with Arizona State University,
where we are helping to recruit, retain and teach
several thousand onhne students Asmore and more
universities and students embrace the possibilities
for improving access and success in education using
technology, there will be many more opportumities for
Pearson to partner with institutions on course design,
studentrecruitment and onbne tuition

Ali of our new products and services are underpinned
by our efficacy approach, launched three years ago,
which 1s designed to ensure that we help teachers to
be more effective, and students to be more successful
We are cormmitted to reporting on the learming impact
of our indivtdual products from 2018 onwards, through
independently audited evidence and reports We are
makmng good progress towards this target, as you can
read later in this report {(pages 46-53)

Our success in helping our customers address these
structural changes in education should enable Pearson

to Increase our average revenue per customer, and access
larger markets as we provide educational services far
broader than just stand-alone content or assessment To
make the most of the opportunity, we are making Pearson
asimpler, better integrated, more cost-efficient company

Sharpening the future

inJanuary we announced a series of actions that wifl
help us to actueve thus goat

We are creating a single global product organisation,
combirung our three previously separate ines of business
We are Integrating our school, chnical and professional
assessment operations in North America We are
reducing our exposure to large, direct delivery operations
to focus on online, virtual, and blended services in a
much more scalable, and profitable way Each of these
changes will help us invest in fewer, bigger opportunities,
and ensure that our world-class capabilities can be scaled

to customers around the globe

We are also making productivity iImprovements across
allour enabling functions like Technology, HR and
Finance - as our product offering and customer and
employee support becomes more digital We plan to
rationalise our property portfolio and consolidate major
suppher agreements to drnive greater cost efficency

As a result of these changes, we expect to reduce
Pearson's global workforce by around 4,000 roles,

10% of our headcount These are decisions that we never
take lightly and we are committed to supporting our
colleagues during the transition These actions will be
complete by the end of 2016, and will reduce our annual
running costs by around £350m tmportantly, they will
also create a more focused, integrated business, better
able to create and self products across our markets to
improve learning outcomes Thisrestructuring will give
us the improved operational and financial flexibility to
invest in growth areas and underpin shareholder returns

Our reach and impact

Big changes in the educatton landscape will create big
opportunities for Pearson to grow our reach and impact

There are huge unmet demands in global education that
need to be addressed

In higher education, the number of students going to
university worldwide is expected to increase by more

than 50 million to 260 million by 2025 Every one of those
students wants a degree that1s more affordable, more
accesstble and more likely to lead to a goodjob One bithon
peaple will soon be learning English worldwide School
students and teachers increasingly expect to learn digitally




Sectron 1 Our business o7

Sowe plan to tncrease access to high quality education,
ensure the success of all our learners against
measurable outcomes, and to help maore people
around the world make progress intherr lives - giving
them the ability to secure a better job and a better life

Aswell as measuring the impact of individual products,
we should also be measuring Pearsor's totalimpact on
learning We are committed to armbitious goals to
expand our reach and impact over the next decade

We currently reach around 75 milhon learners each year
By 2025, our aspiration is to reach 200 million learners
each year - more than doubling cur reach These
ambitious goals will contribute not only to Pearson's
success, butto the societies of which we are a part

in 2015 Pearson joined cther businesses and worid
leaders In committing to the UN's Sustainable
Development Goals {SDGs) The SDGs represent global
challenges, many of which can be alleviated through
better literacy and better education In particular,

Goal 4 of the SDGs, to ‘ensure inclusive and equitable
quality educatron and promote fifefong opportunities for
aff’,1s central to the work of every Pearson employee
and the milions of teachers and students we work with
around the world each year

To help maximise our contribution towards these goals,
1N 2015 we continued our strong commitment to
sustalnability, buit new relatienships with partners

hike Save the Children and supported a new coalition
called Project Literacy (Read more about Pearson's
socialimpacton pages 54-67 }

We also invested in the Pearson brand in 2015 and

it continues as an area of focus in the year ahead
Budding a stronger brand will give us a better platform
to reach more students and teachers, and act as a mark
of quality as we develop and deliver new services across
education We have introduced a new visual brand
capturing the cunosity and excitement of learning,
which will unify Pearson's portfolio of products and
services overtime The new brand Is represented in

this annual report for the first time

My executive team

Our long-term opportunity

It's clear that 2016 will be a tough year as we work
through the substantial change programme outlined
abave Our plan focuses on operational execution,
ught cost management and a sharper strategy to
return to growth We will be faster, leaner and more
agile as a resuit of the changes we are making

We expact our business to stabilise into 2017 and
return to growth 1n 2018

We remain committed to the long-term opportunity
for Pearson to provide high quality, affordable and
accessible education that leads to a better job and
abetter hfe For many people, learning i1s the route to
ajobte supporttheir famiby or to acquiring the skills
to help them progress in their career For others, it's
simply a passion for discovery that enriches their lives
All over the world, we hear parents say the same thing
they want to see a greater return on the(r investment
in education, so that their children can gain skills, get
better jobs and succeed In their ives That remains
avery compeilling and exciting opportunity

This powerful motivating purpose is what drives
Pearson's business, which carries with it great
responsibilities to tearners aswell as to you, our
shareholders In 2016, we are focused on delivering
these responsibifities, and the plans laid out in this
report explain how they will be achieved Weare
confident that they will ultimately make Pearson

a stmpler, stronger company, and that they set the
company up for a sustained period of growth

We'll keep you updated on aur progress

Thank you for your ongoing support

IMAGE REMOVED

John Fallon
Chief executive

Coram Whlliams Chief Financlal Officer

Michael Barber Chief Educatton Adwvisor

Tim Bozik President Global Product

Rod Bristow President Core Markets

Giovanm Giovannelli President Growth Markets

Albert Hitchcock Chief Technolagy and Operations Officer
Kate James Chief Corporate Affairs Qfficer

Daon Kilburn President North America

Bob Whelan President Pearson Assessments

Mahnda Wolfe Chief Human Resources Officer
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Our business model

Crealing value by developing products and services that
meet learner needs most effectively.

At the heart of this is our efficacy strategy which over the
long-term provides insight and data on the full impact of
our products and services.

From 2018 our efficacy programme will be reporting on this.

How our strategy aligns with value creation

Digital & services
Plan and develop

We combine our insights
inte market need with our
global education experuse
This perspective informs
the planning and
development of all our
teaching and learning
products and services,
driven by technotogy,

and shapes those where
we place the greatest
investment

Market presence
Market, sell and serve
Qur leading position in
educational courseware
and assessment enables
us to build our capabilities
in fast-growtng related
services Weuse our
experience and expertise
acrass the business

to develop scalable,
successful products

and services, always
meeting learner needs

Measurable outcomes
Assess and

provide insight

We measure and assess
the impact of our products
and services on learner
outcomnes This feeds

into our global tnsights
capabflities, enabling

us to build a deep
understanding of {earners’
and customers’ needs,
and develop world-class
products and services

See a summary of our strategy on p04-05 [ ]
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Capture insight
Exploring customer
and learner needs to
identify opportunities

Develop strategy & plan
Major product divisions
Integrated with geographic
markets to set strategrc
prionties

Develop product
Developedwith insight from
geographiesto address
specificiocal needs

IMAGE REMOVED

Assess impact

Measuring efficacy and
understanding the learner
informs all decisions made
through the cycle

Serve

Customer service and
supportis ashared
responstbility with different
owners at different stages

Market & seli

Sales activity supported
with guidance from global
brand and marketing
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Financial overview

Coram Willkkams
Chief financial officer
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“In 2015, Pearson’s sales
decreased by £72m in
headline terms to £4.5bn.
Total adjusted operating
profit rose £1m to £723m.”

Sates {at CER)

-5%

Adjusted earnings per share

+5%

Operaung cash flow

-33%

Dwidend per share

+2%

Business performance

Headline CER Underlying

£ mithons 2015 2014 growth growth growth
Sales 4,468 4,540 (2% {5)% (2%
Adjusted

operating

profit 723 722 - {3)% {2)%
Adjusted

earnings

per share 703p 667 5%

Operating

cash flow 435 649  (33)%

Net debt 654) (1,639) 60%

Statutory results

Headline CER Underlying

£millions 2015 2014 growth growth growth
Sales 4,468 4,540 (2)%
Operating

(loss)/profit (404} 348
{Lass)/profit

before tax {433) 255

Profit for

theyear 823 470 75%
Basic earnings

pershare 1012p 581p 74%
Cash

generated

from

operations 518 704  (26)%
Dwvidend

per share 52p 5p 2%

a) Growth rates are stated on a constant exchange rate (CER) basls
unless otherwise stated Where quoted, underiying growth rates
exclude both currency movemenis and portfolio changes Unless
otherwise stated, sales exclude FT Group, whife total adjusted
operating profitsinclude FT Group Contlnuing operations exclude
FT Group

b} The‘business performance’measures are non-GAAP measures and
reconcillations to the equivalent statutory heading under iFRS are
included 1n notes to the consolidated financial statements 2,6, 7, 8
and 32, and the corporate and operating measures
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Profit and loss statement

Return oninvested capital

in 2015, Pearson‘s sales decreased by £72min headhine
termsto £4 5bn Total adjusted aperating profit rose
E£Etmto£723m (2014 £722m)

Currency movements, primarily from the depreciation
of sterling against the US doflar during the period,
increased sales by £137m and operating profits

by £22rn

At constant exchange rates{i e stripping outthe
impact of those currency movements), our sales fell
by 5% primarily due to a change in revenue mode! at
Connections Education which now records revenues
charged at cost on a net basss, and adjusted operating
profit fell by 3% due to revenue mix and an operating
loss in our Growth segment

The net effect of acquisitions, disposals and revenue
model adjustments reduced sales by £129m and
operating profits by £9m

Stripping out the impact of portfolio changes and
currency movements, revenues were down 2%
inunderlying terms while adjusted operating profit
fell 2%

Net interest payable 1n 2015 was £46m, compared
to £64min 2014 Ourtax rate in 2015was 15 5%
compared to 17 9% 1n 2014 The decrease in both
Interest and tax was primarly due to agreement
on histoncal tax posihons and the release of
associated accrued interest

Adjusted earnings per share were 70 3p {2014 66 7p)

Cash generation

Headitne operating cash flow decreased by £214m to
£435m as a result of challenging trading and disposals
Operating cash conversion fell from 90% in 2014 to 60%
in 2015 due to a mismatch between cash and accrued
incentive compensatton as a result of lower Incentive
compensatton awards for 2015 when compared to
2014, capital expenditure greater than depreciation
due to investments inour enabling function technology
designed to lower administrative costs, anincrease

1n US Higher Education textbook returns, and penston
top-up payments as a result of a triennial valuation
These factors were partly offset by anincreased
dividend payment from Penguin Random House

Our return on average invested capital was 5 8% (2014
5 6%) primarily due to lower operating cash tax paid

Statutory results

Our statutory results showed a profit for the year
aftertax of £823m, including gains on the disposal

of the Finanaal Times Group, The Economist Group
and PowerSchool of £1,214m and an impairment of
goodwill and intangtbles of £849m, primanily reflecting
trading pressures in our Growth and North Amenca
businesses Included within the net gain on disposal

is a £70m balance sheet wnte downon the disposal

of PowerSchool, related to the reduced market
opportunity for software [such asPearson System

of Courses and Schoalnet) which was to be integrated
with PowerSchool and the recognition that adoption
of such software in US Schools 1s now unlikely to occur
at the rate oniginally envisaged

Balance sheet

Our net debt decreasedto £654m (2014 £1,639m)
primarily refiecting the disposals of the Financial Times,
The Economist Group and PowerSchool and an
increased dvidend from Penguin Random House,
offset by the strengthening of the US doilar relative to
sterting, a higher group dividend and higher working
capital Pearson's net debt/EBITDAratio decreased
from 1 9x in 2014 to 0 8xin 2015 and our interest cover
increased from 11 3xto 15 7x

Dividend

$S3U[SNG JNQ
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The Board I1s propostng a flat finat dvidend of 34p,
which resultsin a 29 increase In the overall 2015
divtdend to 52p, subject to shareholder approval
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Fnancal overview continued

2016 outlook

in 2016, we expect to report adjusted operating profit
before restructuring costs of between £580mand
£620m Ths reflects the impact of the in-yearbenefits
from restructuring offset by the loss of operating profit
from disposals made in 2015, ongoing challenging
conditions in our largest markets, the reinstatement
of the employee incentive pool and other operational
factors (iIncluding dual running costs as we rationalise
our technology infrastructure, cost inflation and
increased pre-publication amortisation relating to
new praduct launches)

We expect adjusted earnings per share to be between
50p and 55p, after a normalised interest charge of
approximately £60m and a tax rate of approximately
19% In 2016, we are excluding the one-off cost of our
major restructuring from adjusted operating profit and
earnings per share to better reflect the underiying
earnings potential of the business Operating profit
after restructuring charges is expected to beinthe
£260m to £300m range This guidance 1s based on our
current portfolic of businesses and exchange rates on
31 December 2015

The major factors behind this guidance are as follows

Trading canditions

While we expect ta achieve continued good growthin
areas such as virtual schools and online programme
management, we anticipate trading conditions to
remaln challenging in our major markets In 2016

North America

In North America, our largest market, we anticpate US
college enrolments will be flat given forecast modest
improvements in US employment, a smaller adopticn
market in K-12 learning services and lower participaticn
rate partially offset by growth 1n open territories driven
by new preducts, reduced testing revenues in North
Amernica reflectng State and National Assessment
contract losses worth approximately £100rm announced
in 2015, and growth 1n clinical assessments and
professtonal certification

Core

In cur Core markets (which include the UK, italy and
Australia), we expect declines in vocational course
registrations in UK schools, ongoing pressure in our
various learning services businesses, partially offset
by growth in managed services in Austrafia and the
UK At VUE, we wili cease to deliver the contractto
admunister the UK Dnving Theory test for the DVSA
in September 2016

Growth

In our Growth markets (which include Brazil, China,
India and South Africa), we expect continued pressure
in South Africa on government spending ontextbooks
and lower enrolments in CTI, macro-economic
pressures tn emerging markets, specificaliy China

and Brazil, offset by growth from new products such
as our Wall Street Enghish new student experience

Penguin Random House

In Penguin Random House, we anticipate that
addittonal benefits from the ongoing integration

of the business will be broadly offset by reduced
demand for eboaks, following industry-wide changes
interms in 2015
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Portfoho changes

We completed the sale of PowerSchool on 31 July
2015 for £222m, the sale of the finanoial Times on

30 Navember 2015 for £858m, and substantially
completed the sale of our 50% stake In The Econormist
Group on 16 October 2015 for £469m {n addition

we disposed of Fronter and a number of print
textbook lists in the US Total disposals contnbuted
approximately £90m to 2015 operating profitwhich
will not recurin 2016

Other operational factors

Dual running costs from technology impiementations,
Increased nvestment amortisation from new product
launches and cost inflation wilt increase costs by
approximately £20m1n 2016 when compared to 2015

Incentive compensation

Group incentive compensation was zeroin 2015
reflecting the weakness of performance versus budget
The incentive pool will be reinstated to £110m in 2016
to ensure our workforce 1s incentivised to sustainits
strong competitive performance and to implement a
significant programme of change within the company

Restructuring

Bullding on the work we have done over the last three
years, we are taking further achion to simpiify our
business, reduce our costs and position Pearson for
growth in our major markets Wewill create a single
courseware product organisation, integrate our North
America assessrment operations, reduce our exposure
to large scale direct delivery and focus on more scalable
cnline, virtua), and blended services, implement major
efficcency improvements across all our enabling
functions -technology, finance, HR, and rationalise our
property portfolio and renegotiate and consolidate
major supplier agreements

To implement this programme, we witl incur costs of
approximately £320m in 2016 and expect to generate
annualised savings of approximately £350m, with
approximately £250m of savings in 2016 and a
further £100m of savings in 2017 We have already
implemented a number of significant assoclated
acttons since announcing the programme tn January

Currency movements

In 2015, Pearson generated approximately 63% of its
sales inthe US, 6% in Greater China, 5% 1n the Euroczone,
3% in Brazil, 2% 1n Canada, 2% in Austratia, 2% in South
Africaand 1% nIndia and our guidance 15 based on
exchange rates at 31 December 2015

Interest and tax

We expect our interest charge tobe approximately
£60m, with lower average net debt levels offset by
the absence of released accrued interest payments
following agreement on historical tax positions

We expect a tax rate of approximately 19% on our
total profit before tax (which includes the post-tax
contribution frem Penguin Randem House)

IMAGE REMOVED

Coram Williams
Chief finanoal officer
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Key performance indicators

Fve-year performance

Financial objectives

KP

Performance

Mamtain
long-term
growth

Sales

Sales fell 5% at CER in 2015 and have grown over the last five years at an average
annual rate of over 1%, reflecting good long-term growth in digital and services
businesses and acquisitions in the global education market, partially offset by

a shift to subscription revenues, recent ¢ychcal and policy factors and adverse
exchange rate movements In emerging markets

+1.2%

Tetal adjusted operating profit

Total adjusted operating profit fell 3% in 2015 at CER and has fallen at a compound
annual rate of 5 1% since 2010 reflacting good long-term growth in digital and
services offset by the sale of businesses, recent cyclical and policy factors and
adverse exchange rate movemnentsin emerging markets

-5.1%

Dehver
sustainable
returns

Total adjusted earmings

Total adjusted earnings per share Is up 5% year-on-year n 2015, reflecting portfolio
changes, exchange rate movemnents and alower tax rate Over five years EPS has
dechned at an average annual rate of 1 9% reflecting good long-term growth in our
digitai and services businesses offset by dedines In print, portfolic changes, cyclical
and policy factors and adverse exchange rate movements in emerging markets

-1.9%

Return oninvested capltal

ROIC grew 0 2% to 5 8% 10 2015 and was affected by a lower tax charge ROIC has
fallen from 10 2% in 2010 We expect ROIC to improve as we deliver the plans for
simplification and growth that we announced in January and make progress
towards our 2018 goals

-4.4

percentage points

Total shareholder return

TSR In 2015 was -36% which compares to a -1% return on the FTSE 100 Index of large
UK bisted companies Over flve years, Pearson has returned approximately -11%, weli
behind the retuern on the FTSE 100 Indax of 27% over the same period Ourrecent
shareprice performance has been disappointing but we are confident that the plans
and strategy lald out in this report will make Pearson a simpler, stronger comparny,
and that they set the company up for a sustaned penod of growth and value creation

-11.2%

Dividends per share

We increased dividends m comparisen to 2014 by 2% to 52p, our 24th straight year
of Increasing our dividend above the rate of mflation Pearsen plans to hold its
dividend at the 2015 level whilst it rebuilds cover, reflecting the Board's confidence
in the mediurmn term outlook

+6.1%

Manage our
cash position
effectively

Operating cash flow

Operating cash flow fell to £435m 1n 2015, reflecting an Increase in capital
nvestment in new simphfied systems, higher returns in our US higher education
business due to de-stocking at one major retailer, weaker tradimg and pension
top-ups partly offset by an increased dividend from Penguln Random House
Over five years operating cash flow has declined at an average annual rate of
over 16% per annum, reflecting good long-term growth in aur digital and services
bustnesses offset by declines in pnint, portfolio changes, recent cyclical and
policy factors and adverse exchange rate movements

-16.3%
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Data/Progress Strategic objectives Data/Progress
Transform Digital and services revenue share
to digital and 2010 46 5% 2015 65 0%
IMAGE REMOVED Services £ 2 9b
£2.1bn RY10)1
Grow presence Emerging markets revenue share
m emerging 2010 11 3% 2015 164%
markes £734
M \
AGE REMOVED £475m m
Dehiver » Reporting programme on track far 2018
measurahle »Growth and impact geals set for 2025
. impact Product improvements Identified by efficacy reviews
IMAGE REMOVED D are being implemented on track with plans
(Efficacy) 9 S(y
0
See strategic growth drivers on p04-05 €
Non-financlial measures
IMAGE REMOVED Deliver Gender diversity
gender balance Men Women
Board 7 T0% 3 30%
Senlor managers
(excl executive
board directors) 68 66% 35 34%
IMAGE REMOVED Allemployees 16,781 41% 24,260 59%
Reduce our Global Greenhouse Gas {GHG) emlsslons
carbon fo otprint Metric tonnes CO,e
2015
110,724 s«
IMAGE REMOVED ’ °
2014
129,742
Maintain
commurtity
mvestment
IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOQVED

See Our social Impact section on p54 67 @)
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IMAGE REMOQVED

Operating
performance
overview

Developing for access,
delivering for outcomes

Education is a sector with large growth opportunities
for Pearson The rise of digital and the need for effective
learrming which better equips students for therr future
careers are trends which will benefit us in the long term

Pearscon has world class capabilities and products in
educational courseware and assessment, powered by
learning technology By combining these capabilities with
digital teaching and learning services, we help schools,
universities and others to scale online, reach more people
and ensure better learning outcomes

Our primary segments for management reporting are
Geographies (North America, Core and Growth), as this
is how we drive business performance This 1s how we
reach learners, through content and digital services in
individual classrooms, through broad partnerships with
public and prvate education mstitutions and, In certain
markets, by directly expanding capacity through our
own schaols and colleges

SSRUISNG NG l

Iewopading

vedw jepos ing

SIUEUIBAD0D |

SIUIWALRIS |eDURUL
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Operating performance

Geography

IMAGE REMOVED

North
America

Sales Adjusted operating profit

£29bn £480m

Revenues grew 1% in headiine terms,

due to the depreciation of sterhing against
the US dollar, but fell by 5% at CER and 1%
m underlying terms

In Schoal, strong enroiment growth in Connections
Education, good growth in clinical assessment and
market share gains in courseware were offset by the
impact of a smaller textbook adoptions market and
weakness in the open territories in K-12 courseware,
and a change In revenue model at Connections
Education which records revenue for services
charged at cost on a netbasis

In Higher Education, market share gains in
courseware were offset by lower enrolments (tota)
US college enrolments fell 1 7%, with combined
twa-year public and four-year for-profit enrolments
dechning 4 4%, affected by a nsing employment rate
and regulatory change affecting the for-profitand
developmental learming sectors), higher textbook
returns and listsales Strong enrolment growth at
Pearson online services was offset by lower revenues
from Learning Studio, a higher education learning
management system that we areretiring, and the
impact of a change in revenue model

In Professional, revenues grew strongly at VUE

due to higher volumes of professional certification
assessments Adjusted operating profits rose 8% in
headline terms due to currency movements, fell 1%
at CER and were up 1% in underlying terms, with
contractlossesin school assessment and an adverse
revenue mix offset by tight cost control and the profit
on sale of lists

Read about Tremayne and the
General Education Degree on p20 o
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Operating performance continued

North America
conlinued

School

Connections Education, our virtual school business
served over 68,000 full time equivalent students
through full-ime virtual and blended schoal
programmes in 2015, up 11% from 2014 as a result

of underlying growth and a new statewide schootin
Marth Carolina Connections manages 30 virtual public
schools with three new, full-ime state-wide virtual
public schools approved for the 2016-17 school year

to serve students in Arkansas, Washington and New
Maxico In its annual Parent Satisfaction Survey, 93% of
parents of students enroiled in full-time online partner
schools “recommend” Connections to other families

In courseware, revenue dechned year-on-year despite
strong market share performance, prmanly due toa
smaller overalt adoption rmarket as compared to 2014
Overall market share increased shghtly driven by a
strong performance in new adoption markets where
we won 31% (2014 25%) of new adoptions competed
for, or 29% (2014 25%) of the total new adoption market

of $730mn 2015(2014 $910m), led by a strong
performance n Grades -6 Social Studies in Texas
and Inchana, and in Grades K-6 Science in Oklahema
We expanded iLit, our digital reading intervention
programme, covertng a broader range of students
including English language learners Research studies
show that students using ILit gain two or more years
of reading growth in a year using this tablet-based
programme (http //pear sn/PErhf) We launched
ReadyGEN, a K-6 reading senes and enVisionMATH2 0,
the newest offering in the highly successful
enVistonMATH K-6 maths programme

in State and National Assessments, revenues for the

full year dechned due to contract losses High-stakes
online test volumes grew strongly, up 130% on 2014 to
26 4 milhion, as customers transitioned to computer-
based testing Paper-based ligh-stakes test volumes
grew 3% to 32 7 milion Pearson successfully delivered
English Language, Arts and Math PARCC assessmentsto
5 1 mullion students across ten states and the District of

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

Tremayne, General Education Degree graduate, US

Living in Maryland in the United States, Tremayne was

19 years old when he realised that dropping cut of high
school was a big mistake “) reahised that withouta high
school diploma or GED no one would hire me” He knew he
needed a change, so he turned to the GED Testing Service
to help him and found the MyGED portal fit well with his
lifestyle, *having the GED portal online was very convenient,
very quick [used toaccessiton my phone ™

Tremayne successfully passed the test and is{ocking forward
to exciting new opportunities, “when | recelved my diploma,
I was so proud of myself*”

“Twasn't used to accomplishing much 1n

Iife and 1calised that I could do any thing
Ipulmy mnd to”

He's been accepied into alocal community college In
Maryland and plans to transfer to a fouryear school to
study engineering He hopes one day te start his own
construction business
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Columbia ACT Aspire delivered Commaon Core aligned
college and career readiness assessments to 1 3million
students up 67% from 2014 and was chosen for three
new state-wide deploymentsn 2016 The states of
Arkansas, Mississippl and Ohio will discontinue PARCC
assessments in 2016 We were awarded contractsto
deliver the Indiana Statewide Test of Educational
Progress (ISTEP), renewed the Puerto Rican Tests

, of Academic Achievernent (PPAA) and parts of the
assessments contract awarded by the Texas Education
Agency, and extended our contracts to administer the
Mississippi Science Test and Mississippt Subject Area
Testing Program We ceased to admunister the majority
ofthe current Texas STAAR contract n September 2015
Pearson extended 1ts partnership with the College
Board for the SAT assessment with the award of a five-
year contract for processing of the redesigned SAT and
PSAT assessments Pearson will continue to pravide the
essay-scoring component for the SAT until March 2016

Clinical assessment grew well, benefiting from
continued growth of the fifth editton of the Wechsler
Intelligence Scale for Children (WISC-V), strong growth in
Behavior Assessment for Children 3e (BASC) and rapid
growth in Q-Interactive, Pearson's digital solution for
clinical assessment administration with geographic
expansion and contmued strong growth in active
users to over 9,000 from 4,000 in 2014 with test
administrations up over 400% to 1 3 million sub-tests

IMAGE REMOVED

Bradford, High school student, US

Bradford attends Hart-Ransom Academic Charter High
Schoo!, an independent-study high school, which uses
Connections Learning for its online learning curriculum
Now in the 11th grade, Bradford likes the online
curriculum’s rigour, and has taken advantage of
Connections Learning’s flexibility and self-paced learning
to acceferate his education

“It definttely challenges me academacally,
and thanks to the online learning,
I can pace myself exactly how I need
tobe paced”

8radford appreciates the personal attention he's

recewved from his online learning teachers, like his Spanish
teacher, who he talks tc on the phene, and his Maths
teacher, who meets him virtually in the LiveLesson

room “Ireally llke how involved the teachers are with

the students ™
+11%
o
Connections Education served
over 68,000 Full Time Equivalent
IMAGE REMOVED students through full-trme virtual
and blended schaol programmes

1n 2015, up 11%from 2014
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Operating performance continued

North America
conlinued

IMAGE
REMOVED

Sterling University student, US

Sterling1s currently a jumor in the business school at Texas
A& M University and is majoring in marketing Tofulfila
prerequisite for upper-level businass classes, Sterling took
a State government course online last summer, using
REVEL, Pearson's Interactive learrung programme for the
humanitles and social sciences “iearned so muchinthe
course because it wasn't the same thing every time you
flipped the page,” Sterling explained “There wouldbe a
graph, then avideo, and then a picture And you could get
Invelved with same of the animations ”

“Ireally loved that 1t was so interactive,
because it influenced how well tlearned
and how quickly I picked up the material »

IMAGE REMOVED

1Im

In North America, digital registrations
grew 3% to almost 11 milienwith

Rl!.k’lﬂgc\allEED good growth In Science, Business &
Econamics, Statistics, REVEL and skills

applications like Pearson Wnter

Higher Education

Gross courseware revenues fell 1 5% (compared to
industry gross revenue declines of 2 7%), due to lower
college enrolments offset by market share gains
Netrevenues declined 5 7% (compared to industry
net dechnes of 7 5%) reflecting the impact of igher
returns Our market share in courseware benefited
from strong performance from key titles including
Hubbard Economics Se, Hibbeler Engmneering Mechanics
14e and Marleb Human Anatomy & Physiology 10e

Global digital registrations of MyLab and related
products grew 3% to nearly 13 million in North
America, digital registrations grew 3% to almost

11 mulion with good growth in Science, Business &
Economucs, Statistres, REVEL and skills applications
Iike Pearson Writer, offset by softnessin
developmental Mathematics Faculty-generated case
studies indicate that the use of MyLab programmes,
as part of a broader course redesign, can support
improvements in student test scores and fower
institutianal cost (http /#pear sn/IZxLE) We launched
a suite of features that include Adaptive Practice

in our Myt abs to personalise subjects including
Mathematics and Nursing practice, Predictive
Analytics Early Alerts in Mastering to help science
Instructors support at-nsk students, gamification
features in Business and rich learning analytics
dashbeards in numerous products that offer

deep insightinto students’ progress, performance
and engagement
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In Pearson online services, our higher education
Online Program Management (OPM) bus:ness, course
enrolments grew strongly, up 25% to over 265,000,
boosted by strong growth in Anzona State Unversity
Onhnewhere we renewed our partnership at the start
of 2015 We extended our collaboration with Maryvilie
University to launch a Bachelor and Master’s in
Cybersecunity and a Doctorate in Leadership Ohio
University 1s partnenng with Pearson to launch a
Master’s in Fmnanctal Economics and Public Relations
University of Nevada Reno 1s partnering to increase
access to the Master of Social Work degree
programme online Pearson launched a new
managed programmes service modef with Cinctnnati
State Technical and Community College, adapting
traditional OPM services to the Communrity College
market signing a landmark ten-year agreement

to provide marketing, recruting, admission and
retentton services both to online and ground-based
programmes

In enterprise sofutions, Pearson signed significant
large-scale, enterprise adoptions of cross-discipline
digital content, where content s purchased via an
upfrant course fee and integrated with university

IT systems, with Jones County College, National
Umversity, Algongqum College and the University of
Missouri system We signed an expanded strategic
partnership agreement with Southern New
Hampshire University’s (SNHU) Cellege of Online

and Continuing Education (COCE) Pearson wil!
support curriculum development, online tutonng,
enterprise-wide content and data integration, ebooks
with a print-on-demand optien and data and analytics
services, which wilt provide greater visibility into
students’ achievement oflearning outcomes

The Charles A Dana Center at The University of
Texas at Austinis collaborating wath Pearson to
provide webbased course resources to commupnity
colleges across Texas that dramatically shorten the
time It takes for students to earn colfege creditin
mathematics as part of the New Mathways Project
Three courses were launched in 2015 Foundations
Mathematical Reasoning, Statisties Reasoning and
Quantitative Reasoning, with more planned in 2016

Pearson was named asthe premier US Green Building
Counail Education Partner and will offer curriculum
and course services to universities, associations,
training companies, corporations, and workforce
education and apprenticeship programmes We are
partnering with Broward College to launch new
competency-based workforce certification pathways
focused on IT and Healthcare Pearson will support
Broward's strategy by prowiding 12 industry
certifications with existing workforce education
courseware, aswell as curriculum development
services to builld new courses towards certification
and the Acclain badging platform

Professional

In professional certification, VUE global test volumes
grew 11% year-on-year to 14 2 miflion, boosted by
continued growth in T, Professional and GED,

with increased volumes from Microsoft Cerufied
Professional (MCP) Program globally, National

Council of State Boards of Nursing and US teacher
certrfication programmes VUE renawed the Ceruport
Miscrosoft Office Specialists and Microsoft Technology
Associate programmes for an additional year and
extended our partnership with Cisco Systems for
three and a halfyears
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Operating performance continned

Geography

core

Sales Ad)justed operating profit

£836m  £114m

Revenues declined by 8% 1n headline terms,
5% at CER and in underlying terms

Growth in Pearson online services in Australla, Wall
Street Enghshin taly, Clinical Assessment in Germany
and the Pearson Test of English in Australia was more
than offset by revenue declines in UK qualifications
as the business nears the end of a penod of policy
change, revenue declines at VUE, phasing and market
weakness in Austraian higher education courseware
and the focusing of cur UK school courseware on
products that directly support Pearson Qualifications
Adjusted operating profit (excluding the FT, The
Economist and Mergermarket) deciined 2%in
underlying terms due to lower revenue offset by
tight cost control

IMAGE REMOVED
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Read about Sarah and Pearson Collegeon p26 °

IMAGE REMOVED
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Operating performance continued

Core
continued

School

In assessment, UK quatfications have been impacted
by government poticy, where changes to accountability
measures have led to a further 20% decline n BTEC
registrations in 2015 GCSE and GCE entrles for summer
2015 grew modestly compared with 2014, resulting
from increases in GCSE registrations in Sport, ICT and
Business and strength in 1GCSE entries We successfully
delivered the National Curriculum Test for 2015,
marking 4 million scripts from % 7 million students and
successfully transitioned the marking of thetest to an
online-cnly model

in courseware, UK School revenue fell with growth
in primary school more than offset by declinesin
secondary, as the vocational market contracted and
our upper secondary revenues were impacted by
lower market participation as we focus on products

that directly support our qualifications More than
5,400 UK schools now subscribe to at least one Bug
Ciub service, our primary school blended reading
programme, representing growth of nearly 16% in
the year There are over 1 8 million pupils, more than
9,000 schools and 152,000 teachers currently using a
service on ActiveLearn Primary ltaly revenues declined
shghtly with market share gains in primary offset

by market weakness and a lower share in upper
secondary Australia revenues declined, with growth
and increased market share in primary more than
offset by a weaker secondary market

Clinical assessment grew well with Germany benefiting
from strong growth in Kaufman Assessment Battery for
Children (K-ABC), partly offset by dechines in Austraha,
after astrong year in 2014 dniven by the release of
Wechsler Primary and Preschool Scale of Inteligence (v

IMAGE - IMAGE
REMOCVED REMOVED

IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED

$arah, Pearson Coliege London student, UK

Sarah works in the marketing team at Nest!é, having
graduated from Pearson College Londan last September
She says “Education gave me the confidence to take a step
back from a career path that | was unhappy withand find a
newdirection It gave me the flexibility to study a full degree
In two years which enabled me to get back on my career
ladder as soon as possible ©

“Pearson College London gave me the skills
to unpress atinterview, the knowledge to
succeed 1n my new role and the confidence
to apply 1n the first place.”

*Through the degree, and the envireonment, | was able

to understand what | wanted from a career and find
the right move forme "

Noel, Pearson VUE customer, UK

The Chartered lnstitute of Management Accountants (CIMA)
has worked in partnershlp with Pearson VUE to transform
its portfolio of professional-level exams frompen and
paper to computer-based testing Noel Tagoe, Executive
Director of CIMA, says “By maximising the opportunities
offered through technological advances in computerised
assessment, we can access a wide range of testing methods
assess a vanety of skills and competencies at different
levels, and offer ruch greater flexibility for where and when
examinations are taken All of whichwill be of tremendous
benefit to both students and, impaortantly, employers
These changes will take fuil advantage ofthe role that
technotogy plays in the lives of the younger generation,

and reflect the evolution Inthe workplace ”
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Higher Education

Professional

In courseware, UK revenues dechned, primanly due
to a weak market In Australia, revenues declined
significantly due to phasing and market weakness

in onhine services, our Australian University
Partnerships business grew strongly with combined
course enrolments of nearly 4,000, up 380% from 2014
The growth of our partnership with Monash Untversity
was led by the Graduate Diploma in Psychology, which
1s now one of Monash's largest postgraduate courses
Cur new partnership with Gniffith University started
very strongly, seeing consistent demand for the MBA
pregramme and the launch of two further courses
Kings College London partnered with Pearson to launch
online postgraduate degree programmes in Psychology
and Law

Total enrofled students at Pearson College doubled
to232

The Pearson Test of English Academic (PTEA) saw
strong growth in test volumes and revenues after
gaining approval from the Australian Department
of Immugration and Border Protection to administer
abroad range of language tests inked to visa
applicattons

wall Street English revenues fell shghtly with strong
growthin italy offset by declines in Germany

IMAGE
REMOVED

Stephanie, Winner of Qutstanding BTEC Student of the Year
Award 2015, UK

Stephanie studied a Level 3 Dlploma in Health and Social Care
atPenwith College inthe UK She [s passionate about helping
others and her outstanding achievements in college and in
the fotal community marked her out to the BTEC Award
Judges as truly outstanding

Stephanie supported herself financially with paid
employment as a community carer alongside her BTEC
She juggled long working hours with her studies, yet still
far exceeded the 100-hour work experience requirements
of her course, completing a range of placements in hospital
wards, care hormes and day care centres She also
participated in many local voluntary projects working with
individuats In her community who are isolated and lonely

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Operating performance continued

Geography

Growth

Sales Adjusted operating loss

£092m -£12m

Revenues tell 4% mheadline terms, were flat
at CER and fell 1% in underlying terms

In China, revenues grew modestly reflecting strong
sales of premium services Inour direct delivery
English Language Learning businesses offset by list
disposals In Brazil, revenues were stable with good
growthin private sisternas andlanguage schools,
offset by dechnes in government funded ststemas and
language schools In South Africa, revenues dechned
significantly due to a smaller textbook adoption cycle
and lower enrolments at CTl, due te areductionin
the number of qualified students graduating from
high school and tightening consumer credit affecting
re-enrolment rates In the Middle East, our business
was impacted by the withdrawal from the Saud
Arabian Colleges of Excellence

Adjusted operating profitdecreased £44mto a loss
of £12m due to the strengtheming of Sterling against
key Emerging Market currencies, revenue declines

in South Africa, a contract terminationcharge arising
from the transition of our three Saudi Colleges to hew
providers, cost inflation and additional investmentin
China, partially offset by the benefits of restructuring
and integration in Brazit

Read about Mpho and MG on p30 €
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Operating performance continued

Growth
continued

School

inSouth Africa, there was continued pressure on
Government spending on textbooks due to budget
pressures, which resulted in the value of the textbook
market falling 60% from a peak of R2 9bn 1n 2013

to an estimated R1 15bn in 2015 We continued to
perform well competitively and maintained aleading
market share

In Brazil, sistemas revenues grew well with strong
growth n private sistemas partly offset by declinesin
NAME, our public sistema, following the cancellation

of a large contract as a result of government spending
cuts QOverall sistera enrolments fell 7% to nearly
449,000 with dechines in NAME partly offset by growth
nour three private sistemas, led by our largest sistema,
COC Morethan half of COC schools that participated in
the High School Natronal Exam (ENEM) ranked among
the top three schools in their municipalities

IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED

Mpho, MGI graduate, South Africa

Mpho Nethengwe is a 28 year-old MGI graduate who
1s now a Wniting and Communication Skiis and English
Lecturer at her alma mater in Midrand She says

“The skills I acquired at MGl made it
easter for me to step into my role m the
working world Iam able to take on every
challenge as 11 comes, to reflecton,
evaluate and improve on what to do in
order to remain productive ”
Mpho has ambitions of putting her learning and experlence

into practice, even explonng a possible future career in
communlcations at Pearson Wa think she'd be areal asset

In India, enrofments at our managed schools grew
14% to nearly 27,000 students and we launched a
pilot in more than 60 schoafs of MyPed:a, an inside
service ‘sistemna’ solution for schools comprising
print and digltal content, assessment and academic
support services

Middie East school courseware and professional
development revenues grew strongly on improved
distribution

Higher Education

in South Africa, after strong growth over a number of
years, student enrolrments at CTlumversities fell by 16%
to 11,300 driven by a 13% decline in qualified graduating
high school students and tightening consumer credst
affecting re-enrolment rates

In Mexico, our fully accredited online university
partnership, UTEL, increased the number of students
enroiled by 34% to nearly 12,600

+14%

Enrelments atour
managed schools
inindia grew 14%

IMAGE REMOVED
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In Indma, Higher Education courseware revenues grew
strongly Cornell University partnered with Pearson
to launch the Cornell-ILR Experrenced Managers
Programme inindia, with a blended learning approach
combining online and in-person instruction

In the Middle East, our three-year partnership with
Tatbah University in Saud) Arabia, to enable its
transformation to a fully blended and personafised
learning model, is progressing with over 4,000 students
enrolled in our solutronin 2015 Our partnership
with the Preparatory Year Deanship at Um Al Qura
University (PYP-UQU), to provide online learning and
assessment technology has delivered 13,000
MyMathLab, MyITLab and MasteringPhysics licences
We withdrew from an agreement to run three Saud:
Arabian Colleges of Excellence, with the colleges
transitioning to new providers from 30 June 2015
This resulted in atermination charge

+34%

In Mexico, our fully
accredited online
university partnership,
UTEL, increased the
number of students
enrolied by 34%

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Alvir, English student, Brazil

Alviris 2 17 year-okd who has been studying at Wizard for
three years Inthe beginming, studying Enghshwas only a

way to remember his father, whe used to love the language
But studying evolved into something bugger and helped him
to achieve his goals, he got his firstjob as an assistant teacher
atWizard, and took the TOEIC exam, achieving the maximum
990 points Alvir says that English has halped him to meet
new people and now his goal is to live abroad some day

IMAGE REMOVED
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Operating performance continued

Growth
conlinued

Professional

InPearson English, good growth in direct delivery in
China, private expenditure in language schools in Brazil,
and English Language Teaching (ELT) was partly offset
by the impact of lower public expenditure in language
schools in Brazil

In China, Wall Street English (WSE) achieved strong
revenue growth, reflecting success in the premium
segment and the growth in VIP branded offerings
Overall enrolments grew modestly to over 67,000 with
new enrolments growing strongly We faunched the
New Student Experience {NSE) in six pilot centres during
December 2015 The NSE delivers a major upgrade

to the Wall Street English service with adaptive,
personaiised learning incorporating Pearson's Globat
Scale of English

Global Education achieved moderate revenue growth

as the market shifted to more intensive premium

courses with smaller class sizes and new products,

which resulted in enrolments dechming 6 5% to 85,110 ‘

We launched around 30 new MyEngiishlLab products
including Top Notch 3e and Progress MyTOEFLLaband
the second edition of MyIELTSLab successfully launched
in China iIn WSE and Global Education Global student
registrations for MyEnglishLab and other ELT digital
courseware grew 14% to 739,000 Pearson Test of
English grew strongly in India

Grupo Multi in Brazil saw strong revenue growth

at Wizard, our consumer-facing franchised English
language learning business, but this was offset

by declines ingovernment orders due to public
spending cuts We opened 40 new school-in-school
units for Multi English franchises n K-12 sistemas
partner schools

IMAGE
REMOVED

Angelina, Wall Street Enghsh graduate, China

Angehnaruns a wedding planning company in Shenzhen,
China Learming Enghish with Wall Street Enghish has
enabled her to attract more Internatlonal clients Sheis
now qualified with a top wedding planning institution In
North America and Is realising her dream of giving couples
their perfect wedding memories

IMAGE REMOVED
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Penguin Random House

Pearson owns 47% of Penguin Random House, the
first truly global consumer book publishing company

Penguin Random House had a strong performance in
2015, boosted by publication of hundreds of Adult and
Children's bestsellers across Its territories, including
the fiction mega-successes of Grey and The Girl en the
Train, which each sold over 7 million coples worldwide

The US business published 584 New York Times print
and ebook bestseflers in 2015 (2014 760, based on

a broader New York Times title count than 2015)

The division benefited from the multi-mithon copy
successes of Grey by E Ljames and the Adult debut
navel The Girf on the Train by Paula Hawkins
Children’s authors who extended their outstanding
sales in 2015 include Dr Seuss, John Green, R j
Palacio, James Dashner, Rick Yancey, Drew Daywalt,
and Oliver Jeffers Additional notable Adult titles
wclude The Life-Changing Magic of Tidying Up by Mane
Kondo, Rogue Lawyer by john Grisham, Lost Ccean
byJohanna Basford, Between The Worid and Me by
Ta-Nehisi Coates, and the mowvte tie-in paperback
The Martian by Andy Wer

The UK business published 201 titles on the Sunday
Times bestseller hsts (2014 206) The division enjoyed
outstanding sales for Grey and The Girl on the Tramn,
which each seld more than 2 mitlien UK copies, and
for Harper Lee's Go Set A Watchman and Jamie Oliver's
Everyday Super Food Greatdemand continued for
JeffKinney's Diary of a Wimpy Kid and John Green's
titles, and for DK Publishing’s Star Wars pubhcations

Penguin Random House's promising 2016 publishing
lists include new titles from Lisa Brennan-jobs, Bill
Bryson, Lee Child, Harlan Coben, Phil Collins, janet
Evanovich, Ina Garten, John Grisham, Jazz Jennings,
Jeff Kinney, Marne Kondo, John le Carre, Jojo Moyes,
Jamie Cliver, James Patterson, Nathaniel Philbrick,
Pope Francis, Nora Roberts, John Sandford, Dantelle
Steel and Star Wars

Pengum Random House completed the sale of

Author Solutions, its supported self-publishing
services company, to an affihate of Najafi Companues,
an international private-investment firm, on

31 Decemnber, and sold its Australian online boakseller
Bookworld to online retailer Booktopia in August

The integration of Penguin and Random House
continued to provide net benefits through
organisational alignments and systems, and
warehouse combinations in 2015, as well as for 2016
and thereafter The North America warehouse
consolidation was completed in February 2015, and
in December, the UK business announced itwill be
gradually dosing its Rugby distribution centre and
refocating its nventory to two other locations

The integration in Spain and Latin America of
Santiliana with Grupo Editorial Penguin Random
House remains on course
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Other financial information

Net finance costs

Alifigures in£ millions 2015 2014
Netinterest payable (46) {64)
Finance income in respect of

employee benefit plans 4 1

Other net finance costs 13 {30}
Net finance costs (29) 93)

Netinterest payable In 2015 was £46m, compared to
£64m in 2014 The majonty of the movementin net
Iinterest payable s due to the release of accrued interest
following agreement of historical tax positions For our
debt portiolio, our fixed rate poiicy reduces the impact
of changes in market interest rates, however we were
still able to benefit from low average US dollar interest
rates during the year as the majority of the Group's debt
1s USdollar denominated Year-on-year, average three-
month US doilar LIBOR rose by 0 1% to 0 3% This slight
increase in floating market interest rates, along with
the impact of changes in our debt portfolio, foreign
exchange translation and the effect of slightly lower
levels of average net debt in the period led to little
change in the year-on-year interest charge on debt
interest receivable on cash balances held overseas
was reduced from the prior year due manly to the
weakening of emerging market currencies agaimnst
sterling The Group’s average net debt fell by £61m,
largely as a result of disposals in the fourth quarter of
2015 offsetting the translation of our predominantly
US dollar debt These combined factors contributed

to the overall decrease 1n the Group's average net
interest payable from 3 6%to 2 7%

Finance iIncome and costs relating to retirement
benefits have been excluded from our adjusted
earnings as we believe the iIncome statement
presentation does not reflect the ecenomic substance
of the underlying assets and liabihttes Also inciuded in
the statutory defirution of net finance costs (but notin
our adjusted measure) are finance costs for deferred
consideration assoclated with acquisitions, foreign

exchange and other gains and losses Finance costs for
deferred consideration are excluded from adjusted
earnings as they relate to the future potential
acquisition of non-controlling interests and do not
reflect cash expended Foreign exchange and other
gams and losses are excluded from adjusted earnings
as they represent short-term fluctuations in market
value and are subject to significantvelatulity Other
gains and losses may not berealised In due course
asitis normally the intention to hold the related
nstruments to maturity

In 2015, the total of these items excluded from adjusted
earnmgs was a gain of £17m compared to a loss of
£29min 2014 Boththe gain in 2015 and the loss in

2014 mainly relate to foreign exchange differences

on unhedged cash and cash equivalents and other
financial iInstruments

Funding position and hquid resources

The Group finances its operations by a mixture of cash
flows from operations, short-term boerrowings from
banks and commercial paper markets, and longer-term
loans from banks and capital markets Our objective

15 to secure continwity of funding at a reasenable cost
from diverse sources and with varying matunties

The Group does not use off-balance sheet special
purpose entities as a source of hquidity or for any
other financing purposes The net debt position of

tha Group Is set out below

Allfigures in £ millions 2015 2014
Cash and cash equivalents 1,703 530
Marketable secunties 28 16
Net denvative financal instruments (55) 40
Bonds {2,284) (2173)
Bank loans and overdrafts (38) (42)
Finance leases (8) (10)
Net debt 654) (1,639
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The largest contributors to the decrease in net debt
are the receipt of disposal proceeds, offset by changes
in the value of gross debt due to exchange rates and
adecrease in the value of our derivative portfolio
Refiecting the geographical and currency split of

our business, a large proportion of our debt 1s
denominated in US dollars (see note 19 for our policy)
The strengthening of sterling against the US doflar
dunng 2015 (from $1 56 to $1 47 £1) Increases the
sterling equivalent value of our reported net debt

At the year end, the long-term ratings were Baa1 from
Maoedy's and BBB+ from Standard and Poor's, and

the short-term ratings were P2 and A2 respectively
Both long-term ratings were on negative outiook atthe
year end In March 2016, Standard & Poor's changed
Pearson's long-term rating from BBB+ (Negative) to
BBB (Stable) The short-term ratings fror Moody's and
Standard & Poor’s remain unchanged at P2 and A2

In April 2015, the Group accessed the capital markets,
raising €500m through the sale of notes maturing in
May 2025 and bearing interest at 1 375% The notes
were swapped to floating rate in US dollars to conform
with the policy described In note 19 The Group has a
$1,750m committed revolving credit faclity During
the year, the matunty of the facility was extended by
one year The facility now matures in August 2020

At 31 December 2015 this faclity was undrawn The
revolving credit facillity is used for short-term drawings
and providing refinancing capabilities, includmg acting
as a back-up for our US commercial paper programme
This programme s pnmarily used to finance our US
working capital requirements, in particular gur Us
educational businesses which have a peak borrowing
requirement nJuly At 31 December 2015, no
commercial paper was outstanding The Group also
maintains other committed and uncommitted facilities
to finance short-term working capital requirements in
the ordinary course of business Further detaifs of the
Group's approach to the management of financiai nsks
are set out in note 19 to the finanaal statements

Taxation

The effective tax rate on adjusted earnings in 2015 was
15 5% compared to an effective rate of 17 9%1n 2014
Our overseas profits, which arise mainly inthe US, are
largely subject to tax athigher rates than that in the UK
{which had an effective statutory rate of 20 25% 1n 2015
and 21 5% 1n 2014) These higher tax rateswere largely
offset by amortisation-related tax deductions and by
adjustments ansing from agreement of historical tax
positions Both these iterns were more significantin
2015 than they had beenn 2014

The reported tax benefit on a statutory basis in 2015
was £81m {18 79) compared toacharge of £56m

(22 0%) 1n 2014 The statutory taxbenefitin 2015is
mainly due to benefits arising onthe increase in
intangible charges Operatng taxpaid in 2015 was
£129m compared to £163m in 2014

biscontinued operations

Discontinued operations in 2015 relate to the sale of
the Financiat Times and the Group's 50% mterestin
The Economist The Economist sale was substantally
completed on 16 Octoher 2015 and realssed a gain of
£473m beforetax The sale of the Financial Times
completed on 30 Noverber 2015 and reahised a gain of
£711m before tax We expect bothofthese transactions
to qualfy for substantial shareholder exemptionn the
UK The gains onthese transactions and the results for
both 2014 and 2015 to the respective sale dates have
been included in discontinued operatons

The sale of Mergermarket to BC Partners, completed on
4 February 2014, resulted in a gain of £244m before tax
The gain on sale and the results for 2014 to the date of
sale have been included in discontinued operations
Also included in discontinued operations in 201415 a
gainof £29m relating to adjustments to liabihities ansing
on the formation of the Penguin Random House group
Although this transaction completed m 2013 there

were subsequent adjustments relating to the potential
transfer of pension habilities and tax
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Other financial information continued

Other comprehensive iIncome

Post-retirement benefits

Included in other comprehensive income are the

net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operattons The gain on transiation of £175min 2014
compares to a loss i 2015 of £69m and is principally
due to movementsin the US dollar A significant
praportion of the Group's operations are based in the
US and the US doltar strengthened in 2015 froman
opening rate of £1 $1 56 to a closing rate atthe end

of 2015 of £1 $1 47 However at the same time other
currencies have weakened compared to sterling and
this effect was more than enough to offset gains on
the US dofar Atthe end of 2014 the US dollar had
aiso strengthened in comparison to the opening rate
moving from £1 $1 66 to £1 $1 56 and other currencies
did not weaken to the same extent as they have done
in 2015

Alsoincluded in other comprehensive iIncome in 2015
Is an actuanal gain of £118m (including a £8mgain in
respect of associates) in relation to pension and other
post retirement plans This gain mainty anses from
ahigher discountrate used to value the habifities

The gain compares to an actuaral gain tn 2014 of
£8m (tncluding a £15m loss in respect of associates)

Dividends

The dividend accounted for in our 2015 financal
statements totalling £423m represents the final
dividend in respect of 2014 (34 0p) and the interim
dividend for 2015 (18 Op) We are proposing a final
dividend for 2015 of 34 Op, bringing the total paid and
payable in respect of 2015 to 52 Op, a 2% Increase on
2014 This final 2015 dvidend which was approved by
the board tn February 2016, Is subject to approval at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and will be
charged against 2016 profits For 2015, the dividend
1s covered 1 4 imes by adjusted earmings We planto
hold our future dwvidend at the 2015 level while we
rebuild cover

Pearson operates a vaniety of pensian and post-
retirement plans Our UK Group pensian plan has by
far the largest defined benefit section We have some
smaller defined benefit sections inthe US and Canada
but, outside the UK, most of our companies operate
defined contribution plans In addition to pension plans
we also operate post-retirement medical benefit plans
{PRMBs), the most significant of whichisin the US In
2014 we amended the ehigibility critena for the US PRMB
plan This amendment resulted in a curtailment gain
and a reduction tn the ongoing service cost of the plan

The charge to profit in respect of worldwide pensions
and retirement benefits for continuing operations
amounted to £81mm 2015 (2014 £70m)ofwhich a
charge of E85m (2014 £71m}was reported inadjusted
operating profitand an income of £4m (2014 £1m)
was reported against other net finance costs The
increase charge in 2015 s In part due to the US PRMB
curtaiiment gain taken in 2014 and an increase In costs
reiateng to our defined contnbutien plans

The overall surplus on the UK Group pension plan of
£150m at the end of 2014 has increased to a surplus of
£337m atthe end of 2015 The movement has arisen
principally due to continuing asset returns, defiait
funding and favourable movements in the assumptions
used to value the habilities intotal, our worldwide

net surplus inrespect of penstons and other post-
retirement benefits increased from a net asset of

£27m atthe end of 2014 to a net asset of £198m at

the end of 2015

Goodwill and Intangible assets

Foliowing significant econemic and market
detertoration in the Group’s operations in emerging
markets and ongoing cychcal and policy related
pressures inthe Group’s mature market operations,
management's expectations of future returns were
revised downin the course of 2015 It was determined

s
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during the goodwill impairment review that the fair
value less costs of disposal of the Growth, North
America and Core cash generating units {CGUs) no
longer supported the carrying vaiue of the goodwill

An impairment of £507m was booked in respect of the
Group's Growth operations, representing impairments
of £269m in the Brazil CGU, E181m in the China CGU,
£48m in the South Africa CGU and £9m in the Other
Growth CGU, thereby bringing the carrying value of
goodwill in those CGUs down to £nil Impairments of
£10m and £13m were also booked tn respect of other
acquired intangibles in the South Africa and Cther
Growth CGUs respectively, bringing thelr carrying value
downito £nil Impairments of £282m and £37m were
also bocked in respect of the North America and Core
CGUsrespectively, bringing the carrying value of the
goodwill in those CGUs down to fair value less costs

of disposal

In 2014 following detertoration in the market conditions
for the Group's online tutoring business based tn India,
it was determined in the course of the impatrment
review that the value in use of the India CGU no longer
supported the carrytng value of the goodwll in that
CGU Animparrment of £67m was booked, thereby
bringing the carrying value of goodwill in the India CGU
down to £l Animpairment of £10m was also booked
inrespect of other acquired intangibles in that CGU,
bringing their carrying value to £nd Further details

on these iImpairments are included in note 11 of the
financial statements

Acquisttions and disposals

There were no significant acquisitions in 2015 The
acquisition of Grupo Multi, Brazil's leading aduit English
language trawning commpany, for £437m (plus £49rmn
net debt assumed} was announced in Decermnber 2013
and completed on 11 February 2014

During 2015 the Group disposed of its interest in the
FT Group including its 50% share of The Economist
The Financial Times sale to Nikkel was completed on
30 November 2015 for consideration of £858m and
realised a gain on sale of £711m before a tax charge
of £49m The sate of our 50% share of The Economist
Group to EXOR was substantially completed on

16 Qctober 2015 Thevalue of the Investmentin The
Economisst on Pearson's books was not significant
and there was no tax an the transaction with the
result that the gain on sale of £473m largely reflects
the proceeds recetved Also, in july 2015, the

Group disposed of its interestin PowerSchool for
consideration of £222m realising a pre-tax gain of £30m
net of a £70m write down of related software assets

The sale of the Mergermarket group of companies
In 2014, as noted above, realised a profit before tax
of £244m In addition, in 2014, our North America
business disposed of its joint venture interests in
Safari Books Online and CourseSmart, realising

a profit before tax of £40m, and Hsinvestment In
Nook Media realising a loss before tax of £38m

Return on invested caprtal (ROIC)

Qur ROIC 1s calculated astotal adjusted operating profit
less cash tax, expressed as a percentage of average
gross invested capital ROIC mcreased from 5 6% in
2014t0 5 8% in 2015 Reduced tax payments were the
main reason for the movement

Refated party transactions

Transactions with related parties are shown in note 35
of the financial staternents

Post-balance sheet events

injanuary 2016, Pearson announced that we are
embarking on a restructuring programme to simplify
the husiness, reduce costs and positionthe company
for growthn its major markets The majority of the
programme s expected to be complete by mid-year
2016 and will involve implementation costs In 2016 of
approximately £320m
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Risk management

The board has carried out a robust assessment of the
principal nisks facing the company, including those
that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity Our prinaipal risks
and uncertamnties are outlined below, along with a
description of how they are heing managed

See pages 82 to 89 1n‘Governance’ for details onthe
board and audit committee's risk oversight durng
2015, their ongoing monitoring of risks, including
deep dives into selected principal nisks and the annual
effectiveness review €)

The goal of our risk management approach is to
support Pearson in meeting its strategic and
operational objectives of growth and simplification
as set out in the chief executive's overview on pages
4to 7, so that the key business risks are (dentified,
assessed and mitigated Our aim is to manage nsks,
understanding that many risks are externalin nature
and cannot therefare be fully controlled

How we manage nsk

We assessed our risk management maturity in 2014
and made impravements in 2015 towards our 2017
target The dragram 'how we manage risk’ shows our
approach to embedding a Pearson-wide risk culture
This framework is being used to drive improvementsin

risk management across Pearson, taking a pragmatic
approach that assists In eliminating inefficiencies and
identifying and closing gaps Qur Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM} framework has been developed
to be aligned with international standards (CCSO and
1S031000) and « aids our comphiance with the Financial
Reporting Council's (FRC) UK Corperate Governance
Code guidance Riskidentification and assessment
were also included in the 2015 strategic planning

and acquisition processes, to further embed risk
management in decision making

Identifying and assessing risk

The board 1s ultimately responsible for the oversight of
risk management, assisted by the assurance the audit
committee provides with regard to the pracedures for
the idenufication, assessment and reporting of risk

Throughout the year {twice as amimmum), the
identification of principal risks Is informed using a
bottom up and top down approach through discussions
with each business area, identifying new risks as

well as re-assessing those already being monitored

To aid1n the identification of nisks and development of
assocrated rubigating actrons, risks are categorised into
four main areas strategy and change, operational,
financial, and legat and compliance

How we manage risk

Risk management

Risk management

Risk management

third-parties

Learn more [n the Gavernance section on pages 82 to 89 @)

Foundations Process Culture
Govarnance
snd oversight Communication
Framework, pol
and rocedznzl:y Fraining, education
i IMAGE REMOVED and awareness
Roles and
responsibilities dEnl*utzueduhngll(ln
eclsion-making
Appetite and Continuous
talerance
improvement
Working with
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The probability of a risk matertahsing and the potential
impact of each risk across multiple parameters 1s rated
based on existing controls, then the adequacy of action
plans to address any remaining control gaps 15 also
assessed Those risks which have 2 higher probabihity
and significant impact on strategy, reputation or
operations, or a financial impact greater than £50m
areidentified as principal nsks

Pearson exacutives have oversight of nsks relevant to
their areas of responsibility, which were included in
thetr 2015 objectives Management is responsible for
executing appropriate actions to mitigate risks where
required and whenever possible Itis not possihle to
identify every risk that could affect our businesses, and
the actions taken to mitigate the risks described below
cannot provide absclute assurance that a risk witl not
materniahse and/or adversely affect our business or
financial performance

The outputs of the risk assessments described above
and below are reported to the audit commttee and
boardin detail Inadditlon to the company-wide risks,
this includes nsk maps for our main Pearson business
areas and geographies

Risk appetite

Risk appetite is the target level of risk the board finds
appropnate to accept norder to achieve Pearson’s
strategy and goals Further workwas donein 2015 to
define the nisk appetite for each of our principal nisks,
working with the Pearson executive Recommendations
are made annually to the board, as part of the board's
oversight of nsk management (see page 88in
‘Governance’ for more on the board's governance

of risk management)

The semi-annual risk assessment reviews take into
account the currentievet of risk compared to appetite
A consideration of target risk appetite is now included
in key business decisions, such as acquisittons and
strategic planning

There are certain risk areas where we have avery low
appetite, such as complytng with all applicable laws,
including those on anti-bribery and carruption or the
safety and security of {earners This means that we take
actions to try to avoid or eliminate this risk as far as
possible In other areas, such as strategy and change,
we recognise the importance of managed risk-taking

n order to achieve bustness abjectives and goals

Our principal risks {as of 31 December 2015)

Outlined here are cur most significant risks that may affect
aur future We assess the probability of the risk materiallsing
and the impact of therisk Therisks with greatest potential
severity are wdentified as principaf risks

—>

e

Business transformation and change

Digital and services evelution and
market forces

Talent

Political and regulatary risk

STRATEGY AND CHANGE
RISKS

Acquisitions, divestments and JVs

S0 q dege

91°

IMPACT
[Financial, Reputationa), Strategic, Operational)

PROBABILTY —M————>

Testing failure
5afety and secunty

Customer facing systems

OPERATIONAL
RISKS

Safeguarding and protecton
Business continuity (new risk)

Tax

RISKS

Treasury (new risk)
Data privacy and information secunty
[ntetlectual property

Competition law (new risk}

RISKS

Anti-bribery and corruption

00000000000 000 0O

LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE  [FINANCIAL

Data quality and Integrity (new risk)
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Risk management continued

Key changes to Pearson risks in 2015

The key themes ansing from company-wide risk
discussions in 2015 reflect those of our strategic goals -
simphfication and growth, underpinned by business
transformation and change to enable these As
highlighted in the chief executive’s strategic overview
on page 4, 2015 was a year of change for Pearson

The theme of change is reflected in the relatively high
probability of our principal risks, as shownin the map
The level of change increases risk short term, however
the medium to longer term itwill enhance our controls
for many of our risks, as well as enabling Pearson to
achreve its goal of becoming more efficient, simphfying
the way we work for our customers and learners

More robust risk assessments (n 2015 have improved
our understanding of the nature and scale of nsks, such
as data privacy and information security (highlighted
inthe audit commuittee chair's statement on page 83)
where external threats continue to increase and we
have programmes of work to close identified gaps

Good progress has been made inimplementing
mitigation plans, especially for those risks with lower
target risk appetite, such as for ABC and in our direct
delivery businesses, where risks such as the safety and
security of both our learners and staff have new roles
and defined plans underway {hoth highlighted in the
audit committee chair's statement on page 83}

Risk assessment of prospects and viabiiity

This section should be read together with the full
viability statement on page 118 &

Pearson's pnincipal risks and our ability to manage them
as outlined in this section are hnked to ourviability as a
company These risks have therefore been taken into
accountwhen preparing the viability statement

The board assessed the prospects of the company over a
three-year period, longer than the minimum 12 months
of the annual going concernreview The three-year
period corresponds with Pearson's strategic planning
process and represents the time over whichthe
company can reasonably predict market dynamics and
the likely impact of additions to the product portfolio

The board discusses the company’s strategic planon
an annual basls taking account of a range of factors
including market conditions, the principal risks tothe
company, product and capital Investment levels as well
as availabie funding Pearson’s strategy and business
model are discussed 1n more detall on pages 2to 9

In assessing the company's viabllity for the three years
to Decamber 2018, the board overlaid a‘severe but

Key assumptions

The key assumptions which underpin our three-year
strategic plan to December 2018 are as follows

1 The key cychical and palicy factors that have recently hurt
Pearson (US college enrolments and UK qualifications)
should stabilise by the end of 2017 and improve modestly
thereafter, helped by new product launches

2 Pearsonrmakes modest market share gains In
North America higher education subjects where
next generation courseware 1s belng launched

3 US state testing revenues continue to decline through
2017, as current contracts unwind, before stabilising
in 2018

4 Professlonal certlfication and chinical assessment
revenues continue to grow

5 Pearson businesses in China and Brazil benefit from
the launch of new preducts, including the Wall Street
Englsh Mew Student Experience

6 Pearson's services businesses (for example, online
programme managerment, virtual schools, blended
learning in English) continue to grow as new
platforms and proeducts come to market and capitalise
on market growth

7 The benefits of the company’s restructuning plan
are delivered In full, with minimal disruption to
sales, market share and operations from this major
programme of change

plausible’ downside scenario onto base case strategic
plan for the group, focusing on the impact of the
following assumptions and key risks

» Further revenue shortfalls in US assessments

» Further revenue shortfalls in higher education
courseware assurning enrelments remain flat.

» Additional revenue shertfalls in growth markets
(prinaipally South Africa, Brazil and China) driven
by weaker local economic conditions

» Business transformation and change execution risk
associated with irnely delivery of the restructurning
programme in 2016 causing the benefits to be delayed
or not fully reahised

The board also stress tested the impact on our
liquidtty of alt the principal nisks listed above occurning
together Although thisis not regarded as a plausible
scenarlo the test showed that the company would stif
have liquid resources subject to a limited number of
management actions

The board's confirmation of Pearson's viability for the
three years to 2018 1s included alongside the going
goncern statement on page 118
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Strategic and change nsks

Risk 2015 activitias 2016 plans
Buslness transformation 2015 was a year of change for Pearson Anumber of major Atthe end of 2015 we undertook
and change” transformational change prograrnmes commenced In2015 including  arigorous, bottom up review
The pace and scope of our the Enabling Programme - a programme of work to dellver a single of our markets, operations
buslﬁesstrans fofmat ion Pearsen-wide solution te Integrate our data systerns and processes  and financial plans The chief
initiatives [ncrease the across HR Finance, Procurement and Supply Chain), CneCAM and executive's strategic overview
Technology Detery Centre (TDC) and these continue into 2016 onpages4 to 7 describes cur
executionrisk that
The Enabling Programme runs untll 2018 and wifl deliver sustainable  plans for transforming Pearson
benefits may notbe fully
improvements in finance human resources and operatlons In 2016, we will further simplify
realised, costs of these our business, reduce our costs
changes may Increase or  In addition to usual good practices In place for project and change .
and position ourselves far growth
that our business asusual  managernent, there is enhanced governance, monitoring and
in our major markets

activities donot perform  reporting in place for these most significant change initiatives

Inline with our plans or
our level of customer

The success of the restructuring
plan 15 akey assumption
underpinning achieving our
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service may not meet
expectations. goats by 2018 showing how
cnticalitisthat this risk is
effectively managed
Digltal and services Our global education strategy will drive a faster move to digital and Turning this niskinto an
evolution and market services recognising that this is a significant opportunity for Pearson, opportunity - successiully
forces aswell as a potentlal risk We are transforming our products and Investing in and delivering the
services for the digizal erwironment along with managing our print nght products and services ~is
Failure to invest
irventories The 2015 strategic planming process took amoare key to our strategy for returning
successfully inand
deliver the right In-clepth review and chailenge of areas for future investmentand togrowth by 2018
- tmen
products and services re-lnvestment, in the chiefexecutive's strategic
Asindicated in the section above on risk assessment of our prospects  overviewon pages 4to 7, we have
and viabdlity, we take into account cycfical market factors inour laid out a strategy for returning to
strategle planning proecess growth Weare comblning our

lines of husiness for courseware
The Glokal Product Lifecycde continued to be embedded across Pearson Into a single product erganisation,

andwen an award for Best Innovation Programme at the Corporate

Entrepreneur Awards. as well as ratlonalising and
integrating our product

You ¢anread more about the Product Lifecycle and Its governance development capabilities to focus

on page 61Inthe Social impact’ section ©on more adaptive, personalised

‘next generation’ courseware and
we are [ncreasing our assessment
focus on more adaptive and
personahsed online services

1edws jenosang
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Strategic and change risks

Risk

2015 actlivities

2016 plans

o Talent
Fallure to attract, retaln

and develop staff,
including adapting to
new skill sets required
to run the business

Throughout 2015, we have been successful In promoting our best
internal talent and recruiting individuals who are global leadersin
theirspecificfield Globally consistent performance assessment,
and talent and succession management approaches are in place,
and the annual engagement survey shows consistent scores overall
fromthe prior year

Seepages 5910 63 in'Social Impact for more detasd on key findings
from the engagement survey, as well as information about our
approachto learning and development

Aswe are going into aperlod of
change and transformatson, we
will focus on a number of areas
that are key to ritigating talent
nisk including clear employee
objectives and development plans,
an all-employee engagement
survey with action plans as
appropriate, succession planning
and talent management, an
Internal management and
leadershlp development
programme supporting tearning
for all' The employee incentive
pool will also be reinstated

Pallticat and

e regulatory risk
Changes in policy
and/or regulations
have the potentlal to
Impact business model

and/or declsions across
all markets

We are expanding our global public affairs capability with a specific
focus on coerdinated International government relations across our
key markets Building deeper government relations including working
with business and industry associateons, policy research organisations
and other advocacy groups, we can more proactively identify and
mitigate Internatonal political and regulatory risk, as welias bring
greater coordination, darlty and consistency to our work globally

In the US we actively morutor changes through participation In advisory
boards and representation on standard setting committees Our
customer relatfonship teams have detalled knowledge of each state
market We work with ourindustry trade assoclations irrcluding the
Assoclaton of Amencan Publishers and have launched a three year
campaign with America's Promise Alliance to raise high school
graduation rates to 0% and to support state led innovations

In the UK we malntain relatlonships with those government
departments and agencies that are responsible for policy and funding.
We work proactivelywith them to ensure our programmes meet
existing and new government cbjectives at the right quality fevel

Across all of our other markets therelsa government relations
programme o support our international markets

2015 prionitles to continue to be
actvelydriven 2016 witha
specific focus on feveraging our
resources inthe US and UK to bulld
global politicat and regulatory
relationships and partnerships, to
elevate our international political
profile, and to better understand
future international political and
regulatory trends, Increasingly
using trade associations and
agencies o inform cur decisions
and actions

Building a strong brand and
reputation In the US remains
apricsity

Acquisitions,

e divestments and Vs
Faiture to meetfinanctal
and operational targets
of acquisitions Fallure to
successfully manage JVs
and divestmentsinline
with plans

We perform pre-transaction due diligence and closely monitor
actual performance against operational and financial targets Any
divergence from these plans wili result In management action to
improve performance and minimise the risk of any Impairments
Executive management and the board receive regular reports on the
status of acqulsitions and mergers, with a formal revlew ance a year

During 2015, transitional support services to Penguin ended and we
completed the sales of the FT, Pearson's stake In The Economist and
Powerschool

Transitional support services to
the FTwiltend In2016

Our continued pricrities for use

of cashare

- Maintalning a strong
balance sheet

- Qrganicinvestment

= Sustalning our dividend and
malntalning the commitment
to our creditrating

~ Acquisitions in education with
astrong ROIC potentlal
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Operational risks

Risk

2015 actlvitles

2016 plans

Testing failure

A control breakdown or
service failure in our
school assessmentand
qualfications businesses
could result in financiaf
loss and reputational
damage

we seek to minimise the risk of a breakdown In our student marking
systems with the use of robust quality assurance procedures and
controls and oversight of contract performance combined with

our Investmentin technology, project management and skills
development of our people, including sofiware security controls,
system monitoring, pre deployment testing, thange controls and
the use ofroot tause analysls procedures to learn from Incldents
and prevent recurrence

in addition to the internal business procedures and controls
implemented 1o ensure we successfully dellver on our contractual
commitments we also seek to develop and malntain good
relationships with our customers to minimise risks

Cross Pearson team formed to
estabhsh standards for testing
risk factors, identify any gaps
against standards and
Implement improvements

Safety and security

Riskto safetyand securlty
due toIncreasing local
and global threats

The health and safety pollty was updated and released in 2015
Managementreview processes have heen established with
key leadership groups and Incident datais collected every

six months globally

An Implementation plan has been developed, with the objective
of delivering a pragmatic corporate security function which
supports our learners and employeeswithin a safe and secure
learning and working environment

The keyhealth and safety focus
will be orexecuting a three year
strategy We continue toimprove
risk assessment in the due
dillgence process with mergers
and acquisltlons, as well as in our
existingand future operations
Ongoing engagement with
Pearsonleadershlp ensuresthat
health and safety is integrated into
businessagendas

Security actlvity will be prioritlsed
based upon an assessment of risk,
which Is constantly evatuated

Customer facing
systems

Fallure to mamtain and
support customer facing
services, systems, and
platforms, including
addressing quallty Issues
and execution on ime
of new products and
enhancerments

Effective project management disciplmes are in place to ensure that
enhancements and new products meet the required standards
Real-time monitoring and reporting of operational performance
are used to [dentfy any issues and direct appropriate responses

The Quallty Task Force, established In 2014 to improve customers'’
back-io-school experience, s now part of business as usual in 2015,
this Initlative delivered significant improvements with fewer
Incidents overall, less unplanned downtime faster resclution of
issues, better protection against dendal of service attacks

2016 will focus an the next tier of
priority preducts and fully
embedding:he quality nitiative in
business asusual Plans include
more thorough testing, easfer
onkoarding 2nd greater access to
self service plus more proactive
monitoring and further upgrades
to the network and security
Otherlonger terminltiatives are
underwaytofurtherimprove the
customer experlence

Safeguarding and
protection

Failure to adequately
protect chifdren and
learners, particularty
Inour direct delivery
huslnesses

We continue 1o Lake safeguarding as a fundamental obilgation and
high pricrity

There s Increased understanding and reporting of safeguarding
concerns in many of the countries where we deliver services

See page 61 in the ‘Sodal impact' section for more on aur
relationships with learnersand customers

Activities will focus on continuing to
address riskInthe direct defivery
businesses, witha focus onthose
inless regulated countries The
implernentationofa safeguarding
self assessment tool and incident
reporting systerm will assistIn
developlng metrics

Business continulty
{new risk)

Fallure to have plansin
place or plans are not
properly executed
Crisis management and
technology disaster
recovery plans may
not be comprehensive

Previously reparted as a component of other risks, this Is now being
reported as a separate risk to pravide greater clarity

Pearson's bustness continuity pollcy has been refreshed in 2015,
dentfying our exposure and risk as they relate to key products,
sltes, services and supply chaln Thiswlll be Implemented in 2016

Technology incidents are dealt with reactively and proactive
closure of known disaster recovery gaps Is prioritised based
upon the Importance of products and systems Anannual
disaster recovery schedule s in place for testing data centres

The new business continulty policy
will be implemented in 20186,
including additional tools and
software losupport astandard
global approachto business
continuity planning

Thenew crisls management
framework will be embedded
through testing and scenarios
Theresillence of technology
platforms and systems will be
further reviewed and improved
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Financial risks

Risk

2015 activities

2016 plans

L
Risk that changes in tax

law or perceptions on
tax planning strategies
lead to higher effective
taxrate or negative
reputational Impact

Our tax strategy reflects our business strategy and the locations and
finanang needs of our operations in common with many companes,
we seek to manage our tax affalrs to protect value for our shareholders,
in hine with our broader fiduniary duties We are commutted to complymg
with 2l statutory obligations, to undertake full disclosure to tax
authorities and to follow agreed policies and procedures with regard

to tax planning and strategy

Overgight of tax strategy s within the remit of the audit committee,
which receves areportan thistopic atleast once ayaar All of the
auditcommittee members are independent non-executive directors
The chief finanoal officer is responsible for tax strategy, the conduct
of ourtax affzirs and the managementof tax risk are delegatedto a
global team of tax professlonais

See page 145 for details of taxaccounting policy

There is now knawn legistative
change in the UK on tax reporting
requirementsin 2016 and almaost
certaln change on tax treatment
of finanelng structures Achange
to US legislation Is possible

Work has been performed to
prepare systems for the increased
tax disclosure requirements
relating to country by country
reporting

@ Treasury (new risk}
Inabillty to mitigate

treasury financial risks,
induding the fallure
to secure adequate
committed funding,
the fallure to manage
exposures to financial
counterpartles and
the failure to manage
exposures to market risk
such as Interest and
foreign exchange rates

The treasury risk Is now being reported as a principal risk due
to currency and finanoal market volatiity, as well as the recent
changes to our credit rating

Our approach to the mitigation of treasury financial risk, including
funding risk fAnancial counterparty risk and exposures to interest
and foreign exchange rates is covered in more detail in note 19,
starting on page 181

In2016 we will continue to operate
inline with our treasury policy
Maore on this can be found In

note 19, starting on page 181

Legal and compliance risks

fisk

2015 actwities

2016 plans

Data privacy and

@ Iinformation security
Risk of a data privacy
incfdent or other fallure
to compty with data
privacy regulations and
standards, and/or a
weaknessin information
secunty, including a
fallure to preventor
detect a maliclous attack
on oyr systems, could
resultin amajordata
privacy breach causing
reputational damage
and financiatloss

Data privacy Adata privacy office has beenestablished and a 20715-
2016 data privacy strategy developed The implementation ofthe
strategy is overseen by the data privacy governance board which
has operated throughout 2015 We test and re-evaluate our data
securtty procedures and controls acress all our businesses with the
alm of ensuring personai data is secured, and we seek to comply
with refevant legrslation and contractual requirements We regularly
monitor regulation changes to assess the impact on existing
processes and programmes The data privacy office is working with
those limited parts of the business affected by the Safe Harbor
decision to transfer them to mode! contract clauses

Annual training on data security and privacy was introduced in 2015 fer

all employees in addition, all Pearson staff who deal with US student
data are requered to take educational data protection traning

Information securfty Pearson has 2n established global security
organisational model and standard based information security
controls and practites Security policles have all beenupdatedin
2015 We have established a global security operations centre that
provides ongoing momitoring of potential malicious attacks on our
Infrastrusture and systems

The data privacy and information
securlty improvement
programmes will continue
through 2016 into 2017 and will
Implement critical precessesto
dtive best practices
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Legal and complancerisks

Risk

2015 activities

2016 plans

Inteflectual propercy

o

tfwe do not adequately
protect our Intellectual
property and proprietary
rights our competitive
positron and profits may
be adversely affected and
limit our ability to grow

We seek to mitigate these risks by being generally vigliant and
deploying policies and mnternal and external resources to manage
and protect our intellectual property We co operate and advocate
through trade assoclations monltor advances in technology and law
and, when appropriate, take legal or collective enforcement actions
with other publishers tosecure our rights WehaveInplace a patent
programme to establish enforceable patent rights to protect our
technology innovations and promete appropriate confidentiality
and trade secret protocols Our global 1P fegal functlon also helps

us clear and protect our key brands and patentable innovations

We will contlnue to streamline our
portfolios procure and reglster
expandedrightsin our highvalue
IP globally, manitor actiwtles and
regulations, and proactively
enforce cur rights, taking
necessarylegal acilon

Competition law
fnew risk)

Fallure to complywith
antl trust and competitfon
legistation

in October 2015 alawyer speclalising in competition lawwas
appointed to ensure we are fully compliant with all laws and
regulations Aplanhasbeen putinplace to performa full risk
assessment given the evolving complexity of legisiation and
regulation [n this area This evolving complexity Is why this risk
has now beenincluded In the princlpal risks

Based upon the completed risk
assessment, we will develop and
Implermentactions, prioritising key
risk areas

Anti bribery and
carruption {ABC)

Failure to effectively
manage risks assoclated
with compiiance to global
and local ABC legislation

We have arisk-based pregramme of training (onfine and face-to
face], with code of conduct cerdficatlon including a clear statement
of ABC policy The policy was revised in 2015, with no change to
Pearson's‘zero tolerance’ principle 1n2015, the Business Partner
Code of Conduct laenched, which will help to mitigate third party
ABCrisk

See page 60in the *Sodial impact’ section for more detall onwhatls
covered by the Code of Conduct

Yraintng and awareness in 2016 will
focus on the revised ABC policy for
higher risk countries and activitles

Third-partydue diligence will
continuetobeenhanced taking
into account the heneflts from
business transformation
implementatlons such asthe
Enabling Programme

Dataquality and integrity
{new risk)

Unavailabulity of timely,
ctomplete and accurate
data llmits informed
decislon-making and
Increased risk of non
compliance with legal
regiulatory and reparting
requirements.

Data quality and integrity s now belng reported as a pnincpal risk
due to Its iImportance in supporting business change inltiatives
such as the Enabhing Programme and OneCRM {as highlighted risk 1,
business transformation and change) Data s key to their success

APearson Data Services team has been created and a data
governance target operating model agreed which defines data
awnership accountability at executive level to ensure that data
inltiatrves align to business strategy, prioritles and initiatives

The prirnary focus Is on the
Enabling Programme whichwill,
in time, deliver significant
Improvements In data quality
and facilitate better informed
decislon-making

The 2016 roll outs require the
migration of a significant number
of datasets
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Targeting growth through efficacy

The road to empowering the
lives of 200 million learners
annually by 2025

Introduction

Over the [ast few years, we have been progressively
measuring and increasing our impact on learner
outcornes We are already helping militons of learners
progress in their ives, to become more literate and
numerate, move from school to college, learna new
language, or secure a new career which offers better
prospects for them and thelr families

To advance Pearson's reach and impact and to position
the company for sustainable growth, we have
embarked on an ambitious efficacy programme

which has evolved the way we manage our business,
our approach to product development and our
relationships with customers

In 2013, our drive to build a company centred around
‘what works' in education led to a commitment {o
publicly report onthe learner outcomes delivered

by our products in 2018

in 2014, Pearsonstarted embedding the efficacy
framework and approach at the centre of our business
model, conducting efficacy reviews and using those
insights to improve our products and howwe serve
our customers in preparation for 2018 we started the
process of publicly reporung on efficacy, profilng the
progress of five key products

In 2015, we expanded the focus of our work, gathering
evidence for more products and services We areseeing
increased interestin our efficacy approach fromour
customers and [t has become a igger factor insales
decisions We are reporting publicly on the efficacy of
many more products alongside this report

Key achtevements in 2015

2014 first wave products IMAGE
Gathering REMOVED
evidence

For all first wave' preducts (products chosen based on
strateglc Importance, market position and revenue)
we have worked with customers to refine their learmer
outcomes, are now gathering evidence of their
impact, and have been completing efficacy-led
product improvements

We made great progress in 2015, achieving the following milestones

2015 second wave products IMAGE
Defined learner REMOVED
outcomes .

We have also defined tearner outcomes and metrics for
all 'second wave’ products {products representing a wider
range of geographies In our portfolla), In addition to
evaluating existing evidence and implementing plans to
gather more evidence of impact. Gong forward we will
continue to bwild an evidence base for these products and
make Improvements

IMAGE
REMOVED

Competitive edge

importantly, we are increasingly seeing our Sales and
Marketing teams working with our £fficacy teams te
provide a competitive edge to Pearson's proposais Our
commitment to bulld more effective products has already
resulted In increased customer demand for such products
and, therefore, increased revenue We look forward to
seefng this trend continue mnto 2016 and beyond
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In 2016, we continue to make progress evaluating and
improving the efficacy of our products Efficacy has
become central to our growth strategy Qur knowledge
and capabilities are maturing Both our current
portfolio and the way we 1dentify future acquisitions
are grounded in a commitment to demonstrating
effective learner outcomes We are delivering on our
comrritment to report on these too

Our efficacy journey

“Hold us accountable for our impact . If we

fail, we fail as abusiness ™
John Fallon Chief executive afflcer

Bullding on last year's reports, this year our public
efficacy reports reflect what we've learnt since 2013
They mnclude more detatl on the Impact each product is
having, improvements made to date, future product
research and improvement plans and, importantly,
stories from our customers Highlights of thus work
follow, but to read the full reports, please visit

efficacy pearson com

Today we continue to refine our efficacy practice, and,
although our knowledge has matured, we remain
ptoneers We caontinue to encourage everyone, from
our customers, to learners, to policymakers, to
Investors, to jo1n 1n and chailenge us, to tell us how we
canimprove our approach and inturn our products
and services

Efficacy leading to product improvement

The efficacy review process hasheen designed to

help teams identify areas of improvement in product,
customer relationships and internal capacity to deliver
The productimprovement process I1s specifically
designed to ensure that the product will benefit
learners and customers, eventually making it more
commerciaily successfut Examples of these
improvements are illustrated below

Efficacy approach and activities

Define mtandedlearner e Review producisto Conductresearch to o Support customersto
outcomes ensure they are posiuonad reasure the efflcacy of effectively implement the
todeliver on those products and feedinsights products to get the best
oulcomes, and put m place back into product outcomes possible
efficacy fmprovement development.
programmes
Product Improvement

['Wall Street
Enghsh

New student
expertence

sLaunch of algorithm identifying students at risk of dropping cut, providing inslghts for effective
interventions Improves fearner outcomes aswell as centre profitability

3 Class-leval analytics to demonstrate that students perform equally, whether they are using print
or digital manuals, another change that will improve centre effinency

> Gpumising duration of language videos will increase learner engagementand encourage them
not te break their study rhythm

Pearson Schools
India

to improve school leadership

»Augmentation of teacher numbers and quality as a direct result of the efficacy review

>Improved data systems, which now provide teachers with data at a conceptand student level,
almang for 48-hour turnaround time

»Adoption of Big English, an Englsh language fearning product, to Increase student English
proficiency, teachers also being supported to improve thelr own English skills where required

» More teacher-to-teacher collzboration and ntervantions driven by efficacy Our Schaol
Management Improvement Framework, as well as a new Professional Development programme
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Targeting growth through efficacy continued

2015 efficacy reports:
product highlights

Selected examples of our

efflcacy reports are included below
The remainder of the reports can

be found atefficacy pearson com @)

IMAGE REMOVED

In the last decade, the number of college
students majoring m STEM fields -
science, lechnology, engineering, and
mathematics - has imcreased rapidly

Between 2007 and 2011, STEM majors in the US Increased
by 48% Today, approximately 40% of male college
graduates and 29% of female college graduates earn a
degree inone of the STEM disciplines These areas of
study offer students practical and applicabte skills upon
entering the professionat world and also create significant
econamic opportunity

MastenngChermstryis an onfine tutonal and problem-
solving tool for students to practise and reinforce therr
understanding of college-level chemistry - a vital tool for
any successful STEM degree The productiaunched in 2004
and today reaches about 350,000 students in the United
States, and 50,000 macre in 60 countries around the world
MasteringChemistry uses personalised instruction to
improve competency i chemistry and prepare students
forsuccess in chemistry courses Learners benefit from
self-paced tutonals featuring spedific, wrong-answer
feedback and hints that emulate the tutor New content
features have been added to [ncrease student achlevement
and retention For example, there are additional adaptive
opportunities through new Dynarmuc Study Modules,
which are designed to help students study on their own
more effectively, using adaptive algorithms that adjust

the content based on each student's understanding of

the concepts

For detail on the efficacy of this product gote
efficacy pearson com @

Alongside this annual report, we are pubhishing
several reports to share our efficacy progress
and the outcomes achieved by some of our most
powerful products and services We will continue
to develop the capability to report transparently
on the efficacy of products across our portfolio

IMAGE REMOVED




Section 2 Our performance

49

o
g‘
o
5
IMAGE IMAGE 3
REMOVED REMOVED “
Connections Acadcmy schools are Connectons belleves that all students perform better
. when they recerve individual attentionin a safe, nurturing
accredited, tuition-free, onlme publlc environment -~ what Connections calls Personalised
schools for K-12 studen’rs, prowdmg Performance Learning® Students are able to accelerate
a personallsed approach 1o lcarmng. Iearning in arkeas of!st:;ahr:fjth (IJr rgclelve extrg attent;on in 5
N areas of weakness in uabsed learningdoes net mean c
Squorted by certified teachers and learning alone - students meet regularly Inonline LiveLesson 2
acustom curriculum sesslons and have opportunities to share ideas and =
experlences, while having fun learning together in-persan 3
Since the first Connections Academy opened in 2002, the events, clubs, activitles, and field trips heip students stay g
schools have been established In 26 US states and have served connected and make friends Parents, as Learning Coaches, 3
nearly 270,000 students who - for academic, personal or are closely nvolved in their children's education
professional reasons - may be better suited to onlinerather
than bricks-and-mortar education For detaiton the efficacy of this productgoto
efficacy pearson com )
" (o]
£
2
£
@
3
3
2
IMAGE
REMOVED
CT1 Education Group (CTI)1s an
mstitute of higher education that -
. [}
serves approximately 11,000 students g
across 12 campuses in South Africa 3
2
Themnsttute focuses on arming students with real-life 2
career skills, tralning themto succeed as employable
graduates in a competitive 21st-century economy
IMAGE REMOVED
Because career-readiness 1s such a steadfast pniority for
the institute, CTI has developed a number of strategres
designed to ensure that all of Its graduates are well
prepared for a highly demanding employment market For
example, a virtual employability centre will open in 2016 to
serve as a reseurce hub for students looking to enter the 3
job market Thewirtua) hub will be followed by six physical 3
employability centres to provide personalised, face-to-face 2
Job coaching Finally, employability coampetenaes are firmly %
embedded into the CT! curniculum, which focuses primarily B
onmformation technology, commerce and law g
M
For detail on the efficacy of this product go to a

efficacy pearson com €
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Targeting growth through efficacy continued

IMAGE REMQVED

The path towards audited efficacy statements

IMAGE REMOVED

With 85% of young millenmals 1n the US
owning smartphones in zo14 according
to Nielsen, education tnnovators have
come to understand that hardcover
texthooks are no longer mn hne with
studentls’ prunary consumption habits

REVEL Is a digital resource that offers students online
and moblle access to humanitias and social sclences
course materials The programme includes embedded
assessments, interactive components and videos
Integrated within the narrative content to reinforce key
concepts REVEL provides instructors an assigament
calendar, which allows them te indicate to students when
waork must be completed with reminders and stutly tips
to help students stay on track throughout the course

REVEL was launched in 2014 to foster independent
self-imitiated learning outside the classroom, so that
students and educators are better prepared inside the
classroom REVEL allows students to access their learning
anytime, anywhere, with an engaging experience that
encourages class participation and course completion

REVEL helps instructors address a particularly thorny
challenge they face it the humanities and soceal sciences -
thatstudents don't do their assigned reading and come to
class under-prepared REVEL provides specialised toolsto
allow instructors to plan for and address this challenge

For Detail onthe efficacy of this productgo to
efficacy pearson com o

Auditing efficacy

From the start of our efficacy work we planned to have
our efficacy statements audited in the same way as our
finanaals each year in crder for our focus on learner
outcomes to transform our business, it:s essential that
our customers trust any efficacy statements that we
make We are pleased to announce that thiswork s
underway This year we began work with an external
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC), to ensure that
any efficacy statements we make stand up to audit

We have now published 13 product reports PwCwill
collaborate with us during 2016 to continue to strengthen
our reporting process

fn 2016 PwC will work with us to
»Standardise and stabilise cur efficacy reporting processes

3 Further align our evidence to support product efficacy
statements

>Run a mock audit of a sample of efficacy statements i the
2016 annual report in preparation for 2018
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Our plans for 2016

Expand the evidence of impact With efficacy processes
in place for our “first wave’ and ‘'second wave' products,
we wilf expand the breadth of evidence we are
coilecting across even more Pearson products, further
demonstrating their impact on learner outcomes

Leverage efficacy to develop modeis of product
improvement While all products engaged in the efficacy
process undergo an improvement cycle, in 2016 we will
deepen our efficacy focus on severat products that
span our business models (e g managed services,
courseware) to establish a‘gold standard’ model of how
our efficacy process leads to product improvement

Further embed efficacy into our organisation and
portfolio More product teams around the company will
embrace the efficacy approach Efficacy will be better
embedded ininternal processes such as acquisition and
strategic planning

Share our efficacy story with the world Lead a global
conversation across the education sector about the
impact of Pearson's efficacy work, demonstrating how
effective education preducts and services dehliver
enhanced learner outcomes and positnoning Pearson
atthe forefront of the industry

The remaning education challenge

Education matters more than ever Itisthe most
important factor in driving economic and social
progress Research shows that better education helps
individuals, families and countries prosper, improves
health outcomes and builds cohesive societies There
are huge challenges to overcome, as noted in the
adjacent diagram

There 1s growing consensus that addressing these
pressing educational and global development issues
and thereby meeting the needs of learners, employers
and governments will require everyone involved in
education to work together and focus on solutions
which can be shown to make a difference

In 2015 we joined world leaders at the United Nations in
commutting ta the UN World Sustarnable Development
Goals (SDGs) to make the werld a better place by 2030
These goals represent giobal challenges across both the
developed and developing world and alt of Pearson’s
major markets Pearsonwilluse these goals to inform
our own sustainabthty plan We willleverage our
investment in efficacy and our growth strategy to fuel
the financial success of Pearson, demonstrate progress
in achieving our mission, and be a global leader in
addressing Goal 4 of the SDGs, "to ensure inclusive

and equitable quality education and promote lifelong
opportuntties for all ”

Through efficacy we are capturing our impacton
learner outcomes at a product level, thereby providing
customers with products and services that are effective
learning tools, and, as aresult, expanding our reach

We now have the opportunity to measure the collective
reach and impact of all of our products, and to report
on our growth in new ways

Inthe next ten years, we at Pearson behieve that the
world should be a placewhere far more people are
making much more progress in their hives through
learning - and we are making an ambitious planto

getthere

Access to hugh quahty education

58m

primary-aged children IMAGE
are notin schoo!

250 million chiidren REMQVED
waorldwide are in school

butare notlearning

Literacy and numeracy skills
750m-+ po
aduits, globally, are illiterate In REMOVED

developed countries, 200 miflion
young people still have not mastered
basic iteracy and numeracy skills

Employability and Enghish language skills

206m

adults are unemployed 290 mliilon
young people are out of work
Meanwhile 40% of employers are
unable to find qualifled candidates
to fill vacancies

IMAGE
REMOVED

1 LINESCO Policy Paper, June 2014 {58m children notin school}

2 'UNESCO, Education Far All Monitonng Report, Apnl 2013
{250m inschool but natiearning)

3 UIS Fact Sheet, Sept. 2015 (750m [lliterate)

4 international Labour Organisation, Global Employment Trends,
2012 {206m adult unemployed)

&. The Economist. April 2013{290myoung people out of work)

6 TheE Aprﬂ&u 1 bie to find qualified .
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Targeting growth through efficacy contimued

The Plan

By 2025, Pearson commits to empower the lives of 200 mullion learners annually, more than doubling our current
reach and doing it through the delivery of more effective products and services

primary and secondary
learners annually access
high quality education

We are bullding on our »We will help 2 militon post-

efficacy wor|

ot:rselses a;;?t?::s secondary learners annualty
access high quality educatlon

growth targets

and numeracy for 50 million
learners annually

»We will help 50 million
learners annually gain
the knowledge and skills
required for study and
employment

> We will help advance the
English language skills of
75 million learewers annualfy

Access Success Progress
Our goals Enhance access Help more learners Help more pcople

to high quality gain the knowledge make measurable
education that leads and skills required progress in their

Tomeetour commitment |, meanngful for life and career life and career

to empower the llves of

200 million learners outcomes success in the through learning

annually, we have set 215l century

three goals

'2025 targets »we wilt helg 10 mifiren >»We will help increasetiteracy | >We wilt help 25 milhan

learners annually transition
into the workforce after
furtheror higher education

»We will help 20 million
learners advance their
career prospects annually

Onfine degree and virtual schoot

Strategic
henment programmes canimprove
alig learner access to quality primary
L and secondary education,

currently those programmes
are helping 1 8 million learners
to annually access guality
education By 2025, weaim

to help 10 million

Our goals and targets
align with our core
strateglc priorities

For more see strateglc

Our products that support adult
English language learning can
provide learners with the skills
required for successina giobal
waorkforce Productssuchas
MyEnghshiab and manyothers
aliow us to help advance the
English language skills of
30million learners annualfy

Ourworkforce readiness
products supportiearnersto
make measurable progress
intheirkves and careers.
Products such as MyiTLab
help approximatety 15 million
learnerstotransitionnta the
workforce annually By 2025
we airn to help 25 million

overview on p04 ) By 2025 we alm to help leamers annually transition
75mithon learners annually mto theworkforce after higher
or further education
From 2016 to 2025 in 2016, we will

while our efficacy work continues, we will sharpen the
focus of our portfolio, investments, partnerships, and
campaigns to meet the goal of reaching, and posttively
impactng, 200 milion learners with increasingly
effective praducts This approach will eventually be
embedded into every area of our business so thatwe
are positioned for growth

» Define company-wide trajectories and set product-level

targets and trajectories

»Tie KPIs to the targets across Pearson, measuring the
performance of our business leaders and executives by
their contributions to these goals

» Develop and implement a system capable of tracking
our progress towards these goals

» Agree upon processes for determining new acquisitions
and investments in our current and future portfolio
based on their contribution to our goals
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Timehne
2013 2016 2018 2025
Public launch of our Build on efficacy commitment First major public reporting Meet our impact and
efficacy commitrent to set targets for our impact on efficacy progress and reachtargets
and our reach progress against our Impact
and reach targets

Setting the targets

Pearson‘s ambitious research programme

»Qur targets are derived from the key educational
chaltenges facing learners, market realities and
oppoertunities identified by our business leaders
where Pearson has opportunity to grow

»Qur product portfoho was evaluated to determine
the areas where Pearson can measurably have the
greatest impact on giobal education

>The targets are set based on currentreach and
market trends Choosing these targets will help
organlse and measure our energy to grow
the company

We are at a critical juncture in our history and the
education sector is at a cnitical juncture inits evolution
With far greater data being made avallable on learners’
performance and more witlingness to use that data to
improve education, we have a singular opportunity to
have greater mpact with our products as well as reach
more people

Qur targets to increase our reach and impact will drive

us towards commercial success and our mission to help

people make progress in their hves throughiearning

The number of learners reached by Pearson

200m

By 2025,
Pearson aspires IMAGE
to empower the REMOVED

lives of 200 mullion
learners annually

World-leading research continues to be a priority for
Pearson We work with the best minds tn education to
bring their diverse and independent insights to a wider
audience These inciude two reports publishedin 2015
with world-renowned educationalist Professor John
Hattie, What Doesn't Work 1n Education the Politics of
Distraction, and What Works Best in Education the
Politics of Collaborative Expertise

These papers have been read 70,000 mes via our
website and have redefined our ambition for the global
reach of Pearson's thought leadership They have
formed the basis of engagements with government
officials, stakeholders and academia in key markets
acrass the world

In 2016, we look forward to buifding on this momentum
with releases on critical topics including adaptive
learming, artificial intelligence in education, and building
efficacy intolearning technologies
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Our social
impact

Learning is the means by which people
progress in their lives.

At Pearson, our commercial success and delivering on our
soctal purpose are mutually reinforang Our aim is to help
pecpie flourish and make progress in their ives through
educatton and learning

Our promise Is progress for the millions who learn with us and
efficacy (p46) 1s the key mechanism by which we wii deliver
This means a clear focus on developing products and services
that have a measurable impact on improving students’ lives
through learning

This year, we have gone further by setting clear goals on
the number of learners we will support through our products
and services

Purpose reinforces success In a number of ways — 1t attracts
and helps us retain talent, something we knowto be true
from the resuits of our engagement survey, itinspires our
customers, bullds confidence, drives performance and helps
foster innovation

Our strategy Is focused on extending and deepening our
impact, but we also know that ‘how’ we deliver 1s central

to our purpose Acting responsibly helps us to defiver better
outcomes and to meet the expectations of our stakeholders

Our socialimpact strategy

Sustainability Impact Innovation
We Invest in our people, we contribute to significant Weactively partner and
our cammunlties and social and environmental  1nvest in new models of
work to reduce our campaigns learning to help find

solutions to the biggest

enviranmental footprint.
unmet educational needs
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Overview

1. Sustainability

Pearson has an active rol

€

Lo play in finding solutions
to our global sustainability
challenges, which is integral

to our business strategy
and how we report on ou
most material issues.

r

1 Sustainability p56-58 Q)
2 Our values and behaviours pss-60)
3 Our relationships p61-63Q
4 Our planet p63-64§)
5 Impact campaigns p65-66E)
Project Literacy
Employee engagement
p67Q

6 Social innovation

From june 2016 we will report in more detail
nour 2015 Sustainability Report avallable on
pearson com/social-impact

Towards a new strategy

During 2015 we began a review of our sustainabiiity
practice, to ensure that our strategy, activities and
reporting efforts

»Reflect best practice In sustainability

> Are fit for purpose in a rapidly changing business chmate
» Ahgn with current business and stakeholder priorities
»Match our ambition and business strategy

» Reflect how our business model canfink to the UN's
Sustainable Development Goals

Pearson has a broad defirtion of responsible business
and has established a set of commitments across arange
of social, community and human rights principles to

Ensure that our products and services are inclusive,
appropriate in content to the age, location and ability
ofthe learner, and are easy and safe to use and access

Raspect and protect howwe use and share data
entrusted to us by learners and our customers

Inform, supportand equip colieagues to work
collaboratively

Encourage and reward high performance, nurturing
talent and creating a culture where all are able to realise
thetr individual potential

Provide a safe and healthy workplace for our employees
and the learnarswe serve

Extend our commitrnents on labour standards, human
nghts and environmental responsibility to include our
supphiers and business partners This includes a concern
across the value chain for ensuring our activities are free
from slavery, servitude, forced or compulsory labour and
human trafficking

Provide opportunities for Pearson people to be good
atizens and to get nvolved in thelr local communities

Deliver agamstour targets on our response to climate
change and to make more efficient use of resources

Pearson has in place policies to support recognised
human nights principles These include health and safety,
safeguarding, non-discrimination and anight te quality
education As afounder signatory to the UN Global
Compact, we have also made a senes of commitments

to the Uruversal Declaration of Human Rights, the ILO
declarations on fundamental principles and rights at work,
the Rio Declaration on Environment and Development
and to reflect a zero tolerance approach to bribery

and corruption

The approach we've taken for our sustainabifity review
and the resulting sustamability map are opposite on p57 )
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Pearson sustamnability review - five key phases

o Assess Conduct 9 Define, Create e Devise
current state matenality ambitions, implementation reporting
analysis visians and roadmap strategy
goals

We have completed a third-party review of policies and
reporting, a benchmark agamnst compettors and leaders,
aswell as internal Interviews with Pearson executives
Anewsustalnabllity map captures our most material issues

Pearson sustainability map

This has been reviewed by internal experts and, to date, nearly
40 Pearson executives have been consulted This will be
finalised In 2016 and form part of aur sustainability reporting
Detailed below s our current thinking

Mission Help people make progress in their lives
through access to better learning

allltg,:l lT; nt 4 Quality Decentwork and l Reduced Our framework
sustainable education economic growth Inequalities indirectly addresses
development the other 14 goals
goals IMAGE IMAGE IMAGE

REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED

W

Ambiton Be a trusted partner Reach more learners Create the future

operate responsibly be tnclusive of education lead in

product innovation
IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED

Strategic Operate respensibly Maximise sodal impact by reaching Lead in product innovation and
intent new tnarkets and expanding access excellence to create education that

h'd

»Value our learners,
customers and partners

>Respectand progress
our employees

»Prornate stewardship inour
everyday operations

»Actively contribute to the
communities where we work

¥ Deliver products which gve
learning outcomes we promise

to our products

»Reachmore of the people wha need
Y Make our products accessible to

3 Consider the affordability of

meets socety’s future needs

v v

» Produce products which lmprove
theway education s delivered

>Advance theskills competencies
and qualfications needed for Gife
and work inthe 21st century

}Empower leamners to be
glabal citizens

abetter educabion themost
every type of learner
our praducts inrefation to the

type of market and its customers’
ncome levels
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1 Sustamability continued

IMAGE REMOVED

Pearson and the UN sustainabie development goals

In 2015 we joined world leaders at the Umted Nations
1n committing to the UN sustainable development
goals {SDGs) setting out their ambition for a more
peaceful and prosperous world These goals
represent global challenges that impact education
acrossthe world Goal 4is particularly important
for Pearson - “to ensure inclusive and equitable
qualty education and promote kfelong learning
opportunities for all* We are playing our part n
contributing to this goal, through contributing
educational expertise, knowledge and resources
tohelp adgress these pressing challenges

We are also worlung in partnership with others
to make a difference

»yWe are supporting Project Everyone - an
organisation with a simple but mighty ambition
- to share the global goals with all 7 billion people
on the planet

»We have joined the Global Citizen movement
-an organisation ded:cated to creating change
and taking action to address the world's
biggest challenges

2

Governance

Corporate responsibility cannot be separated from

our business and reputation The reputation and
responsibility committee, a format commuitee of the
board, provides ongoing oversight, scrutiny and
challenge across the entire responsible bustness agenda
Learn more on p90

The Pearson executive drives the implementation of
business strategy, including our response to the key
issues and opportunities we face The responsibie
business leadership council oversees the development
and implementation of our responsible business
strategy on behalf of the board It is chaired by our chief
corporate affairs officer and comprises senior executives
frorn across the global business

Stakeholders

Public and private sector customers reguiarly seek
information on howwe go about our business, while
many learners and employees want to understand our
approach to sustainability Socially responsible nvestors
and non-governmental orgarusations iook atissues such
as supply chain standards and ethics

Our approach to responsible business is informed
by the priorities and views of ocur many stakeholders
A priority for us will be testing our new sustainability
framework with stakeholders as part of a continuing
focus onidentifying, engaging and inspiring our
pnority audiences
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2. Our values and behaviours

Employee engagement

Our organisational structure continues to evolve to
better deliver on our business strategy and to position
the company for growth We continue to invest in gur
single operating model, and in parttcular in standardising
systems and a smaller number of global platforms

At the same time, we are accelerating our shift and
investment indigital products

Change can be mspiring but also brings operational risk
The link between employee engagement and business
performance 15 well established, and our 2014 employee
engagement survey had some key lessons for us

> Our purpose to Improve lives through learruing is clear
and compelling

» Qur focus on efficacy 1s Improving our products
and services

»Values and behavigurs are critical to our success,
but need to be more clearly articulated

» In this ime of change, our leaders and managers
need to communicate more often and more clearly
their expectations of working togetherina more
joined-up way

> More work is needed to clarify to employees how our
new structure works and how 1t helps deliver outcomes
for learners

Based on this, we set the following agenda for the work around our values in 2015 and beyond

Priorities in 2015 and beyond Activitlesin 2015

Leaders more consistently model
the behaviours required forus to
be successful

values themselves have been Integrated into business processes and communicaticn

» Following consultation and research, we introduced ‘accountable’ as a fourthvalue,
alongside our current values of brave, imaginative and decent, to provide positive
tension and Increase our focus on responsibllity and delivery

> s Many of our leaders hava wnitten, spoken or tweeted about our values in 2015, and the

driving the nght behavleurs across the
organisation

dafined high, expected and low performance for each behaviour, for alf employees as
well as for mora senior ieaders Clear hehavioural expectations provide more clarity in

Employees see evidence of the values »We created a clear set of behavioural expectations against each of the values, and
> terms of what the values look ke day-to-day

People feel safe to speak out and
chaltenge where our values are not
being ived

in aperformance review

> The values and behaviours were used to help shape the revised Pearson Code of
Conduct, with a particular focus on speaking up and challenging behaviour that is
not consistent with our values

> >in 2015, we provided much clearer guidance on how to assess values and behaviours

our values, Employee Value Proposition

Candidatesare attracted to Pearson by
and culture

3We created and launched a range of simple but powerful toolkits to help leaders,
managers and teams explore and understand what the values and behaviours leok
lke In their own context

Evidence that cur values drive
performance, engagement and
retention of key talent

ensure that all new hires are famillar with the values from day one We continue to have
high recalf of the values, and strong identification wath them, as evidenced in our 2015

>Welcome to Pearson, our award-winning global onboarding tool, has been updated to
> angagement survey (see below)

The 2015 engagement survey found that 89% of employees agree that'Pearson’s values are importantto me’ —even
higher thann 2014(84%) The survey also indicated that behavtour consistent with our values was significantly more
wvisible to employees, and that all four values are more prevalent withinmost parts of our company As part of our work
on culture, we found that the way Pearson’s colleagues treat one another and the vaiues themselves are factorsmthe

deciston to join and stay at Pearson
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2 Our values and behaviours continued

Our values

Birave

Takes bold and decisive action
to deliver ambitious outcomes

N

Decent

Listens, encourages and
respects difference, treats

and champions a culture of all people fairly, with
high performance IMAGE REMOVED honesty and transparency
THE

LEARNER
Imaginative
Looks beyond thelr Accountable
immediate Job both inside Drives results by owning
and outside of Pearson and the solution, getting the
introduces new ways of right people involved and
seemg, thinking and working delivering on promises
Our behaviours
’ Brave | I Imagmative I | Decent, I IAccountabIc I

Shows determination
and courage inthe face
of obstactes and setbacks

Assesses complexissues
from multiple angles and
addresses problems that
don't have clear solutions
or outcomes

Offersideas or opinions
without fear of cnticism or

Offers creative ideas and
inngvative solutions to

professional nisk

Sets high standards for own
solve problems and address
and others’ performance opportunities
Takes a broad perspective
to identify opporturmties
and sofutions
Code of conduct

Is honest, transparent and Takes ownership of

straightforward when own work and drives to
working with others successful completion
and closure

Bulds trusting relationships
with a broad range of
people inside and outside
Pearson

Identfies and imvolves
othersto accomplish
indvidual and group
outcomes

Looks for and includes
dwverse viewpoints and
talents of others

Follows through
on commitments

Raising concerns

Our values are reinforced by our code of conduct

which covers, among other things, individual conduct,
safeguarding of learners, employee rights and
responstbiities, communtty involvement, the
environment and our soctal obligations We make sure
everyone Is aware of the Code and this forms part of the
onboarding process This year, we completed amatenal
review and rewnte of the Code including detalled
additional guidance and case study support The Code
was circulated early in 2015 to every Pearson ermployee
and they were asked to confirm they had read it,
understood it and to affirm that they would comply with
it Over 99% of employees have signed up to the Code

We operate a free, canfidential telephone helpline and
website for anyone who wants to raise a concern and we
have a clear non-retaliation policy In place to encourage
peopie to share the 1ssues they have (n 2015, we had
119 concerns {112 1n 2014} raised through the ethics
reporting process These were nvestigated and, where
possible, the outcorne shared with the whistieblower
This year, as in most years, the majority of the concerns
related to HR practices Material concerns raised are
reported to the Pearson audit committee
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Learrers and customers

Our people

Cur pnmary responsibility to learners is to ensure that
evary product or service we sell can be measured by
whatit heips them to achieve Itis also the primary
contribution we can make to society Cur sectton on
efficacy describes the commitments and progress we
have made

Last year, we adopted the Pearsan product iifecycle
framework for managing our products, services and
platforms This introduced a unified product strategy
that brought a single global approach to shape how

we Invest, develop, market and deliver our products

We haveidentified a number of priority products for
investment, selected for thelr potentral to generate

the most business vaiue and deliver the greatest
learner autcomes at scate These are the focus of our
commitments Qur products are Increasingly digltal,
offering opportumties te tallor and personalise learning
around individual needs At the same time, many pecple
have concerns over the security and privacy of data

We have established a governance body within Pearson
to oversee our global approach to these issues

Product developrnentis part of a wider approach to
better understanding product and customer experience
Last year, we introduced the Net Promoter Score (NPS)
systemn inte Pearson This is ane of the most recogrused
methods of measuring customer loyalty and to date over
150,000 of our customers have shared their comments
Corporately, we have also invested in a brand tracker -
seeking the views of learners, parents and educators on
Pearson i our largest markets

One area in which we can do more is to integrate our
approach to managing customer relationships We are
now implementing a single global piatform - Salesforce -
for our marketing, sales and service functions Starting
with our businesses in South Africa and the Higher
Education sales teamns in the United States, we will be
adding new markets, geographies and capabiiities in
2016 Asingle custormer viewwill help improve our
responsiveness to customer needs

Aswe grow through operating and owning learning
nsututions, we have new responsibilines to safeguard
and protectlearners through providing a safe, age-
appropriate learning environment, whether in a
classroomor online Our new head of safeguarding has
spearheaded cur work in this area through assigning
local business leads, establishing common reporting
frameworks, launching a new safeguarding online
learming module and training strategy, as well as piloting
anew approach to inadent prevention

Highlights during the year include

» Reinforcing our single global approach to performance
assessment Introduced in 2014 and refined tn 2015, this
15 designed to help our employees agree expectations
for the year and to motivate people to act consistently
with our values and business strategy

> A continuing commitment to internal learning and
development Pearson has a single global platform - Milo
-forlearning and development Employees completed
approxmately 200,000 courses relevant to employee
developmentduring 2015 Through Milo, we delivered
aglobal employee induction moduie called ‘Welcome
ta Pearson' and a suite of management modules on
ways of working Employees and managers use Mio to
recard therr individual goals, monitor their progress,
and assess thelrperformance Pearson also began the
implementation of a single globalrecruitment process,
which will aliow all employees access to Job openings
around the world and introduces a consistent approach
tointernat movement

> Ensuring our employees and the learners we serve are
safe, resthent and productive Our goal 1s to achteve zero
harm for our employees, contractors and learners,
working to prevent Incidents before they occur In 2013,
we launched arevised Global Health & Safety Policy
which included 39 minimum performance standards for
implementation at all of our locations in the worid in
June 2015, Pearson secured the RoSPA Bronze Award for
health and safety performance for our global operatons
Ahealth and safety strategic planisin place for 201517
with 11 focus areas, each with clear accountability and
measures of performance

>Helping employees understand howwe are doing asa
company. Including how world and sector trends might
affectthem and their business We provide
comprehensive and relevant nformation on our
performance including presentations, small group
discussions, messages andwebinars Senior leaders also
use technology to reach all areas of Pearson, through
imtiatives such as virtual town halls The chief executive
hosts a regular call to update all employees on strategy
and to share new innovations from across the company
In the UK, we have set up an employee engagement
group invalving members elected by staff as well as
trade union representatives
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3 Ow relationships continued

Diversity and inclusion

At Pearson, we value the power of difference Itdnves
innovation, productivity and engagernent, helpmngcreate a
culture of opportunity, where every employee andlearner
isvalued That'swhy we're committed to ensuring that the
core principles of diversity and inclusion are embedded

across our entire business, so thatwe reflect our
customers and learners, and where our people canbe
themselves and contribute fully to our mission to improve
fives through learning

The three piflars of our approach are

Equahty Diversity Inclusion

Champion fair Cefebrate what Create asingle

treatment, makes us different, | globalworking

respectand equal | ourindividuaiand | environment and

oppaortunity for organisational culture, where all

all our people culture, work our peoplecan
styles, values, bring their full
behefs, selves towork,
experiences, are valued for their
backgrounds, differences and
preferences and can contribute fully
behaviours to our company

purpose

We are committed to attracting, retaining, engaging and
developing the best people We knowthat creatng and
sustaining an inclusive work environment is critically
important from the boardroom down, regardless of race,
gender, gender identity or reassignment, age, disability,
rehigion or sexual onentation

Highlights of our actiities include
>We have 3096 female board members, ahead of the
25% by 2015 target set by Lord Dawvies for the UK's
350 largestcompanies

>We remain an enthusiastic member of the 30% Club which
brings together chairs and CEOs to work together on
gender balance We participate in their cross-company
mentonng programme which helps the development of
talented mid-careerwomen

> Raising awareness about the impact of unconscious blas
onkey people management decsions To date, over 4,000
employees have completed ourinteractive training on

the topic

*Inthe UK, we are members of the Stonewall Diversity
Champions programme and participate in the Stoniewall
Workplace Equality ndex, benchmarking how we perform
as an LGBT-fnendlyemployer against over 400 UK
organisations Inthe United States, Pearson again
recorded a perfect score of 100% in the 2015 Corporate
Equality Index run by LGBT advocacy organisation,
the Human Rights Campaign

»We have involved over 3,000 employees in global
employee resources groups Networks include Women
inLearning and Leadership (WILL) which currently has
15 chapters, Pearson Spectrum for LGBT colleagues and
allies, Pearson Parents, Pearson Able for colleagues with
disabllities and accessibihty advocates, Pearson Veterans
for milttary families and veterans, and the Pearson Latino
Network, dedicated to addressing the needs of Hispanic
and Latinc employees and learners

> Disability 1s an important part of ourwider commitment
to diversity andinclusion Wework to ensure that
appropriate procedures, training and supportarein
place for people with disabiitties to ensure fair access to
career and progression opportunities Qur Able network
of employeeswill help us improve practice

Womenin Pearson (%) Q
Boardofdirectors  Senlorieadership*  Altemployees

0/ 30% 0, 0,
i
30% 2014 35% 204 58%2014
2292013 31%2013 57%203
* Two reporung lines from chief executive
All employees (number)
Board of directors  Seniorleadership*  Allemployees**

6 2.0 68 G 16781 (3
1116 men

3 Q 35 Q 24260 Q

* Two reporting lines from chief executrve

** Derived fromHR systerns and includes the FT
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4. Our planet

Supply chain and partners

Pearson purchases goods and services valued at around
£1 5bn each year This total Includes our Investment in
research and development of new digital products.and
services

Speaficclauses relabng to our commitments made

under the UN Global Compact are anintegral part of our
contracts for key supphers These standards include the
rejection of forced and compulsory labour, a respect for
diversity, a minimurm age to work on Pearson projects and
comphance with employment laws and regulations

This year, we reviewed our approach te franchise
partners and Intreduced a common contract template
governing our respansibilities on health and safety,
labour standards, combatting corruption, safeguarding
andthe envronment.

Communities

In 2015, our communuty investment was £10 7m, or T 5% of
pre-tax profits In 2014, Pearson adopted a newstrategy
which established increasing literacy rates worldwide as
our anchor sooal impact campagn issue, alongwith a
focus on employee engagement incommunities Read
more on pages 65-66

We are committed to playing an active role in helping
shape and inform the global debate around education

and learring policy Amajor milestone this year was the
launch of the UN Sustainable Development Goals and,
with others, we successfully advocated for the incluston of
education as a core goal We also contrnibuted to the debate
during the UN General Assembly i September as well as
1o Project Everyone to spread the word on the goals

We are a board member representing the private sector
on the Global Partnership for Education, having been
one of the first compamnes to join the intiative GPE
bnngs together over 50 developing countries, donor
governments, international organisations, the private
sector, teachers, and cvit society/NGO groups to support
developing countries with therr education sector plans
through finanaal assistance and technical expertise
www globalpartnership org

We also believe that the wider private sector has an
impartant contnibution to make in developing education
and learming policy We helped establish, and continue
tosupport, the Global Business Coalition for Educatian,
helping focus the wider business comrunity on the
challenges faced by developing countries to promote
learning http /gbc-education org/about-us

We believe that we have a responsibility to play our partin
protecting the natural resources cnwhichwe all depend

Climate change

Pearson maintained our climate neutral status for our
directly controlled operations - a commitment we first
achteved In 2009 We do this through carbon reduction,
purchase of renewable energy, renewable energy
generation at our sites and the purchase of carbon
offsets

Highlights of our activittes include

>Pearson retains global certification against the Carbon
Trust Standard We were the second ever organisation
to secure the standard which recognises leadership
1N measuring, managing and reducing year-on-year
carbon emisstons

» Pearson completed our work to build a carbon footprint
analysis taol for our book pubhshing in the US and UK
This will help us target the most effective reductions

»We maintamned our record of purchasing 100% of the
electrlaty we use from green power representing over
141,000 MWh of electncity in 2015 During COP211n
Paris, Pearson announced that we had signed up to
RE100, joining over 50 companies helping build the
market for renewable electricity

> We continue to generate renewable electnicity at
five sites and have 2 § MW of wind and solar assets
instafled

»Pearson is certified against 15014401, the environmental
management standard in the UK and Australia During
2015, Pearson completed the work to become certified
against iSO 50001, the energy management standard

> Our River Street offices in Hoboken, New Jersey, became
the latest to secure LEED certification, an internattonally
recognised mark of environmentatexcellence in facilities
management Pearson occupies 840,000 square feet
n LEED certified buldings including our offices at
330 Hudson Streetin New York

Our approach to managing other materally important
emusstons ~ such as embedded carbon dioxtde in
purchased raw materniais as well as bustness travel by
air —are detaifed in our 2015 Environment report

This will be published in june 2016

Targets

25% 100%

reduction in operational To maintain our record of
emissions by the end of purchasing 100% of the
2015, based on a 2009 base  electricity we use from
year We achieved 30% green power Achieved
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4 Our planet continued

Global Greenhouse Gas {(GHG) emissions data (Metric tonnes of CO,e)

Calendaryear Calendaryear

Calendaryear Calendaryear

Emissions from 014 2015 Intensity ratios 2014 2015
Combustion of fuel and operation Scopes 1 and 2 {tonnes CO,e)/

of facitiies {GHG Protocol scope 1) 25,027 22,343 sales revenue £ {millions) 26 6 248
Electricity, heat, stearn and cooling Scopes 1and 2 (tonnes CO,e)/FTE 317 270

purchased for own use (GHG
Protocol scope 2) 104,715 88,381

Total 129,742 110,724

Carbon ermissions The scope 1 and scape 2 carbon emissions are calculated according to The Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standard (Revised Edition) together with the latest emission factors from recogrused sources including, but not limlted 1o DEFRA,
the internatlonal Energy Agency, and the US Environmental Protection Agency No materlal scope 1 or scope 2 emlssions have been excluded

from the reported GHG emissions

Material use Forests

When purchasing paper for our books, security and
sustainability of supply are very important to us
Paper use remains a priority environmental issue
and we continue to focus on sustamnabihity sourang
and being more effictent In how we use paper We

*Firstadopted and publicly disclosed our environmental
sourcing policy for paper in 2003

> Collect and map data on the forest of onigin, certificaticn
systems applicable and recycled content for the papers
we purchase

»Talk about our guidelines with our key paper suppliers
whenwe meet and as part of our contract negotiations

* Discuss our approach to paper purchasing with
customers, enwironmental groups, investor analysts
and other interested stakeholders

Our performance Qur social impact rankings

s Signed up to the WWF Save Forests campaign and added
ourvoice for the inclusion of printed material within the
scope of the EU Timber Regulation

»Hold Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) chain of custody
certfication, afiowing books to carry the FSC label for our
businesses in North Amenca and in the UK

» Are members of industry bodies dedicated ta responsible
forest management We have been members of the WWF
forest and trade network for over a decade and are a
founder member of PREPS - the publishers database for
respansible environmental paper scurcing -whichwe use
across our global business

>Invest in forest-based carbon offsets for any part of our
chimate footpnnt we cannot reduce or avoid through
other means Since 2009, this programime has seen over
1,300 hectares of forest protected in Canada, Colombia,
Costa Rica, the USand the UK

Visit pearson com/environment to learn more é

One way we assess how we are doing as a responsible business 1s to maintain our positton in key indices

and benchmarks of socal respensibility

index/year 201 2012 2013 204 2015

Dow jones Sustainability Indices” Global Gold Sitver Bronze Branze

Sector Leader Class Class Class Class

BITC Corporate Responsibility index Platinum Platinum Platinum Platinum S5
{retained) {retarned)

{nclusion in FTSE4Good Yas Yes Yes Yes Yes

Corperate Knights indexof the Global 100 Yes Yes

most sustainable corporations

* Fortheiastdecade, we have beenincluded In the DjSI Warld index
which includes only the top 10% of companies [n eachindustry
assessed for sustafnability performance

*¥ BITCIntroduced a new rating system [n 2015

We welcome feedback on this aspect of the
company as we do on any other Please e-mail
amanda gardiner@pearson comwith any questions
or ideas you may have




5. Impact campaigns

Section 3 Our social impact 65

Pearson has changed its approach to community
investrent We befieve that we can make more of
a dlffereg ce to people’s ives through focusing on
a smail number of campaigns and issues, where
working together with others can accelerate the
impact of [earming

As the world's learning company, Pearson has alot to
offer beyond traditional cash donations -we can also
bring the expertise and enthusiasm of our peaple, as
well as awealth of relevant products and services

This approach also delwers value for the company

By getting involved in social campaigns, our employees
can develop new skilis, insight and energy and apply
this to their work at Pearson Our soctalimpact
campaigns also raise Pearson’s profile, differentiate us,
and increase awareness of 1ssues that inhibit access

to better learning outcomes

In 2015, our primary focus has been on developing our
flagship campaign, Project Litaracy Alongside this, we
have atso offered employees a range of new ways to get
involved inworthy causes and their local communities

Project Literacy

IHiteracy remains a huge challenge One inten people
worldwtde, or over 750 miliion adults, are illiterate, two-
thirds of whom are women This Is a staggering number
of people

We also know that bemng hiterate 1s fundamental
to butlding a world in which everyone has the chance
tolearn

Literacy 1s an 1ssue where we believe that Pearson can
make a substantial contribution, but is far from sufficient
onits own This s why we launched Project Literacy -
amovement with a shared vision to putliteracy wathin
everyone's reach, unlocking the potential of people,
communities and whole economies Todate,

48 organisations have joined the campaign

Project Literacy - headlines

To shape our campaign strategy and focus, we
researched the views of the public, the private sector
and literacy charities to understand both the current
landscape and to benchmark awareness of literacy
as an urgentissue We found that

a) literacy is not viewed as.a major global or
national issue However, when illiteracyis connected
tosocial and economic challenges such as poverty,
interest rises

b) The vast majority of funding 1s for child Iteracy
leaving adult, and in particularwomen's, Iiteracy
under-funded

¢} More investment s needed tosupportfamiies to
help their children develop literacy skills before
starting school

Based on these msights, Project Literacy refinedits
focus and strategy as a five-year campargn dedicated
to building a movement and partnerships that willact
together to close the global literacy gap

Building partnerships Partnerships are criucaltothe
success of Project Literacy Our partnership selection
process s based on a theory of change developed in
collaboration with the Pearson Efficacy tearn and

Results for Development (R4D), a US non-profit that
specialises in monitoring and evatuation for international
development programmes

Engaging empioyees in socal impact

Cur people are our best ambassadors and advocates
One way we supportthemis to provide opportunities
to give time and money to nvest inther commurities
We use Project Literacy as a lever, butwe also support
our employees to make animpact oncauses they care
about threugh opportunities to volunteer, donate and
to share thetr social impact stories Qver the course of
2015, 30% of employees participated insocialimpact
actvities at Pearson

969m

people reached through
meda, soclal reach and
lMAGE events
REMOVED

11,460

people have sought
volunteering opportunities
with our Project Literacy
partners

Cefebrities and influencers
supportingthe campalgn
Richard Branson, Chelsea
Clintonand Piers Morgan

IMAGE
REMOVED

449477

views of Project Literacy
articles published by GOOD
Magazine, a soal purpose
mediacompany

Events marked by
ProjectLiteracy”

World Book Day, Mandela
Day, International Youth
Day, international Literacy
Day, UNGA week,
International Human Rights
Day, and Gwing Tuesday

$SIUISNG ING

uewioyRdINg

vedu 21305 100

IURWIAA0G I

SIS [RIIUBIS |




66 Pearson plc Annual report and accounts 2015

5 Impact campaigns continued

The three pillars of our theory of change that guide our partnership investment decisions are

Advancing
best practice

We partner with organisations
tmplementing proven literacy
interventions to help them grow
Why? Because there are some
things that we already know work
toimprove literacy, and we need
mere of them

v
National Literacy Trust (NLT)

Innovating
new solutions

We partner with organisations
to design, buld and ngorously
test new approaches to tackhing
iliteracy Why? Because new
solutions will be needed to
reachthe most marginalised
and achieve scale

v

Worldreader

Raismg awareness and
mobihising action

We are bullding a network to
advocate collectively for greater
investment In and attentionto
Iteracy Why? Because the extent of
the problem and its potential impact
15 huge, we'll need everyone united
to close the literacy gap

v

Unsigned petition

Project Literacy and NLT are
partnering together to replicate Early
Words Tagether, a targeted hteracy
peer education programme for
families with children aged 2to 5,

1n 30 schools across the London
metropolfltan area Asan integral
component of the programme,
Pearson and community volunteers
are recruited and trained to help
parents improve thelr horne learning
environment and adopt behaviours
thatsuppaort hteracy using evidence-
based approaches and materials

Project Literacy and Worldreader are
partnering together on a mobsle
technology pilot prajectin India -
Mobile Reading to Children - to
empower parents to talk more

and read more to their chiidren,
speafically through the use of mobile
devices With the Worldreader mobile
app, which is available on feature
phones and smartphones, wewill

be providing a rich bank of locally
relevant content at fow cost for
200,000 fow-Income parents in
Delhiwho have children aged 6 and
younger Additianal partners include
Results for Development, Center for
Knowledge Societles, Soclety for All
Round Devefopment, Katha, and
Health and Family Planning
Organization

in September 2015, 16 Project
Literacy partnersjoined forcesto
sign anopen letter to world leaders
meeting at the United Nationis
General Assembly (UNGA), calling
onthem to make literacy a key part
of the sustalnable development
agenda The letter was published

in The New York Times and The
Guardian This letter, combined with
the launch of our global ‘Unsigned
Petition’, reached 410 million people
through social media The petition
is our mayor call to action for 2015
and 2016, serving a% a striking and
visual reminder of the global scate
of lfiteracy and the 750 millton
people worldwlde who cannhot sign
for themselves

Volunteering

Giving

We now have formal volunteering programmes in place
in the US and the UK with Project Literacy partners
including Reading Partners, Jumpstart and the Nattonal
Literacy Trust In 2015, our employees volunteered
over 10,000 hours with 40% of those inked {o Iiteracy
For one programme - Read for the Record run by
Jumpstart - our employees contributed approximately
1,000 volunteenng hours and helped 7,000 children

Shanng

Pearson employees helped inspire others by
contributing more than 1,400 stories about literacy
volunteering or donating, efther on social media or
on our internal community engagement hub

Pearson has teamed up with Kiva, the world’s largest
mucro-lending platform, to provide micro-leans to people
around the world who are tocked out of tradiuona!
banking systems Todate, employees have made more
than $600,000 of loans to Kiva entrepreneurs, making
Pearson third globally for total amount loaned by a
business on Kiva

In September, we [aunched a matching gifts campaign

to mark the launch of the Global Goals and Project
Literacy presence at UNGA Throughout the entire
month, employees across Pearson who gave to chanties
received a 4 1 match from Pearson The campaign raised
over $430,000 Over the course of the year, employees
supported mare than 1,100 chartties

e ————



6. Social innovation

Section 3 Our soclal iImpact 67

Lack of access to quality education for low-income and
marginalsed families 1s a global challenge that impacts
both developing and developed economies

Central to our approach s a belhef that commercial
sclutions can accelerate access to quality, affordable
education, while presenting new business cpportunities
for Pearson Uncevering, developing and scaling
solutions, espedially in places where education
standards fali well behind the best in the world, can
regquire us to challenge the way we think about our
business We invest in new technology as well as test
innovative partnerships for our products to reach

these markets

iIMAGE REMOVED

Social innovation in practice - the Pearson
Affordable Learning Fund

The Fund launched in 2012 and has a maximum commitment
level of $65min capitai Its ambition s to reach millions of
students from low income famibies by 2020, allowing access
to high quality affordable education Integral to Its approach
is to set improvements in leaming outcomes and market-
based returns as conditsons of continued Investment The
Fund has Invested in Innovative education start-ups in South
Africa, Nigeria, Ghana, india and the Philippines The Fund
goes far beyond financial backing in that it contributes to
good governance, and operatonal support to education
entrepreneurs The Fund enables innovation from which
both Pearson and governments can leam, the cost per
student i the schools tn the fund portfolic1son parar

lower than the per pupil costin the public sector

One example 1s Every Child Learming - our partnership
with Save the Children Our shared vision is to work
together to find sustainable ways for the education
system in jordan to cope with the influx of displaced
Syrian refugee children We have donated £500,000
to fund the establishment of two Save the Children
education centres In Amman, which are supporung
Syrian refugees and host community children{(5to 13
years old) to get a quality education We have made

a further £1m commitment toworkjomntly with Save
the Chitdrento scope, research, design and develop
new educatton solutions That means going beyond
traditional phulanthropy to leverage the fuli potential
of Pearson’s global operations, networks and people

IMAGE REMOVED

Every Child Learning

Providing education for children in confitct and emergency
settings presents manyunique challenges As the conflictin
Syrla enters its sixth year, over two milkor Syrtan chlldren are
no longern school and even more are vulnerable to the risks
of child labaour, early marriage and recruitment into mifiba
groups Te address thss critical issue we have joined forces
with the international organisation Save the Childrento
launch Every Child Learning The three-year partnership
worth £1 Smwillincrease educational opportumties for
syrian refugees and host communities, and innovate new
solutions to help improve the delivery of education in
emergency and conflictaffected settings
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Governance overview

From Vivienne Cox, Senior independent director

Vivienne Cox
Senior independant director

IMAGE REMOVED

During times of change, good
governance is paramount. As a
board we organise our work around
four major themes where we believe
we can add value: governance,
strategy, performance and people.

In this Governance section

Leadership & effectiveness p72-81 °
Accountabdity pB2-89 o
Engagement p90-93Q
Remuneration p84-117 °
Additional disciosures pl18-123Q

Dear shareholders

The past year has seen some notable changes at
Pearson, in terms of both personnel and portfoho,
and as senior independent director, the board felt it
was appropriate for me to set out these changes for
you mn greater detail

After ten years at Pearson, dunng which our business
and the wider economy it which we operate have
transformed markedly, Glen Moreno stepped down as
chawrman at the end of 2015 Whulst the last few months
of 2015 were chailenging for Pearson, Glen's legacy to the
company can be seenin the well balanced and forward-
thinking board of directors he has assembled which s
working hard to steer Pearson back to growth Having
worked alongside Glen for the past four years on the
board, and on behalf of Pearson as awhole, | would ke
to thank him for his deep commutment to Pearson and
its mission and wish him the very best for the future

Glen’s successor as Pearson chawrman, Sidney Taurel,
officiaily took up his post in January 2016 and we are
confident that his experience and dedication will help
guide Pearson towards successful delivery of its key
prionties Read more about Chairman succession

on p79 -+

Governance principles

During times of change, good governance I1s paramount
The board was closely involved with the strategic
decisions to sell Pearson's interests in the Financial
Times, The Economist and PowerSchoal, providing input
and chalienge as matters progressed We will continue
to do so throughout the current phase of change

Our role and activities As a board we crganise our work
around four major themes where we believewe can add
value governance, strategy, performance and people
Our beard calendar and agenda provide ample time

to focus on these themes and we have set out some
examples of the business considered by the board, as
well as the governance practices to whichwe adhere, on
the pages that follow Learn more about Board meetings
and activities on p75 @

UK Corporate Governance Code This year, for the first
time, we are reporting against the 2014 edition of the
UK Corporate Governance Code {the Code) The board
believes thatduring 2015 the company was in full
compliance with all relevant provisions of the Code
Adetailed account of the provisions of the Cade canbe
found on the FRC's website at www frc org ukand we
encourage readers to view our compltance schedule on
the company website atwww pearsqon com/governance
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Board and management

Engagement Seefuli section on p30-93 &

The Pearson board consists of semor executive
management alongside a strong tearm of non-executive
drwectors drawn from successful international
businesses and educationinstitutions with experience
of corporate strategy, education, emerging markets,
technology and consumer marketing

Board changes Asis best practice, we continually

assess and refresh the board to ensure we maintain

an appropriate balance and diversity of skills and
experience In April 2015 we also brd farewell to Davtd
Arculus and Ken Hydon, who each served on the board
for nine years, as remuneratton and audit committee
charmenrespectively tn additon to our new chairman,
we have also welcomed two other directors to our board
since our last report to shareholders Coram Williams -
along-tme Pearson and Penguin Random House
colleague - joined the board on 1 August 2015, assuming
the role of chief financial officer following Robin
Freestone's departure, and in January 2016, Lincoln
Walienjoined the board as a non-executive director
bringing with um a wealth of digital and technology
experience We welcome Coram and Lincoln to the
board, where they are already making valuable
contributions to our governance and dehberations
Learnmore about our Board of directors on p72-73 °

Board and executive structure and balance Our board
consists primarnly of non-executive directors, who

bring a strong independentviewpoint, complementing
the executive perspectives of John Fallon and Coram
Wiliams In addition, we invite members of the Pearson
executive to attend a number of the hoard’s sessions to
bring msights and thoughts from across the business,
such as at the board's overseas strategy sessions inPalo
Alto, Califorma and New Delhi, India Learn more about
the Overseas strategy sessions on p93 O

Accountability See full sectron on pR2-89 @

Akey element of the board and audit commuttee’s work
each year s consideration of Pearson's nisk appetite and
the review of our principal risks The 2014 edition of the
Codeintroduced arequirement for the board to assess
the company’s prospects taking inte account the current
position and principal risks, and to make aviabiity
statement onthis basis The audit committee supported
the board in this process by examining the analysis

and assumptions underlying the viability statement,
considering the required inputs and evaluaung the
proposed disclosures resulting from the process

Learn more about Risk management on p38-40

and read the Viability statement on p118 €

Engagement with shareholders and society as a wholeis
key to Pearson's mission to help people make progress
i therr ives through access to betterlearning We have
announced important partnerships durlng the pastyear,
such as Project Literacy and our partnership with Save
the Children, and the launch of the UN's Sustainable
Development Goals has presented an opportunity for
Pearson to become engaged with awide section of
stakeholders Asa result, our reputation & responsibility
commmittee continues to expand its areas of focus, with
increased sight of Pearson's soclal impactinitiatives,
social and traditonal media engagement activity, and
employee engagement matters We alsowelcomed a
number of shareholders to our Annual General Meeting
(AGM)which, as always, was a valuable opportunity

for our board and sentor management to respond to
shareholders’ views and questions

See full section on p94-117 O

-

Remuneration

This year's directors’ remuneration report refers to
furtherincremental changes we have made iniine

with policy in 2015 to better align executive director
compensation with the interests of our shareholders
and how this policy was operated in 2015 Yo putour
reportinto context, we have included a summary of the
approved directors’ remuneration policy report from
2013 whichis not subject to avote Our remuneration
policy was reviewed in 2013 to alignwith the company’s
strategy and ergamisation and was approved by
shareholders atthe 2014 AGM We continue to operate
executive remuneration in line with the approved policy
and at present do not antiapate seeking shareholder
approval for our palicy again until required to do so at
the 2017 AGM

Conclusion

I hope this report clearty sets out howyour company is
run, and how we align governance and our board agenda
with the strategic direction of Pearson We always
welcome questions or comments from shareholders,
either via our website (www pearson com)or in person
atour Annual General Meeting

IMAGE REMOVED

Vivienne Cox
Sentor independent director
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Board of directors

Chairman

Exacutive directors

=12

IMAGE REMOVED

Sidney Taurel Chairman
aged 67, appointed 1 January 2016

IMAGE REMOVED

John Fallon Chief executive
aged 53, appointed 3 October 2012

IMAGE REMOVED

Coram Williams Chief financal officer
aged 42, appointed 1 August 2015

Skdney has over 40years of experiencein
business and finance, and 1s currently a board
director and chalrman of the Compensation
Committee at|BM Corporation Helsalsea
director at McGraw Hill Financlal, Inc, arole
from which he will step down during 2016
Sldneyis senior advisor at global investment
bank Moelis & Co and an advisory board
member at pharmaceutical firms Takeda
Pharmaceutical and Almirall He was chief
executive officer of global pharmaceutical
firm Eli Lilly and Company from 1958 untll
2008, charrman of the business from 1999
until 2008, and has been chairman emerltus
since 2009 Skiney has received three Us
presidential appointments tothe Homeland
Security Advisory Council, the President's
Export Counchl and the Advisory Committee
forTrade Policy and Negotiations, and is an
officer of the French Leglon of Hongur

Key to committees

Johnbecame Pearson's chiefexecutive on

1 jJanuary 2013 Since 2008 he had been
responsible for the company's education
businesses outside North America, and
amember of the Pearson management
committee He joined Pearson in 1597

as director of communications and was
appolnted president of Pearson Inc , 1n 2000
In 2003 he was appointed CEO of Pearson’s
educatlonal publishing businesses for Europe,
Middie East and Africa Prlor to joining
Pearson, john wasdirector of corporate affairs
at Powergen plc, and was also a member

of the company’s executive committee.
Eartier In his career John held senior public
policy and communications rofes In UKiacal
government He |s anadvisary board member
of the Global Business Coallitlon for Education
and amember of the Councll of the Liniversity
of Hull

Non-executive directors

Coramjoined Pearson In 2003 and has held a
number of senior positions including finance
and operations directer for Pearson’s English
Language Teaching businessin Europe,
Middle East & Africa, interim president of
Pearson Education ltalla and head of financial
planning and analysis for Pearson In 2008
Coram became CFO of The Penguin Group
and was latterty appointed CFO of Penguin
RandomMouse in 2013 Coramwas trained at
Arthur Andersen, and subsequently worked
In both the auditing and consulting practices
ofthefirm

© o

Audlt Committee
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IMAGE REMOVED

Linda Lorimer Non-executive director
aged 63, appointed 1 July 2013

0o

IMAGE REMOVED

Harish Manwani Non-executive director
aged 62, appointed 1 October 2013

Linda has a deep background in education
strategy, administration and public affairs.
Sheissenior counselior to the president and
provost of Yale Unversity and until recently
served as vice prestdent for Global & Strateglc
Initlatives at Yale where her dutles Incuded
oversight of Yale's Office of International
Affairs and Office of Digital Bissemination
Over a30 year career In higher education,
she hasbeenrespanstble for many of

Yale's administrative services Inciuding

the urversity’s public communications,
alumni relations and Office of Sustamnability
Previousty, Linda served as president of
Randelph-Macon Woman's Collega in Virginia
and was chalr of the board of the Association
of Amenican Colleges and Universities She
alsoserved on the boards of several public
companles, including as presiding director

of the McGraw- Hill Companies

Harish has an extensive background in
emerging markets and senjor experience

in a successful global organisation He

was previously chief operating officer of
consumer products company Unilever, having
Jjomed the company in 1976 as amarketing
management trainee inIndia and held
senior managementroles around the world
Including NorthAmerica, Latln America,
Europe, Africa and Asra He lsnon-executive
chairman of Hindustan Unllever Limlited in
India and serves anthe boards of Whirlpool
Corporatlon, Qualcornm Inc. and Nielsen
Holdings Hesalsoon the board of the
Indsan Schoel of Business and the Economic
Development Board {EDB}of Singapore and
Is gichal executive advisor at Blackstone
Private Equity
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Non-executive directors
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IMAGE REMOVED

Elizabeth Corley, CBE
Non-executive director
aged 59, appointed 1 May 2014

IMAGE REMOVED
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Vivienne Cox, CBE
Senior independent director
aged 56, appointed 1 January 2012

Elizabethis non executive vice chair

of Allianz Global Investors, where she

was chref executive officer from 2005 to

2016 Shewas previously at Merrlll Lynch
Investment Managers (formerly Mercury
Asset Management) and Coopers & Lybrand
Ellzabethis acting-chair of the FICC Markets
Standards Board, a member ofthe ESMA
stakeholder group and an advisory councll
member of TheCliyUK Sheis anon-
executive director of BAE Systems plc and
the Financlal Reporting Counclt Inadditlon
she is amember of FEAM's management
committee the CFA Future of Finance Coundll
the Supervisory Board of Euler SA, atouncil
member of the City of London IRSG and a
member of the Committee of 200 Shelsa
fellow of the CFA and the Royal Society of Arts
and is also a crime fiction author

Non-executive directors

Vivienne has wide experience Inenergy,
natural resources and business innovation
She worked for BP plc for 28 years, In Britain
and Continental Europe, In posts Inctuding
executive vice president and chlef exscutive
of BP's gas, power and renewables business
and its alternative energy unit. She |s non-
executive director of Stena International
and chalrman of the supervisory board of
Vallourec, which supplies tubular systems
for the energy industry Shels alsolead
independent director at the UK Department
for International Development Viviennewas
appolnted Commander of the Order of the
British Emplre {CBE} Inthe 2016 New Year
Horwours for services to the UK Economy
and Sustainability

006
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JoshLewlis Non-executive director
aged 53, appolnted 1 March 2011

Josh's experience spans flnance, education
and the development of digital enterprises
Hais the founder of Salmon River Capital
LLC aNew York based private equity/
venture capital firm focused on technology-
enabled busingsses In education, financial
services and othersectors Overa25 year
career in active, principal investing, he has
beeninvolved tna broad range of successful
companies, including several ploneering
enterprises In the education sector In
addition, he hastong been active In the non-
profiteducation sector withassociations
induding New Leaders, New Classrooms,
and the Bill & Melirnda Gates Foundation

He s aiso 2 non-executive director of several
enterprises In the fin-tech/data, education
and other sectors

o9
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Tim Score Non-executive director
aged 55, appointed 1january 2015
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IMAGE REMOVED

Lincoln Wallen Non-executive director
aged 55, appointed 1January 2016

Tim has extensive experience of the
technology secior Inboth developed and
emerging markets, having served as chief
financtal offlcer of ARM Holdings plc the
world's leading semiconductor P company,
aposition he heldfor 13years Helsan
experienced non-executive director and
currently sits on the boards of The British
Land Company plc and HM Treasury He
served on the board of Natlonal Express
Growup pic from 2005 to 2014, including time as
interim chairman and six years as the senior
Independentdirecior Earlier in his carear Tim
held senior finance roles with Rebus Group,
William Baird, BTRplc and athers

Lincoln is chief technolegy officer for
DreamWorks Animation, the global famlly
entertaintnent company, a position he has
held since 2072, having Joined the company
ashead ofresearchand developmentin
2008 Prior to this, Lincoln served as chief
technology officer for the mobile business
of Electronic Arts, Inc , aleading Interactive
entertainment software company He has
held semor positions at Criterion Software,
MathEngme plcandis a non-executive
director of the Smith Instiiute for industrial
Mathematics & Systern Engineering Lincoln
is also anadvisory board mernber of Hewdett
Packard Enterprise and a member of the
STEM Advisory Committee of the National
Academy foundation Lincotnwas formerfy
alecturer and reader incomputation at the
uUnmersity of Oxford

Pearson board
members bring a wide
range of experience,
skills and backgrounds
which complement

our strategy.

Experience of chairman and
non-executive directors

Digital/technology

experlence IMAGE
8]

63 /) REMOVED

Emerging market

experience IMAGE
0
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Education/learning

sector experience IMAGE
0

63 /) REMOVED
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Board governance and activities

Board of directors

Compositton of the board The board currently consists
of the chairman, Sidney Taurel, two executive directors
including the chief executive, john Fallon, and seven
independent non-executive directors

Chairman and chief executive There Is a defined split
of responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive The roles and responsibilities of the chairman
and chief executive are dearly defined, set outinwnting
and reviewed and agreed by the board annually

Chairman’s significant commitments There were no
changes to the charrman's significant commitments
between his appointment to the Pearson board on
1january 2016 and the date of thisreport Mr Taurel
has announced that he will step down from the board
of McGraw Hill Financial, Inc atits 2016 annual
shareholders' meeting

Independence of chairman Sidney Taurel was
considered to be independent upon his appomtmert
ascharman on 1 January 2016

independence of directors Al of the non-executive
directors who served durtng 2015 were considered by
the board to be independent for the purposes of the
Code Lincoln Wallen was consldered to be independent
upon tus appointment to the board on 1 January 2016
The board reviews the Independence of each of the
non-executive directors annually This includes
reviewing their external appointments and any potential
conflicts of interest as well as assessing thewr individual
crcumstances in order to ensure that there are no
relationships or matters likely to affect their character
or judgement. In addition to this review, each of the
non-executive directors is asked annually to comptete
anindependence questionnarre to satisfy requirements
arising from Pearsen’s US hsting

Keyroles
Role Name Responsibility
Chalrman Sidney Taurel The chairman is primarlly responsible for the leadership of the board and ensuring its

effectiveness. The chairman sets the board's agenda and promotes open, constructive
debate of all agenda items and effective deasion-making He also ensures that the views
of shareholders are communicated to the board

Chilefexecutive )ohn Fallon

The chief exeautve 1s responsible for the operaticnal management of the business and for

the development and implementation of the company’s strategy as agreed by the board
and management. He s responsible for developing operational propesals and pohcies for
approval by the board, and promotes Pearson’s culture and standards

Semor Vivienne Cox The senor independent director’s role includes meeting regularly with the chairman and
independent chief executlve to discuss specific issues, as well as being available to shareholders generally
director should they have concerns that have not been addressed through the normal channels
Committee Tim Score, Elizabeth The committee chairmen are responsible for leading the board committees and ensuring
chalrmen Corley, Vivienne Cox  their effectiveness They setthe committees' agendas, in consultation with the company's
and Sidney Taurel  management, and reporttothe board oncommittee proceedings
Company Stephenjones The company secretary acts as secretary to the board and its committees, ensuring
secretary compliance with board procedures and advising on governance matters He is responsible,

under the direction of the chalrman, for ensuring the board recelves accurate, timely and
clear information The company secretary organises new director inductions and ongoing
director training.

Gender sphit of hoard

Length of tenure of non-executive directors

®Men 7 ®Under 3years 5
@& 'Women 3 ®3to6years 2
Figures as at dMarch 2016 Figures as at 4 March 2016

IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED
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Conflicts of Interest Under the Companies Act 2006

{the Act), directors have a statutory duty to avoid
conflicts of interest with the company The company’s
articles of assoclation (Articles) allow the directors to
authanise conflicts of interest The company has
established a procedure to identify actual and potential
conflicts of interest, including all directorships or other
appointments to, or relationshups with, companies which
are not part of the Pearson group and which could give
rise to actual or potential conflicts of interest Once
notified to the chairman or company secretary, such
potential cenflicts are considered for authonsation by
the board atits next scheduled meeting The relevant
director cannot vote on an authorisatien resolution, or
be counted m the quorum, in relation to the resalution
relating to his/her canfhict or potential conflict The board
reviews any authorisations granted on an annual basis

Board meeting focus dunng the year 2015

Board meetings

The board held six scheduled meetings in 2015, with
discussions and debates focused on the key strategic
1ssues facing the company Major items covered by the
board in 2015 are shown in the table below In addition
to the six formal meetings, the board met by telephone
inJanuary 2015 to consider the January trading update
to be 1ssued to the market, and by telephone in October
2015 to consider the market’s reaction to Pearson's
Qctober trading update and to begin to plan the
proposed strategic course of action

The role and business of the hoard

The board is deeply engaged in developing and
measuring the company’s long-term strategy,
performance and value We believe that itadds a
valuable and diverse set of external perspectives and
that robust, cpen debate about significant bustness
issues brings an additionat discipline to major decisions

Toplc Activity
Annual review of authorised conflicts of interest Facus on forthcoming AGM and review of
Governance shareholder fssues
Review of division of responsibilities between

charman and chief executive

Shareholder activism and defence plan

Appointment of company secretary

Treasury policy approval

Update on Pearson System of Courses (PSoC)
induding hands-on demonstration of courseware

South African Black Economit Empowerment
(BEE} overview

Supply chain cutsourcing arrangements

Risk appetite

Approval of committee termsofreference

Enterprise risk management review Read more
onp3sQ

Approval of schedule of authority imits

Operating and strategic plan updates

Brand strategy Read more on p7 @

Regular product demonstrations

Consideration of proposed corporate transactions
Including sales of PowerSchocel, the Financial Times
and The Econamist

Offsite strategy meeting In California focusing on
digltal disruption in education

Offsite strategy meeting in New Dethi focusing on
Brazil, China, India and Sauth Africa Read more
onp93 QD

Performance

2014 preliminary results and annual report and
accounts

Review of investor relations strategy and share
price performance

Interim results and trading updates

Balance sheet strategy

Triennlal penslonvaluation

Fina! and interim dividend proposals

Monthly management reports

Draft 2016 operatng plan and three-year financials

People

Jnt

Overview of The Summit' - Pearson's senlor
leadership conference

Rising Stars breakfast at overseas strategy meetings

india key talent and leadershipteam dinner at
New Dethi strategy meeting
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Board governance and activities continued

A schedule of formal matters reserved for the board's
decision and approval 1s available on our website, at
WwWw pearson com/governance

The board receives timely, regular and necessary
finanoial, management and other informaton to fulfifits
duties Comprehensive board papers are arculated to
the board and committee members atieast one weekin
advance of each meeting and the board receives regular
reports from the chief executive Inaddition to meeting
papers, alibrary of current and historic corporate
information is made avallable to directors electronicafly
to support the board's decision-making process
Directors can obtain independent professional advice,
at the company's expense, in the performance of thetr
duties as directors All directors have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary

Non-executive directors meet withiocal senlor
management every time board meetings are held at the
locations of operating companies, such as during the
board's 2015 visits to Palo Alto, Cahforra and New Delhi,
India This allows the non-executive directors to share
their expenence and expertuise with seror managers as
well as allowing them to better understand theabilities
and motivations of sentor management, whichin turn
will help them assess the company's prospects and plans
for succession

Standing cormmittes

A standing committee of the board was established

to approve certain ordinary course of business items
such as banking matters, guarantees, intra-group
transactions and to make routine approvals refating to
employee share plans

The committee has written terms of reference, reviewed
and approved each year, which clearly set outits
authority and duties These can be found on the
company website at www pearson com/governance

Culture and values of the board

As evidenced during its externally facillitated evaluation
1n 2014, as awhole and at an individual level, the board
feels wholly commutted to Pearson's values and mission
The reputation & respensibility committee's remit
includes oversight of Pearson’s values and culture,

and it has continued to monitor work in these areas
throughotut the year

Board attendance

The followtng table sets out the attendance ofthe
company's directors at scheduled board meetings

during 2013
Board
meetings
attended
Chairman
Glen Moreno 6/6
Execunve directors
John Fallon 6/6
Robin Freestone (note 1) 4/4
Coram Williams (note 2) 2/2
Non-executive directors
Dawd Arculus (note 3) 242
Eiizabeth Corley 6/6 |
Vivienne Cox 6/6
Ken Hydon (note 4) W2
losh Lewrs 6/6
Linda Lonmer 6/6 |
Harish Manwani 6/6
Tim Score 6/6
Hote1 Stood down on 1 August 2015
Note 2. Appointed on 1 August 2015

Note 3 Stood down on 24 April 2015
Moted Stood downon 24 April 2015, Unable to attend ane meeting due to
personat reasons

Succession planning

The beard considers oversight of succession planning -
notonly at board and executive management level but
for all key positions throughout the business - as one of
its prime responsibilities At board level, the primary
focus during the year was to identify surtable candidates
for the role of chairman

The company has formal contingency plans in place for
temporary absence of the chief executsve for health or
other reasons The matter of chief executive succession
is a standing item for discussion and review by the
chairman and chief executive annually Succession
planning for the board and chairis considered annually,
and as part of therecent restructuring programme,
there has been a review of key positions at executive
management fevel
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Board evaluation

As reported last year, towards the end of 2014, an
externally facilitated board effectiveness review was
conducted by external evaluatar, JCA Group in addition
to facilitating this review, JCA Group used the imformation
and insight they had gleaned from the individual
members of the board to help them form abnief and an
overview of the charactenistics that Pearson would be
looking forin a new chairman JCA then used thisinsight
to inform the chairman search which took place during
2015, and resulted in the eventual appomntment of Sidney
Taurel as Pearson chairman See p79 for a full review of
chairman succession at Pearson ©

The board evaluation far 2015 was conducted onan
internal basis With the forthcomung departure of

Glen Moreno, the arnval of a new chairman, together
with the appointment of a new CFO and the imminent
appontment of a new company secretary, it was agreed
that the 2015 review shouid focus mainly on the support
and information that the board and committees receive
inorder to ensure that the existing processes are
sufficient and fit for purpose To that end, Stephen jones,
Pearson’s company secretary, interviewed each of the
non-executive directors to understand their thinking

on a number of board and committee-related support
activities

Process and recommendations

The review focused on the scheduling, arrangements
and logistics for all hoard and committee meeungs, the
quahty and usefulness of the regular information flow
to the board and commuttees, including the use of
electronic board papers, regular CEQ and CFO updates
and other informaton, board induction and tralning,
the payment of non-executives’ fees and expenses

and any other items or suggestions forimprovements
The exercise proved very useful as an opportunity to
take stock of current practice, to testwhether the board
views that as appropriate, and to think about those areas
where improvements could be made As aresultof these
discussions, we are re-thinking the schedule of board
and committee meetings dunng the course of the year,
Inctuding the topics to be considered at those meetings
and their venues In addition, we arerefining some of
the information that the board receives In order that the
non-executives be able to be more effective We heard
thatmore could be done by management to‘curate’
some of the informatfon that 1s sent to non-executives
and to make clear to them what s key information

and what is useful to know We are also refining the
regular CEC and CFO updates to the board, inorder

to ensure they provide exactly the information that the

board requires to help ittrack progress agansta number
of key milestones This 15 an ongaing process, and we will
continue to monitor the effectiveness of our internal
processes and to compare what we do against others

Personal objectives

in addition to the evaluation of the board as awhole,
executives are also evaluated each year on their
performance against personal objectives under the
company’s annual incentive plan

The non-executive directors, {ed by the senior
independent director, also conduct a review of the
chairman’s performance

Committee evaluation

in addition to the review of the board, committees and
individual directors described above, the audit and
remuneration committees each undertock a further
evaluation process to review their performance and
effectiveness, as they do each year

The process involves distribution of guestionnairesto
audit and remuneration committee members, as well as
key stakeholders in each committee, seeking views on
matters including committee roles and responsibilities,
quality and bmeliness of meeting materials, opporturuty
for discusston and debate, dialogue with management
and access to independentadvice Responses are then
evaluated and presented to the respective commitiee at
ascheduled meeting, with key themes being drawn out
for discussion

Directors’ training and induction

Directors receive a significant bespoke nduction
programme and a range of information about Pearson
when they join the board This includes background
informaton on Pearson and details of board procedures,
directors’ responsibilities and various governance-
related issues, incfuding procedures for dealing in
Pearson shares and therr legal obligations as directors
The induction also typrcally includes a series of meetings
with members of the board, the Pearson executive and
senior management, presentations regarding the
business from senior executives and a briefing on
Pearson's investor relations programme The induction
programme for Lincoln Watlen 15 ongoing, tailored to

his specific areas of focus, such as time with Pearson's
technology leaders, and relevant totheboard
committees he has joined Read ahout the induction
programme for Pearson's new charrman, Stdney Taurel

onp79@
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Board governance and activities continued

Aildirectors recerve training in the form of presentations
about the company’s operations, through board
meetings held at operational locations and by
encouraging the directors to visit local facilities and
management as and when their schedule allows,
including If they are travelling to acountry or reglon on
non-Pearson business The company secretaryand
general counsel, in conjunction with Pearson’s advisers,
monitor legal and governance developments and update
the board on such matters as agreed with the chairman
Directors can also make use of external courses

Directors’ indemnitres

A qualifying third party indemnity (QTPI), as permitted
by the Articles and sections 232 and 234 of the Act, has
been granted by the company to each of its directors
Under the provisions of the QTPI the company
undertakes tc indemnify each director against hability
to third parties (excluding criminal and regulatory
penalties) and to pay directors’ costs as incurred,
provided that they are reimbursed to the company

More committee information

Auditcommuttee p82Q
Nomination committee p80 e
Remuneration committee pgdo
Reputation & responsibility committee po0
standing committee p76Q

The committees focus on their own areas of expertise,
enabling the board meetings to focus on governance,
strategy, performance and peaple, thereby making the
best use of the board's time together as a whole The
committee chairmen report to the full board at each
meeting immediately following their sesslons, ensuring
a good communication flow whilst retaining the ability to
escalate items to the full board's agenda if appropriate

8oard committee attendance

The foliowing table shows attendance by directors
at committee meetings throughout 2015

If the director is found guilty, the court refuses to Reputation &
grant the relief sought or, in an action brought by the Audit Remuneration Nomination respansibiity
caompany, judgment s given against the director Glen Moreno - 474 6/6 -
The indemnity has been in force for the financial year David Areulus

ended 31 December 2015 and is currently in force {note 1} 212 272 272 -
The company has purchased and matntains directors’ EhizabethCorley - 414 6/6 -
and officers’ insurance cover against certain legal Vivienne Cox 44 474 6/6 313
liabiliies and costs for claims in conneaction with any Ken Hydon

act or omisston by such directors and officersin the {note 2) 72 7 12 -
execution of thewr duties Josh Lewns N P /6 ~
Board comrnittees lindatorimer  4/4 - 6/6 3/3
The board has established four formal committees HarshManwanl - - 6/6 33
audit, nomination, remuneration, and reputation & Tim Score

responsibllity The chairmen and membersofthese {note 3) a4 1M 6/6 -

commuttees are appomnted by the board onthe
recommendation (where appropnate) of the nomination
commuttee and in consultaton with each relevant
committee charman In additton to these formal board
committees, the standing committee also operates

with board level input

Mote 1 Stood downon 24 Aprll 2015

Mote 2. Stood down on 24 Apni 2015, Unable to attend one remuneration tormmittes
and one nominatlon committee meeting due ta personal reasons

Note 3 Joined remuneration committee on 2 October 2015
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Chairman’s succession
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Commencing the search

Following Glan Moreno's announcement at the 2015
AGM that he was planning to step down as charman by
the end of the year, Pearson commenced its search for
asuitable successor The selection process was led by
Vivienne Cox, our senior independent director, and an
external search firm, JCA Group, was engaged to assist
and adwvise Pearson on the search and appointment
process

Taking the findings from the 2014 board effectiveness
review as a starting point, and in consultationwith the
nommation committee and the chief executive, JCA
designed a specification for the desired candidate which
Included the following key attnbutes

> Highly experienced leader of large globat businesses,
ideally with a proven track record as a chairman

»Truly global player In outlook, approach and
understanding with deep knowledge of and experience
in Pearson's key geographic markets

» Genuine interest in embracing digital technology to
benefit the customer and the company

In agreeing the specification, the board emphasised the
importance of finding someone who was excited by and
demonstrated empathy with Pearson’s russion, values,
goals and people

Choosing asuccessor

Candidate profiles were prepared by JCAfor
consideration by Ms Cox, who then consulted the
nomination committee and chief executive to agree a
shortlist of strong candidates She held initial meetings
with the shortlisted candidates, and recommended a
number of them to progress through to the next stage,
where they met with the chief executive, following
which a search sub-committee was formed, comprising
tinda Lonmer and Tim Score, who each met with the
strongest candidates

Ms Cox reported regularly to the nomination commuttee
throughout the search and mterview stages, and
following consideration of interview feedback it became
clear to the board and the nomination committee that
Sidney Taurel was the most suitable candidate to
succeed Glen Moreno as chairman Agreement

having been reached, the nomination committee
recommended that the final decision be delegated

to a standing committee of the board to formalise

Mr Taurel's appointment once the nacessary checks
had been satisfactonly completed

Chairman's selection process

JCA Group was engaged with a clear setof criteria tofind
a kighly experienced globat businessleader, with proven
ability to lead anindustry through a period of change,

of which technology is a key part, and indealingwith a
complex regulatory environment

1 Identify Using the agreed brief, JCA and the sentor
independentdirector considerad and refined a listof
potential candidates, seeking input from the nomination
committee on which ¢andidates should be approached

2 Interview The senlorindependentdirector led a series
of Interviews with the shortlisted candidates Preferred
candidates then met with the chief executive and with the
two members of the search committee, following which the
nomination committee met to discuss feedback

3 Select After further meetings, including with Glen
Moreno, Sidney Tauret was recommended for appaintment
He was selected having successfully led a global
multinationai company, operating insome of the most
challenging political and regulatory environments, and
having lived and worked all over the world, including the US,
UK and Brazil - three of Pearson’s most mportant markets

4 Appoint Sidney's appointment as chairman was
approved and announced in October 2015 to take effect
on1)anuary 2016, the date of his formal appolntment to
the Pearson board

Appointment and induction

Pearson approved and announced the appointment of
Sidney Taurel on 26 October 2015, and hejoined the
board on 1 January 2016, assuming the role of chairman
immediately upon appomntment

Mr Taurel metthe independence requirements setout In
the Code on appointment and has confirmed he s able
to dedicate the requisite time to the role

A comprehensive iInduction programme was putin
ptace for Sidney during the three months following the
announcement of his appointment. Aseries of one to
one meetings was held with members of the Pearson
executive to enable Sidney to understand all aspects
of Pearson’s global business, the challenges facing the
enabhng functtons such as technology, HR and corporate
affairs, and the wider trends in education Sidney also
met with Pearson’s brokers, corporate advisers and
lawyers to understand broader regulatory matters
and oblgations Durning his US-based induction, Sidney
attended Pearson's national sales conference focusing
an issues and hat topics in the US business, and spent
time In Washington, DC with the corporate affairs and
government relations team
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Nomination committee report

Chairman of nomination committee

Sidney Taurel

Members Elizabeth Corley,

Vivienne Cox, Josh Lewis, IMAGE
Linda Lornimer, Harlsh Manwani, REMOVED

Tim Score, Sidney Taure!
and Lincoln Wallen

“As chairman of the nomination
committee, one of Glen Moreno’s
outstanding legacies to Pearson
was his ability to attract first-rate
non-executives to the Pearson
board. Ilook forward to chairing
this committee as we work to
contimially refresh the board,
its committees and to think about
succession planning at senior levels.

”»

Committee responsibilibes include

1 Appoalntments identifying and nominating candidates for
board vacancies

2 Balance Ensuring that the board and its committees have
the appropriate balance of skills, expenence, independence,
diversity and knowledge to operate effectively

3 Succession planning Reviewing the company’sleadership
needs with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the
orgamisation to compete effectivelyinthe marketplace

Key actnvities in 2015

Objectives Actions

Appointment of Sidney Taure!
as chairman

Succession process and
appolntment of new
chairman of the board

Appointment of Linceln
wallen as non-executive
director with experlence
in digital technology

Identify and appoint
additional non-executive
director with digital
technology expenence

Complete search process Appointment of
for new chief financlal Coram Willlams as
officer chief finandial officer

for nomination committee attendance
see overview table on p78 Q)

Nomination commiteee role and composition

The committee pnmarily monitors the composition and
balance of the board and its carnmitiees, and identifies
and recommends to the hboard the appointment of

new directors and/or committee members The
chairman of the board also chairs the nomination
committee, and all non-executive directors serve as
members of the commuttee The chief executive attends
committee meetings by invitation

Charmanrole

Although the chalrman of the board chairs the
nominatton commuttee, he is not perrmitted to chair
meetings when the appeintment of his successor 1s
being considered or during & discussion regarding his
performance Atsuch times, the senlor independent
director will chair the meetings, such as duringthe
search process for Glen Moreno's replacement during
2015 when Vivienne Cox chaired the comimittee's
meetings Learn more about Chairman succession

on p79°

Commuittee meetings and appomntments

The nomination committee meets at least once a year
and at other times as and when reguired During 2015,
the committee met six times with its primary focus being
to discuss the search critena, prepare role descriptions
and consider sultable candidates for the role of chalrman
of the board and for an additionat non-executive director
with partrcular expenence in digital technology to
complement our strategy The non-executive search
culminated 1n the successful appomntment of Lincoin
wallen to the board wath effect from 1 January 2016

Terms of reference

The committee has written terms of reference which
clearly set outits authority and duties These are reviewed
annually and can be found on the company website at
www pearson com/governance @
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Pearson uses a number of leading firms in its board
and executive search activittes JCA Group was engaged
to assist with the recruitment of Sidney Taurel n
additton to board search activity, JCA Group facilitated
Pearson's board evaluation in 2014 JCA Group has no
other connection to Pearson apart from mrelation to
search activity and the external facthtation of the 2014
board evaluation An externalsearch consultancy,
Spencer Stuart, was used during the recrustment pracess
for Lincoln Walten Spencer Stuart does nothave any
other connection to Pearson apart from as asearch
consultancy

Learn more about the Board of directors on p72-73 Q)

Dwersity

The board embraces the Code's underiying principles
with regard to board balance and dversity, mcluding
gender diversity The nomination committee ensures
that the directors of Pearson demonstrate a broad
balance of skills, experience and nationalities, to support
Pearson's strategic development and reflect the global
nature of our business

The nominatron committee and the board always
take account of diversity inits broadest sense when
considering board appointments whilst ensuring that
appointments are made based on mentand relevant
experience We believe the global backgrounds of our
board members contnbute to diversity of experience
and thought,

In 2011, Lord Davies set FTSE 100 companies a target
of having 25% female representation on their boards
by 2015 Pearson is proud of the gender diversity of
its board, having exceeded Lord Davies’ target with
309 female representation on the board, and notes
Lord Davies' recommended next steps for continued
improvement in diversity on boards, including the
extension of good diversity practices to the layers of
executive management below the board

immediatety below board level, the Pearson executive,
not incdluding the chief executive and chief financial
officer who are main board directors, has two female
members out of a total of nine {representing 22%)

Our seniar leadership team, up to and including two
reporting levels from the chlef executive, shows a strong
pipeline of female talent with women representing 34%
of our senior leaders

Pearson constders diversity as an important issue across
the company, not just at board level One of the key aims
of Pearson’s diversity policy is to increase the number

of leaders comng from a diverse background, such

as threugh our range of networks and advancement
programmes for employaes Learn more about

Diversity and inclusion throughout Pearsonon p62°

IMAGE REMOQVED

Sidney Taurel
Chairman of nomination committee
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Audit committee report

Chairman of audit cormmittee

Tim Score

Members Vivienne Cox,

Linda Lortmer, Tim Score IMAGE
and Lincoln Wallen REMOVED

“During 2015, the committee
conducted a number of deep dives
into selected principal risks, and
as chairman of the committee,

I work closely with Coram Wilhams
to ensure Pearson’s finance
function is well-placed to support
the global business effectively.”

Committee responsibshities include oversight of,

1 Reporting The quality and integrity of financial reporting
and statements and related disciosure

2 Policy Group pelicies, induding accounting policies
and practices

3 External audit External audit, induding the appeintment,
qualification, independence and the performance of the
external auditor

4 Risk and intermal contrel Risk management systems and
internal control environmentincluding the performance of
the internal audit function

5 Compliance Comphance with legal and regulatory
requirements /n relation to finanaal reporting and
accounting matters

For audit cormnmittee meeting attendance
see overview table on p78 Q)

Terms of reference

The commuttee has written terms of reference which
clearly set outits authonty and duties These are reviewed
annually and can be found on the company website at
www pearson com/governance €

Audit committee role

The commuttee has been established by the board
primarily for the purpose of overseeing the accounting,
financial reporting, internal controt and rsk
management processes of the company and the audit
of the financial statements of the company Asa
committee, we are responsible for assisting the board’s
oversight of the quality and integrnity of the company's
external finanaal reporttng and statements and the
company's accounting policies and practices

Pearson’s internal auditor has a duatreporting ine to the
chief financial officer and to me, and external auditors
have direct access to the committee to raise any matters
of concern and to report on the results of work directed
by the commuttee As audit committee chairman, I report
to the full board at every board meeting immediately
following a commmuttee meeting As a committee, we

also review the independence of the external auditors,
including the provision of non-audit services (further
details of which can be found on page 119 and note 4

to the financal staternents), ensure that there 1san
appropriate audit relationship and that auditor
objectivity andindependence are upheld

Aucht committee changes

2015 saw the retirement from Pearson of Ken Hydon,
who had been chairman of the committee for nine years,
and David Arculus, also along-serving member of the
committee |took over from Ken as committee chairman
in April, and have since worked with Coram Wilhams
looking closely at Pearson's finance function to ensure it
1s well-placed to support the global business effectively
in March 2016 Lincoin Walien joined the committee,
bnnging extensive technology expenence, and together
we have a good balance of skills and knowiedge on the
committee with expenence covering all aspects of the
sector in which Pearson operates

Fair, balanced and understandable reporting

We are mindful of the Code's provision C 1 1 relating to
fair, balanced and understandable reporting and we
build sufficent tme into our annual report timetable to
ensure that the full board receives sufficent opportunity
to review, consider and comment on the reportas it
progresses Learn more about Fair, balanced and
understandable reportingon p119 {+]

Risk assessment, assurance and integrity

Akey role of the commuttee Is to provide oversight and
reassurance to the board with regard to the integrity
of the company’s financal reporting, internal control
policies, and procedures for the identification,
assessmentand reporting of nsk During 2015 we
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conducted a number of deep dives into selected
principal risks Learn more about Principal nsks and
uncertainties on p41-45°

Data secunity and data privacy

Recognising particular sensitivities around the schools
and assessment data held on our systems, the
committee undertook deep divesin each of these risk
areas, and updates frorn the chief information secunty
officer and newly-appomnted ctuef privacy officer feature
as regudar items on the commuittee's agenda To ensure
adequate visibility of data security and privacy protocols
throughout the company, new policies and procedures
were developed during the year, including the
introductton of mandatory data secunty and privacy
training for employees

Focusing an data security, the commuittee considered
progress made to date and reviewed the roadmap
for the next two years, including the aim of continuing
tomcrease Pearson's data security risk maturity

Key to devetoping this maturity has been the shift

of data secunty from a purely technical nsk to a
business critical one

The risk management framework around data privacy
needs to take Pearson’s global footprint into account
Challenges exist in North Amenca due to the large
number of federal and state laws on data privacy,
which are coupled with a changing picture globally
as jurisdictions update their laws in a fast moving
environment. Data privacy has been identified as

a global strategic nsk for Pearson, leading to the
appointment of a chief privacy officer at the start of
2015 Meaningful progress has been made since that
appointment, including the development of a new
governance framework to address data privacy nisks

Business transformation

Ongoing bustness transformation, the next wave of
which was announced in January 2016, 1s another of
Pearson’s key risks and opportunities The committee
recewves regular updates on the transformation as a
whole and during the year carried out adeep dive into
The Enabhng Pragram As animportant aperatlonal
simplification project, The Enabling Program will feature
as astanding item on the committee’s agenda in 2016
aswork progresses Learnmore about The Enabling
Programon p6 and 41Q)

Update on previous areas of focus

Lastyear, we highlighted health and safety (H&S)and
anti-bribery and corruption (ABC) as areas to which the
committee had pald particular attention During 2015,
the commuttee continued to manitor those areas,
reviewing progress made and auditresults

The commuttee reviewed the overall H&S landscape at
Pearson, i particular evaluating the progress made
since the launch of the global H&S policy in December
2013 It noted that continued improvements are being
implemented in standards, facthitated by the support
of H&S coordinators, and was satisfled with the
developments inrelation to safeguarding and the
progress that the safeguarding officer has made since
appointment in August 2014

The commuttee reviewed the ongoing implementation of
ABC policies, where progress to date has been gooed, and
noted that a more comprehensive and risk-based ABC
tralning programme would continue to be rolled outin
2016 We also considered how the compliance and legal
functions were working together to ensure appropriate
stances in each jurisdiction, while maintaining Pearson’s
zero tolerance approach to ABC

Audit committee meetings and activities

The committee met four times during the year with
the following in attendance the chieffinancial officer;
general counsel, SVP internal auditand compliance,
members of the senior managerment team, and the
external auditors Additionally, the chref executive and
chairman periadically attended committee meetngs
One of the internat audit directors and the VP compliance
and nsk assurance also attend meetings, giving the
committee direct contact with keyleadership inthose
areas The committee also metregularly inprivate
with the external auditors and the SVP internal audst
and compliance

At every meeting, the committee considered reports

on the activities of the internal auditand compliance
functions, including the results of internal audns, nsk
reviews, project assurarce reviews and fraud and
whistieblowing reports The committee also monitored
the company’s financial repor ting, internal controls and
risk management procedures, reviewed the non-audit
services provided by PwC and considered any sigruficant
legal daims and regulatory issues inthe context of their
impacton financal reporting

Learn more about the Key activities of the audit
committee on p84°

IMAGE REMOVED

Tim Score
Chairman of audit committee
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Aundit committee report continued

Audit committee meeting focus during 2015

Form 20 Fand related disclosures

financlal reporting internal controls '

external auditors

Cenfirmation of auditor
independence

2015 external audit plan

Accounting and technlcalupdates  The 2014 annual report
Repomng and accounts preliminary including the annual Sarbanes-
impactof legai claims and announcement, financial Oxley Act section 404 attestaton of
regulatoryissues on financial statements and income statement
reporting
Revlew of interlm resutts and
trading updates
| Accounting matters and Analysls supporting viability Annual review of treasury
PO[]CV Group atcounting policies statement Read more onpat{O pollcy and strategy
Annual review and approval of
external auditor policy
Provislon of non-audn Receipt of the externat auditors’ Remuneratlon and engagement
External audit services by PwC reporton the Ferm 20 Fand letter of the external auditors
onthe year end audit -
R opinion gnintenm results
Reappointment of the
R Review of the effectiveness

of the external auditors

Internal audit activityreports
and review of key findings.

Risk and

mternal control

Enterprise risk management
Read more onp38 Q)

2016 internal audit plan

Assessrnent of the effectiveness of
theinternal control environment
and risk management systems

Review of Internal auditterms
ofrreference

Risk deep dives datasecurity,
data prvacy, heafth & safety,
legal risks and legal function,
antl-bribery and corruption,
tax

Data security incidentsreporting

Treasury risk review

Fraud, whistleblowing reports
and Code of Conduct matters

Complance

Compliance with the UK
Corperate Governance Code

Review of the committee’s
terms of reference

and governance Review of The £nabling Program

aslt proceeded

Compllance with SECand
NYSE requiremenits including
Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Review of the effectiveness of
the commuttee and the group
internal auditfunction

Members

Audit committee meetings during 2015

All of the audit committee members are independent
non-executive directers and have financal and/or
related business experience due to the senicr posittons
they hoid or have held in other histed or pubilicly traded
companies and/or similar public organisations Tim
Score, who assumed the charrmanship of the committee
0 April 2015, 1s the company's designated financial
expert, having recent and refevant financial expenence,
and s an Associate Chartered Accountant He also
serves as audit commuttee chalrman for The British
Land Company plc and untl 2014 was audit cominittee
chairman at National Express Group plc

The qualfications and relevant experience of the other
committee members are detalled on p72—73°

During the year, the matters constdered by the
committee included those shown in the table above

In February 2016, the committee also considered
the 2015 annual report and accounts, including the
preliminary announcement, finanaal statements,
strategic report, directors’ report and corporate
governance comphance statement
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External audit

The committee reviews and approves the appointment
of the external auditors, taking account of the views

of management The committee reviewed the
effectiveness and independence of the external
auditors during 2015, as it does every year, and

remains satisfied that the auditors provide effective
independent challenge to management.

In 2015, the external auditar review was conducted by
distributing a questionnaire to key audit stakeholders
including members of the audit committee, the chief
executive, chvef finanaal officer, company secretary,
SVP internal audit and comphance, SVP finance for

each Geography and Line of Business and other heads
of corporate functions Overall, responsesto the
questionnaire were very positive, indicating an effective
external audit process As part ofthe follow-up to

the review, the lead audit partner explainedto the
committee how PwC were monitaring and evaluating
each area highhighted in the review and confirmed that
they would consider how to adapt their approach inlight
of speafic comments received

In addition, 1n accordance with Pearson's external
auditor policy, iInternal audit performs an annual
assessment of audit fees, services and independence
which forms the basis of a recommendatian by the
committee to the board in respect of the appointment
and compensation of the external auditors

The committee wili continue to review the performance
of the external audttors on an annual basis and will
consider ther independence and objectivity, taking
account of all appropriate guidelines Thereareno
contractual obhgations restncting the commuttee’s
choice of external auditors In any event, the external
auditors are required to rotate the audit partner
responsible for the Pearson audit every five years

The current lead audit partner rotated onto Pearson's
auditin 2013

Pearson’s last audit tender was in respact of the 1996
year end, and resulted in the appointment of Price
Waterhouse as auditors Developments atan EU level
regarding mandatory audit rotation for listed companies
have changed the UK landscape on audit tendering and
rotation The committee has reviewed the timetable
for tendering and has taken into account all relevant
regulation and guidance New EU regulations and the
ruling by the Competition and Markets Authonity (CMA)
hasimposed mandatory tendering and rotation
requirements from 2016

In considering the appropriate audit tender timetable for
Pearsanin light of these requirerments, the committee
has also taken account of the significant busmess change
hetng experienced by the Group andis monitoring the
extent to which the Group 1s drawing upon the services
of other accounting firms The Group has commenced

a sertes of programmes to Implement major efficiency
improvements across all our enabling functions -
technotogy, finance, HR - to bring the general and
admurustrative costs of running Pearson morein line
with global best practice, these include a major

finance transformation programme, including the
Implementation of new financial systems and changes
to our transaction processing and controf actwities, that
we expect to cantinue through 2016, 2017 and into 2018
The Group is supported in these changes, and more
broadly, by external advisers including accounting firms

It 1s the commuttee's intention to appropnately manage
auditor independence and rotation, firstly, to ensure
thata tender has the right level of suitably qualified and
independent firms competing, ncluding allowing for a
planned transition and, secondly, toundertake thuistm a
way that does not unnecessarily disrupt the business
changes underway and provides consistency of
independent oversight from external auditors through
those changes

Notwithstanding that the above EU mandatory rotation
rules require a new auditor to be appointed no later
than for the 2024 year end, it 1s the current expectation
of the commuittee that an audst tender processwill be
conducted i 2018 1n order for the auditor selected as &
result of the tender to be appointed for the financial year
ending 31 December 2018 For the reasons outhined
above, the commuttee considers thistiming to be inthe
best interests of the Group's members and will continue
to monutor this annually in light of the effectiveness and
independence of the current auditors

Once the next audit tender occurs, the Group will adopt a
policy of putting the audit contract out to tender at least
every ten years

Comphance with the CMA Order

Pearson confirms that it was in compliance with the
prowisions of The Statutory Audit Services for Large
Companies Market Investigation (Mandatory Use of
Competitive Tender Processes and Audit Comimittee
Responsibilities) Order 2014 during the financial year
ended 31 December 2015 Learn moreabout Auditors’
independence and non-audit services on pl119 o
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Audit committee report continued

Sigruficant 1ssues

Areaoffacus

Issue

Action taken by audit committee

GCutcome

impairment
reviews

Read more innote 11
onp16a @

Pearson carries significant
goodwill Intangible asset
balances There s Judgement
exercised in the identification
of CGUs and the process

of allocating goodwill to
CGUs and aggregate CGUs
and [n the assumptions
underlylng the impairment
review In 2015 Pearsonmade
significantimpairmentsto
goodwill and Intangible
assetsin certain CGUs

The committee considered the results of the Group's
annual goodwill imparment review and the key
assumptlens which are considered to be the zash
flows derived from strategicand operating plans,
long term growth rates and the weighied average
cost of capital The committes consiclered the
sensltivities to changes in assumptions and the related
disclosures required by IAS 36 Impairment of Assets'
The commuttee noted that signiflcant impalimenis
had arsen primarily as a result of deterioration in
expected cash flow over the strategic plan period
and considered sensitlvity to assumptions Inrelation
to other businesses.

Annual Impairment
review finalised with
candirmation of an
Impalrmentin China,
8razil, Morth Amerfca
and other Growth and
Core territorles, and
sufficlentheadroom
In other CGUs

Revenue
recogniiion

Pearson has a number of
revenue streams where
revenue recognition practices
are complex and management
assumplions and estimates
are necessary

The committee regularly reviews revenue recognlition
practice and the underiying assumptions and
estimates In additlon, the cormlttee has vislbility of
Internal audit findings relatng to revenue recognition
controls and processes and routinely monitors the
views of external auditors on revenue recognition
1ssues During the year the committee reviewed
revenue recognition in respect of services provided

to charter schoais through Pearsen's Connections
business, and onerous contracts The committee also
continued to monitor the impact of the newrevenue
recognitionstandard IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’ and noled that although the standard
would not be adopted by Pearson until 2018 the
committee would need to understand the Impilcations
of the change well before that date

Assumptlons
underlylng revenue
recognltion were
reviewed and
challenged and
considered tobe
approprlate

There are anumber ofssuies
indifferent countries where
management judgements and
assumptions are made as to
the correct tax treatment.

The committee considered Pearson’s approach to tax
provisioning Pearsen operatesina large number of
countriesand accordingly its earnings are subjectto
taxinmany jurisdictions The judgernentinrelation to
tax provisioning ls a combination of the commuttee’s
assessment of the specific open tax issues and also
areview of the time periods inwhich Pearson s tax
affairs are open to enquiry by local tax Inspectors in
jurisdicuions whete it has alarger taxable presence
The committee addressed this matter through the
presentation of a managementreport on Pearson’s
tax affalrs by the head of group tax and through a
presentatron of the externatauditors assessment
ofthe company’s tax provssioning

Thecommittee

was satisfied with
Pearson'sapproach
to tax provisioning
taking account of the
views of management
and the assessment
of the external
auditors

Disposal
accounting

Pearson dispoesed ofits
Interest In The Finandlal
Times, The Economist
and PowerSchool

The committee reviewed the disposal accounting
and disclosure and considered the main jJudgemnents
relating to tax treatments, and impairment of related
assets onthe PowerSchool disposal

Accounting
treatments and
valuatiens confirmed
as appropriate
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Significant issues continued

During the year, the committee discussed the planning,
conduct and conclusions of the external auditas
it proceeded

Atthe July 2015 audit committee meeting, the commuttee
discussed and approved the external audit plan and
reviewed the key risks of misstatement of Pearson’s
financial statements, which were updated at the
December 2015 committee meeting

The table opposite sets out the significantissues
considered by the audit committee together with
detatis of howthese items have been addressed The
committee discussed theseissues with the auditors at
the time of their review of the half-year intenim financial
staternents in July 2015 and agatn at the conciusion of
their audit of the financial statements for the full year
in February 2016

All the significant issues were areas of focus for the
auditors Learn moren the Independent auditors'
reporton p126°

In December 2015, the committee discussed with the
auditors the status of their work, focusing in particular
on mnternal controls and Sarbanes-Oxley testing, and
covenng the significant issues outiined above

As the auditors concluded their audit, they explained to
the committee

» The work they had conducted overrevenue, working
alongside management to assess several complex
revenue contracts

» The work they had done to understand Pearson's tax
strategy and dentify business and tegistative nsks, to
evaluate key underlying assumptions and assess the
recoverability of deferred tax assets

» Their evaluation of the recoverability of digital platforms
and pre-publication assets

» Their focus on segments, CGUs and goodwili impairment
and the impact of Pearson's transformation on those

» The results of thetr controls testing for Sarbanes-Oxiey
Act section 404 reporting purposes and in support of
their financial statements audit

» The results of the company's ‘going concern’ and viability
statement reports

The auditors also reported to the commuttee the
misstatements that they had foundin the course of
their work, which were insignificant, and the committee
confirmed that there were no matenal items remaining
unadjusted in these financial statements

Audhit committee traiming

The commuttee receves regulas technical updates as well
as specific or personal traiming as appropnate

Committee members also meet with local management
on an engoing basis, such as when travetiing for overseas
board meetings, in arder to gain a better understanding
of how Pearson's policies are embedded in operations
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Risk governance and control

Control environment

The board cf directors has overall responsibility for
Pearson's systems of internal control and nsk
management, which are designed to manage, and
where possible mitigate, the rnisks facing Pearson,
safeguard assets and provide reasonable, butnot
absolute, assurance aganst matenal finanaal
misstatement or loss The directors confirm they have
conducted a review of the effectiveness of Pearson's
systems of risk management and internal controf in
accordance with provision € 2 3 of the Code and the
FRC's Code Guidance These systems have been
operating throughout the year and to the date of
this report

Responsibility for monitoring the effectiveness of the
company's risk management and internal controt
systems has been delegated to the audit committee

by the board At each meeting, the audit committee
considers reports from management, internal audit
and the external auditors, with the alm of reviewing
the effectiveness of thenternal financial and operating
control environment.

Each business area, including the corporate centre,
maintains internal controls and procedures appropriate
to its structure, business envtronment and nsk
assessment, while complying with company-wide
policies, standards and guidelines

Internal control and risk management

Our internal controls and risk oversight have been
reviewed as a result of the FRC Guidance and changes
made to ensure complitance These changes nclude
more robust executive ownership and assessment of
controls and PLC risks as well as the preparation of a
viability statement.

The board, assisted by the assurance the audit
committee pravides, oversees the enterprise risk
management (ERM) framework, risk appetite validation
and viability statement verification processes outhned
in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section on p41
Day-to-day enterprise risk management s undertaken
by a dedicated team, accountable to the board and
audit commuttee The board validates the nsk appetite
for each principal risk (as recommended by executive
management) early in the year The identification

and mitigation of significant business nsksisthe
responstbility of sentor management and leadership
teams for each business area

The results of risk assessments and reviews are reported
to the Pearson executive, the board and the audit
committee Forexample, n2015, all identified Pearson-
wide top risks were reviewed by executive management,
then by the board and audit comimittee on a semi-annual
basis Inaddition, throughout the year, the audit
committee considered the oversight of specific selected
principal risks, through a series of risk deep dives The
internal audit plan 1s also akgned to our greatest areas of
risk and the audit commuttee considers 1ssues and risks
arnising from internal audits

The risk assessment and reporting cniteria are designed
to provide the board with a consistent, Pearson-wide
perspectve of the key risks The reports to the board,
which are submitted twice per year, include an
assessment of the probability and impact of risks
materialsing, aswell as risk mitigation inttiatives and
therr effectiveness

Learn more about our risk management process, the
principal risks and mitigating factars on p38-45 @

Financial management and reporting

There 1s a comprehensive strategic planning, budgeting
and forecasting system with an annuai operating plan
approved by the hoard of directors Monthly financial
mformation, including trading resuits, balance sheets,
cash flow statements, capital expenditures and
indebtedness, 1sreported against the corresponding
figures for the plan and prior years, with corrective
action outlined by the appropnate senior executive
Pearson's senior management meet periodically with
business area management to review their business
and finanaal performance against plan and forecast
Major risks relevant to each business area aswell as
performance against the stated financial and strategic
objectives are reviewed in these meetings

We have an ongoing process to monitor the nsks and
effectiveness of controls in refation to the finanaal
reporting and consalidation process mcluding the
related information systems This includes up-to-date
Pearson finanaal policies, formal requirements for
finance functions, consolidation reviews and analysis

of matenal variances, finance technical reviews, and
review and sign-off by senior finance managers The PLC
finance function also monitors and assesses these
processes, through a finance comphance function




Section 4 Governance/Accountability 89

These controls include those over external financial
reporting which are documented andtested in
accordance with the requirements of section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which s relevant to our US isting
One key controi inthis area is the disclosure committee,
which submits reports to the audit committee This
committee Is chaired by the SVP internal audit and
comphance, and members include the chief financial
officer, general counsel, SVP investor relations, company
secretary as well as senior members of financiat
management The primary responsibility of this
committee s to review Pearson's public reporting and
disclosures to ensure that information provided to
shareholdersis complete, accurate and complhant

with all applicable legisiation and listing regulations

The effectiveness of key financial controls 1s subject
to management review and self-certification and
independent evaluation by the external auditors

Internal audit

The internal audit function is responsible for providing
independent assurance to management and the audit
commuttee on the design and effectiveness of internal
controls to m:tigate strategic, finanaal, operational and
compliance nisks The risk-based annual internal audit
pianis approved by the audit committee Management
action plans to improve internal controls and to rmitigate
risks, or both, are agreed with each business area after
each audit Formal management sef-assessments allow
Internal audit to moniter business areas’ progressin
implementing management action plans agreed as part
of internal audits to resolve any control deficencies
Progress of management action plans is reported to the
audit committee at each meeting internal audithas a
formal collaboration process in place with the external
auditors to ensure effident coverage of internal controls
Regular reports on the work of internal audit are
provided to executive management and, via the audit
committee, to the board

The SVPinternal audit and comphliance oversees
compliance with our Code of Conduct and works with
senior legal and human resources perscnnel to
investigate any reported inctdents including ethical,
corruption and fraud allegations The audit committee
15 provided with an update of all significant matters
receved through our whistleblowlng reporting system,
together with an annual review of the effectiveness of
this system The Pearson anti-bribery and corruption
programme provides the framework to support our
compliance with various anti-bribery and corruption
regulations such as the UK Bribery Act 2010 a2nd the US
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act

Treasury management

The treasury department operates within policies
approved by the board and its transactions and
procedures are subject to regular Internal audit Major
transactions are authorised outside the department

at the requisite level, andthere is an appropriate
segregation of duties Frequent reports are madeto the
chief financial officer and regular reports are prepared
for the audit commuttee and the board The treasury
policy is described in more detail in note 19to the
financial statements

lnsurance

Pearson reviews its risk financing options regularly to
determine how the company’s tnsurable risk exposures
are managed and protected Pearson purchases
comprehensive insurance cover and annually reviews
coverage, insurers and premium spend, ensuring the
programme Is fit for purpose and cost-effective

Pearson's insurance subsidiary, Spear Insurance
Company Limited, 1s used to leverage Pearson’s risk
retention capability and to achleve abalance batween
retaining insurance nisk and transferring it to external
insurers
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Reputation & responsibility committee report

Chairman

Vivienne Cox

Members Vivienne Cox,

Josh kLewis, Linda Lorimer, IMAGE
Harish Manwanl REMOVED

“Throughout the year, the committee
provided oversight and input as
Pearson continued to develop its
sustainability practices, including
the launch of Project Literacy and
progress towards efficacy reporting.
Our priority is to ensure Pearson’s
activities and policies align
with our business strategy and
stakeholder priorities.”

Progress against 2015 targets

Reputation &responsibility commuttee role

Having been formalised in 2014, the remit of the
reputation & responsibility committee expanded during
2015, reflecting Pearson’s continuing commitment and
ambition around its corporate reputation, our behef
inthe 1mportance of fulfilling our cbhigations to the
communities inwhich we work, and maximising
Pearson's positive impact on socrety

The commuttee's work s dosely aligned with the
company's sustainable business initratives and our
meatings are now preceded by meetings of Pearson's
responsible business leaderstup councl - an internal
governance group - ensunng that we are able to provide
the necessary scrutiny and challenge to the councll as
our sustainability strategy is developed and integrated
nto the bustness Read more about Social impact

on p55-67

Terrns of reference

The comrmittee has written terms of reference which
clearly set outits authornity and duties These are
reviewed annually and can be found on the company
website at www pearson com/governance

At the start of 2015, we set out to achieve a number of ambitious goals dunng our first full year as a formal board

committee You can read more about our progress below

Areas of focus

Progress

Oversee delivery of our strategy for managing our
reputation and maximising our CoNtRbULON 10 society
within the organisation

Thus was a regular feature of our meetings throughout the year as
Pearson bulids its reputation management capabliities through an
increasingly proactive approach In particular we have explored In
depth the work being done inour US market to proactively manage
Pearson's reputation

We also developed and adopted a new process for managing global
reputation risk which takes into account our expanded activity and
exposure in growth markets, as well as our presence in certaln high-
risk cpuntries

Monitor Integration of soclat impact inte Pearson’s
business following the dosure of the Pearson
Charitable Foundation

The committee provided inputinto a number of social Impact
projects established and accelerated in 2015, particularly high-profile
initiatives such as Project Literacy and our Every Child Learning
partnership with Save the Childten

Review progress towards 2018 efficacy commitments

Through focused sesslons at two committge meetings we reviewed
progress toward meeting our efficacy cormmitment and made
recommendations for improving the efficacy measurement,
reporting and audiing processes Learn mare about Efficacy
onpd6 539
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Key activittes in 2015

Commuttee aims for 2016

Key areas of focus for the commuttee were the launch

of Project Literacy, our progress towards external
efficacy reporting, plans to link the UN's sustainable
davelopment goals to our business model, and the
ongoing work around Pearson’s brand and culture

In al} of these areas, our priority isto ensure Pearson's
activities and policies align with our business strategy
and stakeholder priornities, while reflecting best practice

In addition, Pearson has formalised a processforits
reputational risk management, tnvolving business
leaders and corporate affairs representatives, and the
committee now recelves a reputational risk report at
every meeting The committee also conducts deep dives

In 2016 the committee will continue to maintain a clear
focus on reputational management in the US - our
largest, and most reputationatly igh-profile market

We will oversee Pearson’s continuous progressin
embedding scoal impact Into our strategy and business
madel, continue te monitor our corporate culture,
ensuring employee engagement and values remain
strong to help ensure Pearson tsin good shape for the
future, and we will undertake a review of the ethical
business pronties idenafied in 2015

IMAGE
REMOVED

into areas of particular reputattonal impact, such as
through a focused session in 2015 on Pearson’s US
reputational strategy

Vivienne Cox
Chairman of reputation
& responsibility committee

More detail about the committee's responsibilittes, and

the activities it undertook in each area of its remit, is

gven helow For reputation & responsibility committee

meeting attendance see overviewtable on p78 ©

Committee responsibilities

Topic Responsibifity

Activity

Strategy

Pearson's reputation among
Reputation malor stakeholders, including
gavernments, investors,
ernpioyees, customers, learners
and the education community

Updates on reputational hot topics’ at each meeting

Rewview of US reputational strategy

Warking with the audit committee to ensure that
health & safety Issues are properly considered from
areputation and responsibllity perspective

Qversight of Pearson's approach
Risk to reputational risk, iInduding

ensuring that clear roles have

been assigned for management

Overview of reputational risk approach In growth and
US markets, throughIn tountry personnel and central
corporate affairs team

Regular consideratfon of reputational risk dashboards

Social impact nitlatives, including

Social Pearson's han-financtal public
commitments and progress
towards them

Progress on efflcacy, Including launch of ‘On the Road"
publication and draft reporting framework

Introductlon to new reach and Impact strategy

Commitment to UN sustainable development goals
and integration Into business model

Launch of Save the Children partnership

Management of the Pearson
brand to ensure thatitsvalue and
reputation are malntained and
enhanced Pearson's appreach to
monltoring and supporting the
values and desired behavlours
that form our corporate culture

Brand and
cultute

Brand tracker update

Review of progress on employee values
and engagement

Emplayee participation in social impact activities

Ethical business standards,
Ethics indluding Pearson's approach to
issuesrelevant to its reputation
as aresponsible corporate cilizen

:

Consideration of ethical issues in the wider context of
reputational risk identification

Commumications
strategies policles
and plansrelated to
reputational issues
and the people
processes and policies
thatare inplace to
manage them
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Shareholder engagement

Engaging with shareholders

Pearson has an extensive programme of communication
with all of its shareholders - large and small, institutional
and private

Shareholder outreach In 2015, we continued with our
shareholder outreach programme, seeing approximately
790 1nstitutional and private investors at more than 450
differentinstitutions in Australia, Canada, Duba, Greater
China, Cantinental Europe, India, Japan, Singapore, South
Korea, Taiwan, the UK and the US

Trading updates There are five trading updates each
year and the chief executive and chief finanoat officer
present our prelimunary and interim results updates
They also attend regular meetings throughout the year
with investors in the UK and around the world, tailored
to investor requirements, to discuss the performance
of the company, the company's strategy, our change
programme, structural changes in cur markets, and
nisks and opportunities for the future

Chawrman meetings The chairman meets regularly
with significant shareholders to understand any Issues
and concerns they may have Thisis in accordance with
both the Code and the UK Stewardship Code The non-
executive directors meet informally with shareholders
both before and after the AGM and respond to
shareholder queries and requests as necessary The
chairman ensures that the board 1s kept informed of
principal investors’ and advisers' views on strategy,
and corporate governance

Visit pearson com

Consultations During the year we also consulted

with our major shareholders and with shareholder
representative bodies on our directors’ remuneration
report, and the significant minority vote against the
2013 annual remuneration report at the 2014 AGM
Read about Remuneration on p94°

Private investors Private Investors represent over
80% of the shareholders on our register and we make
a concerted effort to engage with them regulariy
Shareholders who cannot attend the AGM are

invited to e-mail questions to the chairmann
advance at chairman-agm@pearson com €@

We encourage our private shareholders to become
more informed investors and have provided a wealth of
information on our website about managing Pearson
sharehotdings, see www pearson com/investors/
shareholder-information htel for further information,
orturnto p227 of this report We also encourage all
sharehotders, who have not already dene so, ta register
their e-mail addresses through our website and with our
registrar This enables them to receive e-maii alerts when
trading updates and octher important announcements
are added to curwebsite See additional Shareholder
information on p227 ©

> Investor reiations information

» Company announcements and shareholder
presentations, webcasts and conference calls

>Past arnouncements and presentations
»Historical financial performance

»Share price data

»Calendar of events

»information about our businesses
and their websites

s Corporate responsibility
pohicles and activities

IMAGE REMOVED
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Share dealing

Due to its continued popularity we again provided
shareholderswith smaller holdings the opportunity to

use our registrar’'s low-cost share dealing service, giving

them the chance to add to or reduce their staken
Pearson at significantly reduced dealing rates, or to
donate shares to charity with ease Thisservice proved
very poputar with sharehotders, and consequently we
intend to offer 1t again at a future date

We believe it is important that our employees have a
shared interest in the direction and achlevements of
Pearson and are pleased to say that a large number
of our employees are shareholders in the company

Annual General Meeting

Boardwisitto India

Our AGM, on 29 Apni) 2016, 1s an opportunity for
all shareholders to meet the board and to hear
presentations about Pearson's businesses and results

Engaging with all stakeholders

We post all company announcements on our website,
WWW pearson corm, as soon as they arereleased, and
key shareholder presentations are made accessible
via webcast or conference call Our website contains a
dedicated investor relations sechion with an extensive
archive of past announcements and presentations,
tustorical financial performance, share price data and a
calendar of events ltalso includes information about
all of our bustnesses, links to their websites and details
of our corporate responsibility policies and actwvities
Learn more about our approach to corporate
responstbility in the Sooal impact section on p55°

IMAGE REMOVED

In October 2015, the board visited New Delhi,
Indsa, for a three-day meeting focused on our four
mostimportant Growth markets - Brazil, China,
Incha and South Africa

In each of these countries, Pearson's presence has
grown markedly in the last few years and in each of
them, to varying degrees, Pearsonis operating in

a challenging economic climate, whilst contlnuing
to chart a path to the next phase of sustainable
growth These are important markets to Pearson’s
long-term future, where the fundamental demand
for good quality education and traming, leading to
ajob and a better iife, remain strong

Overview of growth markets Providing tontext for the meeting,
Pearson’s President, Growth and SVP finance, Growthled an
overview of performance and strategy across the four main
Growth markets, following which the businessleaders of each

of Brazl, China and South Africa gave a more in depth review of
the opportunities and challenges In those countrles, considering
the macro econamic conditions and demographics particular to
eachterrltory

Fecus on India. Non-executive director HarishMarwani set the
scene for the focus on Indla and the board then took a doser fook
at Pearson’s operations through a session with the head of our
India business, learning about the huge potential in India and the
demand for better, mare job-relevant education The board also
spent time with Pearson’s Indla leadership team and key talent and
heard from a range of partners policymakers and key influencers

Learningin action The board visited jaypee public school, which
provided an opportumty to see firsi-hand the impact of Pearson's
schoo! management improvement framewaork, to view the
MyPedlaintegrated learning toolin action and learn about our
health & safety and safeguarding initiatives The board also spent
time at a Pearson jearning centre, learning about Pearson's work
to transtate education and training Into employment, and engaged
with representatives af AvantiLearning Centres and Zaya, two
inltiatives funded by the Pearson Affordable Learning Fund

Learn more about our Growthmarkets onp29 32 @)
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Report on directors’ remuneration

Part! Letler from the chairman of the 1 emuneration commuittee

Charrmanofthe
remuneration committee
Elizabeth Cortey

IMAGE
REMOVED

Current Members

Tim Score, Vivienne Cox,
Elizabeth Corley, Josh Lewis
and Sidney Taurei

“It has been a tough year for Pearson
and our remuneration outcomes
have reflected this 2015 brought
challenging market conditions and
significant changes. As we continue
1nto 2016 we will be considering our
remuneration policy proposals for
2017 in this new environment and
context for the business.”

In this remuneration section

Part1 Letter from the chairman p34@
Part 2 summary of remuneration policy p7®
Part3 Annual remuneration report P11

Terms of reference

The commuttee's full charter and terrns of
reference are available on the Governance
page of the company’s website at
Www pearson com/governance

.

IMAGE REMOVED

See pil4for alignment of pay with Total Shareholder Return °

Dear shareholder

On behalf of the board, | am pleased to presentthe
report on directors’ remuneration for 2015 Thisis my
first report as chairman of Pearson’s remuneration
committee, having succeeded Sir David Arculus at the
Annual GeneralMeeting (AGM) in April 2035 The
opportunity tolearn about and study the history, policies
and procedures of remuneration at Pearson, with the
support of fellow committee members, has been
invaluable, as has the feedback and engagement with
key shareholders My board cclleagues and | are aware
of the impaortance and sensitivity amang investors and
the public more generally, of remuneration topics and
we feel our responsibilities keenly

As outlined in our strategic report, 2015 was ayear of
change and challenge for Pearson with continued market
headwinds and the in-year disposais of PowerSchool, the
Financlal Times Group and cur stake in The Economist
While we have been performing well competitively and
gained market share across many areas of our business,
year end results were lower than projected at the start of
the year This was largely driven by the persisting cyclical
and policy-related turbulence in cur major education
markets While this 1s expected to abate over the next
two years, we saw a reduction in our annual operating
profit for 2015 of approximately £230m from its peak

Despite the challenges encountered, we remain focused
on executing the business strategy, transforming
Pearson to be the standout company in education
globally and developing our long-term growth
opportunities The 2015 divestments were an important
partof these aims We are confident that education
remains an attractive investiment opporturnity with

IMAGE REMOVED
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the growth potential to enabte us both to serve more
students around the world, and to deliver good,
sustainable returns to our shareholders

We do not intend to make any remuneration policy
revistons ahead of the 2017 AGM However, we keep the
effectiveness of our current remuneration programimes
under review and, partly in light of recenttrading
condiions and the specfic strategic goals for 2016,

we have concluded that some changes are warranted
These are detalled in this reportand, for those yet to

he finalised, we are engaging with our key investors

What happened in 2015

Rernuneration for executive directors 1s closely tied to
business performance with a high proportionof total
remuneration delivered through vanable pay designed
to reward achievement of short and long-term strategic
objectives As aresult of the performance challenges
noted in this report, the cutcomes under these schemes
were as follows

»Annual incentives paid to executives for 2015 were zero,

reflecting below-threshotd performance in a tough
trading environment

s Long-term incentives vesting n 2015 cid not pay out

Thus 1s the third consecutive year of il pay-out, reflecting
below-threshold performance against the company’s
three-year targets for earnings per share growth, return
oninvested capital and relative total shareholder return

Given the environment within which the leadership team
is expected to guide Pearson through a very significant
period of change, without receving any bonus or long-
term incentive payments, the committee agreed for 2016
incentive and retention arrangements for selected key
employees, which will vest, ornot, in 2017 No executive
directors parucipate in these incentives

Future measures of performance against pay

We expect our business to stabilise 1n 2017 and return
to growth (n 2018 Our bustness plan until then focuses
on operational execution, tight cost management,

and a sharper, more focused strategy The focus of
restructuring 1s notonly to reduce costs but also to
make the company faster, leaner and more agile

We are creating a single global product organisation,
Integrating our school, clinical and professional
assessment operatlons in North Amenca and are scaling
back our exposure to large, direct delivery operations
We are also making productivity improvements across
all our enabling functions such as Technology, HR and
Finance and we plan to rationalise our praperty portfolto
and consohidate major agreements to drive greater

cost effictency

Committee responsibilities

1 Determine and review policy Determine and regularly
review the remuneration policy for the executive directors,
the presidents and other members of the Pearson executive
wha report directly to the CEO {executive managemaeant)
This policy includes base salary, annual and long-term
incentives, pension arrangements, any other benefits

and termination of employment

2 Review and approve implementation Regularly review
the implementation and operation of the remuneration
policy for executive management and approve the
indridual remuneration and benefits packages of the
executive directors

3 Approve performance related plans Approve the design
of, and determine targets for, any performance-related

pay plans operated by the companyand approve the total
payments to be made under such plans

4 Review long-term plans Revlew the design of the
company's long-term Incentive and other share plans
for approvai by the board and sharehelders

S Setterrmnation arrangements Advise and decide on
general and spectfic arrangements in connection with

the termination of employment of executive directors

6 Review targets Review and approve corporate goals and
objectives relevant to CEC remuneration and evaluate the
CEC's performance infight of those goals and objectives

7 Determine chairman’s remuneration Delegated
responsibility for determining the remuneration and
benefits package of the chairman of the board

8 Shareholder engagement Ensure the company maintalns
an appropriate levef of engagementwith its shareholders
and shareholder representative bedies In relation to the
rermuneration policy and its Implementation

9 Appoint remunerationconsultantsAppotnt and

set the terms of engagement for any remuneration
consultants who advise the committee and monitor

the cost of such advice

in these circumstances, we intend to design aur theentive
plans for 2016 to ensure that our executive and other
employees are motivated and incentivised to achieve
our tmportant aims over the short term, while sustaining
a strategic focus on longer-term goals The plantargets
are still to be finalised but the current thinking suggests

For the Annual Incentive Plan (AlP)

»The 2016 sales and cash metrics and weightings remarn

unchanged from 2015 However, toalign the AIP with
the speafic restructuring achtevements required in
2016, as noted in the Income statement measure in our
guidance to investors, Operating Profit after the cost of
restructuring witi be added to the metrics with a30%
weighting To accommodate this change, the waighting
for earnings per share {EPS) would also be 30% (down
from 60% weight for 2015)
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Part 1. Letter from the chairman of the remuneration comrmttee continued

» For 2016, the range of normal rewarded performance
would be wider than in previous years - and, in
consequence, both the threshold performance and
the on-target funding are set to be lower thann 2015

For the Long-Term Incentive Plan (LT1P)

»Targets for the 2016 LTIP awards are planned to be set
following the April remuneration committee meeting,
having allowed key shareholders the opportunity to
consider our plans on how to account for the revised
growth expectations explained in our January 2016
trading update, and 1n line with policy

»The targets will be fully disclosed inthe 2016 reporton
directors’ remuneration

»The targets and weightings will continue to be based on
EPS (one-half), ROIC {one-third) and TSR {che-sixth)with
on-target levels planned to be in line with the delivery
of the market guidance operating profit of £800 million
n 2018

Looking forward to 2016

The committee has reviewed the base salary levels for
executive directors in light of 2015 business performance
and concluded that it would not be appropniate to award
asalary increase for 2016

in preparation for the policy vote in 2017, we expect to
conduct a thorough review of our remuneration policy

Principles of remuneration policy

n 2016 to test and ensure its effectiveness and
appropriateness for the company, which finds itself
In a new operating environment and context to that
prevailing in 2014 We are committed to engagement
with our shareholders during this review and will

welcome comments and feedback

The operation of the current LTIP will be considered as
part of the palicy review, in parailel with a penodic review
of the reruneration committee’s terms of reference

Our new policy - changed or not - and any new or
renewed plans will be put to shareholders for approval
atthe 2017 AGM For information an our anticipated
changes to remuneration for 2016 see page 116

My meetings with shareholders in 2015 have been
helpful in understanding perspectives and | look forward
to continuing the dizlogue in 2016 and beyond

We are confident that our response to the changes and
chaltenges descnbed here will make Pearson a simpler,
focused and stronger company and that we will position
the company toachieve asustained pernod of growth

IMAGE REMOVED

Elizabeth Corley
Chairman of remuneration committee

4 March 2016

The purpose of the remuneration palicy Is to support the company’s strategy to deliver sustained performance and
create long-term value in the interests of all stakeholders Our remuneration policy principles are tighlighted inthe
panel below and a summary of our directors’ remuneration policy report, approved by shareholders at the 2014 AGM,

1s provided on pages 97 and 98

We continue to operate executive remuneration in line with the approved policy and do not anticipate seeking
shareholder approval for our policy again until required to do so at the 2017 AGM See table on page 98

Sustainabihty and Pay for performance Alignment
affordability
s Robust and transparent + Pay mix focuses on »Designed to reflect
Base TUnk (o pay conditions Annual varlable pay Annual shareholder value
salary across the Group incentives W incentives creation
yStrongrationale rAligned fully with KPls
forincreases EPS operating profit,

sales and operating

» Funded through
Annual results
incentives »Strong link to
performance Long-term
» Mafus and dawback incentives

2 Strong link to
performance

»Malus and clawback

Long-term
Incentives

2 Designedto reflect

cashflow Long-term shareholdervalue
»Malus and clawback Incentives creation

»Pay mix focuses on 12 year ht::dlng
varlable pay post vesting

» Funded throughresuits >CEC 300%

» Aligned with strategy Shareholding \  cro 200%
through KPis EPS, ROIC guldelines +Pearsen

and TSR
»Malus and tlawback

executive 100%
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Part2 Summary of termuneration policy

Introduction te summary of remuneration policy

The company’s pelicy on directors’ remuneration

was approved by shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting on 25 April 2014 Wessued an RNS statement
of further information on the remuneration policy on
9 April 2014, to clanify the use of the committee's
discretion over certain elements of remuneration in
exceptional circumstances

To help shareholders understand the context of
remuneration practice reported in the annual
remuneration report that follows, and specifically the
limits applied to directors’' remuneration, we have
included below some key points and a summary of
pertinent sections of the remuneratian policy for
Information only For further detail, please refer to the
full remuneration policy and the clanfication statement
on the Gavernance page of the company's website at
WWW pearson com/governance

Scope of policy
The policy applies to executive directors, the chairman
and non-executive directors

Reference 1s also made to the remuneration policy for
other members of the Pearson executive (currently nine
in numberywho are not directors but who fall within the
committee's rerit

Duration of policy

The policy took effect on 25 April 2014 and is expected
to remain in force until the next binding vote on our
remuneration policy, which 1s planned for the 2017 AGM

Use of discretion

The committee has avoided, where possible, iInduding
general discretions in the policy table However,
exceptional or genulnely unforeseen arcumstances
may arisein the future and in those arcumstances it
may be in shareholders'interests for Pearson to putin
place remuneration arrangements that are outside the
terms of the policy Ifthis happens, the committee wall
be permitted to implement remuneration arrangements
that it considers appropniate in the crcumstances tn
these circumstances, Pearson would consuit in advance
with major shareholders before it does so and would
explain the exercise of this discretion in the following
year's directors’ remuneration report

As darified i the RNS statement of further information
on the remuneration pelicy on 9 Apnl 2014, this
discretion would only be used in the very narrow
crcumstances arficulatedin the policy - that s, in
exceptional or genuinely unforeseen arcumstances
The commuttee considers that these circumstances
would arise highly infrequently, if at all, in the ifeime
of the policy The committee wouldregard reliance

on this discretion as a matter of utmast seriousness
and, in relation to our stated obhigation to consultin
advance with major shareholders, would not proceed
unless there was clear cansensus in favour among
those consulted Further, the committee would ensure
that thevalue of the remuneratton arrangement putin
place in rehance on this discretion would fall within the
normal imit {as stated in the policy) for the element of
remuneration to which the arrangement relates

As part of the approved policy, the committee also has
discretton to award base salary increases, allowances
and benefits, and long-term incentive plan awards

in excess of the normal maximum bmits to current

or new directors As clanfied in the RNS statement,

this discretion will only be exercised in exceptional
arcumstances other than in the case of increases inthe
cost of benefits that are outside Pearson’s control and
changes in benefit providers Again, Pearsonwould
consult with major shareholders before exercising any
suchdiscretion and such exerasewould be limited by
reference to the safeguards descnibed above, including
only proceeding where there was clear consensus in
favour ameng those consulted Inthese circumstances,
the commuttee would enstre thatthe maxtimum value of
the remuneration arrangement putin place inrehance
on this discretion did notexceed a margin of 25% over
the normal maximum limit for the element in question
{as stated in the policy)

Legacy arrangements

Glven the long-term nature of some of Pearson’s
remuneration structures - including obligations
under service contracts, ncentive plans and pension
arrangements ~ a number of pre-exsting obligations
remained in place at the time that the new policy
became effective, induding obligations that are
‘grandfathered’ bywvirtue of bemnginforce at 27 June
2012 Pearson's policy is to honour pre-existing
obligations, commitments or other entitliements that
were entered into before the effective date of this policy
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Part2 Summary of remuneration policy continued

Summary of remuneration policy

For more information please refe/r to the full remuneration policy on the Governance page of the company's website at

WWW pearson com/governance g

Element of
remuneration

Purpose and
link to strategy

Performance conditions

Normal imit

Exceptional mit 23 clarfied in
RNS statement of 9 April 2014

Base salary >

Helps to recrult, reward
andretamn Reflects
competitive market tevel,
role, skills, experience
and Inclvidua!
contribution

Performance of both the
company and the individual
are taken into account when
determining an appropriate
level of base salaryincrease
eachyear, [fany

Base salaryincreases
are not ordinatily more
than 10% per annum

Up to 25%over narmal bmitin
specific individual situations
nctuding internal promotions
and materat changes to the
businessor the role

Allowances
and benefits

Help torecruitand
retain Reflactthe local
competitive market

None

Total value not
ardinarlly in excess of
15% of base salary In
anyyear

Up to 25% over norrnal limlt in
specific ndividual situatsons
including changes in Individual
drcumstances such as health
status and changes Inthe role
such asrelocation Inexcessof
25% over normal limizin the
case of Increases inthe cost

of benefits that are outside of
Pearson's control and changes
In benefit providers

Retirement
benefits

Help to recruitand
retain Recogriselong-
term commitment

None

As setout napproved
remuneration policy

None

Annual
incentives

Motivate achfevernent

of annual strategic

goals Focusonkey
financial metrics Reward
indwviduat contribution

The cormmttee has the
diseretion to select the
performance measures,
targets and relative weightings
fromyear teyear Funded by
Pearson global annual financial
results, normally related to the
performance agalnst targets
for Pearson's adjusted earnings
pershare (or operating profit),
sales, and operating cash flow
Individual annual incentive
pay-outs alsotake into account
indrvidual performance against
personal objectives

Overall mit 200%

of base salary 2015
maximum spportunity
15 180% for the chief
execulive and no more
than 170% for other
executive directors
and members of the
Pearson executive

None

Long-term
incentives

Help te recruit, reward
and retain Drivelong-
term earnings, share
price growth and value
creatlon, and align
Interests of executives
and shareholders
Encourage long-

term shareholding
and commitment to
company

Link management's
iong term reward and
wealth to corporate
perfarmance ina
flexible way

The committee will determine
the performance measures,
weightings and targets
governing an award of
restricted shares prior to

grant to ensure continuing
allgnment with strategy and
thatthe targets are sufficiently
stretching Awardsvest subject
to the following performance
conditions one halfon
earnings per share growth,

one third on return on invested
capital {ROIC), one sixth on
relatwe total shareholder
return{TSR) Performance
tested over three years

Maximum©face

value of 400% of

base salary Other
than in exceptional
clrcumstances on
recruitment, itis the
corhpany’s normat
policy notto award
restricted shares to
executive directors
and other members of
the Pearson executive
without performance
conditions

Upto 25% over normal Bmitin
excepuiona circumstances, for
example, for retention purposes
of to reflect particular business
situatlons The discretion to
award restricted shares without
performance conditions to
executive directors will not

be used other than whereltis
appropriate to compensate a
new director on a ‘like-for-Iike’
basts for incentves foregane

at a previous employer

See Total single figure remuneration chart on page 105 ©




Section 4 Governance/Report on directors' remuneration 29

Non-executive directors and charrman

Pay and performance scenario analysts

Non-executive director remuneration has been designed
to attract and retain high calibre individuals, with
appropniate expertence or industry relevant skidls, by
offering market competitive fee tevels

The structure of non-executive directors’ fees
with effect from 1 May 201415 a5 follows

Diractor Fee
Non-exacutive director £70,000
Chatrmanship of audit committee £27,500
Chalrmanship of remuneration committee £22,000
Charmanship of reputation &

responstbility committee £10,000
Membership of audit committee £15,000
Membership of remuneration committee £10,000
Memberstup of reputation &

responsibility committee £5,000
Senior independent director £22,000

The total fees payable to the non-executive directors
{excluding the Chairman} are subject to the limit set out
in the articles of association of the company (currently
£750,000) and are increased by ordinary resolution from
time to time

The chairman'’s fees remain unchanged at £500,000
peryear

For more information on non-executive directors’
remuneration, please refer to the full remuneration
policy on the Governance page of the company's website
atwww pearson com/governance

The remuneration policy approved by shareholders
N 2014 required a scenaro chartinthe format set out
below for 2014 remuneratton Although not required,
the company has updated the scenario charts below
so asto apply to 2016 remuneration

Consistent with its policy, the committee places
considerabie emphasis on the performance-linked
elements, i e annual andiong-term incentives

The chart overieaf shows what each director could
expect to receive in 2016 under different performance
scenarios, based on the following defimtions of
performance

Elements of remuneration
and assumptions

Performance
scenario

2016 base salary, allowances, benefits, and
retirement benefits at the same percentage

of base salary as in 2015 maximum ndividual
annual incentive as per policy; maximum vajue
of 2015 long term Incentive award

Maximum

2016 base salary, allowances, benefits and
retirement benefits atthe same percentage
of base salary as In 2015, target individuat
annual incentive as per policy; target value
of 2015 long term incentive award (Willis
Towers Watson's Independent assessment
of the expected value of the award, f e the
net present value takinginto account all the

Target

J Ul

conditions)
Wil 2016 base salary, allowances, benefits, and
nimur retiremnent benefits atthe same percentage
of base salary as in 2015 no annual or long-

term incentives

Note The value of long-term incentives does not Lake into accoumt dhvidend awards that
are payabieon the release of restr VOr 3ny ins prce.

Cn this basts, the relative weighting of fixed and
performance-related remunerationand the absolute
size of the remuneration packages for the chief executive
and the chief finanaial officer {as represented by the
current fncumbent) are set out onthe next page

We will continue to review the mix of fixed and
performance-hinked remuneration on an annuat basis,
consistent with our overall policy
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Part 2. Summary of Remuneration policy continued

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

Further infermation on remuneration policy

For further information on the foltowing aspects

of the remuneration policy, please refer to the full
remuneration policy and the RNS statement of further
information on the remuneratien policy of 9 April 2014
on the Governance page of the company's website at
www pearson comsgovernance

» Salection of performance measures and target setting

»Legacy arrangaments under the annual bonus share
matching plan

> Remuneration policy for other employees
»Service contracts and termination provisions

» Recruitment policy

» Employment conditions elsewhere in the company
s Executive directors’ non-executive directorships
»Shareholder views

In 2016, we intend to conduct a review of our
remuneration pohcy to putto shareholders
for our next policy vote in 2017
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Part3 Annual temuneration report

This report compnises a number of sections

The remuneration committee

Movements in directors’

and its activities p102-103 O Interests inshare options” pI @

Voting outcome at 2015 Annual Payments to former directors® PO

General Meeting p104©@ Interests of directors and

Single figure of total remuneration and vatue of shareholdings" p112Q

prioryear camparison p1os © Executve drectors

Annualincentive” p106 © non-executive directorships - p113 @
. Long-term incentives” p107 © Historical performance

Retirement benefits* plos © and remuneration P40

Remuneration pard te the charrman Comparative information SO

and non-executive directors” pro3 9 inforrmation on changes to

Movernents i directors’ remuneration for 2016 pl16117 ©

Interests in share awards* p1o@

Where required under currantregulations the tables marked * have been subject toaudit

Annual remuneration report

Remuneration compliance

The remuneration committee presents the annual
remuneration report, which will be put to shareholders,
along with the annual statement, as an advisory (non-
tindmg) vote at the Annual General Meeting to be held
on 29 April 2016

Strategic alignment of pay

This reportwas compiledin accordance with Schedule 8
of the Large and Medium-sized Comparues and Groups

{Accounts and Reports) {(Amendment) Regulations
2013 and was appraoved by the board of directors on

4 March 2016

The commuttee beheves that the company has comphed
with the provisions regarding remuneration matters
contained within the UK Corporate Governance Code

Fmancial Kel fncentive Non-financial KPi Incentive
abjectives scheme abfectives scheme
Drive revenue Sales AlP Reduce GHG AlP (aspartofa
emissions scorecard used
growth our carhon 10 detarmine
footprint the Individual
discretionary
Deliver Z::ﬁzdjsuswd AlP/LTIP elementofthe
stainable £ payoul)
Su Return on LTIP
returns invested capltal
Total shareholder LTIP Strategic KP1 Incentive
return obfectives scheme
Transform Revenue share AlP
to digital
Manage our coai;r;g:vg e and sgerwces
cash position
effectively
Grow presence Revenue share AlP
n cmergmg

markets
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Part 3 Annual remuneration report continued

The remuneration committee in 2015

Role Name Title
Chairman Elizabeth Corley independent

{from 24 April 2015) naon-executive directors

David Arculus

{to 24 April 2015)

Members Vivienne Cox

JoshLewis

Tim Score

(from 2 October 2015)

Ken Hydon

(to 24 April 2015)

Elzabeth Carley

(ta 24 April 2015)

GlenMoreno Chairrman of the board
internal  John Fallon Chief executive
advisers Coram Willlams Chief finanaal officer

(from 1 August 2015)

Robin Freestone Chief financial officer

(to 1 August 2015)

Melinda Wolfe Chief human resources

officer

Stuart Nolan SVP, reward

Stephen Jones Company secretary
External  Willis Towers Watson
advisers

See remuneration committee activities in 2015
on p103°

Sidney Taurel joined the committee as a member
on his appointment as Charman of the Board on
1January 2016

Internal advisers provided material assistance to the
committee during the year They attended meetings of
the committee, although none of them were involved in
any decisions relating to his or her own remuneration

To ensure that the committee recewves independent
adwvice, Willis Towers Watson supplies survey data and
advises on market trends, long-termincentives and
other general remuneration matters Willis Towers
Watson was selected and appointed by the committee
through a formal tendering process Willis Towers
Watson also advised the company on health and
welfare benefits in the US and provided consulting
advice directly to certain Pearson operating compantes
Willis Towers Watson 1s a member of the Remuneration
Consultants' Group, the body that oversees the Code of
Conduct in relation to executive remuneration consulting
nthe UK

During the year, Willis Towers Watson was paid fees for
advice to the committee, which were charged on a tme
spent basis, of £151,254 Aspartofits annual review of its
performance and effectiveness, the commuittee remains
satisfied that Willis Towers Watson's advice was objective
and independent and that Willis Towers Watson’s
proviston of other services in no way compromises

its independence

Committee performance

Annually, the commuttee reviews its own performance,
constitution, and charter and terms of reference to
ensure itis operating at maximum effectveness and
recommends any changes it considers necessaryto the
board for approval

The commuttee participated In a survey to review its
performance and effectiveness in July 2015, looking at
areas such asthe clarity of roles and responstbtities,
the composition of the committee, the use of time,
the quality and timeliness of meeting matenals, the
opportunity for discussion and debate, dialegue

with management and shareholders and accessto
independent advice

The committee concluded that it 1s operating effectively
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Meetings, activities and decisions in 2015

The remuneration committee met four tmes during 2015 The key topics were as follows

Market

Noted Willls Towers
Watsor's overwew ofthe
current remuneration
environment and
2014715 market data

Noted updateto
remuneration aspects
of the UX Corporate
Governance Code

and principles of
remuneration of the
Investment Association

Performance

Noted management's
overview of prior
year and year to

date performance
and business plans

Noted and reviewed
the status of the
outstanding long-term
Incentive awards based
onthe currentview of
likely Pearson firancial
performance

Implementation

LpUgk

Reviewed and approved
the 2014 annual
jrcentive pay-outand
2015 remuneration
package for john Falton

Reviewed and approved
2014 annual Incentive

Approved nil pay-out
under 2012 long-term
incentive plan

Reviewed and approved
2015 long-term ncentive

Considered timekne
and principles for
determining the basis
of RobinFreestone’s
exit arrangernents

Noted 2015 long-term
incentive awards for

Noted remuneration
package for a new
appontmenttothe
Pearson executive

Considered matter of
former CEO's double

engagement

directors’ remuneration
report

shareheldervoting and
engagement strategy

reporton directors’
remuneration and
considered shareholder
engagament strategy

plan pay outs awards for the Pearson  seniorleaders and taxation inthe US and
Appraved nil pay-out of executive managers betow UK and related 1ssues
2012 annuat bonus share Pearson executive
matching awards and
release of shares
{ Noted the activity ofthe  Noted company’s use Reviewed the Reviewed the
Governance standingcommitteeof  ofequityforemployee  committee's committee’s charter
the board inrefation share plans perforrnance and tarms of reference
tothe operation ofthe
company’s equity-based
reward programmes
Reviewed and approved Reviewed and approved  Noted guidance notes on
Policy 2014 directors’ 2015 indvidual annual  treatment of leavers and
remuneration report ncentive opportunities  exercise of discretion
' Reviewed and approved far the Pearson Considered approach to
increases in base salanes executive 2015 long-term Incentive
for 2015 forthe Pearson  Reviewed 2015 awards for sentor
executive long-term incentive leaders and managers
performance conditions  belowthe Pearson
Reviewed and approved for the Pearson executive
2015 Pearson annual
incentive plan targets executive
Noted shareholder Reviewed 2015 Annual Noted temnplate Noted feedback from
Disclosure and feedback on 2014 Generat Meetingseason, and outline of 2015 Committee Chalrman's

meetings with key
shareholders
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Part 3 Annual repmuneration report continued

Voting at 2015 Annual General Meeting

Voting on remuneration poiicy at 2014 AGM

The foltowtng table summanses the details of votes cast
in respect of the resofutions on the report ondirectors’
remuneration at the 2615 Annual General Meeting

IMAGE REMOVED

As In previous years and as required by law, details
of the voting on all resolutions at the 2016 Annual
General Meeting will be annournced via the RNS
and posted on the Pearson website following the
Annual General Meeting

IMAGE REMOVED
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Smngle total figure of remuneratton and prior year comparison _8
(=

Total aggregate emoluments for executive and non-executive directors were £3 299m in 2015 These emoluments are &

included within the total employee benefit expense in note Sto the financial statements {page 155} 2

Executive directors

The remuneration recerved by executive directors In respect of the financial years ended 31 December 2015 and

31 December 201415 set aut below Figures for Coram Williams and Robin Freestone are based on thewr period of

employment ~ see note on page 106

Executive director remuneration

John Falion CoramWilliams Robin Freestone Total

£000s 2015 2014 2015 2004 2015 2014 2015 2014 S

[ Base satary > 776 761 258 - M7 553 1451 1,314 g
3
3

[ Allowances and benefits > 62 83 0 - 13 15 75 98 B

Travel 28 50 0 - 1 12 39 62

Healthcare 2 2 ] - 2 2 4 4

Risk 32 31 o - 1 32 32

[ Annual incentives > 0 692 0 - 0 365 0 1,057 Q

Percentage of maximum 0% 51% 0% - 0% 39% - - §

Percentage of target 0% 91% 0% - 0% 78% - - %

Percentage of salary 0% 1% 0% - 0% 66% - - B

| Long-term incentives > 54 74 - - 41 €3 95 137

Long-term incentive plan 0 0 - - 0 0 0

Annual bonus share-matching plan 0 0 - - 0 0 0

Dividend equivalents 46 74 - - 38 63 84 137 o

Worldwide Save For Shares 8 o - - 3 0 11 0 %
&
B

| Retrement benefits > 371 285 18 - 126 166 515 451

Defined contribution plan 0 0 0 - 18 23 18 23

Defined benefit accrual 169 87 18 - - 0 187 87

Allowances in lieu of benefits 202 198 0 - 108 143 310 341

| Total remuneration > 1,263 1,895 276 - 597 1,162 2136 3,057

See summary of remuneration policy on page 98 ©
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Part 3 Annual remuneration 1eport continued

Notes to single figure table

Single total figure of remuneration In accordance

with the regulations, we show a single total figure of
remuneration, which includes retirement benefits and
long-term incentives in addition to the other elements of
remuneration that have been shown in previous reports

Coram Willlams and Robin Freestone Figures relate to
full period of employment, for Coram commencing 1 july
2015, and for Robin ending 30 September 2015 Note that
Coram became an executive director and Robin stepped
down as an executive director on 1 August 2015

Base salary in accerdance with policy, the committee
considered a report from the chief executive and

chuef human rescurces officer on general pay trends

tn the market and the level of pay increases across

the comparny as awhote For 2015, the company had
reiterated its stariing principles that base compensation
provides the appropriate rate of remuneration for the
Job, taking into account relevant recruitment markets,

Executive directors' annual incentive payments in 2015

business sectors and geographic regions and that

total remuneration should reward both shortand
long-term resuits, delivering compebitive rewards for
target performance, but higher rewards for exceptional
company performance Farthe US and UK, the budget
guideline Issued for adjustments to base payfor 2015
was 2% Localinflation rates and market conditions were
taken 1nto account in particular markets

Allowances and benefits Travel benefits comprise
company car, car atiowance and private use of adriver
Health benefits compnise healthcare, health assessment
and gym subsidy Risk benefits comprise additional life
cover and long-term disability insurance n additton to
the above benefits and allowances, executive directors
may also participate in company benefit or policy
arrangements that have no taxable value

Annual incentrve For more detail, see table below Annual
incentives for the directors are funded by Pearson global
annual finanaial results and pay-outs take into account
individual performance against personal objectives

For 2015, annual incentives were funded by Pearson global annual financial results based on the performance
measures set out below Indnadual pay-outs take into account performance aganst persanal objectives Actual
performance against the financial targets for 2015, and the respective AIP pocl funding level, were as follows

Actual Funding
Threshold Target Maximum performance in2015
Measures Weighting for 2015 for2015  for 2015 n2015 (%ofrarget) Weighting ratio
Group EPS (p) 60% 704 790 877 69 8 0%
Group sales (Em) 20% 5.046 5,312 5,578 5,083 0%
Operating cash flow (Em) 20% 680 765 850 435 0%
Total 100% 0% IMAGE
TargetAIP Finalpay out REMOVED
Group Pro ranng as%  Actual%of in215
Measures funding factor  ofsalary targetin2015 (000s)
John Fallon 0% 10 100% 0% £0
Coram Williams 0% 05 85% 0% £E0 @ Group EPS{p)
® Group sales{Em)
Robin Freestone 0% 075 85% 0% £0 ® Operating cashfiow (Em)
Total £0

Nota 1 Although the threshold for the Group sales element was reachedin 2015, the commutee has exertised s discreton 1o reduce the bonus

to nil due to paar overall underlying performance

Mote 2 Actual performance prowided like for tike with targets, based anplan exchange rates for 2015 and constant portfelio consistentwith

prioryrars

Note3 Pro rated due to part year employed (retstes to full period employed rathes than period as a director)




Section 4 Governance/Report on directors' remuneration w07

Long-term mncentives The single figure of remuneration
for 2015 includes all long-term incentive awards that
were subject to a performance condition where the
performance period ended, or was substantially {but

not fully) completed, at 31 December 2015, and awards
where the performance condition has been satisfied

hut where the retease of shares is subject to a further
holding period The same methodclogy has been applied
for the single figure of remuneration for 2014

In 2015, the perfarmance condstions for the 2013
Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP) and 2013 Annual Benus
Share-Matching Plan (ABSMP) were not met The
executive directors both held vested shares under the
2010 LTIP that were released on 5 March 2015 at the end
of the two-year holding period and these shares were
partof the single figure of remuneration for 2013 as
reported in the 2012 report on directors’ remuneration
However, the dividend equivalent shares that were
awarded in respect of these shares and released on

5 March 2015 have been included in the single figure

of remuneration for 2015, as below

Long-term incentive plan vesting

Worldwide Save For Shares All share options that
become exercisable durming a year are included tn the
single figure of total remuneration for that year The
value induded in the single figure of total remuneration
is the number of aptions multiplied by the difference
between the discounted option price and the market
value on the earliest exeraise date Share options which
became exercisable in 2015 are included in the single
figure of total remuneration for 2015 based onthe share
price on August 1, 2015 of 1,203 Op See page 111 for
details of share options vesting in the year

Date of Date of Numberof Value Share price
Dwector award release shares €000 onrelease Notes
John Fallen - 5Mar1s 31N 46 1,444 0p Dividend shares relating to final portion of 2010
award vesting
3Mar10 5Marts 13,752 199 1,444 0p 25% of 2010 award pay-otit subject to
continued employment released
16,943 245
Robin - S5Mar1s 2,659 38 1,444 Op Dividend shares relatingte final portion of 2010
Freestone award vesting
3Mar10 5Mar15 11,460 165 1,444 Op 25% of 2010 award pay-out subject to
continued employment released
14,119 203
Total 31,062 448
Notes

Deviclend equivalent shares only induded m single figure tabie. The undertying 25% of the 2010 Award having beendiscosedinthe 2012 single figure table.

with related

.
perRNS 't

Sharesvested on 3 March 2015 but were released on 5 March togs
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Part 3 Annual remuneration report continued

Executive directors’ retirement benefits and entitiements

Details of the directors’ pension entitlements and pension related benefits dunng the year are as follows

Other
pension
Valueof coststothe Other
defined company  aliowances Accrued
benefit over aver the fnlieuof Totalannual Normal  pensionat
the pertod period pension value in 2015 retirement 31Dects
Director £000 £000 £900 £000 age £000
John Fallon 169 - 202 3N 62 905
Coram Willlams 12 - - 18 62 257
Robin Freestone - 18 108 126 62 -
Plans Note $ The accrued pension at 31 December 2015 is tha deferred pension towhich
JohnFallon - Pearson Group Penslon Plan Accrual rate of 1/30th of pensionabla satary the member wauld be entitled on ceasing p bie service on31 o5
perannum tnaddition, he receved a taxable and non-pensionable cash supp For John Fellon and CoramWiltiams. it relates to the pension payable from the UK Pian,

Caram Willlams - Pearson Group Penston Plan Accrual rate of 1/60th ofpenslonable
salary per snnumwith continuous service with a service gap In accordance with
eariter commitments given to him about the arrangements that would apply
should he rejoin Pearson inthe UK having moved from Pearson 1o Penguin US

and subsequentdy Penguln Random House.

Robln Freestone - Money Purchase 2003 sectlon of the Pearson Group PeastonPlan
n additlon. he recelved ataxable and non pensioneble cash supplenent

John, Cotam and Robin s pension benefits are subject to the notional easnings cap

Chatrman and non-executive director remuneration

Robin Freesione did notatcrue defined benefits

Note 2 Value of defined benefit aver the peribg comprisesthe DB Input value tess
Inflation, less Individuat contributhon

Note 2 Other penslon coststthe companyover the period comprises conmbutions to
defined contribution arrangements for UK benefits

Note & Other aliowances inlicu of penswonrepres the cashalk paidin ey
ofthe previous FURBS arrangements

Note 5 Total anrwal vatue is the sumof the previous three columns.

The remuneration pard to the chairman and non-executive directors in respect of the financial years ended

31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 1s as follows

2015 2014

Salary/ Salary/
Director basic Committee Commuttee Taxable basic Committee Committee Taxable
£000s fee chairmanship membership SID benefits Total fee chawrmanship membership SID benefits  Jotal
Glen Moreno 500 - - - - 500 500 - - - ~ 500
Dawvid Arculus 22 7 5 - 1 35 68 21 14 2 105
Elizabeth
Corley 70 15 3 - 1 89 47 - 4 - 1 52
Vivienne Cox 70 10 25 22 132 68 7 22 21 6 124
Ken Hydon 22 9 3 - 1 68 27 g8 - 8 M
Josh Lewis 70 - 10 - 12 92 68 - 8 - 9 85
Linda Lorimer 70 - 20 - 7 97 68 - 7 - 8 93
Harnish
Manwani 70 - 5 - 5 80 68 - 4 - 7 79
Tim Score 70 19 7 - 97 - - - o= - -
Total 964 60 78 22 39 1,163 955 55 77 21 41 1,149

Note Taxable benefits refer to wrave) accommodation and subsiSTENCE expenses incurred while atiending board meetings during 2015 that were paid or reimbursed by the commpary
which are depmed by HMRC to be taxable in the UK The amaounts in the 1able above include the grossed up ¢ostof UK 1ax to be paid by the company on behalf of the directors
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Long-term incentives

The status of outstanding awards under the long-term incentive plan (LTIP) and the legacy annual bonus share
matching plan (ABSMP} and performance againstthe performarice conditions as at 31 December 2015 are descnbed
in the table below

For each executive director, details of awards under the LTIP and ABSMP that were awarded, vested, released,
lapsed or held during 2015 are summarised in the adjacent table Notes to this table and the following table are
provided overleaf

Status of outstanding awards under the long-term incentive plan and annual bonus share matching plan tn 2015

Long-term incentive plan {LTIP)

Share price % of
Date of ondate Vesting Performance Performance Pay outat Pay-outat Actual award
award ofaward date  measures Weighting period threshold maximum performance vested Status
TMay  1,3370p 1May Relatlve TSR 1/6 1)an2018  25%atmedian  100% atupper - - Qutstanding
2015 2018 to31 Dec quartile subjectto
2017 performance
ROIC 13 2m7 25%for ROIC  100% for ROIC
of 6 5% of 7 5%
EPS growth w2 2007 25% for EPS 100% for EPS
compared growth of 6 0% growthof12 0%
to2014
1May  11020p 1May RelativeTSR 16 2014w 2017  30%acmedlan  100% at upper - - Quistanding
2014 2007 quartlle subjectto
ROIC 3 2016 30%forROIC  10D% for ROIC performance
of 6 5% of 7 5%
EPS prowth V2 2016 30% for EPS 100% for EPS
compared growthof6 0% growthof 12 0%
to 2013
1May 13830p 1May RelatveTShR 173 2013102016 30%atmedian  100% at upper 17h Ml Estrmated to
2013 2016 quartile percentile lapsein 2016
ROIC /3 2M5 0%forROIC  100%for ROIC 58% Mt Willlapsein
of 8 5% of 10 5% 2016
EPS growth 3 2015 30% for EPS 100% for EPS -5 2% Nit  Willlapseln
compared growthof& 0% growthof12 0% 2016
to 2012
Annual Bonus Share Matching Plan (ABSMP}
Share price % of
Date of ondate Vesting ferformance Performance Pay outat Pay-outat Attual award
award ofaward date  measures Weightng period threshold maximum performance vested Status
15May 1206 0p 15May Real 201210 2015 50% of matching 100% of -6 9% Ni Performance
2013 2016  compound award for EPS matching award condltion
annuai EPS growthof3 0%  for EPS growth notmet Will
growth of 5 0% lapse in 2016
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Part3 Annual remuneration report continued

Movements i directors’ interests in share awards during 2015

Number Dividends
of shares awarded Number of
Date Vesting asat and sharesasat
Plan of award date  1)an2015 Awarded Released released Lapsed 31Dec2015S Status
John Fallon
LTIP 1 May 1 May 0 230,000 - - 230 60O QOutstanding subject to
205 2018 performance
1May  1May 274 000 - - - 274 000 Qutstanging subject te
2014 2017 performance
1 May 1 May 250 600 - - 250000 [} Expected 1¢lapse in 2016
2013 2016
IMar 3 Mar 13752 - 13752 319 - 0 Released 5Mar 2015
2010 2013 {balancing 75% of vested
shares released in 2013)
ASSMP 15May 15May 6,083 - - 6,083 ] Willlapse in 2016
2013 2018
{Total 543,835 230,000 13752 3181 256083 504,000
CoramWilkams
fome 1Aug  1Aug o 129,000 - - 129,000 Outstanding subject to
205 2018 performance
Total ) Q 129,000 1] 0 129,000
Robin Freestone
inep 1May 1 May 162,000 - - - 162,000 Qutstanding subject te
2014 2047 performance
(aiso see page 112)
1May 1May 150,000 - - 150,000 0 Expected to lapse In 2016
2013 2016 (also see page 112)
3 Mar 3IMar 11,460 - 11,460 2,659 - 0 Releasad 5 Mar 2015
200 203 (balancing 75% of vested
shares released In 2013)
[otat > 323,460 0 11,460 2,659 150,000 162,000

Note 1 For all awards, Pearson's reported financial resules for the relevant period
were used o measufe petformance and no discretion has been exerdised

Mote 2 Vested means where awards are no longer subject to performance conditions
Released means where shares have been transferred to participants. Held means
where yevards have vesied but shares are heid pending refease on Lherelevam
anniversary of the award date Owtstanding means awards that have been granted
but are still subgect to the achievemeni of performance conditlons Dividends refers
to dividend equivalent shares that have been iwithout perfor conditions
tovested shares umder the LTIPand award

of plan Interests were made dunng

to termsand ¢

Note3No
the year
Note 4 TSR s measured relative to the constituents of the FTSE Werld Media Index over
athree year period,

Nate S in relation to the LTIP award made on 1 May 2014 potentialvesting ks 50% of
maximun for attalnment of ROIC of 7%.

Note 6 For the LTIP award made on 1 May 2013 and due to vest on 1 May 2016, we

have estimated the out-turn of the refative TSR performance condition based on

performance as at 26 Fetruary 2016 atn! If actual relative TSR performance s

different onthe date of vesting, we will set this oyt mn the annual remuneration report

for 2076

Note 7 The single figure of remuneration for 2015 It awards that

1ga perfarmance condition where the performance period ended, orwassubslanually

(bulm(fuly: :ompleled at 31 December 2015 and awards where the performance
fied but where the releaseof shares is subject to a further

holdmg perlud ‘The same mathodology has been applled for earfler penods and the:

single figure for earlier reporting per dwhere necessary

Naote 8 The vahse of shares inctuded in the single figure of remunerationis

the number of shares muttiphed by the share price on release

Note @ Loram s 2015 award was made on his appointment ta the board on 1 August

2015 and will vest three years from thisdate on 1 August 2018, subject to the same

pertormance conditlons and holding periods as for other executives

Note 10 The value of the LTIP awards In 2015 for the executive directors s shown

below based an the relevant share price on Lhe date of award also shown,

Value for threshold

Vesting Number Facevalue performance Shareprice at
Director Date of award date of shares Facevalue (% ofbasesalary} (% of2014salary) date of award
John Fallon 1May201S  1May2018 230,000  £3,075100 394% 99% 1,3370p
Coram Williams 1Aug 2015 1Aug2018 129,000 £1,551,87¢ 301% 75% 1,203 Op
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Movements In directors’ interests in share options during 2015

john Fation and Robin Freestone alsa hald options under the Worldwide Save For Shares plan as follows

Number of

shares under Normal
, option held earllest Valuein 2015
Date of asat Option exercise Expiry single figure
Director grant 31 Dec2015 price date date £
John Fallon 7 May 2010 - 805 6p 1Aug1s 1Feh16 7,670
30 Apr2014 1,109 811 2p 1Aug 17 1Feb18 0
Robin Freestone 4 May 2012 - 909 Op 1 Aug15 1Feb16 2,91
30 Apr2014 1,109 811 2p 1Aug 17 1Feb18 0

Nate 1 The share option swartis made in 201010 jobn FalionIn respect of 1 930 shares
and 2012t Robin Freestone In respect of 950 shares vested and became exercisable
Inthe year snd were exerclsed on3 August 2095,

Note 2 No terms and cond, of share options were made during
the year

Note 3 Aoquisition of shares under the Worldwide $ave For Shares plan s notsubject
toa performance condition

Payments to former directors

{t1s the commuttee's intention to disciose any payments
to past directars, including any release of share-based
awards post-departure

The number of shares retained from the number of
shares originally awarded takes into account lapses due
to performance, releases prior to ceasing to be a director
and pro-rating for service in the performance period
{where appled)

Former directors Wiil Ethridge and John Makinson, who
retained the balancing 25% of their 2010 LTIP awards
(which vested in 2013) when they stepped down from
the board in 2013, recerved arelease of shares under
these awards, together with associated dividend shares,
during 2015 Details of the vested awards released in
2015 were reported in the 2012 and 2013 reports on
directors’ remuneration, detais of the dividend shares
released in 2015 are Wili Ethridge (3,191 shares) and John
Makinson (2,659 shares)

2013 ong-term incentive awards

will Ethridge retained a long-term incentive plan
award made on 1 May 2013, subject to performance
Asdisclosed elsewhere in this report, this award 1s
expected tolapse in 2016

Robin Freestone

Robin Freestone recelved no payment for loss of
office when he stepped down from the board with
effect from 1 August 2015 and left employment on
30 September 2015

Note 4 Allshare options that become exercisable duringayear are ncluded inthe
singie figure of total remuneration for thatyear Thevalue included in the single figure
of totalr ian is the number of opt itiphied by the difference batween
the discounted option price and the market value on the carllest exeruse date Share
options which becarne exercisable [n 2015 are inchafedin the single figure of total
remuneration (o 2015 based on the share price on 1 August 2015 of 1,203 0p

Note 5 The market price on 31 December 2015 was 736.0p per share and the range
during the year was 695 0p to 7 508 Op.

Robin held LTIP awards granted in 2013 and 2014 and,
in February 2016, the remuneration committee set out
a dear process and engaged with key shareholders

o consider whether those awards should be
preserved The remuneration comemittee considered
the circumstances of Robin's service and the facts
surrounding his departure, taking account of the
following factors that we nermally consider whenever
adecision to treat any person within the LTIP as a

good teaver

»the different types of leaver,

>the circumstances at the tme the award was onginally
made,

»the indwvidual's performance, and

»the circumstances in which the individual left
employment

After careful consideratlon of these factors and
consultation with key shareholders, the remuneration
comimittee noted that

1Robin is leaving to take up several non-executive director
appointments and so Is ceasing full-tme employment,

»normal conditions applied at date of grant for any award
under the LTIP and no award was made in 2015 (similarly,
he did not recelve a base salary increase in 2015),

» Robin carried out all duties expected of him during his
period of notice and In the preceding years prior to his
leaving He gave good service to the Pearson Board for
nine years, and

»Robin did not leave to take up employment in an
executive capacity butrather asa non-executive
board member
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Part 3 Annual remuneration report continued

The remuneration committee also took Inte account
the effective and smaooth handover of his role to
Coram Wilhaims

The remuneration committee deterrmuned that Robin
would be treated as a good leaver, so that outstanding
LTIP awards would be preserved on a time pro-rated
basis, would receive no special treatment and remain
subject to all of the applicable performance tests

Rabin will therefore remain eligible to receve up to
116,667 (78%) of the shares awarded on 1 May 2013 and
72,000(44%) of the shares awarded on 1 May 2014, both
of whichwall vest, subject to performance, 1n 2016 and
2017 respectively The 2013 awardis expectedto lapse
in 2016 due to not meeting the performance targets

Robin witl be treated as a rettree in respect oftus
outstanding WWSFS options granted in 2014

Directors' interests in shares and value of shareholdings

Marjorie Scardino

In the 2014 report, we made shareholders aware of a
payroll processing error during the years 2007 to 2010,
as aresult ofwhich taxes deducted from Marjone
Scardino's compensation were incorrectly allocated by
Pearson among tax authorities in the UK and the US
This resulted in her being subject to temporary double
taxation The committee has concluded that Pearson
would reimburse {on anafter-tax basis) certain costs
incurred by Marjorte Scardino in refation to this double
taxation error As a result, a payment of £27,842 has
been made to her to conclude this matter

Payments for loss of office

There were no payments for loss of office made
to or agreed for executive directorsin 2015

Directors’ interests

The share interests of the directors and their connected persons are as follows

Total
number of
ordinary and
. Ordinary Conditlonaf conditional
shares shares shares Current Currentvalue Guideline Guidetine
Director at310ecis atdi Decis at31Dect15 sharehciding (%hsalary) {Msalary) met
Chaiman
Glen Moreno 210,000 - - see NoteB - - -
Sidney Taurel see Nate § - - 50,000 - - -
Executive directors
John Fallon 293,056 0 293,056 293,056 327% 300% Yes
Coram Wilhams 10 0 10 5,010 8% 200% n/a
Non-executive directors
Ehzabeth Corley 1,267 - - 1,267 - - -
Vivienne Cox 2,938 - - 2,938 - - -
josh Lewis 7740 - - 7,740 - - -
Linda Lorimer 2,675 - - 2,675 - - -
Harish Manwani 2,571 - - 2,57 - - -
TimScore 849 - - 849 - - -
Lincoln Wallen seeNote 8 - - - - - -

Note 1 Conditional shares means shares which have vested but remain held subject
to continuing emmployment for a pre-defined holding period

Mote2 The currenl value of the exscutrve directors current shareholdings is based
on the closing market value of Pearson shares of 870 50p on 1 March 2016 aganst
base salaries at 31 December 2015 The shareholding gukielines do notapply to the
chatrman and non-executve directors.

Nata3 Ordinary shares Inctude both ordinary shares isted on the London Stock
Exchange and American Depositary Recefpts (ADRs} isted on the New York Stock

Mote 5 On 29 February 2016 CoramWilllams purchased 5 000 shares which are
tneluded under current shareholding in the table above and shawn in the chart
overleaf On2 March2016 Sldney Taure purchased 50 000 shareswhich are also

shown In the table above

Note & Drdinary shares do not inchude any shares vested but held peading reiease

under arestritted share plan,
Note 7 As 2 newappoinitee the guldelines are not yet applicablein fulfor
CoramWwllgams.

Exchange The {igures include bath shares and ADRs acqy Y

partof their own afler tax annual bonus in Pearson shares under the annaal bonus
share matching plan

Note 4The market price on 31 December 2015 was 736 0p per shars and the range
during the year was 695 Opto 1 508.0p.

13 Nate 8 Sidney Taurel and Lincoln Wallen were appolnted as directors on ¥ Rnuary 2006,

Glen Morena left Pearsonon 31 December 2015 and as suchwe have not showh a

current shareholding figure inthe table above
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Shareholding guidelines

Executive directors are expected to build up a
substantial shareholding in the company in line with the
policy of encouraging widespread employee ownership
and to align further the interests of executives and
shareholders With effect from 2014, target holding1s
300% of salary for the chuef executive and 200% of
salary for the other executive directors

Shares that count towards these guidelines include

any shares held unencumbered by the executive, their
spouse and/or dependent children plus any shares
vested but held pending release under a restricted share
plan Executive directors have five years from the date
of appointment to reach the guideline

With effect from 2014, these guidelines were extended
to include allmembers of the Pearson executive at 100%
of salary

The shareholding guidelines do not apply to the
chairman and non-executive directors However, a
munimum of 25% of the basic non-executive directors’
fee s paid in Pearson shares that the non-executive
directors have committed to retain for the period

of their directorships

Dilution and use of equity

We can use existing shares bought in the market,
treasury shares or newly-1ssued shares to satisfy
awards under the company’s various share plans

For restricted stock awards under the long-term
incentive plan and matching share awards under the
annual bonus share matching plan, we would normally
expect to use existing shares

There are limits on the amount of new-1ssue aquity we
canuse In any rolling ten-year penod, no more than 10%
of Pearson equity will be 1ssued, or be capable of being
1ssued, under alt Pearson's share plans, and no more
than 5% of Pearson equity will be issued, or be capable
of being 1ssued, under executive or discretionary plans

At 31 December 2015, stock awards to be satisfied by
new-issue equity grantedin the lastten years under all
Pearson share plans amounted to 1 6% of the company’s
issued share capital No stock awards granted inthe last
ten years under executive or discreticnary share plans
will be satisfied by new-issue equity

In addition, for existing shares, no more than 5% of
Pearson equity may be held in trustatany time Against
this limit, shares held in trust at 31 December 2015
amounted to 0 8% of the company’s 1ssued share capital

The headroom available for all Pearson plans, executive
or discretionary plans and sharesheld in trustis as
foliows

Heatdroom 2015 2014 2013
All Pearson plans 4% B3% 84%
Execttive or

discretionary plans 50% 50% 50%
Shares held in trust 42% 41% 39%

Executive directors’ non-executive directorships

Although the policy permits executivedirectors to serve
as non-executive directors elsewhere with the board's
agreement, none of the executive directors held an
external directorship dunng 2015
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Histonical performance and remuneration

Total shareholder return performance

We set out below Pearson’s total shareholder return
{TSR) performance relative to the FTSE All-Share index
on an annual basis over the seven-year period 2008 to
2015 This comparison has been chosen because the
FTSE Ali-Share represents the broad market index within
which Pearson Shares are traded TSR s the measure
ofthe returns that a company has provided for its
shareholders, reflecting share price movements and
assuming reinvestment of dividends (source Datastream)

in accordance with the repoirting regulations, this section
also presents Pearson's TSR performance alongside

the single figure of total remuneratton for the CEG over
the last sevenyears and a summary of the variable

pay outcomes relative to the prevailing maximum

atthe time The table below summarnises the total
remuneration for the CEO over the last seven years, and
the cutcomes of annual and long-term incentive plans as
aproportion of maximum

IMAGE REMOVED

CEQ remuneraticn

Marjorle Scardino

John Fallon

Total remuneration
(single figure, £000Qs)

6370 8,466 8340 5330 1727 1895 1263

Annual incentive — incumbent
(% of maximum)

913% 921% 757% 242% 343% S05% Nil

Long-term incentive — incumbent
{% of maximum)

800% 975% 683% 367% Nil Nil Nl

Annual 5 the petust i jved by the Incumbent 252

Long term incentive is the pay-out of performance related restricted shares under
the long-term incentrve planwhere the year shown i the final year ofthe performance
period for the purposes of calcutating the singie tot) figure of remuneraton

ity

Total remuneration -fohn Faflon john Fatior’s tot al remuneration opportunity ks lower
than that of the previous incumbent. Variabie pay-outs under the annual and long-term
incentive plans reflert performance for the refevant periods
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Comparative information

The following infarmation s intended to provide
additional context regarding the total remuneration
for executive directors

Relative percentage change in remuneration for CEQ
The following table sets out the change between 2014
and 2015 in three elements of remuneration for the CEQ,
in comparison to the average for all employees

While the commuttee constders the increase in base pay
for the CEO relative to the broader employee population,
benefits are drrven by local practices and ehgibility 15
determined by level and individual cireumstances

which do not lend themselves to comparlson

Change in CEO remuneration 2014/15

Basesalary Allowances and benefits
Q 2% Q -25%

Annual incentives Total

O -100% Q -33%

Change In employee remuneration 2014/15

Base salary Allowances and benefits
Q +3% Q +12%

Annual incentives Total

O -38% © No change

Note 1 Thefigures for all employees reflect average salaries and average employee
numbers each year Annuallncentives indude all plans, including sales incentives

Note 2 The ingrease bn allowances and annualincentives for john Fation is attributable
respeciively 1o fa) the first fufl-year of reporting of his private use of adriver based on
the benefit in-kind charge for the 2014/2015 tax year and {b) the year on-year increase
In tus pay outunder the Pearson ennual incentive pan

Relative importance of pay spend

The committee considers directors’ remuneration inthe
context of the company’s allocation and disbursement of
resources to different stakeholders

In particular, we chose aperating profithecause thisis
ameasure of our ability to reinvest in the company We
include dividends because these constitute an important
element of our return to shareholders

Change
All figuras in £ milllons 2015 2014 £m %
Operating profit 723 722 1 0%
Dividends 423 397 26 7%
Totalwages
and salaries 1,507 1607 100 -6%

Note 10peraung profit s as set outinthe financial statements.

Note 2Wages and salarles include continuing operations only and include directors.
2074 Is restated on the same basis Average employee numbers for contlming
operations for 2015 were 37 265 {2014 38,654 further detalls are setoutin

note 5 to the finankial statements on page 155

$5RUISNGJNQ

asuewLopad N

edust feposanp

BDUBUIINOG) |

SIABIES [2aURUI I




116 Pearsan plc Annuaireport and accounts 2015

Part 3 Annual remuneration report continited

Information on changes to remuneration for 2016

Executive directors’ base salaries

We have undertaken a regular periodic review of base
salanies for 2016, taking into account general econormic
and market conditions, the level of iIncreases made
across the company as a whole, the remuneration of
executives in similar positions in comparable compamnies
and indmidual performance

As a result of this review, the 2016 base salaries for the
CECQ and CFO are unchanged as follows

john Coram
£000s Fallon willlams
Base salary at
31 December 2015 £7803 £5150

0% 0%
£780.3 £515.0

Change

Base salary at 1 April 2016

Annualincentive

The key design principies underlying the company’s
approach to annualincentives for 2016 are the same
as for 2015, namely

» Full ahignment of annual incentives with the global
business and education strategy to reinforce a‘one
Pearson' focus - the size of the overall annuai incentive
pay-outwill continue to be linked to overali Pearson
performance

» A clear, transparent, cohetrent, consistent, organisation-
wide approach to incentives and performance
managementwith a common incentive framework
for all business umits and enabling functions

Itis anticipated that the 2016 sales and cash metrics
and weightings remain unchanged from 2015
However, to align the AIP with the specific restructunng
achievements required in 2016, as noted in the Income
statement measure In our guidance to investors,
operating profit after the cost of restructunng

would be added to the metrics with a 30% wetghting
To accommodate this change, the weighting for EPS
would also be 30% (down from 60% weight for 2015)

The Pearson financiat targets are set each year aspart

of the normal operating plan process The CEQ and

CFO have recommended the overall Pearson incentive

funding metrics (including performance measures,

targets and welghtings) to the committee for approval

inthe normal way For 2016, the range of normal \
rewarded performance 1s expected to be wider than

In previous years -and, in consequence, boththe

threshold performance and the an-target funding

are set to be lower thanin 2015

The board considers the performance targets for
2016 to be commercially sensttive Detaits of all
performance measures, weightings and targets will
be disclosed in the annual remuneration report for
2016 unless the committee determines that they
remain commercially sensitive

There has been no change in individual annual incentive
opportunities for the executive directors and the
Pearson executive

Annual Incentive pay-outs are determined according
to a combination of Pearson-wide performance and
indnviduat goals The sum of the CEQ's and the Pearson
executives' ‘on-target’ annual incentive censtitutes the
incentive pool for this group which flexes up or down
based on overall Pearson performance tndividual
performance is assessed against goals set at the start
oftheyear Individual pay-outs up to indidual
maximum opportunities and within the totat pool are
recommended by the CEQ {or by the chairmaninthe
case of the CEQ himself) for review and, 1n the case of
the execubive directors, for approval by the committee

Special incentive and retention arrangements

The commttee agreed for 2016 mcentive and retention
arrangements for selected key employees, which wiil
vast, or not, in 2017 No executive directors particpate
inthese Incentives
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Long-term incentives

The commuttee will continue to operate the long-term
incentive plan for the executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive inlnewith the
arrangements cutiined in the 2013 report on directors’
remuneration

»The weighting of the performance metrics will remain
haif on earmings per share, one-third onreturnon
invested capital and one-sixth on relative total
shareholder return However, the EPS target s planned
to be absolute rather than a growth target, and aligned
with our external gurdance to the market in jJanuary 2016

» Performance will be tested over three years and 75% of
the vested shares will be released at that point However,
there 15 a mandatory restriction on participants' ability
to dispose of the 75% of the vested shares (other than
to meet personal tax habilities) for a further two years
Furthermore, participants’ rights to the release of the
remaining 25% of the vested shares are subject to
continued employment over the same period

» At the time of writing, the commuttee has yet to approve
the 2016 long-term incentive awards and the associated
performance targets for the executive directors and
other members of the Pearson executive These are
expected to be determined at the Apnil meeting prior to
the anticipated May grant We expect to set targets for
the 2016 awards that are consistent with the company’s
market guidance over the period to 2018

We will set the level of iIndvidual awards consistent with
those seen inrecent years and within the policy
maximum taking into account

» The face value of individual awards at the ime of grant,
»rassuming that performance targets are met in full
»Indniidual roles and responsibilites

» Company and indmidual performance

» Market practice for comparable companies and market
assessments of total remuneration fromour
independent adwvisers

Fuli detads of Individual awards for the executive
directors and the performance targets for 2016 willbe
setoutin the annual remuneration report for 2016

Appointment of charrman

Our new chairman, Mr Sidney Taurel, has agreed to
lead our board for the same package that the outgoing
chairman received, that s aflat fee of £500,000 per year
He wilf not participate tn any form of Pearsan incentive
arrangement He became the chairman effective

1 January 2016

Chairman and non-executive directors

The fee for the chairman and fees for the non-executive
directors remarnunchanged for 2016 Full details wili be
set outin the annual remuneration report and included
in the single figure of total remuneration for 2016

However, we Intend to review these fees in inewith our
remuneration pohcy in fate 2016 1in time for our 2017
policy vote

The directors’ remuneration report has been
approved by theboard on 4 March 2016 and signed
on its behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED

Elizabeth Corley
Charrman of the remuneration committee
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Additional disclosures

Report of the directors

Pages 70 ta 123 of this document comprise the directors’
report for the year ended 31 December 2015

Other information that is required by the Companies
Act 2006 (the Act) to beincluded in the directors’ report,
and which s incorporated by reference, can be located
as follows

Summary disctosures index See more
Dwvidend recommendation pl1i
Financial instruments and

financial risk management note 19
Important events since year end p37
Future development of the business p06-07
Research and development actwities ps3
Employment of disabled persons p62
Employee involvement P59
Greenhouse gas emissions pé4

With the exception of the dividend waiver described
on page 122, there is no information to be disclosed
inaccardance with Listing Rule 9 8 4

Going concern

I3

Share capital

Details of share issues are given tn note 27 tothe
accounts on page 200 The company has asingle class
of shares which 15 divided into ordinary shares of 25p
each The ordinary shares are inregistered form Asat
31 December 2015, 821,068,560 ordinary shares were
inissue At the AGM held on 24 April 2015, the company
was authorised, subject to certain conditions, to acquire
up to 82,027,776 ordinary shares by market purchase
Shareholders will be asked to renew this authority at
the AGM an 29 Apri1 2016

Informatign provided to the company pursuantto

the Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules (DTR) is published on a Reguiatory
Information Service and on the company’s website

As at 31 December 2015, the company had been notified
under DTR 5 of the following holders cf significant voting
rights inits shares

Number  Percentage
ofvoting  as atdateof
rights  notification

42,201,515 513%

BlackRock, Inc

Schroders plc 42,151,560 513%

The directors have made an assessment of the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern and
constder it appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting

Viabiisty statement

Asset out on page 40 the board has also reviewed the
prospects of Pearson over the three year period to
December 2018 taking account of the company's
strategic plans, a ‘severe but plausible’ downside case
and further stress testing based on the prinapal nsks
set out on pages 41-45

Based on the results of these procedures, and
considering the company’s strong balance sheet
following the sale of the FT group, the directors have

a reasonable expectation that Pearson will be able to
continue in operation and meet its habihties as they fall
due over the three year period ending December 2018
This assumes a reasonable level of ongoing access to
capital ether viaissuing commercial paper or drawing
on our revalving credit facility (see note 18 onp178)

Between 31 December 2015 and 2 March 2016, being
the latest practicable date before the publication of
this report, the company did not receive any further
notfications under DTRS

Annual General Meeting

The notice conventng the AGM, to be held at 12 noon
on Friday, 29 April 2016 at{ET London, 2 Savoy Place,
London WC2R 0BL, 1s contained in a ¢ircularto
shareholders to be dated 23March 2016

Registered auditors

Inaccordance with section 489 of the Act, a
resolution proposing the reappomtment of
PricewaterhouseCcopers LLP (PwC) as auditors to
the company will be proposed at the AGM, at a level
of remuneration to be agreed by the directors
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Auditors’ independence

In hne with best practice, our relattonship with PwC

15 governed by our external auditors policy, whichis
reviewed and approved annually by the audit committee
The policy establishes procedures to ensure the auditors’
independence 1s not compromised, as well as defining
those non-audit services that PwC may or may not
provide to Pearson

These aliowable services are 1n accordance with relevant
UK and US legislatron The audit committee approves

all audit and non-audst services provided by PwC

Certain categories of allowable non-audit services have
been pre-approved by the audit committee subject to
the authorities below

>Pre-approved non-audit services can be authorised by
the chlef financial officer up to £100,000 per project,
subject to a cumulative limit of £500,000 per annum

rAcquisition or disposal transactions and due diligence
up to £100,000 per project may be performed by our
external auditors, in ight of the need for confidenttality
Any project/transaction generating fees in excess
of £100,000 must be specifically approved by the
audit committee

»Tax comphance and related activities up to the greater of
£1,000,000 per annum or 50% of the external audn fee

» For forward-looking tax advisory services we use the
most appropniate adviser, usually after a tender process
Where we decide to use our independent auditors,
authonty, up to £100,000 per project subjecttoa
cumulative imit of £500,000 per annum, has been
delegated by the audit committee to management

Services provided by PwC above these limits and all
other allowable non-audit services, irrespective of value,
must be approved by the audit committee Where
appropriate, services will be tendered prior to a decision
being made as to whether to award work to the auditors

The audit commutiee receves regular reports
summanising the amount of fees paid to the auditors
During 2015, Pearson spent considerably more on
non-audit fees with PwC compared to 2014, due o costs
relating to carve-out audits for businesses disposed

For 2015, non-audit fees represented 56% of external
audit fees (37% 1n 2014)

For all non-audit work in 2015, PwC were selected only
after consideration that they were best able to provide
the services we required at a reasonabie fee and
within the terms of our external auditors policy

To assist in ensuring that independence and objectivity
1s maintained, for forward-looking tax adwvisory and due
diligence work PwC assign a different partner from the
one jeading the external audit

Significant non-audit work performed by PwCduring
2015 included

> Audit-related work in relation to potential and actual
corporate finance transactions

»Tax compliance services related to a routine audit by
the US Internal Revenue Service

»Tax adwisory woerk on a numberof UK, US and
International tax matters

»Assurance services on acorporate bond 1ssued in
May 2015

»Consulting services related to the establishment of an
auditable efficacy framework

»Audit of IT general controls mandated by contractual
commitments

A full statement of the fees for audit and non-audit
services Is provided 1n note 4 to the accounts on
page 154

Fair, balanced and understandable reporting

As required by the Code, we have established
arrangements to ensure that all information we
reportto tnvestors and regulators s fai, balanced
and understandable Aprocess and timetable far the
production and approval of this year's reportwas
agreed by the board atits meeting in December 2015
The full board then had opportunityto review and
comment onthe report as it progressed

Representatives from financial reporting, corporate
affairs, company secretaria), legal and internal audit and
compliance are involved in the preparation and review
of the annual report to ensure a cohesive and balznced
approach and, as with all of our financial reporting, our
disclosure committee conducts athorough venfication
of narrative and financal statements

The audit committee Is also avallable to advise the board
on certain aspects of the report, to enable the directors
to fulfil thew responsibility in this regard

The directors consider that the annuai report and
accounts, taken as a whole, 1s farr, balanced and
understandabie and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the company’s position and
performance, business mode! and strategy

SSUISNQ NG

duewlopsd 1N

edwi enos o0

2IUBUIAOD)

Sjuswlalels enueuy




120  Pearson plcAnnual report and accounts 2015

Report of the Directors continued

The directors also confirm that, for each director in office
at the date of this report

»So far as the director 1s aware, there s no relevant
audit information of which the company's auditors
are unaware

> They have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as directors in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the company's auditors are aware of that information

Directors in office

The following directors were in office during the year and
up until signing of the financial statements

GRMoreno S) Lewis
(stepped down 31 December 2015} LK Lorimer
Falion
) H Manwani
RAD Freestone
(stepped down 1 August 2015) TScore
TDGArculus 5 Taurel
{stepped down 24 Aprik 2015) {appolnted 1 January 2016)
EPLCorley L Wallen
{appointed 1 January 2016)
VCox
C Wilhams
K] Hydon {appointed 1 August2015)

(stepped down 24 April 2015)

The directors’ report has been approved by the board on
4 March 2016 and signed onits behaif by

IMAGE REMOVED

Stephenjones
Company secretary

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual
report in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financal year Under thatlaw

the directors have prepared the Group and parent
company financial statements 10 accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union Under company law
the directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view ofthe state of affairs of the company and the Group
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period

in prepanng these financial statements, the directors
arerequiredto

»Select suttable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently

>Make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

>State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union have been followed, subjectto any
matenal departures disclosed and explained inthe
financial statements

> Prepare the financial statements on a going concern
basis, unless itis inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the finanaal position of
the company and the Group and enable them to ensure
that the finanaal statements and the report on directors’
remuneratton comply with the Act and, as regards

the Group financal statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation Theyare also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities

The directors are responstble for the maintenance and
wntegrity of the company'swebsite Legislation In the
UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legistation in
other jurisdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions
are hsted on p72-73 confirms that, to the best of
their knowledge

»>The Group finanaal statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets,
habiities, financial position and profitof the Group

»The strategic report contained in the annual report
includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the pasttion of the
Group, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertanties that it faces

Thus responsibility statement has been approved by
the board on 4 March 2016 and signed on its behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED

Coram Williams
Chieffinancal officer
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Additional shareholder information

Addittonal information for shareholders

Setout below s other statutory and regulatory
information that Pearson is required to disclose n
its directors’ report in compliance withDTR7 26

Amendment to articles of assoctation

Any amendments to the articles of association of the
company (the Articles) may be made in accordance with
the provisions of the Act by way of a special resolution

Rights attaching to shares

The nghts attaching to the ordinary shares are defined
Inthe Articles A shareholder whose name appears on
the company’s register of members can choose whether
his/her shares are evidenced by share certificates

{1 e incertificated form) or held electronically {1 e
uncertificated form)in CREST (the electrontc settlement
system in the UK)

Subject to any restnctions below, shareholders may
attend any general meeting of the company and,

on a show of hands, every shareholder {or his/her
representative) who Is present at a general meeting
has one vaote on each resolution, and on a poll, every
shareholder (whether an individual or a corporation)
presentn person or by proxy shall have cne vote

for every 25 pence of nominal share capital held
Aresolution put to the vote at a general meeting is
deaded on a show of hands unless before, ar an the
declaration of the result of, a vate on a show of hands,
apoll s demanded A poll can be demanded by

the chairman of the meeting, or by at least three
sharehoiders (or their representatives) presentin persomn
and having the right to vote, or by any shareholders

{or their representatives) present in person having at
least 10% of the total voting rights of all shareholders,
or by any shareholders (or their representatives)
present in person holding ordinary shares onwhich an
aggregate sum has been paid up of at feast 10% of the
total sum paid up on all ordinary shares Atthisyear’s
AGM voting will again be conducted on a poll, consistent
with best practice

Sharehoiders can declare a final dvidend by passing
anordinary resolution but the amount of the dividend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the board
The board can pay intenm daidends on any class of
shares of the amounts and on the dates and for the
periods they decide in ali cases the distributable profits
of the company must be sufficient to just:fy the payment
of the relevant dividend

The board may, If authorised by anordinary resolution of
the shareholders, offer any shareholder the nght to elect
to recerve new ordinary shares, which will be credited as
fully paid, instead of their cash dividend

Any dividend which has not been clamed for 12 years
after it became due for payment will be forfeited and

will then belong to the company, unless the directors

deade otherwise

If the company iswound up, the liquidator can, with
the sanction of a speaial resolution passed by the
shareholders, divide among the shareholders all or
any part of the assets of the company and he/she can
value assets and determine how the division shall be
carned out as between the shareholders or different
classes of shareholders The liguidator can also, with
the same sanction, transfer the whole or any part of
the assets to trustees upon such trusts for the benefit
ofthe shareholders

Voting at general meetings

Any form of proxy sent by the shareholders to the
company In relation to any general meeting must be
dehvered to the company {via its registrars), whether in
written or electronic form, not less than 48 hours before
the time apponted for holding the meettng or adjourned
meeting at which the person named in the appointment
proposes tovote

The board may decide that a shareholder I1s not entitled
to attend orvote either personally or by proxy ata
general meeting or to exercise any other nght conferred
by being a shareholder if he/she orany personwith an
interest i shares has been sent a notice under section
793 of the Act {which confers upon public companies the
power to require information with respect to interests in
their votzng shares) and he/she or any interested person
falled to supply the company with the information
requested within 14 days after delivery of that notice
The board may also decide, where the relevant
shareholding comprises at least 0 25% of the nominal
value of the issued shares of that class, that no dividend
Is payable in respect of those defaultshares and that no
transfer of any default shares shall be registered
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Additional shareholder information continued

Pearson operates an employee benefit trust to hold
shares, pending employees becoming entitled to them
under the company’s employee share plans There were
6,704,505 shares held as at 31 December 2015 The trust
has an independent trustee which has fuli discretionin
relation to the voting of such shares A divtdend waiver
operates on the shares held in the trust

Pearson also operates twe norminee shareholding
arrangements which hold shares on behalf of
employees There were 2,871,174 shares heldinthe
Sharestore account and 309,841 shares held inthe
Global Nominee account as at 31 December 2015

The beneficial owners of shares held in Sharestore

are invited to submit voting instructions online at
www shareview co uk and Global Nominee participants
are invited to submit voting instructions by e-mail te
nominee@equinit com If no instructions are given by
the beneficial owner by the date specified, the trustees
holding these shares will not exerclse the voting nghts

Transfer of shares

The board may refuse to register a transfer ofa
certificated share which is not fully paid, provided that
the refusal does not preventdealings in sharesin the
company from taking place on an open and proper basis
The board may also refuse to register a transferof a
certificated share uniess (1} the instrument of transfer is
lodged, duly stamped (if stampable), at the registered
office of the company or any cther place deaded by the
board, and 1s accompanied by the certificate for the
share towhich it relates and such other evidence as the
board may reasonably require to show the right of the
transferor to make the transfer, {n)1t1s in respect of onty
one class of shares, and (ihitis in favour of notmare
than four transferees

Transfers of uncertificated shares must be carried out
using CREST and the board can refuse to register a
transfer of an uncertificated share in accordance with
the regulations governing the operation of CREST

Variation of rights

If at any time the capital of the company is divided into
different classes of shares, the spectal rights attaching
to any class may be varied or revoked either

(i) with the written consent of the holders of at least 75%
in nominal value of the 1ssued shares of the relevant
classor

{n)with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a
separate general meeting of the holders of the shares
of the relevant dass

Without prejudice to any speaial nights previously
conferred onthe holders of any existing shares or class
of shares, anyshare may be 1ssued with such preferred,
deferred, or other spedial rights, or such restrictions,
whether in regard ta dividend, voting, return of capital
or otherwise as the company may from time to time by
ordinary resolution determine

Appaintment and replacement of directors

The Articles contain the following provisionsinrelation
to dwectors

Directors shall be no iess than two nnumber

Directors may be appointed by the company by ordinary
resolution ar by the board Adirector appomnted bythe
hoard shall hold office only untd the next AGM and shall
then be eligible for reappointment, but shall notbe taken
into accountin determining the directors or the number
of directors who are to retire by rotation at that meeting
The board may from time to time appoint one or more
directors to hold executive office with the company for
such period (subject to the provisions of the Act}and
upon such terms as the board may declde and may
revoke or terminate any appointment so made
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The Articles provide that, at every AGM of the company,
at least one-third of the directors shall retire by rotation
{or, if their number s not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to one-third) The first directors to retire by
rotation shall be those who wish to retire and not offer
themselves for re-election Any further directors so

to retire shall be those of the other directors subject to
retirement by rotation who have been longest in office
since they were last re-elected but, as between persons
who became orwere last re-elected on the same day,
those to retire shall (unless they atherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot Inadditron, any
director who would not otherwise be required to retire
shali retire by rotation at the third AGM after they were
last re-elected

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Articles, the board
has resclved that all directors should offer themselves
for re-election annually, in accordance with the Code

The company may by ordinary resolution remove any
director before the expiration of hisfher term of office
In addition, the board may terminate an agreement or
arrangement with any director for the provision of bis/
her services to the company

Powers of the directors

Subjectto the company's Articles, the Act and any
directions given by spectal resolution, the business of
the company will be managed by the board who may
exercise al the powers of the company, including
powers relating to the 1ssue and/or buying back of
shares by the company {subject to any statutory
restrictions or restrictions imposed by sharehoiders
in general meeting)

Sigruficant agreements

The following significant agreements contain provisions
entitling the counterparties to exerase termination

or other rights in the event of a change of control of

the company

Under the $1,750,000,000 revolving credit faciity
agreement dated August 2014 which matures in August
2020 between, amongst others, the company, Barclays
Bank plc (Agent) and the banks and financial institutions
named therein as lenders (the Faciity), any such bank
may, upon a change of control of the company, require
its outstanding advances, together with accrued interest
and any other amounts payable Inrespectof such
Faality, and its commitments, to be cancelled, each
within 60 days of notification to the banks by the Agent
For these purposes, a ‘change of control’ occurs if the
company becomes a substdiary of any other company
or one or more persons acting elther indinidually orin
concert, obtains control {as definedin section 1124 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010) of the company

Shares acquired through the company's employee share
plans rank pari passu with sharesinissue and have no
specialnghts For legal and practical reasons, the rules
of these ptans set out the consequences of a change of
control of the company
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Additional disclosures

Report of the directors

Pages 70 to 123 of this document compnise the directors’

report for the year ended 31 December 2015

Other information thatis required by the Compantes
Act 2006 (the Act) to be included in the directors' report,
and which 1s incorporated by reference, can belocated
as follows

Summary disclosures index See more
Dwidend recommendation p1
Financial instruments and

financial risk management note 19
Important events since year end p37
Future devefopment of the business p06-07
Research and developmentactivities p53
Employment of disabled persons p62
Employee involvement p59
Greenhouse gas emissions p64

With the exception of the dividend waiver described
on page 122, there 15 no information to be disclosed
in accordancewith Listing Rule 9 8 4

Going concern

The directors have made an assessment of the
company's ability to continue as a going concern and
consider it appropnate to adopt the going concern
bas:s of accounting

Viability statement

As setout on page 40 the board has also reviewed the
prospects of Pearson over the three year period to
December 2018 taking account of the company’s
strategic plans, a‘severe but plausibte’ downside case
and further stress testing based on the prinapal risks
set cut on pages 41-45

Based on the results of these procedures, and
considering the company’s strong balance sheet
following the sale of the FT group, the directors have

a reasonable expectation that Pearson will be able to
continue i operation and meet its habilities as they falt
due over the three year period ending December 2018
This assumes a reasonable level of ongoing access to
capital either via issuing commercial paper or drawing
on our revolving credit facllity (see note 18 on p178)

Share capital

Details of share issues are given in note 27 to the
accounts on page 200 The company has a single class
of shares whichis dvided into ordinary shares of 25p
each The ordinaryshares are in registered form Asat
31 December 2015, 821,068,560 ordinary shares were
missue Atthe AGM heid on 24 April 2015, the company
was authonsed, subject to certain conditions, to acquire
up to 82,027,776 ordinary shares by market purchase
Shareholders will be asked to renew this authorrty at
the AGM on 29 April 2016

information provided to the company pursuantto

the Financial Conduct Authonty’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules {DTR) 1s published on a Regulatory
Information Service and on the company’s website

As at 31 December 2015, the company had been notified
under DTR 5 of the following holders of significant voting
rights inits shares

Number  Percentage

ofvoting asatdateof

nghts  notification

BlackRock, Inc 42,201,515 513%

Schroders plc 42,151,560 513%

Between 31 December 2015 and 2 March 2016, being
the latest practicable date before the publication of
this report, the company did not receve any further
notifications under DTR S

Annual General Meeting

The notice converung the AGM, to be held at 12 noon
on Friday, 29 April 2016 at [ET London, 2 Savoy Place,
lL.ondon WC2R0BL, is contained i a circular to
shareholders to be dated 23 March 2016

Registered audiors

In accordance with section 489 of the Act, a
resalution proposing the reappointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC} as auditors to
the company willbe proposed at the AGM, at a level
of remunerationto be agreed by the directors
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Auditors’ independence

In hine with best practice, our relationship with PwC

15 governed by our external auditors policy, whichis
reviewed and approved annually by the audit commuttee
The policy establishes procedures to ensure the auditors’
independence Is not comprorsed, as welt as defining
those non-audit services that PwC may or may not
provide to Pearson

These allowable services are In accordance with relevant
UK and US legislation The audit commuttee approves

all audit and non-audit services provided by PwC
Certain categores of allowabte non-audit services have
been pre-approved by the audit committee subjectto
the authortties below

}Pre-approved non-audit services can be authorised by
the chief financial officer up to £100,000 per project,
subject to a cumulative imit of £500,000 per annum

»Acquisition or disposal transactions and due diligence
up to £100,000 per project may be performed by our
external auditors, iniight of the need for confidentiahty
Any projectftransaction generating fees in excess
of £100,000 must be specifically approved by the
audit committee

»Tax comphance and refated activities up to the greater of
£1,000,000 per annum or 50% of the external audit fee

3 For forward-looking tax advisory services we use the
maost appropriate adviser, usually after a tender process
Where we decide to use our independent auditors,
authornity, up to £100,000 per project subjecttoa
cumulative brmit of £500,000 per annum, has been
delegated by the audit committee to management

Services provided by PwC above these imits and ali
other aflowable non-audit services, irrespective of vaiue,
must be approved by the audit committee Where
appropriate, services will be tendered prior to a decision
being made as to whether to award work to the auditors

The audit committee receves regular reports
summarising the amount of fees paid to the auditors
During 2015, Pearsen spent considerably more on
non-audit fees with PwC compared to 2014, dueto costs
relating to carve-out audits for businesses disposed

For 2015, non-audit fees represented 56% of external
audit fees (37%n 2014)

For all non-audit work 1n 2015, PwC were selected only
after consideration that they were best able to provide
the services we required at a reasonabie fee and
within the terms of our external auditors policy

To assist in ensuring thatindependence and objectivity
1s maintained, for forward-lookmg tax advisory and due
diligence work PwC assign a different partner from the
one leading the external audit

Significant non-audit work performed by PwC during
2015 included

> Audit-related work in refation to potential and actual
corperate finance transactions

> Tax comphiance services related to a routine audit by
the US Internal Revenue Service

» Tax advisory work on a number of UK, US and
internatronal tax matters

? Assurance services on a corporate band 1ssued in
May 2015

> Consulting services related to the establishment of an
auditable efficacy framework

) Audit of IT general controis mandated by cantractual
commitments

Afull statement of the fees for auditand non-audit
services is provided 1n note 4 to the accounts on
page 154

Farr, balanced and understandable reporting

As required by the Code, we have established
arrangements to ensure that all information we
report to investors and regulators s fai, balanced
and understandable A process and timetable for the
production and approval of this year's report was
agreed by the board at its meeting in December 2015
The full board then had opportunity to review and
comment on the report as it progressed

Representatives from financial reporting, corporate
affairs, company secretanal, legal and internal audit and
compliance are involved inthe preparation and review
of the annual report to ensure a cohesive and balanced
approach and, as with all of our financia! reporting, our
disclosure committee conducts athorough verification
of narrative and financial staternents

The audit committee s also available to advise the board
on certain aspects of the report, to enable the directors
to fulfil their responsibility in this regard

The directors consider that the annual reportand
accounts, taken as a whole, 1s fas, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the company’s position and
performance, business model and strategy
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Report of the Directors continued

The directors also confirm that, for each directorin office
at the date of this report

»So far as the director 1S aware, there 1S no relevant
audit information of which the company’s auditors
are unaware

> They have taken all the steps that they oughtto have
taken as directors mnorder to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the company's audstors are aware of that information

Directorsin office

The following directors were in office during the year and
up untll signing of the finanaal statements

G R Moreno S)Lewis
{stepped down 31 December 2015} LK Lorlmer
Fali
)} Falion H Manwani
RAD Freestone
{stepped down 1 August 2015} TScore
TD G Arculus S Taurel
{stepped down 24 Aprii 2015) {appainted 1 January 2016}
EPL Corley L Wallen
(appointed 1 January2016)
vV Cax
cwithams
K] Hydon (appointed 1 August 2015)

(stepped down 24 April 2015}

The directors’ report has been approved by the board on
4 March 2016 and signed on its behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED

S -

Statement of directors’ resporgsibihitie

Stephen Jones
Company secretary

The directors are responsible foWg the annual
reportin accordance with apphicab and regulations

Company law requies the directors ta prepare financal
statements for each financal year Under thatlaw

the directors have prepared the Group and parent
company financial statementsin accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union Under company law
the directors must not approve the financial statererits
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and the Group
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period

in preparing these financial statements, the directors
are required to

»Select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently

> Make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

» State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the
European Urion have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explaned inthe
financial statements

> Prepare the financial statements on a going concern
basis, unless its nappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explan the company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any e the financial position of
the company and the Group and enable them to ensure
thatthe financial staternents and the report on directors’
remuneration comply with the Act and, as regards

the Group financal statements, Artide 4 of the 1AS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and the Group and hence for
taking reasanable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the matntenance and
integrity of the company’s website Legislattonin the
UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ fromlegislattorin
other jurisdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions
are histed on p72-73 confirms that, to the best of
theirknowledge

»The Group financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, give a true and fairview of the assets,
habilities, financial posttion and profit of the Group

»The strategic report contained in the annual report
includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the
Group, together with a description of the principat
nisks and uncertamtes thatit faces

This responsibrity statement has been approved by
the board on 4 March 2016 and signed on its behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED

Coram Williams
Chief finanoat officer
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Additional shareholder information

Additicnal information for shareholders

Setout below 1s other statutory and regulatory
information that Pearson s required to disclose in
its directors’ report in compliance with DTR7 26

Amendment to articles of association

Any amendments to the articles of association of the
company{the Articles) may be made in accordance with
the provisions of the Act by way of a specal resolution

Rights attaching to shares

The rights attaching to the ordinary shares are defined
inthe Articles A sharehclderwhose name appearson
the company’s register of members can choose whether
histher shares are evidenced by share certificates

{i e In certificated form} or held electronically {1e
uncertficated form} in CREST (the electronic settlement
system in the UK)

Subject to any restrictrons below, sharehclders may
attend any general meeting of the company and,

on ashow of hands, every shareholder (or tus/her
representative) who 1s present at a general meeting
has one vote on each resolution, and on a poll, every
shareholder {whether an individual or a corporation)
present in person or by proxy shall have one vate

for every 25 pence of nominal share capital held
Aresolution put to the vote at a general meeting 1s
decided on a show of hands unless before, or on the
declaratton of the result of, a vote on a show of hands,
apoltis demanded A poll can be demanded by

the chairman of the meeting, or by at least three
shareholders (or their representatives) present i person
and having the night to vote, or by any shareholders

{or their representatives) present in person having at
least 10% of the total voting nights of all shareholders,
or by any shareholders {or their representatives)
presentin person holding ordinary shares on which an
aggregate sum has been paid up of at least 10% of the
total sum patd up on all ordinary shares Atthisyear's
AGM voting will again be conducted onaa poll, consistent
with best practice

Shareholders can declare a final dividend by passing

an ordinary resolution but the amount of the dvidend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the board
The board can pay intenm dividends on any class of
shares of the amounts and onthe dates and for the
periods they decide In all cases the distributable profits
of the company must be sufficient to justify the payment
of the relevant dividend

The board may, If authorised by anordinary resolution of
the shareholders, offer any shareholder the nght to elect
ta receive new ardmary shares, whichwili be credited as
fully paid, instead of ther cash dwidend

Any drvidend which has not been claimed for 12 years
after it became due for paymentwill be forfeited and
will then belong to the company, unless the directors
decide otherwise

If the company 1s wound up, the liguidator can, with
the sanction of a special resolution passed by the
shareholders, divide among the shareholders allor
any part of the assets of the company and he/she can
value assets and determine how the division shall be
carrled out as between the shareholders or different
classes of shareholders The liquidator can also, with
the same sanction, transfer the whole or any part of
the assets to trustees upan such trusts for the benefit
of the sharehalders

Voting at general meetings

Any form of proxy sent by the shareholdersto the
company in relation to any general meeting must be
delivered to the company {(wa its registrars), whether in
written or electromic form, not less than 48 hours before
the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the person named in the appointment
proposes to vote

The board may decide that a shargholder 1s notentitled
to attend or vote either personally or by proxy ata
general meeting or to exercise any other right conferred
by being a shareholder if he/she or any personwith an
iterest in shares has been sent anotice under section
793 of the Act (which confers upon public companies the
power to require iInformation with respect to interests in
thewr voting shares) and he/she or any interested person
failed to supply the company with the nformation
requested within 14 days after delivery of that notice
The board may also decide, where therelevant
shareholding compnises at least § 25% of the nominat
value of the issued shares of that class, that no dividend
is payable in respect of those default shares and that no
transfer of any default shares shall beregistered
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Additional shareholder information contirmued

Pearson operates an employee benefit trust to hold
shares, pending employees becoming entitled to them
under the company's employee share plans There were
6,704,505 shares held as at 3t December 2015 The trust
has an independent trustee which has full discretion in
relation to the voting of such shares A dividend waiver
operates on the shares held in the trust

Pearson also operates two nominee shareholding
arrangements which hold shares on behalf of
employees There were 2,871,174 shares heldin the
Sharestore account and 309,841 shares held inthe
Global Nominee account as at 31 December 2015

The beneficial owners of shares held in Sharestore

are invited to submit veting instructions online at
www shareview co uk and Global Nominee participants
are mvited to submit voting instructions by e-mait to
nominee@equiniti com If no mstructions are given by
the benefictal owner by the date speafied, the trustees
holding these shares will not exercise the voting rights

Transfer of shares

The board may refuse to register atransferofa
certificated share which 1s not fully paid, prownded that
the refusal does not prevent dealings in shares in the
company fromtaking place onan open and proper basis
The board may also refuse to register a transfer of a
certificated share unless (1) the instrument of transfer 1s
lodged, duly stam ped (if stampable), at the registerad
office of the company or any other place deaded by the
board, and 1s accompanied by the certificate for the
share to which it relates and such other evidence as the
board may reasonably require to show the nght of the
transferor ta make the transfer, (1) tt1s in respect of only
one class of shares, and () it1s in favour of not mare
than fourtransferees

Transfers of uncertificated shares must be carned out
usmg CREST and the board can refuse to regster a
transfer of an uncertificated share in accordance with
the regulations governing the operation of CREST

Variation of rights

If at any ime the capital of the company 1s divided into
different classes of shares, the special nghts attaching
to any class may be varied or revoked either

() with the written consent of the holders of atleast 75%
in nominal value of the 1ssued shares of the relevant
classor

{nwith the sanction of a special resofution passed at a
separate general meeting of the holders of the shares
of the relevant class

Without prejudice to any special rights previously
conferred onthe holders of any existing shares or class
of shares, any share may be issued with such preferred,
deferred, or other special rights, or such restrictions,
whether in regard to dwidend, voting, return of capital
or otherwise as the company may from time to time by
ordinary resolution determine

Appointment and replacement of directors

The Articles contain the following provisions in relation
to directors

Directors shali be no less than two m number

Directors may be appointed by the company by ordinary
resolution or by the board A director appointed by the
board shall hold office only until the next AGM and shall
then be eligible for reappomtment, but shall not be taken
into account in determining the directors or the number
of directors who are te retire by rotation at that meeting
The board may from time to time appoint one or more
directors to hold executive office with the company for
such period {subject to the provisions of the Act) and
upon such terms as the board may decide and may
revoke or terminate any appointment 5o made
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The Articles provide that, at every AGM of the company,
at least one-third of the directors shali retire by rotation
{or, if their nurnber s not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to one-third) The first directors to retire by
rotation shall be those who wish to retire and not offer
themselves for re-election Any further directors so

to retire shalt be those of the other directors subject to
retirement by rotation who have been longest in office
since they were last re-elected but, as between persons
who became or were last re-elected on the same day,
those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. In addition, any
director who would not otherwise be required to retire
shall retire by rotation at the third AGM after they were
last re-elected

Notwithstanding the provistons of the Articles, the board
has resolved that all directors should offer themselves
for re-election annually, in accordance with the Code

The company may by ordinary resolution remove any
director before the expiration of his/her term of office
Inaddition, the board mayterminate an agreement or
arrangement with any director for the provision of his/
her services to the company

Powers of the directors

Subject to the company’s Articles, the Act and any
directions given by special resalutian, the business of
the company will be managed by the board who may
exercise all the powers of the company, iIncluding
powers relating to the 1ssue and/or buying back of
shares by the company (subject to any statutory
restricions or restrictions imposed by shareholders
ingeneral meeting)

Significant agreements

The following significant agreements contain provisions
entithing the counterparties to exercse termination

or other rights in the event of a change of control of

the company

Under the $1,750,000,000 revolving credit facility
agreement dated August 2014 which matures in August
2020 between, amongst others, the company, Barclays
Bank plc (Agent) and the banks and financial institutions
named therein as lenders (the Faclty), any such bank
may, upon a change of control of the company, reguire
its outstanding advances, together with accrued interest
and any other amounts payable in respect of such
Facility, and 1its commitments, 1o becancelled, each
within 60 days of notification to the banks by the Agent
For these purposes, a ‘change of control’ occurs if the
company becomes a subsidiary of any other company
or one or mare persons acting either individually or in
concert, obtains control (as definedin section 1124 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010) of the company

Shares acquired through the company’s employee share
plans rank part passu with sharesinissue and have no
special nghts For legal and practical reasons, the rules
ofthese plans setout the consequences of achange of
cantrol of the company
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Independent auditors’ report to the members

of Pearson plc

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion

»>Pearson pic's consolidated financtal statements and
company financial statements (the ‘financial
staternents’) give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and of the company's affairs as at 31 December
2015 and of the Group's profit and the Group's and the
company’s cash flows for the year then ended,

»The consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared (n accordance with internatlonal
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Unlon,

»The company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied In accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

»The financial statements have been preparedin
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the consoldated financial
statements, Article 4 of the |AS Regulation

Separate opinion mn relation to IFRSs as 1ssued by
the IASB

As explained in note 1 to the financial statements, the
Group, in addition to applying IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, has also applied IFRSs as 1ssued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

Our audit approach Overview

In our opinion, the consokdated financial statements
comply with IFRSs as 1ssued by the IASB

what we have audited
The financial statements, included within the annual
report and accounts {the ‘annual report’), comprise

>The consolidated and company balance sheets asat
31 December 2015,

»The consolidated income statement and consoltdated
statement of comprehensive incomne for the year then
ended,

>The consolidated and company cash flow statements
and statements of changes in equity for the year then
ended, and

>The notes to the financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

Certain required disciosuras have been presented
elsewhere in the annual report, rather thanin the
notes to the financial statements These are cross-
refarenced from the financial statements and are
identified as audited

The financtat reporting framework that has been
applied in the preparation of the financial statements
1s apphicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Unlon and, as regards the company
financial statements, as applied in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

IMAGE REMOVED

sOverall Group materiality £27m, which represents 4% of
adjusted profit before tax as disdosed in note 8 to the financial
statements Referto page 130 for further details

»We conducted work in five key territones US, UK, Brazil, China
and South Africa In addition we obtained an audit opinion on
the financial Information reported by the associate Penguin
Random House {PRH)

>The ternitortes where we conducted audit procedures,
together with work performed at corporate functions, shared
service centres and consolidated Group level, accounted for
approximately 68% of the Group's revenue, 104% of the
Group’s loss profit before tax, and 76% of the Group’s adjusted
profit before tax

> We focused on
— Revenue recognition including nsk of fraud
— Carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets
— Major transactions
— Provislon for uncertain tax liabthties
— Returns provisions
— Recoverabihtyof pre-publication assets
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The scope of our audit and our areas of focus

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Internattonal Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland)
{I1SAs (UK & lreland))

We designed our audit by deterrmining materiaiity and
assessing the risks of material misstatementin the
consolidated and company financial statements In
parucular, we looked at where management made
subjective judgements, for example inrespect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future events that are
inherently uncertain Asinall of our audits we also
addressed the risk of management override of Internal
controls, Including evaluating whether there was
evidence of blas by management that represented
anisk of material misstatement due to fraud

Areaoffocus

The risks of matenal misstatement that had the
greatest effect on aur audit, including the allocation

of our resources and effort, are identified as areas

of focus in the table below We have also set out how
we talored our audit to address these specific areas
inorder to provide an opinion on the consolidated

and company financial statements as a whole Any
comments we make on the results of our procedures
should be readin this context Foreach area of focus
below, to the extent relevant, we evaluated the design
and tested the operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over financial reporting set in place by
management, including testing the operation of T
systems from which financialinformation s generated
Each of the areas of focus below are also referred to in
the audit committee report on pages 86 and 87 and in
the accounting policies on pages 140and 147 Thisis not
a complete st of all risks identified by our audit

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Revenue recognition including risk of fraud

Refer to note 1 to the consolldated financla) statements

There are two types of complex contracts that require significant

judgements and estirates, which could be subject to elther

accidental errors or deilberate fraud

» Multiple element arrangements, such as #he sale of physical
textbooks accornpanied by digital content or supplementary
workbooks, where revenue s recognised for each element as
1f it were an indnadual contractual arrangement requinng the
estimation of its relative falr value, and

» Certain long-term cantracts that span year end, where revenus
is recogrised using estimated percentage of completion based
on costs These include contracts to design, develop and dellver
testing and accreditation and contracts to secure students and
support the online dellvery of their teaching

These complex contracts generate matenal deferred revenue and

accrued income balances and are areas where misstatements in

the undertying assumptions or estimation calculations could have

amatenal effect on the flnanclal statements

tn addition there are material shipments towards the period end

from major distributian locattons giving rise to the potential risk of

acut-off error

Where books are sold together with workbooks delvered later or
companion digital matertals avalable online we assessed the basis
for allocation of the purchase price betweeneach element and then
tested the detailed calculations supporting these revenue deferrals
We found the revenue deferrals to be based onreasonable estimates
of the refative fair value of each element and the methodsused to
calculate the deferrals properly calculated and consistently applled
For a selection of the larger, more judgemental and more recent
long term contracts, covering both testing actvitres and onfine
dellvery of teaching, we read the contracts and assessed the
accounting methodologies being applhedto cakulate the proportion
of revenue being recognised We also tested costs incurred to date
and management's estimates of forecast costs and revenues by
reference to histoncal experience and current contract stalus,
Induding examining correspondence where contracts are
experiendng disputes.

Our testing showed that revenue recognitlon practices are in
accordance with Group policies and related accounting standards
with appropriate methods for calculating the revenue recognised
See ourwork performed over the returns provisions which indudes
our work over the risk of cut-off

$S3UISNG N0

asuewopad INg |

redwienos ing

SIRUIIAOG

SJuallalels |eInueU




128  Pearson plc Annualreport and accounts 2015

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson ple continued

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Carrying values of goodwill and intangible assets

Refer to note 11 to the conselidated financial statements

The Group has £4,134m of gaodwill and £1 030m of other Intangible
assets including software, acquired custorner lists, contracts and
relationshlps, acquired trademarks and brands and acquired
publishing rights at 31 December 2015

puring the year, the Group recognised an £826m goodwill
Impalrment charge across six aggregated cash generating units
{CGUs) North America {£282m), Brazil (£269m), China (£181mm), South
Africa{E48m), Other Growth (E2m), and Core (£37m) Inaddition,
performance In specific businesses also resutted in a £23m
Intangibles Impairment charge The total Impalrment charge from
these ltems is £849m

The carrylng values of goodwill and Intangible assets are dependent
on future cash flows of the underlylng CGUs and thereisrisk that

it these cash flows do not meet management's expectations the
assets wlil be impaired Thisrlskincreases in perlods whenthe
Group's trading performance and projecilons do not meet prior
expectations, suchasin 2018

The Impairment reviews perfermed by management contain a
number of significant judgements and estimates including CGU
identification, operating profit forecasts, cash conversion, perpetuity
growth rates and discountrates Changes in these assumptions

can resultin materally differentimpairment charges or available
headroom

We obtained management's goodwill impairment modet 2nd tested
and agreed the reasonableness of key assumptlons Including CGU
\dentification, operating profit forecasts, perpetuity growth rates
and discount rates We tasted the mathematicat integrity of the
forecasts and carrying values in management's impalrment

model and tonfirmed that management's estimate of each CGU's
recoverahle amauntis appropriately based on the higher of fair
value less cost of disposal and value-in use

We agreed the farecast cash flows to board-approved budgets

and market communications assessed how these budgets are
complled and understood key Judgemnents and estimates within
them, incfuding short term growth rates, tost allocations and the
Inctusion of restructuring costs and benefits in a fair value less cost
of disposal model

We compared shortand long term growth rates, including cash
conversation, to historical trends and expectations We also
considered the accuracy of prior period forecasts

We used valuations speciallsts to assess the perpetuity growth

rate and discountrate for each CGU by comparisonto third party
information, past performance, the Group's cost of capital and
relevant sk factors

we performed our ewn sensitivity analyses to understand the
jmpact of reasonablte changes In the key assumptions We agree with
management’s decision tc provide additional disclosures Innote 11
of the financial statements given that reasonably possible changes
inthe assumptlons could materiatly impact the impairment charges
ar avallable headroom

We checked for addltional Impalrment triggers by reading board
minutes holding regular discussions wath Group and locat
management and examining the performance of recently acquired
businesses to Identify underperforming operations We did not
identfy any furtherimpalrments

As aresult of ourwork, we determined that the impatrment charge
recognised m 2015 was reasonaply calculated and recorded at
matenally appropriate exchange rates For those CGUs where
management determined that no impalrment charge was required
and that no additonal sensitwvity disclosures shoufd be given, we
consider these judgements to be weli supported by reasonable
assumstions thatwould require significant downside changes
before an impairment charge was necessary

Major transactions

fiefer to note 31 to the consolidated financial statements

Infuty 2015 Pearsen completed the sate of PowerSchool to Vista
Equity Partners for cash consideration of £222m, resulting in a net
pre-tax Impact of £30mwithin continuing cperations (after related
write downs of £70m)

InOctober 2015 Pearson completad the first tranche of the sale

of its 50% stake in The Econormist Groupto Exar $ p A and to

The Economist Group tself for cash consideration of £377m and
remeasurement of the retamed 119% investment of £32m, resuiting
Ina pre tax gain on disposal of £473m presented in discontinued
operations The Group's remaining 11% mvestment does not
constitute significant influence so s being held as an available for
sale investment at fair value untit the second tranche completes

in November 2015 Pearson completed the sale of the Financlal Times
Group (FT) to Nfkkel tie for cash consideratfon of £858m resukting
na pre-tax gan on disposal of £711m presented in discontinued
operations

These amounts are highly matenal and snclirde judgements in areas
such as the write downs related to PowerSchool and the retained
investment in The Economist Group

We obtained the sales documents and refated contracts and agreed
the elements of the gain calculations to them

We agreed the cash consideration to bank statements any retalned
Investrment or assets 10 the contracts and verified the underlying
carrying value before disposal to financial records We agreed the
remeasurement ofthe retained investment of the Economist to
fairvalue implied by the contract We reperformed the calculations
for mathematical accuracy, consldered the appropriateness of

the disposal costs and related write downs and vouched them

to supporung evidence We assessed the presentation of each
disposed husiness (as continuing or discontinued) by reference to
118 s1ze and nature We also considered the related tax judgements
and recoverability of linked pre publication assets

No materlal misstatements were |[dentified by our testing We were
satisfied that the presentation of each gain, and the related write
downs, was supportable and we found that appropriate disclosures
were Included in the annual report
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Area offocus

How our audht addressed the area of focus

Provision for uncertain tax liabilitles

Refer to nates 7 and 13 to the consohdated flnancial statements
The Group Is subject to several tax regimes due to the geographlcal
diversity of lts businesses

Management |s required to exeroise significant jJudgement in
determining the appropriate amount to provide in respect of
potentlaltax exposures and uncertaln tax provisions The mest
significant of these relate to U tax

Changes in assumptions about the views that might be taken by tax
authorities can materlally impact the level of provislons recorded
Inthe financiat statements and there are significant Judgements In
estimating the amount of any provision required

We engaged with our taxexperts and obtained an understanding of
the Group's tax strategy to identify tax risks relatng to business and
leglslative develfopments To assess the adequacy of the Group‘s tax
provisions we first recalculated the valuation of tax provisiens and
determined whether the treatments adepted were in line with the
Group's 1ax policles and had been applled conslstently

We then evaluated the key underlying assumptlons particularly In
the US and Interritories with new cross-border tax structures In
dong this we considered the status of recent and current tax
autherlty audits and enquirles the outturnofpreviousclalms,
judgemental positions taken in tax returns and current year
estimates incduding these arising from significant disposals, and
developments In the tax enwvlronment We also evaluated the
consistency of managernent‘sapproach to establishing or changing
pravislon estimates.

We were satisfled that management s provision estirates for
uncertan tax posiions were consistent with our own assessment
of the related risks and correspondence with the relevant tax
authorlties

Returns provisions

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements

There are material, judgemental provisions for anticipated book
returns on the balance sheet as at 31 Becember 2015, particularly in
US Higher Educatlon

As the Group transltions from print to digltal the returns profile wilt
change with 2 correspending impact enreturns provisions

We performed testing cver returns provisions in a number of
locations, Including US Higher Educatlon

We tested the cafculation of the provisions, assessing Judgements
for reasonableness agalnst historical experlence and the Impact

on returns of the ongoing business transiton from print to digltal
We also performed detalled testing of shipment and returns
provistoning This induded checking cut-off atyear end and
evaluating whether any changes In shippingvolumes around year
end mightincrease the risk of returns No misstatements were
identifled

We evaluated changes in estimates to checkthey were not indicators
of management blas We found the estimates used by management
i the determination of the returns provisions to appropriately
reflect beth past expenience and changesinthe business

Recoverability of pre-publication assets

Refer to note 20 to the tonsolldated financial staternents

The Group has £841m of pre publication assets at 31 December
2015 Pre publication assets represent direct costs incurred Inthe
develapment of education platforms, programmes and titles prior to
their public release

The PowerSchool disposal caused management to assess the
carrying value of a serles of pre publication and platform
nvestments and consequently record a write down of £20m
Judgementls required to assess the recoverability of the carrying
value of these assets, this is further complicated by the transition to
dipital as the Groupinvests in new less proven interlinked digital
content and platforms

We first assessed the appropriateness of caplialisation policies and
then selected a sample of costs deferred to the balance sheetas

pre publication assets to test their magniiude and appropriateness
for capitalisation

We then assessed the amortisation profiles of pre-pubilication
assets agalnst cash flows to test that the existing amorusation
profiles remamned appropnate In light of the transition towards
digital products

We challenged the carrying value of certaln pre publication assets
where products are yet toc be taunched, are less proven, orwhere
sales are lower than originaily anticlpated We assessed forecast
cash flows againsthistorical experlence and abtalned supporting
evidente for management's explanations We compared short and
long-term growth rates to historical trends and expectations

We challenged the life of the assets compared to simitar Pearson
products and found the Group s pollcles to be appropriate and
consistently applied While the carrying value of some assets
depends on considerahle future sales growth overall we considered
the year end carrying vafues to be reasonable
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc continued

How we tailored our audit scope

We tallored our audit scope to ensure that we
performed enough work to be able to give anoptnion
on the financial statements as awhole, taking into
account the geographic structure of the Group, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry
in which the Group operates

The Group is organised into three reportable segments,
beng North America, Core and Growth, plusthe
associate Investment in associate Penguin Random
House Each segment comprises a number of
reporting units The cansolidated financial statements
comprise these reparting units plus the Group's
centralised functions

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit,
we determined the type of work that needed to be
performed at the reparting units by us, as the Graup
engagement team, or component audstors within PwC
UK and from other PwC network firms operating under
ourinstruction Where the work was petformed by
component auditors, we determined the level of
involvement we needed to have Inthe auditwork at
those reporting units to be able to conclude whether
sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been
chtained as a basis for cur opinton on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole

During the year members of the Group engagement
team visited each of the US, Braziian, Chinese and
South African component audit teams, held a planning
meeting attended by partners from the Group
engagement team and our UK and US component
teams, and had regular ditalogue with component
teams throughout the year

We identified two reporting units in the US and UK
that required an audit of their complete financial
information due to therr financial sigrificance, pfus a
further 13 reporting units inthe US, UK, Brazil, China
and South Africa that required either an audit or
specified procedures on certain transactions and
balances We also obtained an audit optnion from PwC
Germany on the financial information of the assoclate
Penguin Random House The Group cansolidation,

Rinancal statement disclosures and corporate functions

were audited by the Group engagement team This

included our work over derwative financal instruments,

hedge accounting, goodwilt and intangible assets
impairment reviews, hitrigation, pensions andshare-
based payments

The reporting units where we performed audit work,
together withwork performed at corporate functions,
shared service centres and consolidated Group level,
accounted for approximately 68% of the Group’s
revenue, 104% of the Group's loss before tax and 76%
of the Group's adjusted profit before tax This provided
the evidence we needed for our opinion on the
consohdated financial statements taken as awhole

Materiality The scope of our audit was influenced by our
applhcation of materiality We set certamn quantitative
thresholds for materiality These, together with
qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the
scope of our audit and the nature, tming and extent

of our audit procedures on the indvigual financial
statement lineitems and disclosures and in evaluating
the effect of misstatements, both indwidually and on
the financial statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined
matertality for the financial statements as a whole
as follows

OveraltGroup £27m (2014 26m)
matertality

Howwe 4% of adjusted profit before tax of E677m

determined 1t

Note 8 of the financlal statements explains
thatthe Group's principal measure of
performance Is adjusted operating profit
{£723m), which excludes one-off gains

and losses and acquired intangible asset
amortisation, in arder to present results from
operating actvities on a consistent basis
From adjusted operating profit we deducted
net finance costs of £46m (see note 8)
because these manly reflect recurring
finance charges To the resulting adjusted
profit before tax we then applied 4%

{rather than the usual 5%) as our materiality
calculation was based on an adjusted
measure

Rationale for
benchmark
apphed

Foreach component in our audit scope, we
allocated a materiafity that Is less than our
overall Group materiallty The range of
materlality allocated across components was
between £3mand £24m

Component
materiality
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We agreed with the audit commuttee that we would
repaort to them misstatements idenufied during our
audit above £2m {2014 £2m) as well as misstatements
befow that amount that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons

Going concern Under the Listing Rules we are required
to review the directors’ statement, set out cn page 118,
in relation to going concern We have nothing to report
having performed our review

Under1SAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report

to you If we have anything matenial to add or to draw
attention toin relation to the directors' statement
ahout whether they considered it appropriate to adopt
the going concern basts in preparing the financial
statements We have nothing material to add or to
draw attention to

Other required reporting

As noted 1n the directors’ statement, the directors have
concluded that it s appropnate to adopt the going
cancern basis in preparing the finanoal statements
The going concern basis presumesthat the Group
and company have adequate resources ta remain in
operation, and that the directorsintend them to do
so, for at least one year from the date the financiat
statements were signed As partof our auditwe have
concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern
basis is approprate However, because not all future
events or conditions can be predicted, these
statements are not a guarantee asto the Group's and
company's ability to continue as a going concern

Consistency of other information
Companies Act 2006 opinions

Inour opinton

s The infarmation given 1n the strategic report and the report of the directors for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financia! statements, and

3>The information given in the Governance Report set out on pages 69 to 93 with respect to internal control and
risk management systems and about share capital structures is cansistent with the financial statements

iSAs (UK & Ireland) reporting

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to youf, in our opinton

»Information in the annual reportis

- materially mconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements,

We have no
exceptions to report

— apparently materially Incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, our knowledge
of the Group and company acquired In the course of performing our audit, or

- gtherwise musleading

»The explanation given by the directors on page 119, in accordance with provision C11
of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code'), as to why the annual report does not

We have no
exceptions to report

include a statement that they consider the annuaf report taken as a whole to be fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for members to
assess the Group's and company’s position and performance, business mode! and strategy
1s materlally inconsistent with our krowledge of the Group and company acqurred in the

course of performing our audit

»The section of the annual report on pages 82 to 87, as required by provision C 3 8 of the
Code, describing the work of the audit committee does not appropnately address matters

cornmunicated by us to the audit commutiee

We haveno
exceptionsto report
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson ple cortinued

The directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of the prinapal risks that would threaten

the solvency or hquidity of the Group

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if we have anything matertal to add or to draw attention

toinrelation to

»The directors’ confirmation on pages 40 and 118 of the annual report, in accordance with We have nothing
provision C 2 1 of the Code, that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal  material to add or to
nisks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future draw attention to

performance, solvency or liquidity

»The disclosures in the annual report that descibe those nisks and explain how they are We have nothing

bewng managed or mitigated

material to add or to
draw attention to

»The directors’ explanation on pages 40 and 118 of the annual report, tn accordance with We have nothing
provision C 2 2 of the Code, as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over  materlal toadd or to
what period they have done so and why they constder that period to be appropriate, and draw attentionto

their statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be
able to continue 1n operation and meet its labidities as they fall due over the period of ther
assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary

qualifications or assumptions

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
directors’ statement that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal nsks facing the Group and
the directors’ statement iz relation to the longer-term
viabihity of the Group Our review was substantially less
in scope than an audit and oniy consisted of making
inquirtes and constdening the directors’ process
supporting their statements, checking that the
statements are in ahgnment with the relevant
provisions of the Code, and considering whether the
statements are consistent with the knowledge acquired
by us in the course of performing our audit We have
nothing to report having performed our review

Adequacy of accounting records and information
and explanations receved

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to
report to you If, in our opinion

>We have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or

> Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches notvisited by us, or

»The company financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be audited are notin
agreement with the accaunting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this
responsibiity

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration report - Companies Act 2006
opinian [n our opinion, the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Other Companias Act 2006 reporting Under the
Compantes Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made We have
no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility

Corporate governance statement

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required 1o
report to you if, in our opinion, a corporate governance
statement has not been prepared by the company

We have no exceptions to report arising from this
responsibility

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating
ta ten further provisions of the Code We have nothing
to report having performed our review
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Responsibiities for the financial statements
and the audit

Currespansibifities and thase of the directors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’
responsrbilities set out on page 120, the directors

are responsible for the preparation of the financia
statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on
the financial statements in accordance with apphicable
law and ISAs {UK & Ireland} Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the company's members as abody In
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving
these opimions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consentin writing

What an audit of finanaal staternents invoives

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of

*Whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Group's and the company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,

*The reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors, and

*The overall presentation of the financial statements

We primarify focus our workin these areas by assessing
the directors’ judgements agamst avalable evidence,
forming our own judgements, and evaluating the
disclosures in the financial statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and
other auditing techniques, fo the extent we consider
necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw
conclusions We obtain audit evidence through testing
the effactiveness of controls, substantive procedures or
acombination of both

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the Annual report to identfy matenal
Inconsistencies with the audited financial statements
and to identify any information that 1s apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit ifwe become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or (nconsistencies

vvg,conﬂdei'the irnplications for our report
A M e
Stuart Newma LIrA

{Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditars
London

4 March 2016
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Consolidated income statement

Year ended 31 December 2015

2014
All figures in £ milllons Notes 2015 restated
Sales 2 4,468 4,540
Cost of goods sold 4 (1,981) (2,021)
Gross profit T 2,487 2,519
Operating expenses 4 {2,094) {2,125)
Impairment of intangible assets 1 (849) 77
Share of resuits of joint ventures and associates 12 52 N
Operating {loss)/profit (404) 348
Finance costs (100) {140)
Finance Income A 47
{Loss)/profit hefore tax {433) 255
Income tax 7 81 (56}
{Loss)/profit for the year from continuing operations (352) 199
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3 1,175 27
Profit for the year 823 470
Attributable to
Equity holders of the company 823 471
Non-controlling interest - (h
Earnings per share for profit from continuing and discontinued operations
attributable to equity holders of the company during the year
(expressed in pence per share)
-basic 8 101 2p 581p
=dtuted 8 101 2p 58 Op
{Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit from continuing operations
attributable to equity holders of the company during the year
{expressed in pence per share}
- basic 8 (43 3)p 247p
- difuted (43 3)p 24 6p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December 2015

Allfigures in Emellions Notes 2015 ma

Profit for the year 823 470

Items that may be reclassified to the income statement

Net exchange differences on translation of forelgn operations - Group {85) 150

Net exchange differences on translation of foreign operatlons - associates 16 25

Currency translation adjustment disposed - Group (10} 2)
Attnbutable tax 7 5 6)
ttemns that are not reclassified to the income statement

Remeasurement of retirement benefit cbligations - Group 25 110 23

Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations - associates 8 15)
Attributable tax 7 (24) (1)
Other comprehensive income for the year 20 174

Total comprehensive iIncome for the year 843 644

Attributable to

Equity holders of the company 845 645

Non-controlling Interest (2) )
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December 2015

Allfigures in £ millions Notes 2015 2014

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 10 320 334
Intangible assets 11 5164 6,310
Investments In joint ventures and associates 12 1,103 1,118
Deferred income tax assets 13 276 295
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 16 78 90
Retirement benefit assets 25 337 190
Gther finangal assets 15 143 54
Trade and other receivables 22 115 82
7,536 8,473
Current assets
Intangible assets - pre-publication 20 841 820
Inventories 2 1 224
Trade and other recewvabltes 22 1,284 1,310
Financial assets ~ dervative financial instruments 16 32 24
Financial assets - marketable securities 14 28 16
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 17 1,703 530
4,099 2,924
Total assets 11,635 11,387
Liabihties
Non-current habilities
Financial habilities - borrowings 18 (2,048) (1.883)
Financial habilities - derivatwve financial iInstruments 16 (136} (73)
Deferred income tax habilities 13 (560) (714)
Retirement benefit obligations 25 (139) {163}
Provisions for other habilities and charges 23 {71} (82}
QOther hiabilities 24 (356) (310}

(3,310} (3,225)




Consolidated balance sheet continued

As at 31 December 2015

Section 5 Financial statements

137

Allfigures In £ milions Notes 2015 2014
Currenthiabihties
Trade and other habilittes 24 {1,390) {1,601)
financial habiities - borrowings 18 {282) (342}
Financial habilities - derivative financial instruments 16 (29) (1}
Currentincome tax habilities {164) {190}
Provisions for other hatihities and charges 23 (42} (53)
{1,907) (2,187}
Total labihities (5,217} (5,412)
Net assets 6,418 5,985
Equity
Share capital 27 205 205
Share premium 27 2,590 2,379
Treasury shares 28 (72) (75)
Translation reserve (7} 70
Retatned earnings 3,698 3,200
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 6,414 5,979
Non-controlling interest 4 6
6.418 5,985

Total equity

These financal statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 4 March 2016 and sighed on its

behalf by

CoramWilltams
Chief financial officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2015

Equity attributable to equity holders of the company

Non-

Share share  Treasury Translation Retained controlling Tatal
All figures In£ milllens capital  premium shares reserve  earnings Total nterest equlity
At1Jjanuary 2015 205 2,579 {75) 70 3,200 5,979 6 5,985
Profit for the year - - - - 823 823 - 823
Other comprehensive income - - - 7N 99 22 (2) 20
Total comprehensive income - - - 7 922 845 (2) 843
Equity-settled transactions - - - - 26 26 - 26
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - (4} {n - {1}
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes - 1" - - - 1t - 11
Purchase of treasury shares - - (23} - - {23) - (23)
Release of treasury shares - - 26 - (26) - - -
Changes In non-controlling interest - - - - - - - -
Dwidends - - - - (423) {423) - (423)
At 31 December 2015 205 2,590 72) () 3.698 6,414 4 6,418
£quity attributable to equity holders of the company Nom-
Share Share  Treasury Translation Retalned controlling Total
Allfiguresin Emillions capital  premium shares reserve  earnings Total nterest equity
At 1 January 2014 205 2,568 (98) (103) 3128 5,700 6 5,706
Profit for the year - - - - an a7 (1} 470
Other comprehensive iIncome - - - 173 1 174 - 174
Total comprehensive income - - - 173 472 645 {1} 644
Equity-settled transactions - - - - 32 32 - 32
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - (3) (3)- T LT (3
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes - ! - - - 1 - 1
Purchase of treasury shares - - (9) - - 9 - (9)
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - {32) - - -
Changes in non-controlling interest - - - - - - 2 2
Dividends - - - - {397) {397) ) (398)
At 31 December 2014 205 2,579 (75) 70 3,200 5,979 6 5,985

The translation reserve inciudes exchange differences ansing from the translation of the netinvestrentin foreign
operations and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments Changes
in non-contralling interest in 2014 refate to the disposal of a non-controlling interestmn a Chinese business
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Year ended 31 December 2015

139

Allfigures in £ millions Notes 2015 214
Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash generated from operations 32 518 704
interest paid {75) (86)
Tax paid {(232) (163)
Net cash generated from operating activities 211 455
Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 30 (9) (448)
Acquisitton of Joint ventures and associates 1) {12)
Purchase of Investments (N (3)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (86) (75}
Purchase of intangibfe assets (161) (107)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 31 1,030 327
Proceeds from sale of associates 379 39
Proceeds fraom sale of investments 13

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 32 2

Proceeds from sale of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of liquid resources 17 12
Loans repaid by/(advanced toj related parties 7 (10}
Loans advanced - {2}
Investment i hiquid resources (29) (22)
Interest receved 24 13
Dwidends received from joint ventures and associates 162 120
Net cash received from/{used in) investing activities 1,332 {148}
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 27 11 1
Purchase of treasury shares 28 (23) 9)
Proceeds from borrowings 372 404
Repayment of borrowings (300) {538)
Finance lease principal payments (1} (4)
Dwvidends paid to company's shareholders 9 (423) (397)
Dwvidends paid to non-controlling interest - m
Net cash used tn financing activities {364) (534)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivatents (19) (2}
Netincreasef(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,160 (229)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 511 74Q
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17 1,671 M

The consolidated cash flow statement includes discontinued operations (see note 3)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General informaticn

Pearsaon plc (the company), its subsidiaries and
associates (together the Group} are internationai
businesses covering educational courseware,
assessments and services, and consumer publishing
through Its associate interest in Penguin Random
House

The company is a public himited company Incorporated
and domuciled in England The address of its registered
office 1s 80 Strand, London WC2ZR ORL

The company has its primary listing on the London
Stock Exchange and 1s also listed on the New York
Stock Exchange

These consolidated financial statements were
approved for issue by the board of directors on
4March 2016

1. Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are setoutbelow

a Basis of preparaticn

These consohidated financial statements have been
prepared on the going concern basfs and in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS}
and IFRS interpretations Committee interpretations
as adopted by the European Unton {(EU) and with
those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS Inrespect ofthe
accounting standards applicable to the Group there

1s no difference between EU-adopted and IASB-
adopted |IFRS -

These consohdated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention as
modsfied by the revaluation of financial assets and
habites (including dervative financral Instruments)
to fair value through profit or loss

The prior year financal statements have been
restated to reflect the dlassificatton of FT Group
as a discontinued operation

1 Interpretations and amendments to published
standards effective 2015 The following amendments
and interpretations were adopted in 2015

> Amendments to 1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits Defined
Benefit Plans - Employee Contnbutions’

»Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘'Share based Payment
Definitton of vesting conditions’

» Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations
Accounting for contingent consideration in a business
combination and scope exemptions for joint ventures’

»Amendments to IFRS 8 'Operating Segments
Aggregation of pperating segments and reconciiiation
of segment assets to enfity’s assets’

»Amendments to JAS 24 'Related Party Disclosures
Key management personnel’

yAmendments to IFRS 13’ Fair Value Measurement
Short term receivables and payables’

The adoption of these new pronouncements fram
1 January 2015 does not have a material impact on
the consolidated financlal statements

2 Standards, interpretations and amendments

to published standards that are not yet effective
The Group has not early adopted the following new
pronouncements that are not yet effective

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments', effectve for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 january 2018
The new standard details the requirements for the
classification, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and habilities The Group Is yet to assess the full
impact of IFRS 9

IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’,
effective for annuai reporting periods beginning on

or after 1january 2018 The new standard specifies
how and when an entity wili recognise revenue, and
requires more detailed disclosure Adoption of the
new standard is likely to have an impact on the Group
and management s currently assessing the ympact "' !

-

IFRS 16 'Leases’, effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 The new standard
details the requirements for the dassification,
measurement and recognition of lease arrangements
Adoption of the new standard is hkely to have animpact
on the Group and management is currently assessing
the impact

InJune 2015 the {ASB issued an exposure draft
ED/2015/5 'Remeasurement on a Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement/Availability of a Refund from
a Defined Benefit Plan (Proposed Amendments to IAS
19 and IFRIC 14) ' Management are currently evaluating
these proposals and although the proposals have not
yet been finafised, it should be noted that the current
draft, If adopted, may restrict the Group’s ability to
recognise a pension asset in respect of pension
surpluses in its UK defined benefit pension plan
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1 Accounting pelicies continued

a Basis of preparation continued

In addition, the current draft may require certain
elements of committed minimum funding
contributions to be recognised as a hability on
the balance sheet

3 Cnucal accounting assumptions and jJudgements
The preparation of financial statements in canformity
with IFRS reguires the use of certain cntical accounting
assumpticns italso requires management to exercise
Its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies The areas requinng a higher
degree of jJudgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are discussedin
the relevant accounting policies under the following
headings and In the notes to the accounts where
appropnate

Consolidation Business combinations - classification
of Investmeants

Consolidation Business combinations - determination
of farr values

Intangible assets Goodwill

Intangible assets Pre-publication assets

Taxation

Revenue recognition

Employee benefits Pensions

b Consolidation

1 Business combinattons The acquisition method
of accaunting is used to account for business
combinations

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsichary is the fair value of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interest issued by the
Group The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or hability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement Acquisition related costs
are expensed as incurred in the aperating expenses tine
of the Income staterment

Identifiable assets and contingent assets acquired and
identifiable habiliues and contingent habilities assumed
N a business combination are measured tially at their
fair values at the acquisition date The determination

of fair values bften requires significant judgements

and the use of estimates, and, for material acquisittons,
the fair value of the acquired intangible assets 1s
deterrmined by an independent valuer The excess of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition

date fair value of any previous equity interestin the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired 1s recorded as goodwiil

See note 1e{t} for the accounting policy on goodwill
If this 1s tess than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, in the case of a bargain
purchase, the differenceis recognisad directly in
the iIncome statement

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest inthe acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets

Management exercises jJudgementin determining the
classification of its investments in its businesses, in ine
with the following

2 Subsidiaries Subsidiarles are entities over which the
Group has control The Group controls an entity when
the Group 1s exposed to, or has rights to, varable
returns from its invoivement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity Subsidiares are fully consclidated from the
date on which controi istransferred to the Group They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases

3 Transactions with non-controlling interests
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do

not resultin loss of contro! are accounted for as equity
transactions, that s, as transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners Any surplus or deficit arising
from disposals to a non-controlling interest s recorded
in equety. For purchases fram a non-cantrolling interest,
the difference between consideration pald and the
refevant share acquired of the carrying value of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity

4 Jointventures and associates Joint ventures are
entittes in which the Group holds aninterest on along-
term bas:s and has rights to the net assets through
contractually agreed sharing of control Associates are
entittes aver which the Group has sigruficant influence
but not the power to control the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting nights investments
In jointventures and associates are accounted for by
the equity method and are imitially recognised at the
fair value of consideration transferred

The Group's share of its joint ventures’ and associates’
post-acquisttion profits or losses is recognised in the
income statement and its share of post-acquisition
moverneants in reserves is recognised tn reserves
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

b Consolidation continued

The Group’s share of its joint ventures' and assoclates’
results 1s recognised as a component of operating profit
as these cperations form part of the core publishing
business of the Group and are an integral part of
existing wholly-owned businesses The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment When the Group's
share of losses in a joint venture or associate equals or
exceeds itsinterestin the joint venture or associate,
the Graup does not recognise further losses unless the
Group has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture or assoclate

5 Contribution of a subsidiary to an associate or joint
venture The gain or loss resulting from the contribution
or sale of a subsidiary to an assoctate or a joint venture
1s recogrised in full Where such transactions do not
involve cash consideration, significant judgements and
estimates are used in determining the fair values of the
consideration received

¢ Foreign currency translation

1 Functional and presentation currency ltems included
h the financial staternents of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
{the functional currency’) The consclidated financial
statements are presented in sterling, which isthe
company’s functional and presentation currency

2 Transacticns and balances Foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of

the transactions Foreign exchange gains andlosses
resutting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year end exchange rates of
maonetary assets and liabilites denorinated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying net
investment hedges

3 Group companies The results and financral pesitton
of all Group companies that have a functlonal currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows

1} Assets and liabiitties are translated at the closing rate.
at the date of the balance sheet

)y Income and expenses are translated at average
exchangerates

un All resutting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translatton of the net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other currency Instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to shareholders' equity The Group treats spacific inter-
company loan balances, which are not intended to be
repaid 1n the foreseeable future, as part of its net
mwvestment When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income
staternent as part of the gain or loss on sale

The principal overseas currency forthe Group s the
US dollar The average rate for the year against sterling
was $1 53(2014 $165)and the year end rate was $1 47
(2014 $1 56)

d Property, plantand equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation Cost includes the original
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to
bringing the assetto its working condition for intended
use Land s notdepreciated Depreciation on other
assets Is calculated using the straight-ine methodto
allocate their costiess thelr residual values over their
estimated useful hves as follows

Builldings (freehold)
Buildings {leasehold)
Plant and equipment 3-10years

20-50 years
over the period of the lease

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at each balance
sheet date

The carrying value of an assetis written down to its
recoverable amount If the carrying vaiue of the asset
1s greater than Its estimated recoverable amount

e Intangible assets

1 Goodwll For the acquisiion of subsidiaries made on
or after 1 fanuary 2010, goodwill represents the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interestin the acquiree and the
acquisitian date fair value of any previous equity
Interestn the acquiree over the fairvalue of the
wentifiable net assets acquired Forthe acquisttion of
subsicharies made from the date of transition to IFRS to
31 December 2009, goodwill represents the excess of
the cast of an acquisition over the fairvalue of the
Group's share of the netidentifiable assets acquired
Goodwll on acguisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangibie assets Goodwill on acquisition of assoclates
and jont ventures represents the excess of the cost of
an acquisttion over the fair value of the Group's share
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1 Accounting poltcies continued

e Intangible assets continued

of the net identifiable assets acquired Goodwili on
acquisitions of associates and joint ventures 1S included
in investments In associates and Joint ventures

Goodwillis tested at least annually for impairment and
carned at cost less accumulated tmparment losses
Anmparirment loss 1s recognised to the extent that

the carrying value of goodwill exceeds the recoverable
amount The recoverable amount s the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value inuse These
calculations require the use of estimates and significant
management judgement A description of the key
assumptions and sensitivities is included in note 11
Goodwill s allocated to aggregated cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment testing The
allocation 1s made to those aggregated cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwilil arose

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity soid

IFRS 3'Business Combinations’ has not been apphed
retrospectively to business combinations before the
date of transition to IFRS

2 Acquired software Software separately acquired for
internal use Is capitalised at cost Software acquired

in material business combinations s capitalised atits
fair value as determined by an independent valuer
Acquired software 15 amortised on a straight-ine basis
over its estimated useful life of between three and
eightyears

3 Internally developed software Internal and external
costs incurred during the preliminary stage of
developing computer software for internal use are
expensed as \incurred Internat and external costs
incurred to develop comguter software for internal
use during the application developmeni stage are
capitalised if the Group expects economic benefits
from the development Caprtalisation in the apphication
development stage begins once the Group can reliably
measure the expenditure attributable to the software
development and has demonstrated its intention to
complete and use the software Internally developed
software 1s amortised on a strajght-line basis over its
estimated useful life of between three and eight years

4 Acquired intangibie assets Acquired intangible assets
nclude customer lists, contracts and relationships,
trademarks and brands, publishing rights, content,
technology and software rights These assets are

capitalised on acquisition at cost and included in
intangible assets Intangible assets acquired in material
business combinations are capitalised at their farr value
as determined by anindependent valuer Intangible
assets are amortised over thew estimated useful lives
of between two and 20 years, using an amortisation
method that reflects the pattern oftheir consumption

5 Pre-publication assets Pre-publication assets
represent direct costs incurred in the development

of educational programmes and titles prior to their
publication These costsare recognised as current
intangible assets where the title will generate probable
future economic benefits and costs can be measured
reltably Pre-publication assets areamortised upon
publication of the title over estimated economic lives
of five years or less, being an estimate of the expected
operating life cycle of the title, with a ugher proportion
of the amortisation takenn the earlier years

The investment in pre-publication assets has been
disclosed as part of cash generated from operations
In the cash flow statement {see note 32)

The assessment of the recoverahibty of pre-publication
assets and the determination of the amortisation
profile involve a significant degree of judgement based
on historical trends and management estimation of
future potential sales Anincorrect amortisation profile
could resuttin excess amounts being carned forward
as intangible assets that would otherwise have been
written off to the Income statementin an earlier penod

Reviews are performed regularly to estimate
recoverabibity of pre-publication assets The carrying
amount of pre-publication assets is set outn note 20

f Other financial assets

Other financal assets, designatedas available for sale
investments, are non-derivative financial assets
measured at estmated fair value Changes in the fair
value are recorded 1n equity in the fair value reserve
Onthe subsequent disposal of the asset, the net fair
value gains or losses are taken to the income staterment

g Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value Costis determined using the firstin
first out {(FIFO) method The cost of fimshed goods

and work in progress comprises raw matertals, direct
labour, ather direct costs and related production
overheads Netrealisable valueisthe estimated seliing
pricein the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs necessary to make the sale Prowvisions are made
for slow mowving and cbsolete stock
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

h Royalty advances

Advances of royalties to authors are included within
trade and other receivables when the advance is patg
less any provision required to adjust the advance to

its net realisable value The realisable vaiue of royalty
advances relies on a degree of management judgement
in determinuing the profitability of individual author
contracts Ifthe estmated realisable value of author
contracts I1s overstated, thus will have an adverse effect
on operating profits as these excess amounts will be
written off

The recoverability of royalty advances is based uponan
annual detailed management review of the age of the
advance, the future sales projections for new authors
and prior sales hustory of repeat authors

The royalty advance Is expensed at the contracted
or effective royalty rate as the related revenues are
earned Rovalty advances which will be consumed
within one year are held in current assets Royalty
advances which will be consumed after one year are
held in non-current assets

1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement
include cash in hand, deposits held on call with banks,
other short-term hughly hquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts Bank overdrafts are included i borrowings
in current liabilities in the balance sheet

Short-term deposits and marketable secunties with
maturities of greater than three months do not quahfy
as cash and cash equivalents Movements onthese
financial istruments are classified as cash flows from
financing activities In the cash flow statement where
these amounits are used to offset the borrowings of
the Group or as cash flows from invesing activities
where these amounts are heid to generate an
Investment return

J Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

incrementat costs directly attributabie to the 1ssue
of new shares or options are shown in eguity asa
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares) the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs, net of Income taxes, 1s deducted from equity
attributable to the company’s equity holders untl the

shares are cancelted, reissued or disposed of Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration recerved, net of any directly attnbutable
transaction costs and the related income tax effects, 1s
included in equity attnbutable to the company’s equity
holders

k Borrowings

Borrowings are recogmsed inially at fair value, whech
is proceeds recerved net of transaction costs incurred
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the proceeds {net of
transaction ¢osts) and the redemption value being
recogrised inthe iIncome statement over the period
ofthe borrowings ustng the effective interest method
Accrued interest is Included as part of borrowings
Where a debt Instrumentis in a far value hedging
relationship, an adjustment s made to Its carrying
value in the income statement to reflect the hedged
risk Interest on borrowngsis expensed inthe income
statement asincurred

{ Dervative financial instruments

Denvatives are recogrised atfair value and remeasured
at each balance sheet date The farr value of derivatives
1s determined by using market data and the use of
established estmation technigues such as discounted
cash flow and option valuation models The Group
designates certain of the derivative instruments within
its portfolio to be hedges of the fairvalue of its bonds
{fair value hedges) or hedges of net investments in
foreign operations {netinvestment hedges)

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are
recorded in the ncome statement, together with
any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
lability that are attributable to the hedged nsk

The effective portion of changes in the fair vaiue

of dervatives that are designated and qualify as

net tnvestment hedges are recognised in other
comprehensiveincome Gains and losses accumulated
1n equity are included in the income statement when
the corresponding foreign operation is disposed of
Gains or losses relating to the ineffective portion are
recognised immediately in finance income or finance
costs in the income statement

Certaint derivatives do not qualify or are not designated
as hedging instruments Such derivatives are classified
at fair value and any movement in their far values
recognised immediately in finance income or finance
costsin the income statement
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1 Accounting pelicies continued

m Taxation

Current tax s recognised on the amounts expected to
be paid or recovered under the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date

Deferred income tax 1s provided, using the liabihity
method, on temporary differences arising between

the tax bases of assets and habtlites and their carrying
amounts Deferred incormne tax is determined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset Is realised or
the deferred income tax liability 1s settied

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
thatitis probable that future taxable profitwill be
available against which the temparary differences
can be utilised

Deferred income tax s provided in respect of the
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries otherthan
where it is intended that those undistributed earnings
will not be remitted in the foreseeable future

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the
income statement, except when the tax relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity or other
comprehensive income, inwhich case the tax s also
recognised in equity or ather comprehensive income

The Group Is subject to Income taxes in nuMerous
Jurisdictions  Significant judgement s required in
determiming the estimates in relation to the worldwide
provision for income taxes There are many
transacuons and calculations for which the ulumate
tax determinationis uncertain during the ordinary
course of business The Group recognises habilities
for anticipated tax audit 1ssues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
willimpact the thcome tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination 1s made

Deferred tax assets and llabihities require management
judgement In determining the amounts to be
recogrused In particular, significant judgement s Used
when assessing the extent to which deferred tax assets
should be recognised with consideration given to the
timing and level of future taxable income together with
any future tax planning strategies

n Employee benefits

1 Pensions The retirement benefitasset and obligation
recognised in the balance sheet represents the net of
the present value of the defined benefit obhgation and
the farr value of plan assets at the balance sheet date
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuartes using the projected urit credit
method The present value of the defined benefit
obligaticn is deterrmined by discounting esumated
future cash flows using yields on hugh quahty corporate
bonds which have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of the related hability

When the calculation results in a potantial asset, the
recognition of that asset is limited to the asset celing -
that is the present vaiue of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the planor a
reduction in future contributions Management uses
Judgement to determine the level of refunds available
from the plan in recognising an asset

The determination of the penston cost and defined
benefit obligation of the Group's defined benefit
pension schemes depends on theselection of certain
assumptions, which include the discount rate, inflation
rate, salary growth and longewvity

Actuarlal gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise

The service cost, representing benefits accruing over
the year, 1s included in the ncome statement as an
operating cost Netinterest 1s calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net defined benefit obhgation
and s presented as finance costs orfinance iIncome

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
pension plans are recogrised as an operating expense
in theincome statement as incurred

2 Other post-retirement obhgations The expected
costs of post-retirement medrcal and }fe assurance
benefits are accrued over the penod of employment,
using a similar accounting methodology as for
defined benefit pension abligations The liabilities
and costs relating to significant other post-retirement
obligations are assessed annually by independent
qualified actuaries
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

n Employee benefits continued

3 Share-based payments The fair value of options or
shares granted under the Group’s share and option
plans 1s recogrised as an empioyee expense after
taking into account the Group’s best estimate of the
number of awards expected to vest Falrvalueis
measured at the date of grant and 1s spread over the
vesting period of the option or share The farvalue of
the options granted 1s measured using an option model
that is most appropriate to the award The far value
of shares awarded I1s measured using the share price
at the date of grant unless another method 1s more
appropnate Any proceeds received are credited to
share capital and share premium when the options
are exercised

o Provisions

Provisions are recognised if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably esumated Provisions
are discounted to present value where the effect

is material

The Group recogruses a provision for deferred
consideration at fair value Where this 1s contingent
on future performance or a future event, judgement
1s exercised in establishang the farr value

The Group recogrises a provision for onerous lease
contracts when the expected benefits to be denved
from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract

The provision is based on the present value of future
payments for surplus leased properttes under non-
cancellable operating leases, netof estimated sub-
teasing income

p Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue streams are courseware,
assessments and services Courseware includes
curniculum materials provided 1n book form and/or
via access to digital content. Assessments includes
test development, processing and scoring services
provided to governments, educational institutions,
corporations and professional bodies Services includes
the operation of schools, colleges and universities,
including sistemas n Brazil and Enghsh language
teaching centres around the world as well asthe
provislon of anline learning services in partnershtp
with uriversities and other acaderuc institutions

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideratron
receved or recevable for the sale of goods and services
net of sales taxes, rebates and discounts, and after
eliminating sales within the Group

Revenue from the sale of books 1s recognised when title
passes A provision for anticipated returns 1s made
based primarily on historical return rates If these
estimates do not reflect actual returns in future periads
then revenues could be understated or overstated for
a particular period

Revenue fromthe sale of off-the-shelf software s
recogrised on delivery or on installation of the software
where that 15 a condition of the contract In certain
crcumstances, where installation 1s complex, revenue
1s recognised when the customer has completed their
acceptance procedures Where software is provided
under a term licence, revenue Is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the license

Revenue from the provision of services to academic
institutions, such as programme development, student
acquisition, education technology and student support
services, is recegnised as performance occurs

Revenue from multi-year contractuat arrangements,
such as contracts to process qualifying tests for
indwidual professions and government departments,
1s recognised as performance occurs The assumptions,
risks, and uncertainties inherent to long-term contract
accounting can affect the amounts and timing of
revenue and related expenses reported Certain of
these arrangements, either as a result of a single
service spanning more than one reporting period or
where the contract requires the provision of a number
of services that together constitute a single project, are
treated as long-term contracts with revenue recognised
on a percentage of completion basis Percentage of
completion is calculated on a cost basis using the
proportion of the total estimated costs incurred to date
Losses on contracts are recognised in the penod in
which the loss first becomes foreseeable Contract
losses are determined to be the amount by which
estimated total costs of the contract exceedthe
estimated total revenues that will be generated

Where a contractual arrangement consists of two or
more separate elements that can be provided te
customers either on a stand-alone basis or as an
optional extra, such as the prowvision of supplementary
materials or online access with textbooks and multiple
deliverables within testing or service contracts, revenue
isrecognised for each element as If it were an individual
contractual arrangement
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1 Accounting pelicies continued

p Revenue recognition continued

On certain contracts, where the Group acts as agent,
only commissions and fees recevable for services
rendered are recognised as revenue Any third-party
costsincurred on behalf of the principal that are
rechargeable under the contractual arrangement
are not included tn revenue

Income from recharges of freight and other activities
which are incidental to the normal revenue generating
actiities is included in other income

Circulatton and advertising revenue is recognised
when the newspaper or other publication s published
Subscription revenue Is recognised on a straight-line
hasis over the hfe of the subscription

g Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases Finance
leases are capitalised at the commencement of the
lease at the lower of the fair value of the ieased
property and the present value of the minimum

lease payments Each lease payment is allocated
between the llability and finance charges to achieve
aconstant rate on the finance balance outstanding
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included infinancral habilities -
borrowings The interest element of the finance cost
1s charged to the ncome statement over the lease
period to praduce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the hability for each period
The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the
useful ife of the asset or the lease term

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating [eases by the lessee Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the iIncome
statement on a straight-line basis over the perod of
the [ease

r Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which they are approved
bythe company’s shareholders

s Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business thatrepresents a separate major ine of
business or geographical area of operations that has
been disposed of or meets the cnteria to be dlassified
as held for sale

Discontinued operations are presented in the ncome
statement as a separate line and are shown net of tax

t Assets and liabilities held for sale

Assets and liabllities are classified as held for sale and
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell if it1s highly probable that the carrying
amountwill be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use No
deprectation 1s charged in respect of non-current assets
classified as held for sale Amounts relating to non-
current assets and liabllities held for sale are ctassified
as discontinued operations in the Income statement
where appropriate

u Trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at fair value after provision
for bad and doubtful debts and anticipated future sales
returns (see also note 1p}

2 Segmentinformation

The primary segments for management and reporting
are geographies as outlined below In addition, the
Group separately discloses the results from the
Penguin Random House{PRH) associate

The chief operating decision-maker is the Pearson
Executive

Continuing cperations

North America School, Higher Education and
Professional businessesin US and Canada

Growth School, Higher Education and Professional
businesses in emerging markets which are mvestment
pronities, including Brazil, China, India and South Africa

Core School, Higher Educaticn and Professional
businesses in more mature markets including UK,
Austraila and [taly

The resuits of the FT Group segment (to 30 November
2015) and Mergermarket (to 4 February 2014) are
shown as discontinued in the relevant periods
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Notes Lo the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segmentinformation continued

For more detail on the services and products included in each business segment refer to the strategic report

2015
Noarth Discontinued
All figures in £ miltions Notes  Amerlca Core  Growth PRH Corporate  operations Group
Continuing operatiohs
Sales 2,940 836 692 - - - 4,458
Adjusted operating profit/{loss} 480 114 (12) 20 - - 672
Intangible charges (386) (79) (583} “an - - {(1,089)
Other net gains and losses 19 (5} - (1) - - 13
Operating (loss)/profit 113 30 {595) 48 - - (404)
Finance costs 6 (100)
Finance income 6 2
Loss before tax 433)
Income tax 7 81
Loss for the year from
continuing operations {352)
Segment assets 6,399 1,573 719 - 1,841 - 10,532
Jointventures 12 1 - 3 - - - 4
Associates 12 - 6 - 1,093 - - 1,099
Total assets 6,400 1,579 722 1,093 1,841 - 11,635
Other segment items
Share of results of joint ventures
and associates 12 (9) - 3) 64 - 16 68
Capital expenditure 10,11 85 33 110 - - 15 243
Pre-publication investment 20 218 63 66 - - - 347
Oeprecation 10 42 9 18 - - [ 75
Amortisation 1,20 338 a5 109 - - 15 557

Impairment n 282 37 530 - - - 849
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2 Segment information continued

2014
restated
North Discontlnued

Al figures in £ milllens Notes  America Core  Growth PRH Corporate  aperations Group
Continuing operations
Sales 2,906 910 724 - - - 4,540
Adjusted operating profit 444 122 32 69 - - 667
Intangible charges (108} (21 (132) {54) - - {315)
Acquisition costs 2) () 3 - - - (6
Qther net gains and tosses 2 - - - - - 2
Operating profit/(loss) 336 100 (103} 15 - - 348
Finance costs 6 (140)
Finance income 6 47
Profit before tax 255
Income tax 7 (56)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 199
Segment assets 6,580 1,426 1,394 - 660 219 10,279
Jointventures 12 1 - 3 - - 9 13
Associates 12 1 8 - 1,095 - 1 1,105
Total assets 6,582 1,434 1,397 1,095 660 229 11,397
Other segment items
Share of results of joint ventures
and assoclates 12 - (1 (3) 35 - 20 51
Capital expenditure 10, 1% 97 32 49 - - 16 194
Pre-publication investment 20 209 77 72 - - - 358
Depreciation 10 41 10 16 - - 7 74
Amortisation 11, 20 306 99 121 - - 16 542
impairment 1 - - 77 - - - 77

For further information on adjusted measures above, see note 8

There were no matental inter-segment sales 1n either 2014 or 2015

Included in ather net gains and losses within continuing operattons in 2015 1n the North America segment (s the
profit on disposal of FowerSchoot of £30m, net of small osses on other investments In the Core segment the loss

on disposal relates to adjustments to prior year disposals

Included in other net gains and losses in continuing operations 1n 2014 are gains on the sale of joint venture interests
in Safan Books Online and CourseSmart (E40m) and a loss on disposal of an investment in Nook Media (£38m)

Both operating profit and adjusted operating profit in 2015 are stated after the following restructuring charges
North America £24m (2014 £37my), Core £nil (2014 £21my), Growth £11m, (2014 £6m), Penguin Random House

£12m (2014 £19m)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segmentinformation continued

Corporate costs are allocated to business segments including discontinued operations on an appropniate basis
depending on the nature of the cost, therefore the segment result is equal to the Group operating profit Segment
assets consist of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, Inventories, recevables, deferred taxation and
other financial assets and exclude cash and cash equivalents and derwative assets Corporate assets comprise cash
and cash equivalents, marketable securities and dervatve financiat instruments Capital expenditure comprises
additions to property, plant and equipment and software (see notes 10 and 11) '

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets acquired through business combination were £1m (2014
£263m){see note 30)

The following tables analyse the Group's revenue streams Courseware includes curriculum materials provided in
baok form and/or via access to digital content Assessments includes test development, processing and scoring
services provided to governments, educational institutions, corporations and professional bodles Serwices includes
the operation of schaols, colleges and universities, including sistemas in Brazil and English language teaching centres
around the world as well as the provision of online learning services in partnership with universities and other
academucinstitutions School Systems includes PowerSchool and Family Education Network, both of which were
disposed during 2015

2015
North
All figures in £ millions Amerlca Core Growth Group
Courseware
School Courseware 406 186 104 696
Higher Education Courseware 1,207 96 55 1,358
Enghsh Courseware 22 84 79 185
1,635 366 238 2,239
Assessments
School and Higher Education Assessments 420 301 15 736
Clinecal Assessments 126 32 - 158
Professional Certification 269 82 36 387
815 415 51 1,281
Services
School Services 209 1 a7 257
Higher Education Services 223 26 70 319
English Services 18 28 286 332
School Systems 40 - - 40
490 55 403 948

Total 2,940 836 692 4,468




Section 5 Financlal statements

151

o
2 Sepment information continued S
o
2014 B
restated R
]
. North
All figures in Emllhons America Core Growth Group
Courseware
School Courseware 389 214 120 723
Higher Education Courseware 1179 114 66 1,359
English Courseware 22 92 75 189
1,590 420 261 2271 2
-
[+]
g
Assessments 3
[
School and Higher Education Assessments 416 312 14 742 ﬁ
Clinical Assessments 115 34 - 149
Professional Certification 228 93 19 340
759 439 33 1,231
Services o
School Services 253 - 56 309 g
Higher Education Services 215 22 90 327 g—‘
English Services 20 29 284 333 §
School Systems 69 - - 69
557 51 430 1,038
Total 2,906 910 724 4,540
g
3
3
8
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 segmentinformation continued
The Group operates in the following main geographic areas

Sales Nen current assets

2014
Afl figures in £Emillions 2015 restated 2015 2014
Continuing operations
UK 421 444 991 1,056
Other Eurcpean countries 246 281 121 180
us 2,800 2,762 5,000 5,243
Canada 107 109 235 288
Asia Pacific 590 565 21 416
Other countries 304 379 144 661
Total continuing 4,468 4,540 6,702 7.844
Discontinued operations
UK 134 170 - -
Other European countrles 64 66 - -
us 72 68 - -
Canada 2 1 - -
Asia Paafic 35 34 - -
Other countnies 5 4 - -
Total discontinued 312 343 - -
Total 4,780 4,883 6,702 7.844

Sales are allocated based on the country mwhich the customeris located This does not differ materially from the
location where the order 1s received The geographical split of non-current assets Is based on the subsidiary’s
country of domicile This is not matenally different to the focation of the assets Non-current assets compnse
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investments tn joint ventures and associates and trade and
other receivables
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3 Discontinued operations

Biscontinued operations relate to FT Group, Penguin and Mergermarket An analysis of the results and cash flows of

discontinued operations 1s as follows

v
.

2015

2014
restated

Allfigures in £ miflions FTGroup Total Panguln Mergermarket FT Group Tatal
Sales 312 312 - 9 334 343
Operating profit 48 48 - 2 50 52
Ftnance income - - - - - -
Profit before tax 48 48 - 2 50 52
Income tax (8) (8) - m {7 8
Profit after tax 40 40 - 1 43 44
Profit on disposal of Penguin - - 29 - - 29
Profiton disposal of The Economist 473 473 - - - -
Profit on disposal of Financial Times m 71 - - - -
Attributable tax expense {49) {49) - - - -
Profit on disposal of Mergermarket - - - 244 - 244
Attributable tax expense - - - (46} - (46}
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 1,175 1,175 29 199 43 271
Operating cash flows 31 N - 2 24 26
Investing cash flows 3 3 - - {5) (5)
Financing cash flows - - - - - -
Total cash flows 34 34 - 2 19 21
4, Operating expenses

2014
All figures in £ millions 2015 restated
By function
Cost of goods sold 1,981 2,021
Operating expenses
Distribution costs 80 84
Selling, marketing and product development costs 895 931
Admirustrative and other expenses 1,195 1,168
Restructuring costs 35 64
Other net gains and losses {13) {2)
Gther income (98) {120)
Total net operating expenses 2,094 2,125
Impairment of tntangible assets 849 77
Total 4,924 4,223

Included in other income 15 service fee income from Penguin Random House of £16m (2014 £41m) Included in

administrative and other expenses are research and efficacy costs of £33m (2014 £22m) In addition to the

rastructuring costs shown above there were restructuring costs in Penguin Random House of £12m (2014 £19m}
and in discontinued operations of £nil (2014 £1m}
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Noles to the consolidated financial statements continued

4 Operating expenses continued

2014
All figures In € mitllons Notes 2015 restated
By nature
Royalties expensed 249 242
Other product costs 566 620
Employee benefit expense S 1,742 1,832
Contract labour 182 183
Employee related expense 127 136
Promotional costs 163 149
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10 69 67
Amortisation of intangible assets - pre-publication 20 281 282
Amartisation of intangible assets - software n 61 51
Amortisation of intangible assets - other " 199 184
Impairment of intangible assets 11 849 77
Property and facilities 219 204
Technotogy and communications 153 123
Professiona! and outsourced services 262 253
Other general and administrative costs 132 121
Capitalised costs (219) (195)
Acquisition costs - 6
Other net gains and losses (13) (2)
Otherincome (98) {120}
Total 4,924 4,223
During the year the Group obtamed the following services from the Group's auditors
All figures in Emillions 2015 2004
The audit of parent company and consolidated financial statements 4 5
The audst of the company’s subsidiaries 2 2
Total audit fees 6 7
Other assurance services 2 1
Other non-audit services 1 -
Total other services 3 1
Tax compliance services 1 1
Tax advisory services - -
Total tax services 1 1
Total non-audit services 4
Total 10
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4 Operating expenses continued

Reconciliation between audit and non-audit service fees 1s shown below

Abifigures in Emilliens 2015 2014
Group audit fees including fees for attestation under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 6 7
Non-aud fees 4 2
Total 10 9

Fees for attestation under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act are allocated between fees payable for the audits
of consolidated and subsidiary accounts

included in non-audit fees are amounts related to carve out audits for disposals of £1m

5 Employee information

2014
Allfigures in £millions Nates 2015 restated
Employee benefit expense
Wages and salaries (including termination benefits and restructuring costs} 1,507 1,607
Social security costs 124 122
Share-based payment costs 26 26 32
Retirement benefits - defined contnbution plans 25 66 61
Retirement benefits - defined benefit plans 25 19 21
Other post-retirement benefits 25 - {an
Total 1,742 1,832

The details of the emoluments of the directors of Pearson plc are shown in the report on directors' remuneration

2014
Average number employed 2045 . restated
Employee numbers
North America 19,951 20,927
Core 5.936 6,139
Growth 11,14 11,406
Other 264 182
Continuing operations 37,265 38,654

The employee benefit expense relating to discontinued operations was £132m (2014 £151m) and the average
number employed was 2,282 (2014 2,295)
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Noles to the conschdated financial statements continued

6 Net finance costs

2014
All figures In £ miilitons Notes 2015 restated
interest payable (61) 81
Net foreign exchange losses (36} {53)
Derwvatives not in hedging relatonships (3) (6}
Finance costs (100) {140)
Interestreceivable 15 17
Net finance income in respect of retrement benefits 25 4 1
Net foreigh exchange gains 43 17
Derivatives not in hedging relationships 9 12
Finance income " a7
Net finance costs (29) {93}
Analysed as’
Net interest payable reflected in adjusted earnings (46) {64}
Other net finance income/(costs) 17 {29)
Total net finance costs {29) {93)

included ininterest receivable 1s £1m (2014 £1m) of Interest recevable from related parties There was anet

movement of £nil on fair value hedges in 2015 (2014 £nil), comprisinga gain of £22m (2014 loss of £27m)on the
underlying bonds, offset by aloss of £22m (2014 gain of £27m)an the related derivative financial instruments

fFor further information on adjusted measures above, see note 8
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7 Income tax

2014
Allfigures in £ milllons Notes 2015 restated
Current tax
Charge in respect of current year (155) (96)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 42 30
Total current tax charge (113) (66)
Deferred tax
Inrespect of temporary differences 185
Other adjustrments in respect of prior years 9
Total deferred tax credit 13 194 10
Total tax credit/{charge) 81 {56)

The adjustments in respect of prior years in both 2015 and 2014 mainly relate to changes in esumates ansing from
uncertain tax positions following agreement of historical tax positions

The tax on the Group's (loss)/profit befare tax differs from the theoretical amount that would anse using the UK tax

rate as follows

2014
Allfigures in £ milllons 2015 restated
{Lossyprofit before tax (433) 255
Tax calculated at UK rate (2015 20 259%, 2014 21 5%) 88 {55)
Effect of overseas tax rates 52 (10)
Joint venture and associate income reported net of tax 10 7
Net expense not subject to tax (66) (1)
Gains and losses an sale of businesses not subject to tax {32) -
Unutilised tax losses (22) (19)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 51 32
Total tax credit/(charge) 81 {56)
UK (25) -
Overseas 106 {56)
Total tax credit/(charge) ’ 81 {56)
Taxrate reflected in earnings 18 7% 22 0%
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7 Income tax continued

The tax rate reflected in adjusted earrings is calculated as follows

2014
All figures in £ millions 2015 restated
(Loss)/profit before tax {433) 255
Adjustments
Other net gains and losses (13} (2)
Acquisttion costs - 6
Intangible charges 1,089 315
Other net finance (income)/costs (17} 29
Adjusted profit before tax - continuing operations 626 603
Adjusted profit before tax - discontinued operations 51 55
Total adjusted profit before tax 677 658
Total tax credit/{charge} 81 {56}
Adjustments
Tax charge onh other net gains and losses 40 1
Tax benefiton acquisition costs - N
Tax benefit onintangible charges (257) (72
Tax charge/{benefit) on ather net finance costs 7 (5)
Tax amortisation benefit on goodwili and intangibles 33 24
Adjusted income tax charge - continuing operations (96) {109)
Adjusted income tax charge - discontinued operations (9 (9
Total adjusted income tax charge (105) (118)
Tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings 15 5% 17 9%
For further information on adjusted measures above, see note 8
The tax (chargelbenefit recognised in other comprehensive income s as follows
All figures in Erulhans 2015 2014
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 5 6}
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations (24} (1)

(19} 7

Atax charge of £1m (2014 tax charge £3m} relating to share-based payments has been recognised directly in equity
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8 Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calcufated by dividing the profit attnbutable to equity shareholders of the company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by

the company and held as treasury shares

Difuted

Dduted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares to take

account of all dilutive potential ordinary shares and adjusting the profit attributable, if applicable, to account for

any tax consequences that might anse fram conversion of those shares

2014
Allfigures in E millions Notes 2015 restated
{Loss)/profit for the year from continuing operations (352) 199
Non-controliing interest - 1
Earnings from continuing operations {352) 200
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3 1175 271
Earnings 823 471
Waeighted average number of shares (rmllions) 8133 8109
Effect of dilutive share options {(mtliions) - 10
Weighted average number of shares {militons) for diluted earnings 8133 gnag
Earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operattons
Basic 101 2p 581p
Diluted 101 2p 58 0p
(Loss)earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic (43 3)p 247p
Diluted {43 3)p 24 6p
Earmings per share from discontinued operations
Basic 144 5p 334p
Diluted 144.5p 334p
Adjusted

in order to show results from operating activittes on a consistent basis, an adjusted earnings per share is presented
The company's definition of adjusted earnings per share may not be comparable to other strmilarly titled measures

reported by other companies

Adjusted earnings includes the results from continuing and disconttnued operations The following items are

excluded from adjusted earnings

Other net gains and losses represent profits and losses on the acquisition and disposal of substdianies, joint

ventures, assoclates and other financial assets that are included within continuing or discontinued aperations but

which distort the performance of the Group

Amortisation and impairment of acquired intangibles, acquisition costs and movemnents In contingent acquisition
consideration are also excluded from adjusted earnings as these tems are not considered to be fully reflective of the

underlying performance of the Group
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8 Earnings per share continued

Other net finance iIncome/costs include finance costs in respect of reurement benefits, finance costs of deferred
consideration and foreign exchange and other gamns and losses Finance costs relating to retirement benefits are
excluded as the consolidated income statement presentation under IAS 19 does not reflect the economic substance
of the underlying assets and habilittes Finance costs of put options and deferred consideration are excluded as they
relate to future earn outs and similar payments on acquisitions and do nat reflect cash expended Foreign exchange
and other gains and losses are excluded as they represent short-term fluctuations in market value and are subjectto
significant volatiity Other gains and losses may not be realised in due course as1tis normally the intention to hold
the related instruments to matunity Other net finance costs of Group companies are included in finance costs or
finance income as appropriate Other net finance costs of joint ventures and associates are included within the share
of results of joint ventures and associates within operating profit

Tax on the above items 1s excluded from adjusted earnings Where relevant the Group also excludes the benefit from
recognising previously unracogrised pre-acquisition and capital losses The tax benefit from tax deductible goodwill
and intangibles 1s added to the adjusted income tax charge as this benefit more accurately aligns the adjusted tax
charge with the expected rate of cash tax payments

Non-controlling interest for the above ltems is excluded from adjusted earnings The following tables reconcile
statutory earnings to adjusted earnings

2015
Other net
Statutory Other net finance Tax Adjusted
income Biscontinued  gainsand Acquisition Intangible  Income/ amertisation income
All figures {n £ milhons statement operations losses costs charges €Osts henefit stateament
Operating {loss)/profit (404) 51 (13) - 1,089 - - 723
Net finance costs (29) - - - - (17 - (46}
{Loss)/profit before tax (433) 5 (13} - 1,089 (17) - 677
income tax 81 (9) 40 - (257} 7 33 {105)
{Loss)/profit for the year from
contrnuing operations (352) 42 27 - 832 (10 33 572
Profit for the year fram
discontinued operations 1175 {42) (1,135) - 2 - - -
Profit for theyear 823 - {1,108) - 834 10) 33 572
Non-controlling interest - - - - - - - -
Earnings 823 - {1,108} - 834 {10} 3 572
Weighted average number
of shares (mllions) 813.3 8133
Weighted average number
of shares {millicns) for
diluted earnings 8133 8133
Earnings per share {basic) 101 2p 703p

Earnings per share (diluted) 101 2p 70 3p
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8 Earnings per share continued

2014
restated

Other net
Statutory Other net ﬁ:;:cee Tax  Adjusted
. income Discontinued  gainsand Acguisition Intangible  income/ amortisabon Income
Allfigures In E mllllons statement  operations losses costs charges costs benefit statement
Operating profit 348 55 {2 6 315 - - 722
Net finance costs {93) - - - - 29 - (64)
Profit before tax 255 55 2 6 315 29 - 658
Income tax (56) {9} 1 {1) (72 5 24 {118}
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 159 46 ] 5 243 24 24 540
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 27 (46} {(227) ~ 2 - - -
Profit for the year 470 - (228) 5 245 24 24 54Q
Non-contrelling interest 1 - - - - - - 1
Earnings 47 - (228) 5 245 24 24 51
Weighted average number
of shares (milfions}) 8109 8109
Welghted average number
of shares (millions) for
diluted earnings 819 8119
Earnings per share (basic) 581p 66 7p
Earnings per share (diluted) 580p 66 ép
9 Dividends
All figures in £ millions 2015 2014
Final paid in respect of prior year 34 Op (2014 32 0p} 277 259
Interim paid \n respect of current year 18 Op (2014 170p) 146 138
423 397

The directors are proposing a final dwidend in respect of the financial year ended 31 Decernber 2015 of 34 Op per
share which will absorb an estimated £277m of shareholders’ funds It will be paid on & May 2016 to shareholders

who are on the register of members on 8 April 2016 These financial statements do not reflect this dividend
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

10 Property, plant and equipment

Assetsin
tandand Plantand course of

All figures in £ mlilions buidings  equipment construction Total
Cost

At 1 January 2014 375 568 32 975
Exchange differences 1" 17 - 28
Additrans 10 58 19 87
Disposals )] (46) (2} (57)
Acgquisition through business combination - 2 - 2
Disposal through business disposal - (1) - (1)
Reclassifications 1 3 4 -
Transfer to software - - (16} (16}
At 31 December 2014 388 601 29 1,018
Exchange differences 8 10 1 19
Additions 15 42 25 82
Disposals (20) (86) - (106)
Acquisition through business combination - - - -
Disposalthrough business disposal {48) (76} - (124)
Reclassifications 16 17 {33) -
At 31 December 2015 359 508 22 889
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10 Property. plant and equipment continued g
Landand Plant and c?::stes g} %

All figures in Emillions buildings  equipment construction Total A

Depreciation

Al1January 2014 {210) (423) - {633}

Exchange differences (7} {15) - {22}

Charge for the year (23) (51) - (74)

Disposals 9 36 - 45

At 31 December 2014 (231) (453) - (684) 8

Exchange differences 5) (12) - 17) g

Charge for the year (22) 53) - (75) é

Disposals 18 82 - 100 3

Disposal through business disposal 48 59 - 107

At 31 December 2015 (192) (377) - (569}

Carrying amounts

At1)anuary 2014 165 145 32 342

At 31 December 2014 157 148 29 334

At 31 December 2015 167 i 22 320

Depreciation expense of £19m (2014 £16m) has been included in the income statement fn cost of goods sold and
£50m {2014 £51m) 0 operating expenses In 2015 £6m (2014 £7m) relates to discontinued operations

The Group leases certain equipment under a number of finance lease agreements The net carrying amount of
leased plant and equipment included within property, plant and equipment was £8m (2014 £13m)
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11 Intangible assets

Acquired
customner lists,

Acquired

Acqulred

Other

contracts and trademarks publishing Intangibles

Allfigures in £ mllllens Goodwill  Software relationships and brands rights  acquired Total
Cost .
At1January 2014 4,666 469 855 237 198 398 6,823
Exchange differences 198 17 34 5 - 14 268
impalrment (67) - - - - - {&67)
Additions ~ nternal development - 54 - - - - 54
Additions -~ purchased - 53 - - - - 53
Disposals - (7 - - - - (7}
Acquisition through business

comblnation 238 - 5 69 - 186 493
Disposal through husiness disposal (5) (5) - (3) (1) - (14)
Transfer from PPE - 16 - - - - 16
At 31 December 2014 5,030 597 894 308 197 598 7.624
Exchange differences 105 17 25 (17) {7) (40) 83
Impairment (826} - - - - - (826)
Additions - nternal development - 125 - - - - 125
Additions - purchased - 36 - - - - 36
Disposals - (18) - {4) {10) (29) {61)
Acquisition through business

combination - - - - - 1 1
Disposal through business disposal (175) {138) (59) (6) - (21 (399)
At 31 December 2015 4,134 619 860 281 180 509 6,583
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11 Intangible assets continued

Acquired

customerilsts,  Acquired  Acquired Gther

contracts and trademnarks publishing Intangibles
All figures in £ mitlions Goodwill  Software relatlonships and brands rights  acquired Total
Amortisation
At 1 January 2014 - (316) {249} (93) {148) {216)  (1,022)
Exchange differences - (13) 1) (3 - (12} (39)
Impairment - - (6) (2) - (2) (10)
Charge for the year - (63} (83) (258) 12) (67) (250)
Disposals - 5 - - - - 5
Disposal through business disposal - 1 - 1 - - 2
At 31 December 2014 - {386) (349) {122) (160) 297) (1,314
Exchange differences - (14) {8) 1 6 (6} 21
Impairment - - (13) 4] (9} - {23)
Charge for the year - (74) (99) {40} (10 (53) (276)
Disposals 18 - 4 10 29 61
Disposal through business disposal - 29 39 3 - 13 154
At 31 December 2015 - {357) (430) (155) {163) 314y (1.419)
Carrying amounts
At1}anuary 2014 4,666 153 606 144 50 182 5,801
At31 December 2014 5,030 21 545 186 37 301 6,310
At 31 December 2015 4,134 262 430 126 17 195 5,164
Goodwill

The goodwill carrying value of £4,134m relates to acquisiions completed after 1 january 1998 Prior to

1 January 1998 all goodwill was written off to reserves on the date of acquisition For acquisitions completed
between 1 January 1998 and 31 December 2002 no value was ascribed to intangtbies other than goodwill and the
goodwiil on each acquisition was amortised over a period of up to 20years On adoption of iFRS on 1 January 2003,
the Group chose not to restate the goodwill balance and at that date the balance was frozen {i e amortisation
ceased) If goodwill had been restated then a significant value would have been ascribed to other intangible assets,
which woutd be subject to amortisation, and the carrying value of goodwill would be significantly lower For
acquisitions completed after 1 January 2003 value has been ascribed to other intangible assets which are amortised

Other intangible assets
Otherintangibles acquired include content, technology and software rights

Intangible assets are valued separately for each acquisition and the primary method of valuation used is the
discounted cash flow method The majority of acquired intangibles are amortised using an amortisation profile
based on the projected cash flows underlying the acquisition date valuation of the intangible asset, which generally
results in a larger proportion of amortisation being recognised 1n the early years of the asset's Iife The Group keeps
the expected pattern of consumption under review

Amortisation of £13m (2014 £12m) s included in the income statement in cost of goods sold and £247m (2014
£223m) In operating expenses in 2015, £16m (2014 £15m) of amortsation relates to discontinued operations
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11 Intangible assets continued

The range of useful economic lives for each major class of intangible asset (excluding goodwill and software)

1s shown below

Class of intangibie asset

2015

Useful economic life

Acquired customer {ists, contracts and relationships 3-20years
Acquired trademarks and brands 2-20years
Acquired publishing nghts 5-20years
Otherintangibles acquired 2-20 years
The expected amortisation profile of acquired intangible assets 1s shown below

2015

Oneto Sixto Marethan

All figuresin £ milllons five years ten years tenyears Total
Class of iIntangible asset
Acquired customer lists, contracts and relationships 268 122 40 430
Acquired trademarks and brands 56 47 23 126
Acquired publishing nghts 15 2 - 17
Other intangibles acquired 146 43 6 195

Impairment tests for cash-generating units {CGUs) containing goodwlt
Impairment tests have been carried out where appropnate as described below

Following & reorganisation of the business effective 1 |anuary 2014 goodwll was allocated to CGUs, or an
aggregation of CGUs, where goodwill could not be reasenably allocated to individual business units Impairment
reviews were conducted on these CGUs The carrying value of the goodwill tn each of the CGUs, after theimpact

of Impairments, is summarised below

All figures In £ millons 2015 2014
North America 3,155 3,422
Core 635 618
Growth (iIncludes Braz#, Ching, India and South Africa) - 612
Pearson VUE 344 327

- 51

Financial Times Group

Total

4134 5,030

The recoverable amount of each aggregated cash generating unit {CGU) 1s based on fair vatue less costs of disposal
orvalue i use calculations as appropriate Goodwill 1s tested at least annually for impairment Other than goodwifi
there are no iIntangible assets with indefimte lives The goodwilt 1s generally denominated in the currency of the
relevant cash flows and therefore the iImpairment review 1s not matenially sensiive to exchange rate fluctuations
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11 Intangible assets continued

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill continued

Following significant econoric and market deterioration in the Group's operations in emerging markets and ongoing
cychical and policy-related pressures in the Group’s mature market operations, management's expectations of future
returns were revised down in the course of 2015 It was determined during the impairment review that the fair

value less costs of disposal of the Growth, North Amenica and Core CGUs no longer supported the carrying value

of the goodwill Anlmpairment of £507m was booked in respect of the Group's Growth operations, representing
impairments of £269m n the Brazil CGY, £181m in the China CGU, £48m in the South Africa CGU and £9m tn the
Other Growth CGU, thereby bringing the carrying value of goodwill in those CGUs down to £nil Impairments of

£10m and £13m were also booked in respect of other acquired intangibies in the South Africa and Other Growth
CGUs respectively, bringing their carrying value down to £nit Impairments of £282m and £37m were also bocked In
respect of the North America and Core CGUs respectively, bninging the carrying value of the goodwill in those CGUs
down to fair value less costs of disposal Fairvalue less costs of disposal was determined using post-tax discount
rates of 17 4% for Brazl, 11 0% for China, 13 6% for South Africa, 12 8% for Other Growth, 8 6% for North America

and 8 7% for Core Following the above impairments, the recoverable amounts of the Growth, North America and
Core CGUs are £350m, £4,750m and £926m respectively

Key assumptions

For the purpose of estimating the fair value less costs of disposal of the CGUs, management has used an income
approach based on present value techniques The calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period, management's best estimate about future developments and
market assumptions The fair vatue less costs of disposal measurement 1s categorised as Level 3 on the falr value
hierarchy The key assumptions used by management In the fair value fess costs of disposal calculations were

Discount rates The discount rate 1s based on the risk-free rate for government bonds, adjusted for arisk premium
to reflect the increased risk in investing in equities The risk premium adjustment s assessed for each specific CGU
The average post-tax discount rates range from 7 2% to 17 4% Discount rates are lower for those businesses
which operate In more mature markets with low inflation and higher for those operating in emerging markets
with hugher inflation

Perpetuity growth rates A perpetuity growth rate of 2 0% (2014 2 0%) was used for cash flows subsequent to the
approved budget penod for CGUs operating in mature markets This perpetuity growth rate 1s aconservative rate
and 1s considered to be lower than the long-term historical growth rates of the underlytng terntones inwhich the
CGU operates and the long-term growth rate prospects of the sectors inwhich the CGU operates CGU growth rates
between 5 0% and 8 5% were used for cash flows subsequent to the approved budget period for CGUs operating in
emerging markets with high inflation These growth rates are also below thelong-term historical growth ratesin
these markets

The key assumptions used by management in setting the financial budgets for the initial five-year period were
as follows

Forecast sales growth rates Forecast sales growth rates are based an past expetience adjusted for the strategic
direction and nearterm investment prionties within each CGU Key factors indude USA and UK college enrotment
rates, assessment growth rates, the success of new product launches, growth rates and economic conditions in
emerging markets and the rate of growth in new services businesses The five-year sales forecasts use average
norminal growth rates between 1 1% and 1 6% for mature markets and between 0 1% and 5 6% for emerging markets
with high inflation

Operating profits Operating profits are forecast based on historical experience of operating margins, adjusted for
the impact of changes to product costs and cost saving imtiatives, iIncluding the impact of the global restructunng
programme planned in 2016

Cash conversion Cash canversion is the ratio of aperating cash flow to operating profit Managernent forecasts cash
conversion rates based on historical experience, adjusted for the impact of product investment priorities and the
shift to digital and service based business
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11 Intangible assets continued

sensitivities

The Group's impairment review is sensitive to @ change in assumptions used, imost notably the discount rates and
the perpetuity growth rates As the carryingvalue of goodwill in the Growth market CGUs has been written down to
£rvii, the value of other intangible assets in Brazil and China Is sensitive to any increase in discount rates or reduction
in perpetuity growth rates In the North America and Core CGUs goodwill has been written down to fair value fess
costs of dispasal and any further increase in discount rates or reduction n perpetulty growth rates would give rise to
further impalrment A0 1% increase in discount rates would cause the fairvaiue less costs of disposal of the Brazil,
China, North America and Core CGUs to reduce by £3m, £5m, £120m and £25m respectively A0 1% reductionin
perpetuity growth rates would cause the fair value less costs of disposal of the Brazil, China, North America and Core
CGUs to reduce by £2m, £5m, £100m and £21m respectively All CGUs which have beenwritten down to fairvalue
less costs of disposal are highly sensitive to any reductions n short-term cash flows, whether dnven by lower sales
growth, iower aperating profits or iower cash conversion A 5% reduction in total annual operating profits, spread
evenly across ali CGUSs, woutd give rise to an impairment of £29m in the Growth CGUs, £24Tmin the North America
CGU and £62min the Core CGU

2014 1impairment tests .

In 2014 following deterioration in the market conditions for the Group's oniine tutoring business based in India, it
was determined In the course of the impairment review that the vaiue In use of the Indra CGU no longer supported
the carrying value of the goodwill In that CGU An Impairment of £67m was booked, thereby bringing the carrying
value of goodwill inthe India CGU down to £nil An impairment of £10m was also booked inrespect of other acquired
intangibies in that CGU, bringing their carrying value to £nil The India CGU incorporates allthe Group's trading
operations i India A pre-tax discount rate of 13 6% was used to deternine the value inuse ofthe India CGU

No previous assessment had been made of the value in use of that CGU as the Group’s Inclia operations, prior

to the 1 )January 2014 reorganisation, were previously part of a larger Emerging Markets aggregated CGU

12 Investments In joint ventures and associates

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

All figures in £ millions 2015 2014
Associates 1,099 1,105
jointventures 4 13
Total 1,103 1,118

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows

Allfiguresin £millions 2015 2014
Associates 72 54
Jont ventures 4 (3
Total 68 51

Included within the 2015 results are discontinued operations consisting of £17m profit from assoclates (2014 £21m
profity and £1m loss from joint ventures (2014 £3m loss) For further information on discontinued operations and the
profit on sale of associates and joint ventures, see notes 3 and 31
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12 Investrments in joint ventures and associates continued £
o
Investmentn associates %
On 16 October 2015, the Group scld 39% of its 50% stake in The Economust (see note 31 for further informatiomn; g
As at 31 December 2015, the Group holds an 11% stake in The Econornist which has been classified as an 'Other
financial asset’ (see note 15)
The Group has the following material associates
Principal
placesf  Ownership Nature of Measurement
business interest relationship method
Penguin Random House Ltd UK/Global 47% Seebelow Equity 2
Penguin Random House LLC us 47% Seebelow Equity ‘.i
[=]
On 1 July 2013 Penguin Random House was formed, upon the completion of an agreement between Pearson and 3
Bertelsmann to merge thelr respective trade publishing comipanies, Penguin and Random House, with the parent 5
companies owning 47% and 53% of the combined business respectively The shareholder agreement inctudes
protection nights for Pearson as the minority shareholder, including nghts to dividends Management considers
ownership percentage, board composition and the additional protective rights, and exercises judgement to
determune that Pearson has significant influence over Penguin Random House and Bertelsmann has the power to
direct the relevant activities and therefore control Penguin Random House does nothave a quoted market price
The summansed financial information of the matenal assoiates is detalled below o
v
2015 2014 8
Penguin Penguin z
Random The Random The 133
Allfigures in £ millions House Economist House Economist 'Pi
Assets
Current assets 1,354 - 1,355 110
Non-current assets 1,244 - 1,429 166
Lrabilities
Currentiiabilibes (1,034) - (1.113) (190) 4
Non-current habiiies (358) - (424) (86} _%
Net assets 1,206 - 1,247 - 8
m
Sales 2,453 276 2416 320
Profit from continuing operations 136 - 74 -
Profit from discontinued operations - 34 - 42
GCther comprehensive income/{expense} 51 - 42 {20)
Total comprehensive income 187 34 116 22 Y
o
Dividends recewved from associate 142 20 95 21 ﬁ
(1]
3
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statemnents of the assoclates, adjusted for o
&

fairvalue and similar adjustments Amounts presented for The Economist cover the period up until the date of the
part:al dispesal The tax on Penguin Randorn House LLC 1s settled by the partners For the purposes of dlear and
consistent presentation, the tax has been shown in the associate line items 1n the consolidated Income statement
and consolidated balance sheet, recording the Group’s share of profit after tax consistently for the Penguin Random
House associates
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12 Investments in Jomnt ventures and associates cantinued

Investment tn associates continued

Areconcihation of the summarised financlal information to the carrying value of the matenal associatesis

shown below

2015

2014

Penguin Penguin

Random The Random The
Allfigures In £mlllions House Economist House Economlst
Opening net assets 1,247 - 1,232 16
Exchange differences m - n -
Profitfor the period 136 34 74 42
Other comprehensive income/(expense) 51 - 42 (20)
Dividends, net of tax paid (229} {40) {100} (42)
Additions 2 - - -
Distribution from associate in excess of carrying value - - - 4
Reversal of distribution from associate in excess of carrying value - (3) - -
Disposat - 9 - -
Closing net assets 1,206 - 1,247 -
Share of net assets 567 - 586 -
Goodwill 526 - 509 -
Carrying value of associate 1,093 - 1,095 -
Information on other individually immatenal associates 1s detailed below
All figuresin E millions 2015 2014
Loss from continuing operations 9 {2)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive expense ) (2)

Transactions with materal associates

The Group has loans to Penguin Random House which are unsecured and interest 1 calculated based on market
rates The amount outstanding at 31 December 2015 was £47m (2014 £54m) The loans are provided under a
working capital faatity and fluctuate during the year The loan outstanding at 31 Decemnber 2015 was repaid inits

entirety in January 2016

The Group also has a current asset recevable of £27m (2014 £41m}from Penguin Random House arising from the

provision of services Included in other income (note 4) 1s £16m (2014 £41m) of service fees
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12 Investments in Jamt ventures and associates continued

Investmentn joint ventures
Information on joint ventures, all of which are individually immaterial, 1s detaded below

Allfigures in £ millions 2015 2014
Loss from continuing operations (3) (3)
Loss from discontinued operations {1 -

Other comprehensive Income - -

Total comprehensive expense 4 (3
13 Deferred income tax

Allfigures in £ millions 2015 2014
Deferred income tax assets 276 285

Deferred income tax liabilities {560) (714)
Net deferred Income tax (284) 419)

Substantially all of the deferred income tax assets are expected to be recovered after more than one year

Deferred Income tax assets and lrabilittes may be offset when there is a legally enforceable night to offset current

income tax assets against current Income tax labtlities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same

fiscal authority At 31 December 2015 the Group has unrecognised deferred income tax assets of Enil {2014 £4rmy)
inrespect of UK losses, £11m (2014 £14m)inrespect of US losses and approximately £70m {2014 £44m) inrespect
of losses in other territories The US losses relate to state taxes and therefore have expiry periods of between five

and 20 years

The recognition of the deferred income tax assets is supported by management’s forecasts of the future profitatnlity

of the relevant business units

The movement on the net deferred income tax account 1s as follows

Allfiguresin £ millions Notes 2015 2014

At beginning of year (419) {362)
Exchange differences (26) (22)
Income statement benefit 7 196 10

Drsposal through business disposal - 1 1)
Tax charge to cther comprehensive income or equity {36} (18}
Transfer to current tax - (26)
Atend of year (284) (419)

Inctuded in the income statement above for 2015 15 a £2m benefit (2014 E£niljrelating to discontinued operations
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13 Deferred ncome tax continued

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities durning the year s as follows

Retirement
Trading Returns benefit
Allfigures In £ milllens losses provisiens  obligations Other Total
Deferred income tax assets
At1January 2014 15 39 42 154 250
Exchange differences 2 4 5 12
Acquisition through business combination 2 - - - 2
Income statement benefit 10 3 7 35 55
Tax benefit/{charge) to other comprehenstve
Income or equity - - 10 {7) 3
Transfer to current tax - - - (26) {26)
Dispasal through business disposal - - {1 - n
At 31 December 2014 28 44 62 161 295
Exchange differences 5 3 4 9 21
Income statement charge (14} 4) [&)] {15} (36)
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity - - 4 - 4)
At 31 December 2015 19 43 59 155 276
Other deferred tncome tax assets include temporary differences on goodwill, deferred income, share-based
payments, inventory and other provisions
Goodwill and
All figures in £millions intangibles Other Total
beferred mcome tax habikities
At 1January 2014 (584) (28) (612)
Exchange differences (30) () {34
Acquisition through business combination ) - (2)
Income statement benefit/{charge) 18 {63) (45}
Tax charge to other comprehensive tncome or equity - (21) 2n
At 31 December 2014 (598) {116) (714)
Exchange differences {41) {6) 4N
Income statement benefit 180 52 232
Disposal through bustness disposal 1 - 1
Tax charge to ather comprehensive tncome or equity - (32) (32)
At 3t December 2015 {458) (102) (560)

Other deferred income tax habilities include temporary differences in respect of depreciation and royalty advances
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14 Ciassification of financial mstruments

The accounting classification of each class of the Group's financial assets and financial labilities, together with their
carrying values and market values, is as follows

2015
Falr value Armortised cost
Derivatives
Available dheeeIT fzc: D;:rrlmﬁ:i':; Other Loansand Cther car.rry?trg m;ﬁ::tl

All figures in £ millions Notes for sale trading relationships liabllities recelvables labllities value value
investments in listed securties 15 - - - - - - - -
Investments In unlisted
securities 15 143 - - - - - 143 143
Cash and cash equivalents 17 - - - - 1,703 - 1703 1703
Marketable securities 28 - - - - - 28 28
Dernwative financial instruments 16 - 29 81 - - - 110 110
Trade recervables 22 - - - - 963 - 963 963
Total financial assets 171 29 81 - 2,666 - 2947 2,947
Dervative financiaf instruments 16 - (36) (129) - - - {165) (185)
Trade payables 24 - - - - - 319 {319 (319)
Bank ipans and overdrafts 18 - - - - - (38) (38 (38)
Borrowings due withun oneyear 18 - - - - - (244) {244y (244)
Borrowings due after more than
one year 18 - - - - - {2,048} (2,048) (2,609)
Total financial labilities - {36) (129) - - (2.649) (2,814} (2,775)
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14 Classification of financial instruments continued

204
Fairvalue Amortised cost
Derivatives
deemed  Derivatives Totaf Total

All figures in £ millions Notes A‘;:?‘:::Z 2:;%::; relgm';iifg\tgi ||ab(ﬂ:2:; r:g(:r\::;r:g IBbCI’IT::; car\:aﬁlzi m\?;ﬁ;
Investments in listed securities 15 9 - - - - - 9 9
investments in unlisted
securities 15 45 - - - - - 45 45
Cash and cash equivalents 17 - - - - 530 - 530 530
Marketable securites 16 - - - - - 16 16
Derivative financial instruments 16 - 3 108 - - - 14 14
Trade recetvables 22 - - - - 989 - 989 989
Total financial assets 70 6 108 - 1,519 - 1,703 1,703
Derivative financial instruments 16 - (33) (41) - - - {74y  {74)
Trade payables 24 - - - - ~ (329 (329) (329)
Bank lcans and overdrafts 18 - - - - - 42) @ 42)
Borrow:ngs due within one year 18 - - - - - {305) (305) (319}
Borrowings due after more than
Qane year 18 - - - - - {1,878) (1,878) {1,888)
Total financial kabilites - (33) 41) - - (2,554} (2,628) (2,652}

Certain of the Group's derivative financial instruments are classified as held for trading either as they do not meet
the hedge accounting critena speafied in 1AS 39 ‘Financial instruments Recognition and Measurement’ or as the
Group has chosen not to seek hedge accounting for these instruments None of these derivatives are held for
speculative trading purposes Transactions in derivative financial tnstrurments are only undertaken to manage risks
ansing from underlying busmess activity, in accordance with the Group's treasury policy as described in note 19

The Group designates certatn qualifying dernvative financial instruments as hedges of the fair value of its bonds
{fair value hedges) Changes in the fatr value of these denvative financial instruments are recorded in the ncome
statement, together with any change i the fair value of the hedged liability attributable to the hedged risk

The Group also designates certain of its borrowings and derivative financial instruments as hedges of its
investments in foreign operations (net investment hedges) Movements in the fair value of these financial

Instruments (to the extent they are effective) are recognised in other comprehensive income

None of the Group's financial assets or liabilittes are designated at fair value through the income statement upon

initial recognition

More detail on the Group's accounting for financial instruments 1s included in the Group's accounting polictes
The Group's approach to managing risks in relation to finanaal instruments is described in note 19
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15 Other financial assets

All figuresin £ millions 2015 2014
At beginning of year 54 94
Exchange differences 3 6
Acquisition of Investments . 1M 12
Disposal of investments {15 {58)
At end of year 143 54

Gther financial assets comprise listed secunties of £ntl (2014 £9m) and unhsted securities of £143m (2014 £45m)
Acquisition of investments includes the remalning 11% stake in The Economist, see note 31 for further information

16 Derwvative financal instruments

The Group’s approach to the management of financial risks s set out In note 19 The Group's outstanding derivative
financial iInstruments are as follows

2015 2014
Gross Gross
notianal notlonal
Allfigures in £ millions amounts Assets Liahilities amounts Assets Liabilities
Interest rate dervatives -
in a fair value hedge relatlonship 1,952 70 (10} 1,607 84 (5)
Interestrate derivatives -
not in a hedge relatlonship 848 - (&) 673 - (7
Cross-currency rate derivatives -
In a hedge relationshup 1,879 10 M9y 889 24 (36)
Cross-currency rate derivatives -
not i a hedge relationship 120 30 {30) 451 8 {26)
Total 4,799 10 {165) 3,620 114 (74)
Analysed as expiring,
in less than one year 324 32 (29) 200 24 {1
Later than one year and not later
than five years 1,255 44 (4) 1,386 67 (8)
Later than five years 3,220 34 (132) 2,034 23 (65)
Total 4,799 110 (165) 3,620 114 (74}
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16 Denvative financial instruments continued

The carrying vafue of the above dervative financial instruments equals thelr fair value Fair values are determined
by ustng market data and the use of established estimation techniques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuation models

Atthe end of 2015, the currency spht of the mark-to-market values of rate denvatives, including the exchange of
principal on cross-currency rate dervatives, was US dollar £(917)m, sterling £102m, eure £759m and Brazihan real
£rl (2014 US dollar £{(607)m, sterling £214m, euro £430m and Brazvan real £4m)

The fixed interest rates on outstanding rate denvative contracts at the end of 2015 range from 110% to 14 48%
{2014 110% to 14 48%) and the floating rates are based on UBOR in US dollar, eurc and sterling

The Group's portfolio of rate derivatives ts diversified by maturity, counterparty and type Natural offsets between
transactions within the portfalic and the designation of certain dervatives as hedges significantly reduce the risk
ofincome statement volatility The sensitwvity of the portfollo to changes In market rates s set cutin note 19

Denvative financial assets and habilities subject to offsetting arrangements are as follows

2015 2014

Net Net

Gross Gross derivative Gross Gross derlvative

derivative derivative assets/ derivative derhvative assets/

All figuresin £ miflions assets liabllitles llabliities assets liabllitles tiabillties

Counterparties in an asset position 50 (22) 28 94 (28) 66
Counterparties in a hability position 60 {143) (83) 20 (46} (26}

Total as presented in the balance sheet 110 {165) (55) 114 {74} 40

All of the Group's derivative financial instruments are subject to enforceable netting arrangements with indwvidual
counterparties, allowing net settlement in the event of default of either party Offset arrangements in respect of
cash balances are shown in note 17

Counterparty exposure from all derivatives 1s managed, together with that from deposits and hank account
balances, within credit limits that reflect published credit ratings and by reference to other market measures (e g
market prices for credit default swaps) to ensure that there is no significant risk to any one counterparty No singfe
dervative transaction had a market value (positive or negative) at the balance sheet date that exceeded 3% of the
Group's consolidated total equity

In accordance with IAS 39 ‘Finanaal Instruments Recogmition and Measurement’ the Group has reviewed all of its
material contracts for embedded dervatives that are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet
certam requirements, and has concluded that there are no material embedded derivatives
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17 Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts)

Allfigures in £ millions 2015 2014
Cash at bank and m hand 627 483
Short-term bank deposits 1,076 47

1,703 530

Shart-term bank deposits are invested with banks and earn interest at the prevaling short-term deposit rates

At the end of 2015 the currency split of cash and cash equivalents was US dollar 23% (2014 18%), sterling 57%
{2014 13%), euro 2% {2014 3%), renminbi 8% (2014 28%)and other 10% (2014 389%)

Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate to their carrying value due to their short-term nature
Cash and cash equivatents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement

All iguresin£ millions

2m5

2014

Cash and cash equivalents - continuing operations 1,703 530
Bank overdrafts - continuing operations {32) (19
1,671 51

The Group has the following cash poohng arrangements in US doliars, sterling, euro and canadian dollars where

both the company and the bank have a legal nght of offset

2015 2014

Offset Offset Net offset Offset Offset Netoffset

Allfigures in £ millions asset habdity asset asset Hability asset

US dollars 446 (442} 4 267 {266} 1

Steriing 290 (289) 1 430 427) 3

Euro 5 3 2 9 (8} 1

Canadian dollars 36 (10 26 10 - 10
Total for continuing operations as

presented in the balance sheet 33 15

Offset arrangements in respect of dertvatives are shownin note 16
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18 Financial habiities - borrowings

The Group's current and non-current borrowings are as follows

All figures In £ miilions 2015 2014
Non-current
4 0% US dollar notes 2016 (nominal amount $350m) - 231
6 25% Global dollar bonds 2018 (nominal amount $550m) 403 390
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 (nominal amount $300m) 218 210
1 875% Euro notes 2021 {(nominal amount €500m) 386 408
3 75% US dollar notes 2022 (nominal amount $500m) 342 319
3 25% US dollar notes 2023 (hominal amount $500m) 336 315
1 375% Euro notes 2025 (nominal amount €500m) 359 -
Bank loans and overdrafts - 5
Finance lease liabtlitres 4 3
2,048 1,883
Current
Due within one year or on-demand
6 0% Sterling bonds 2015 (nominal amount £300m} - 300
4 0% US dollar notes 2016 {nominal amount $350m) 240 -
Bank loans and overdrafts 38 37
Finance lease Habilitres 4 5
282 342
Total borrowings 2,330 2,225

Included in the ron-current borrowings above 1s £15m of accrued interest (2014 £13m) Inciuded in the current
borrowings above i1s £1m of accrued interest (2014 £1my

The maturity of the Group’s non-current borrowing 1s as follows

Allfigures in £ millions 2015 2014
Between one and two years 3 239
Between two and five years 622 602
Over five years 1,423 1,042

2,048 1,883
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18 Financial habilities - borrowings continued g
The carrying amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows %
7
2015 2014
Effective Carrying Market Effective Carrying Market
Allfigures in £ miilions interestrate value value  interestrate value value
Bank loans and overdrafts nfa ag 38 n/a 42 42
6 0% Sterling bonds 2015 - - - 627% 300 314
40% US dollar notes 2016 4 26% 240 240 4 269 231 233
6 25% Global dollar bonds 2018 6 46% 403 405 6 46% 390 397 2
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 469% 218 213 4 69% 210 205 }i
1 875% Euro notes 2021 204% 386 380 204% 408 407 g
3 75% US dollar notes 2022 394% 342 335 394% 319 327 %
3 25% US dollar notes 2023 336% 336 322 3 36% 315 314
1 375% Euro notes 2025 144% 359 350 nfa - -
Finance lease lhabdites n/a 8 8 nfa 10 10
2,330 2,291 2,225 2,249
The market values stated above are based on clean market prices at the year end or, where these are not available, 8
on the quoted market prices of comparable debt issued by other companies The effective Interest rates above relate §
to the underlying debt instruments !
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrewings are denominated in the following currencies é
Al figures in £ milllons 2015 2014
Us dollar 1,563 1,491
Sterling 1 303
Euro 759 408
Other 7 23 o
2,330 2,225 g
g
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18 Finanaal habiities - borrowings continued

The Group has the following undrawn capacity on its commutted borrowing facilities as at 31 December

All figures in £ milifons 2015 2014

Floating rate

- expiring within one year - -

- expinng beyond one year 1,187 1,122
1,187 1,122

In addition to the ahove faciliies, there are a number of short-term facihties that are utiised in the normal course

of business

All of the Group's borrowings are unsecured Inrespect of finance lease obligations, the rights to the leased asset

revert to the lessor in the event of default

The maturity of the Group's finance lease obhigations is as follows

All figures in £ millions 2015 2014
Finance lease hablities - minimum lease payments
Not later than one year 5
Later than one year and not later than twoyears 3 3
Later than two years and not later than three years 1 1
Later than three years and not later than four years - 1
Later than four years and not later than five years - -
Later than five years - -
Future finance charges onfinance leases - -
Present value of finance lease liabilities 8 10
The present value of finance lease habilities is as follows
All figures in Emillions 2015 2014
Not later than one year 4 5
Later than one year and not later than five years 4 5
Later than five years - -
8 10

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease obligations approximate thew far value
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19 Financial risk management

The Group's approach to the management of financial risks together with sensitivity analyses of its financial
instruments I1s set out below

Treasury policy

The Group holds financial instruments for two principal purposes to finance its operattons and to manage the
interest rate and currency risks arising from its operations and its sources of finance The Group finances its
operations by a mixture of cash flows from operations, short-term borrowings from banks and commercial paper
markets, and longer-term loans from banks and capital markets The Group borrows princtpallyin US dollars, euras
and sterling, at both floating and fixed rates of Interest, using derivative finanoial instruments (derivatives’), where
appropriate, to generate the desired currency profile and interest rate basis The derlvatives used for this purpose
are principally rate swaps, rate caps and collars, currency rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts

The main nisks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, iqudity and refinancing risk,
counterparty risk and forewgn currency risk These risks are managed by the chief financial officer under policies
approved by the board, which are summarised in this note All the key treasury polices rermamed unchanged
throughout the year, except for revisions to the Group's bank counterparty risk imits and clarifications in respect
of the Group's approach to compliance with laws and regulations

The audit commuittee receives regular reports on the Group’s treasury activities, policies and procedures
The treasury department is not a profit centre and its activities are subject to regularinternal audit

Ligquidity and refirancing sk management

The Group's objective is to secure continulty of funding ata reasonable cost To do this it seeksto arrange committed
funding for a vanety of matunties from a diversity of sources The Group's policy objective 1s to maintain the
weighted average maturity of Its core gross borrowings {treating short-term advances as having the final maturnity of
the faciities availabtle to refinance them) to be between three and ten years At the end of 2015 the average maturity
of gross borrowings was 5 1 years (2014 4 7 years) of which bonds represented 38% (2014 97%) of these borrowmngs

The Group belteves that ready access to different funding markets also helps to reduce its hquidity nisk, and that
published credit ratings and published financial poticies improve such access At the year end, the long-term ratings
were Baal from Meody's and BBB+ from Standard & Poor's, and the short-term ratings were P2 and A2 respectively
All of the Group's credit ratings remained unchanged during the year, although in October 2015, Standard & Poor's
changed the outlook on thetr long-term rating from 'Stable’ to ‘Negative' tn February 2016, Moody's changed
Pearson's long-term rating frorm Baal (negative} to Baa2 (stable) In March 2016, Standard & Poor's changed
Pearson’s long-term rating frorn B8B+ (Negative) to BBB (Stable) The short-term ratings from Moody's and Standard
& Poor's remain unchanged at P2 and A2 The Group's policy Is to strive to maintain arating of Baal/BBB+ over the
long term The Group also uses a range of ratios to monitor and manage 1ts finances internally These include interest
cover, net debt to operating profit and cash flow to debt measures The Group also maintains undrawn committed
borrowing faciities At the end of 2015 the commutted facilittes amounted to $1,750m (£1,187m) and thewr weighted
average maturity was 4 6 years

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s exposure to Interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings Is rnanaged by barrowing on a fixed rate basis
and by entering into rate swaps, rate caps and farward rate agreements The Group also aims to avoid undue
exposure to a single interest rate setting Reflecting this objective, the Group has predominantly swapped its fixed
rate bond Issues to floating rate at their launch This creates a group of dervatives, under which the Groupisa
receiver of fixed rates and a payer of floating rates

The Group's policy objective has continued to be to set a target proportion of its forecast borrowings (taken at the
year end, with cash netted agamst floating rate debt and before certain adjustments for |AS 39) to be hedged {1 e
fixed or capped at the year end) over the next four years, subject to a maximum of 65% and a minimum that starts at
40% and falls by 10% at each yearend Atthe end of 2015 the fixed to floating hedging ratio, on the above basis, was
approximately 90% 10% The higher than pollcy ratio is a result of higher cash balances due to divestments in 2015
Our policy 1s to not close out contracts where we anticipate reverting to compliance with the policy over the longer
term Asimultaneous 1% change on 1 January 2016 in the Group's variable interest rates in US dollar and sterling,
taking into account forecast seasonal debt, would have a £6m effect on profit before tax
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19 Financial risk management continued

Interest rate risk management continued

The policy described above creates a further group of derivatives, under which the Group is a payer of fixed rates
and a recewver of foating rates The Group's accounting objective in relation to its use of interest rate dervatives Is
to minimise the impact on the income statement of changes in the mark-to-market value of its derivative portfolio
as awhole It uses duration calculations to estimate the sensitivity of the denvatives to movements in market
rates The Group also identifies which derivatives are eligible for fair value hedge accounting (which reduces the
income statement impact of changes in the market value of a derivative) The Group then balances the tatal
portfoho between hedge-accounted and pooled segments, so that the expected movement on the pooled
segment is minimal

Financial counterparty risk management

Counterparty credit imits, which take published credit rating and other factors into account, are set to cover the
Group's total aggregate exposure to a single financial nstitution The limits applicable to published credit ratings
bands are approved by the chef financial officer within guidelines approved by the board Exposures and limits
applicable to each financial institution are reviewed on a regular basis

Foreign currency risk management

Although the Group Is based in the UK, it has its most significant investment in overseas operations The most
significant currency for the Group is the US dollar The Group's poticy on routine transactional converstons between
currencies (for example, the collection of recevables, and the settlement of payables or interest) remains that these
should be transacted at the relevant spot exchange rate The majority of the Group's operations are domestic within
their country of operation No unremitted profits are hedged wath foreign exchange contracts, as the company
judges it inappropriate to hedge non cash flow translational exposure with cash flow instruments However, the
Group does seek to create a natural hedge of this exposure through its policy of ahgning approximately the currency
composition of its core net borrowings (after the impact of cross-currency rate dervatves) with its forecast
operating profit before depreciation and amortisation This policy atms to soften the impact of changes in foreign
exchange rates on consolidated interest cover and earnings The policy above applies only to currencies that account
for more than 15% of Group operating profit before depreciation and amortisation, which currently s only the US
dollar The Group still borrows small amounts in ather currencies, typically for seasonal working capital needs The
Group policy does not require existing currency debt to be terminated to match declines In that currency’s share of
Group operating profit before deprectation and amortisation In addition, currencies that account for less than 15%
of Group operating profit before depreciation and amortisation can be included in the above hedging process at the
request of the chief financial officer

included within year end net debt, the net borrowings#{cash) in the hedging currencies above {taking into account
the effect of cross-currency swaps)were USdollar £1,345m and sterling £{(385)m

Use of currency debt and currency derivatives
The Group uses both currency denominated debt and dervative instruments to implement the above policy

Its intention 1s that gains/losses on the derwvatives and debt offset the losses/gains on the foreign currency assets
and income Each quarter the value of hedging mnstruments 1s monitored against the assets in the relevant
currency and, where practical, a decision is made whether to treat the debt or dervative as a net investment
hedge {permitting foreign exchange movements on it to be taken to reserves) for the purposes of AS 39
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19 Fmancial risk management continued

Analysis of Group debt, including the impact of denvatives
The follow:ng tables analyse the Group's sources of funding and the Impact of derivatives on the Group’s
debtinstruments

The Group’s net debt position is set out below

Altfigures In Emilltons 2015 2014
Cash and cash equivalents 1,703 530
Marketable securities 28 16
Dertvative financial iInstruments {55) 40
Bank loans, overdrafts and loan notes (38) 42)
Bonds (2,284) {2,173)
Finance lease llabilities (8) (10}
Net debt (654) {1,639)

The split of net debt between fixed and floating rate, stated after the impact of rate defivatives, Is as follows

Afl figures in £ millions 2015 2014
Fixed rate 577 597
Floating rate 77 1,042
Total 654 1,639

Gross borrowings, after the impact of cross-currency rate derivatives, analysed by currency are asfollows

Allfigures in £ millions 2015 2014
US dollar 2,308 2,099
Sterhing 1 104
Other 21 22
Total 2,330 2,225

As at 31 December 2015 the exposure of the horrowings of the Graup to interest rate changes when the borrowings
re-price 1s as follows

Less than Onete  Morethan
All figures i £ millions ane year five years fiveyears Total
Re-pricing profile of borrowings 232 €25 1,423 2,330
Effect of rate derivatives 1,449 (33) {1,416} -
Total 1,731 592 7 2,330
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19 financial sk management continued

The maturity of contracted cash flows associated with the Group's financiatiabiities is as follows

2015
All figuresin £miflions usp GBP Qther Total
Not fater than one year 470 58 73 601
Later than one year and not later than five years 705 - - 705
Later than five years 1,578 - - 1,578
Tota! 2,753 58 73 . 2,884
Analysed as
Bonds 1,745 - 829 2,574
Rate derivatives - inflows (335) {858) 919} (2,112)
Rate derivatives - outflows 1,155 8538 90 2,03
Trade payables 188 58 73 319
Total 2,753 58 73 2,884

2014
Allfigures in £ millions \ uso GBP Other Total
Mot [ater than one year 398 160 99 657
Later than one year and not later than five years 877 - - 877
Later than five years 1126 - - 1126
Total 2,401 160 99 2,660
Analysed as
Bonds 1711 318 439 2,468
Rate denvatives — inflows (379) (656) {537} {1,572)
Rate denvatives - outflows 893 444 98 1,435
Trade payables 176 54 99 329
Total 2,401 160 9% 2,660

All cash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on afloating rate are
calculated ustng interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset Where this s not pessible, floating rates are
based on interest rates prevailing at 31 December in the relevantyear All derivative amounts are shown gross,
although the Group net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credit facilittes and commercial paper are assumed to mature at the maturity
date of the relevant facility, with interest calculated as payable i each calendar year up to and including the date of
maturity of the facility
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19 Financial nsk management continued §_
Financtal instruments - fair value measurement %
The following table provides an analysis of those financlal instruments that are measured subsequently tonitial 3
recognition at falr value, grouped into levels 1 to 3, based on the degree to which the fair value is cbservable
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identicat
assets or habilities,
Level 2 farr value measurements are those derived from tnputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1,
that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly {as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices), and
Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived fram valuation techniques that indude inputs for the asset or o
hability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 5
2015 2014 %
Allfigures In £ millions Levell Level2 Level3 Total Levely Level 2 Level 3 ‘Total g
Financial assets at fair value "
Dervative financial assets - 110 - 110 - 14 - 14
Marketable securities - 28 - 28 - 16 - 16
Available for sale financial assets
Investments in iisted securities - - - - - 9 - 9 3
Investments in unlisted securities - - 143 143 - - 45 45 S-.
Financial iabrities at fair value é_
Dervative financial habilities - (165) - (165) - (74) - (749 3
Total - (27) 143 116 - 65 45 110 E
The following table analyses the movementsin {evel 3 far value measurements
2015 2014
Investments  Investmants
inunlisted inunlisted e
Allfigures in £ millions securities securities g‘
At beginrung of year 45 94 3
Exchange differences 3 %
Additions 101
Fair value movements - -
Disposals (6 (58)
At end of year 143 45

The falr value of the 11% stake in The Economist Is valued by reference to the disposal transactionterms The farr
value of the remaining Investments in unhsted secunties I1s determined by reference to the financial performance

of the underlying asset and amounts realised on the sale of similar assets
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19 Financial risk management continued

Financial instruments - sensitivity analysis
As at 31 December 2015 the sensitivity of the carrying value of the Group's financial tnstruments to fluctuations
in mterest rates and exchange rates is as follows

Impactof 1% Impactofi% Impactof10% I!mpactof 10%

Alifigures In £millions car\g:zg Intter:::tarsaetg Inge‘:'cersetis:t:: sue?r%tsht::}::g waak:r:;r;&;:
Investrnents in listed securities - - - - -
Investments in unlisted securibies 143 - - “4) 5
Cash and cash equivalents 1,703 - - {67) 82
Marketable securities 28 - - - -
Denvative financial instruments {55) (93) 99 14 (18)
Bonds {2,284) 97 {103) 208 (254)
Other borrowings (46) - - 5 &)
Other net financial assets 644 - - (57) 68
Total financial instruments 133 4 (4) 99 (123)

The table shows the sensttivities of the fair values of each class of financial instruments to an isolated change in
either interest rates or foreign exchange rates The class ‘Other net financial assets' compnses trade receivables
less trade payables

The sensitivittes of derivative instruments are calculated using established estimation techruiques such as
discounted cash flow and option valuation models Where modeliing an interest rate decrease of 1% led to negative
Interest rates, these points on the yseld curve were adjusted to 0% A large proportion of the movements shown
above would impact equity rather than the income statement, due to the locatton and functional currency of the
entities in which they arise and the avarlability of net investment hedge treatment The changes Invaluations are
estimates of the impact of changes in market variables and are not a prediction of future events or anticipated gamns
orlosses
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20 Intangible assets - Pre-publication g
Allfigures in £ miflions 2015 2004 g
Cost ﬁ
At beginning of year 2,138 1,933
Exchange differences 66 80
Additions 347 358
Disposal through business disposal (90) -
Disposals (260) (234y
Acguisition through business combination - 1 S
Atend of year 2,201 2138 &
Amortisation s
At beginning of year (1,318) (1L.216) 3
Exchange differences (47) (60)
Charge forthe year (281) {292)
Disposal through business disposal 26 -
Disposais 260 234
Transfer to receivables - 6 @
Atend of year {1,360} {1,318) g‘
Carrytng amounts ;—'
Atend of year B 820 &
Included 1n the above are pre-publication assets amounting to £580m {2014 £546m)which will be realised in more

than oneyear

Amortisation 1s included in the iIncome statement tn cost of goods sold There was ne amortisation within

discontinued operations in either year

Disposal through business disposal amounits refate to the disposal of Power5chool, see note 31 forfurther g—-
information g
21 Inventories %

Alifigures m £ millions 2015 2014
Raw materials 8 9
Work in progress 8 10
Finished goods 195 205

214 224

The cost of Inventories relating to continuing operations recognised as an expense and included in the income
statement in cost of goods sold amounted to £331m (2014 £379m) In 2015, £33m (2014 £28m) of inventory

provisions was charged In the Income statement None of the inventory s pledged as security
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22 Trade and other receivables

All figures i £ millions 2015 2014
Current
Trade recewables 938 963
Royalty advances 20 13
Prepayments and accrued tncome 118 107
Cther recewvables 208 222
1.284 1,310
Non-current
Trade receivables 25 26
Royalty advances 13 8
Prepayments and accrued income 43 30
Other receivables 34 18
115 82

Trade receivables are stated at fair value, net of provisions for bad and doubtful debts and anticipated future sales
returns The movements on the provision for bad and doubtful debts are as follows

All figures in £ milliens 2015 2014
At beginning of year (73) {58)
Exchange differences 3 -
Income statement movements (31) (21)
Uthsed 32 17
Acquisition through business combination - (1)
Disposal through business disposal 5 -
Atend of year (64) (73)

Concentrations of credit nsk with respect to trade receivables are imited due to the Group's large number of
customers, who are internationally dispersed

The ageing of the Group's trade receivables is as follows

All figuresin £ milltons 2015 2014
Wwithin due date 754 869
Up to three months past due date 253 203
Three to six months past due date 58 40
Six to nine months past due date 19 15
Nine to 12 months past due date 12 15
More than 12 months past due date 16 1
Total trade receivabies 1,113 1,153
Less provision for sales returns (150) (164)
Net trade receivables 963 989

The Group reviews its bad debt provision at least twice a year following a detalled review of recetvable balances and
histerical payment profiles Managementbefieves all the remaining receivable balances are fully recoverable
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23 Prowisions for other habilities and charges

Deferred Dispasals Legat
Allfiguresin £millions conslderatlon Property and closures and other Total
At1 January 2015 57 7 20 51 135
Exchange differences 3 - - 4) {1
Charged to income statement - - - 12 12
Released to income statement (1 - - (4 (5}
Disposaf through business disposat - )] - (1) (2)
Utilised (6) - - (20) (26)
At 31 December 2015 53 [ 20 34 113
Analysis of prowvisions
2015
Deferred Disposals Legal
Al figures In £ millions conslderation Property andclosures and other Total
Current 5 3 15 19 42
Non-current 43 3 5 15 71
53 6 20 34 113
2014
Current 7 20 22 53
Non-current 50 3 - 29 82
57 7 20 51 135

Deferred consideration primarily relates to the formation of a venture in a North America business irt 2011
Disposals and closures include liabilities related to the disposal of Penguin Legal and other indudes legal claims,

contract disputes and potential contract losses
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24 Trade and other habilities

Allfiguresin £ milllons 2015 2014
Trade payables 3192 329
Soctal secunity and other taxes 22 21
Accruals n 501
Deferred ncome 766 801
Interest payable 19 28
Other habiities 249 23
1,746 1,91

Less nan-current portion
Accruals 20 22
Deferred income 262 201
Interest payable - 19
Cther habllities 74 68
356 310
Currentportion 1,390 1,601

The carrying vaiue of the Group's trade and other fabilities approximates its fair value

The deferred income balance comprises princapally muiti-year obligations to deliver workbooks to adoption
customers in school businesses, advance payments in assessment, testing and traimng businesses, subscription
income in school and college businesses, and obligations to deliver digitat content in future periods

25 Retirement henefit and other post-retirement obligations

Background
The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans throughout the world

The largest plan Is the Pearson Group Pension Plan (UK Group plan) in the UK, which is sectionalised to pravide both
defined benefit and defined contnibution pension benefits The defined benefit section was dosed to new members
from 1 November 2006 The defined contribution section, opened in 2003, i1s open to new and existing employees
finally, there 1s a separate sectian within the UK Group plan set up for auto-enrolment The defined benefit section
of the UK Group plan s a final salary pension plan which provides benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed
level of pension payable for life The leve] of benefits depends on the length of service and final pensionable pay

The UK Group plan s funded with benefit payments from trustee administered funds The UK Group planis
administered in accordance with the Trust Deed and Rutes in the interests of its beneficiaries by Pearson Group
Pension Trustee Limited

At 31 December 2015 the UK Group plan has approximately 25,000 members, analysed i the following table

All figuresin% Active Deferred  Pensioners Total
Defined benefit 1 27 34 62
Defined contribution 14 24 - 38

Total 15 1 34 100
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued ‘CEJ
[~3

Background continued &

The other major defined benefit plans are based in the US These are also final safary pension plans which provide B

henefits to members in the form of a guaranteed pension payable for life, with the level of benefits dependent on 2

{ength of service and final pensionable pay The majonty of the US plans are funded

The Group also has several post-retirement medical benefit plans (PRMBs), princtpally in the US PRMBs are

unfunded but are accounted for and valued similarly to defined benefit pension plans

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as life expectancy, inflation risks, and

investment risk Including asset volatihty and changes in bond yields The Group Is not exposed to any unusual,

entity specific or plan specificrisks Q
5

Assumptions §

The principat assumptions used for the UK Group plan and the US PRMB are shown below Weighted average =)

assumptions have been shown for the other plans, which primarily relate to US penslon plans g,

2015 w8
UK Group Other UK Group Other

All figuresin % plan plans PRMB plan plans PRMB

Inflation 31 25 25 30 25 25

Rate used to discount planiiabilites 37 40 40 36 37 37

Expected rate of increase in salares 36 30 30 35 39 40 o

Expected rate of increase for pensions In g

payment and deferred pensions 1910510 - - 19te505 - - o
3

Imivial rate of increase in healthcare rate - - 70 - - 70 ¥

Ultimate rate of increase in healthcare rate - - 50 - - 50 ~

The UK discount rate 1s based on corporate bond yields adjusted to reftect the duration of labilities The US discount

rate is set by reference to a US bond portfolio matching modet

The inflation rate for the UK Group plan of 3 1% reflects the RPi rate In line with changesto legistation tn 2010, certain

benefits have been calculated with reference to CPl as the inflationary measure and in these mstances a rate of 2 1% a

has been used 2
i)

The expected rate of Increase insalaries has been set at 3 6% for 2015 with a short-term assumption of 2 0% for §
B

threeyears
For the UK plan, the mortality base table assumptions have been derwved from the SAPS ‘all pensioners’ tables for

males and the SAPS ‘normal health pensioners’ tables for females, adjusted to reflect the observed experience of the
plan, with CMI model improvement factors A 1 5% long-term rate improvement on the CMI model 1s applied for both

males and females

For the US plans, the mortahty table (RP - 2014} and 2014 Improvemnent scale {(MP - 2014)with o adjustments have
been adopted from 2014, reflecting the mortahty assumption most prevalentin the US
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Assumptions continued
Using the above tables, the remasning average life expectancy inyears of a pensioner retiring at age 65 onthe
batance sheet date for the UK Group plan and US plans Is as follows

UK us
All figures inyears 2015 204 2015 2014
Male 235 244 212 216
Female 256 245 232 238

The remaining average Iife expectancy in years of a pensioner retirng at age 65, 20 years after the balance sheet
date, for the UK and US Group plans 15 as follows

UK us
Allflgures inyears 2015 2014 2015 2014
Male 255 266 229 233
Female 278 264 249 255

Although the Group anticipates that plan surpluses will be utibsed during the life of the plan to address member
benefits, the Group recogrises Its pension surplus in full in respect of the UK Group ptan on the basisthatitis
management’s judgement that there are no substantive restrictions on the return of residual plan assetsin the
event of a winding up of the plan after all member cbligations have been met

Financial statement information
The amounts recognised in the iIncome statement are as follows

2015
Defined
UK Group benefit Daefined
Al figures in £ milions plan other Sub-total  contnbutian PRMB Total
Current service cost 20 2 22 74 - 96
Curtalments 3) - (3) - - (3}
Admrnistration expenses 5 - 5 - - 5
Total operating expense 22 2 24 74 - 98
Interest on plan assets {98) (5) {103) - - (103)
Interest on pian habilities 20 7 97 - 2 99
Netfinance {Income)/expense (8) 2 &) - 2 4)
Netincome statement charge 14 4 18 74 2 94
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations conunued

Financial statement information continued

2014
Defined
UK Group benefit Defined

All figures in £ miflions plan other Sub-total contributlon PRMB Total
Current service cost 20 2 22 69 2 93
Curtallments (5) - (5) - (13) {18}
Administration expenses 4 - 4 - - 4
Total operating expense 19 2 21 69 1) 79
Interast on plan assets (103) (7 (10 - - (110}
Interest on plan ifabilities 98 3 106 - 3 109
Net finance {income)/expense (5) 1 4) - 3 {1}
Net income statement charge/(income} 14 3 17 69 8) 78
Included within the 2015 results are discontinued operations consisting of a £5m charge (2014 £nil) relatingto
defined benefit schemes and a £8m charge (2014 £8m charge) relating to defined contribution schemes
The amounts recogrused in the halance sheet are as follows

2015 2014

Other Other Other Other
UKGroup  funded unfunded UKGroup  funded wunfunded

Allfigures in £ millions plan plans plans Total plan plans plans Total
Fair value of plan assets 2,803 135 - 2938 274 164 - 2,878
Present value of defined
benefit obligation (2,466) (157) (18) (2.641) (2,524) (196} {23) (2,743)
Net pension asset/{liability) 337 {22) {18) 297 190 (32) {23) 135
Other post-retirement medical
benefit obligation (76) {81)
Other pensicn accruals {23) (27
Net rettrement benefit asset 198 27
Analysed as
Retirement benefit assets 337 150
Retirement benefit obhgations {(139) (163)
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Financial statement information continued
The following gans/(losses) have been recognised in other comprehensive income

All figuresin £ milllons 2015 214
Amounts recognised for defined benefit plans 104 36
Amounts recognised for post-retirement medical benefit plans 6 13)
Total recognised inyear 110 23

The fair value of plan assets comprises the following

2015 2014

Other Other

UK Group funded UK Group funded
Altfiguresin % plan plans Total plan plans Total
Equities 12 2 14 26 2 28
Bonds 8 2 10 42 3 45
Property 9 - 9 9 - 9
Qualifying investment fund 50 - 50 - - -
Other 17 - 17 17 1 18

The plan assets do not include any of the Group's own financial instruments, or any property occupied by the Group

The table below further disaggregates the UK Group plan assets into additional categories and those assets which
have a guoted market price in an active market and those that do not

2015 2014
Quoted No quoted Quoted No quoted
Al figures in % marketprice marketprice marketprice market price
UKequities - 1 5 1
Non-UK equities 1 2 20 2
Fixed-interest securities 6 - 19 -
Index-lnked securities 4 - 26 -
Property - 9 - 9
Qualifying investment fund 50 - - -
Other - 17 - 18
Total ra! 29 70 30
The hquidity profile of the UK Group plan assets 15 as follows
Allfliguresin% 2015 2014
Liquid - call <1 month 73 72
Less liquid - call 1-3 months 2 2

Liguid - call >3 months 25 26
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement cbligations continued

Financial statement information continued

Changes i the values of plan assets and habihties of the retirement benefit plans are as follows

2015 2014
UK Group Other UK Group Other

All figures In £ millions plan plans Total plan plans Total
Fair value of plan assets
Opentng far value of plan assets 2,74 164 2,878 2,353 156 2,509
Exchange differences - 2 2 - 4 4
interest on pian assets 98 5 103 103 7 110
Return on plans assets excluding interest (8) (4) (12) 286 9 295
Contributions by employer 72 5 77 62 4 66
Contributtons by employee 2 - 2 2 - 2
Benefits paid {95) (17} (112) 92 {16) {108}
Transfer 20 {20) - - - -
Closing fair value of plan assets 2,803 135 2,938 2714 164 2,878
Present value of defined
benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation (2,524) (219 {2,743) (2,267) {(191) {2,458)
Exchange differences - {3 3 - (%) {5)
Current service cost (20) {2) (22) (20) (2) (22)
Admunistration expenses )] - (5) ) - (4)
Curtailments 3 - 3 S - 5
interest cost (280) (¥)] 97) (98) 8) (106)
Actuanal gains/{losses) - experience 107 2 109 1 1 10
Actuanal galns/{losses) - demographic (33 1 {32) - (8) {8)
Actuantal gains/{losses) - financial 33 6 39 (241) (20) (261)
Contributions by employee 2) - (2} {2) - {2)
Transfer (30) 30 - - - -
Benefits paid 95 17 112 92 16 108
Closing defined benefit obhgation (2.466) (175) (2,641) {2.524) {219) {2.743)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 171 years for the UK and 8 7 years for the US
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obhgations continued

Financial statement information continued
Changes in the value of the US PRMB are as follows

Allfigures in Emilliens 2015 2014
Opening defined benefit obligation 81 {77}
Exchange differences (3) 4
Current service cost - ]
Curtallments - 13
interest cost (2) (3)
Actuarial galns/{losses) - experience 2 -
Actuarial gains/{losses) - demographic 2 (N
Actuanal gains/(losses) - financal 2 6)
Benefits paid 4 5
Closing defined benefit obligation (76) (81)
Fundming

The UK Group plan Is seif-agdrmimistered with the plan's assets belng held independently of the Group In trust

Tha trustee of the plan 1s required to act in the bestinterest of the plan's beneficiaries The most recent triennial
actuarial valuation for funding purposes was completed as at 1 January 2015 and thisvaluation revealed a techinical
prowvistons funding shortfall of £27m which was eliminated by contributions paid during 2015

As a consequence of the disposat of the FT Group, an agreement has been made between Pearson and the Plan
Trustee to accelerate the funding of the plan so that it becormes fully funded on a ‘self-suffiaency’ basis in the near
future Thisis a much higher level of funding than technical provisions As a result the plan expects te be able to
provide benefits {in accardance with the plan rules) with a very low leve| of reliance on future funding from Pearson
A commitment has also been made to maintain that leve! of funding in future years Inaddition to a substantial
company contribution following the Penguin Random House merger {to be paid before july 2017), an upfront
contribution will be made to the plan following the disposal of the £T Group This 1s expected to be approximately
£90m and there will be further annual contributions to ehrminate any remaining shortfall in the self-sufficency
funding

At 31 December 2015, assets of the plan are dvided into two elements matching assets, which are assets that
produce cash flows that can be expected to match the cash flows for a proportion of the membership, and include

a Liability Driven investment mandate {UK Bonds, interest rate/inflation swaps and other denvative instruments},
inflation-linked property and infrastructure, and return seeking assets, which are assets invested with a longer-term
honzon to generate the returns needed to provide the remaining expected cash flows for the beneficiaries, and
include equities, property and alternative asset classes During the fourth quarter of 2015 the plan's long-term
investment strategy was updated to an allocatton of 84 2% Matching Assets and 15 8% Return Seeking Assets as

at 31 December 2015

Regular contributions to the plan in respect of the defined benefit sections are estimated to be £8m for 2016

The Group expects to contribute $10m 1n 2016 and $10m 10 2017 to1ts US defined benefit pension plans
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued g
o
Sensitivities g
The effect of a ane percentage paintincrease and decrease In the discount rate on the defined benefitobhgationand 2
the total pension expense is as follows B
2015
Allfiguresin£millions 1%increase 1%decrease
Effect
{Decrease)/increase 1n defined benefit obhgation - UK Group plan {372) 495
{Decrease)/increase in defined benefit obligation - US plan (16} 19 9
-
The effect of members living one year more or one year less on the defined benefit obhgation 15 as follows g
[=1
015 &
>
1year 1 year )
Allfigures in £ milllans Increase decrease
Effect
Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation - UK Group plan 100 (96)
Increasef(decrease) in defined benefit obhigation - US plan 7 7]
The effect of a half percentage point increase and decrease inthe inflation rate 1s as follows f:"
&
2015 oy
05% 0 5% 3
All figures in Emillions Increase decrease ?._,‘
Effect -
tncrease/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation -~ UK Group plan 13 (103)
Increase/(decrease) in defined henefit obligation - US plan - -
The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant,
although in practice this s unhikely to occur and changes in some assumptions may be correlated When calculating @
these sensitivities the same method has been applied to calculate the defined benefit obligation as has been apphied g
when calculating the hability recognised in the balance sheet This methodology is the same as prior periods §
26 Share-based payments &
The Group recognised the following charges in the income statement in respect of its equity-settled share-based
payment plans
All figures in £millions 2015 204
Pearson plans 26 32
Share-based payment charges included in discontinued operations amounted to £3m (2014 £3m) The Group T
operates the following equity-settled employee optien and share plans §
®
Waorldwide Save for Shares Plan Since 1994, the Group has operated a Save-As-You-Earn plan forUK employees g
In 1998, the Group introduced a Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Under these pians, employees can save a portion )
of their monthly salary over periods of three or five years Atthe end of this period, the employee has the option to '3
G

purchase ordinary shares with the accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to 80% of the market price prevailing
atthe tme of the commencement of the employee’s participation in the plan Options that are not exercised within
six months of the end of the savings period lapse uncondrtionally
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26 Share-based payments continued

Employee Stock Purchase Plan In 2000, the Group established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which allows all
employees in the US to save a portion of their monthly salary over six-month periods Atthe end of the period, the
employee has the option to purchase ADRs with their accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to 85% of the
lower of the market price prevailing at the beginning or end of the period

Long-Term Incantive Plan This plan was first introduced in 2001, renewed In 2006 and againin 2011 Theplan
consists of restricted shares The vesting of restricted shares 1s normally dependent on continuing service over a
three to five-year pertod, and in the case of senior management upon the satisfaction of corporate performance
targets over a three-year period These targets may be based on market and/or non-market performance critena
Restricted shares awarded to senior management i May 2014 and May 2015 vest dependent on relative total
shareholder return, return on invested capital and earnings per share growth Restricted shares awarded to senior
management in November 2014 vest dependent on earnings per share growth Other restricted shares awarded Iin
2014 and 2015 vest depending on continuing service over a three-year perod

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options granted under the Group's plans are as follows

2015 2004

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number of exercise Numdber of exercise

share optlons price  share options price

onas £ 000s £

Outstanding at beginning of year 3,507 B48 2,792 873
Granted during the year 1,024 149 1,985 811
Exercised during the year (578) 878 (727) 824
Forferted during the year (696} 912 (538) 876
Expired during the year (7} 885 (5) 743
Outstanding at end of year 3,250 924 3,507 848
Options exercisable atend of year 138 839 43 824

Options were exercised regularly throughout the year The weighted average share price during the year was

£11 86(2014 £11 41) Eatly exercises arising from redundancy, retirement or death are treated as an acceleration
of vesting and the Group therefore recogrises in the income statement the amount that otherwise would have
been recognised for services recerved over the remainder of the original vesting perod

The options outstandmg at the end of the year have weighted average remaning contractual fives and exercise
prices as follows

2015 2014

Weighted Weighted

average average

Numberof  contractual Numberof  contractual

Range of exerclse prices share options life share optians life
Q00s Years 000s Years

0-5 - - - -
5-10 2,361 208 3,507 268
>10 889 326 - -
3250 240 3,507 268

In 2015 and 2014 options were granted under the Worldwide Save for Shares Plan The weighted average estimated
fair value for the aptions granted was calculated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model
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26 Share-based payments continued

The weighted average estimated fair values and the inputs into the Black-Scholes model are as follows

2015 2014

Welghted Weighted

average average

Fair value £199 £241
Weighted average share price £13 37 £1109
Weighted average exercise price £1149 £81
Expected volatility 23 00% 21 27%
Expected life 37years 3%9years
Risk-free rate 0 90% 13%
Expected dividend yleld 4 44% 4 33%
Forfeiture rate 3 2% 34%

The expected volatiity Is based on the historical volatility of the company’s share price over the previous three to

sevenyears depending on the vesting term of the options

The following shares were granted under restricted share arrangements

2015 2014

Weighted Weighted

Numberof average fair Numberof  average fair

shares value shares value

000s £ 000s £

Long-Term incentive Plan 1,942 12 27 5,875 1744

The fair value of shares granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan that vest unconditionatly is deterrmned using

the share price at the date of grant The number of shares expected to vest s adjusted, based on historical

experience, to account for potential forfeitures Restricted shares granted under the Annual Bonus Share Matching
Plan are valued using the share price at the date of grant Participants under both plans are entitled to dividends

during the vesting period and therefore the share price is not discounted

Restricted shares with a market performance conditton were valued by anindependent actuary using & Monte Carlo
model Restricted shares with a non-market performance condition were fair valued based on the share price at the
date of grant Non-market performance conditions are taken into consideration by adjusting the number of shares

expected to vest based on the most likely outcome of the relevant performance cniterta
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27 Share capital and share premum

Number of Ordinary Share

shares shares premium

000s £m £m

At1January 2014 818,580 205 2,568
issue of ordinary shares - share option schemes 1,303 - £k
At 31 December 2014 819,883 205 2,579
Issue of ordinary shares - share option schemes 1,185 - 1
At 31 December 2015 821,068 205 2,590

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share {2014 25p per share) Allissued shares are fully pald Allshares
have the same rights

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concernwhile
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (see note 18), cash and cash equivalents (see note 17) and equity
attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings

The Group reviews its capital structure on a regular basis and will balance its overall capital structure through
payments of dvidends, new share issues as well as the 1ssue of new debt or the redemption of existing debtin ine
with the finanaal nsk policies outhned in note 19

28 Treasury shares

Pearson plc
Number of
shares
000s Em
At1january 2014 9,282 a8
Purchase of treasury shares 907 9
Release of treasury shares (2.997) {32)
At 31 December 2014 71592 75
Purchase of treasury shares 1,987 23
Release of treasury shares (2.474) (26)
At 31 Decemnber 2015 6,705 72

The Group holds Pearson plc shares in trust to satisfy its obhgations under its restricted share plans (see note 26}
These shares, representing 0 8% (2014 0 9%) of called-up share capital, are treated as treasury shares for accounting
purposes and have a par value of 25p per share

The neminal value of Pearson plc treasury shares amounts to £1 7m (2014 £1 8m)

At 31 December 2015 the market value of Pearson plc treasury shares was £49 3m (2014 £85 6m)
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29 Qther comprehensive ncome

2015
Attributable to equity holders
of the company
Non
Translation Retained controlling
Allfigures in £millions reserve earnings Total interest Total
Items that may be reclassified to the iIncome statement
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations - Group (83) - (83) {(2) (85)
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations - assoclate 16 - 16 - 16
Currency translatlon adjustment disposed - subsidiaries (10) - (10) - (10)
Attributable tax - 5 5 - 5
Items that are not reciassified to the Income statement
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations - Group - 110 110 - 110
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligatrons - associate - 8 8 - 8
Attributable tax - (24) (24) - (24)
Other comprehensive expense for the year 77 g9 22 {2) 20
204
Attributable to equity holders
of the company
Non
Translation Retained centrolling
Allfigures in £ mullions reserve earnings Total interest Totai
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations - Group 150 - 150 - 150
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
aoperations - associate 25 - 25 - 25
Currency transiatton adjustient disposed - subsidiaries (2) - (2) - (2)
Attributable tax - (6) (6) - (6)
items that are not reciassified to the incorme statement
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations - Group - 23 23 - 23
Rerneasurement of retirement benefit obligations - associate - {15) (15) - (15)
Attributable tax - h 1 - 1}
Other comprehensive expense for the year 173 1 174 - 174
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements continued

30 Business combinations

There were no significant acquisitions in 2015 On 11 February 2014, the Group acquired 100% of Grupo Mult, the
leading adult English language training company in Brazil Fair values for the assets and habilities arising from the

Grupo Multi acquisition and other smalier acquisitions completed in the year are set out below

Fair values for the assets and habilities arising from acquisitions completed in the year are as follows

2015 2014

Tatat Total
All figuresin £ milons Notes falrvalue falr value
Property, plant and equipment 10 - 2
Intangible assets 11 1 260
Intangible assets - pre-publication 20 - 1
inventories - 4
Trade and other receivables - 36
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) - 3
Financial habilities - borrowlings - (49)
Provisions for other habilities and charges 23 - {14}
Trade and other habilities - {24)
Current income tax hiabdities - (20)
Net assets acquired at fair vatue 1 199
Goodwill 11 - 238
Total 1 437
Satisfied by
Cash 4] (437)
Total constderation (1) (437)

The goodwili ansing on these acquisitions results from cost and revenue synergies and from assets and benefits that

cannot be separately recognised

There Is no goodwill arising on 2015 acquisitions Goodwill of £240m arising en 2014 acquisitions is expected to be

deductible for tax purposes

Intangtble assets acquired in 2014 have the following useful economic lives customer lists, contracts and
relationships four years, trademarks and brands 20 years, and other acquired intangtbles 12 years

All figures in € mithons 2015 2014
Cash flow on acquisitions

Cash - current year acquisitions (1) (437)
Deferred payments for prior year acquisitions and other items 6) (5)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired - 3
Acquisition costs and other acquisition liabilities paid (2) {9)
Netcash outflow (9) (448)
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31 Disposals including business closures

015 2014
All figures in £ milions FTGroup PowerSchool  Other Total Mergermarket Penguin Other Total
Disposal of subsidiartes
Property, plant and equipment (15) {2) - (17} {2) - (N (3)
Intangible assets (46) (19} (B (70) (12} - - {12)
Investments i joint ventures
and associates (8) - - 8 - - - -
Intangible assets - pre-publicaton - (64) - (64) - - - -
inventories (1} - - m - - - -
Trade and other receivables (72) (16) (3) (91) (23) - (2) (25)
Cash and cash equivalents
{excluding overdrafts) {29) - (4) (33) 19 - {1 (30)
Net deferred income tax
(assets)/llabiities {2} - 3 1 - - 1
Retirement benefit obligations 7 - - 7 - - - -
Prowisions for other llabihties
and charges 2 - - 2 4 - - 4
Trade and other habillties 109 35 6 150 69 - 12 81
Current Income tax liabiities 1 - - 1 6 - - 6
Non-controlling interest - - - - - - 2) (2}
Attributable goadwil (50) (119) (6) (175) {156) - 1 (157)
Cumulative transiation adjustment 4 6 10 2 - 2
Net assets disposed {100) 179) (9) (288) (130} - 5) (135)
Cash receved 858 222 g 1,089 375 - - 375
Deferred proceeds - - - - - - 6 6
Costs {47) {13) 9) (69) m 29 (2) 25
Gain/(loss) on disposal Fa)l 30 {9) 732 244 29 ) 272
Allfigures in E millions 2015 2014
Cash flow from disposals
Cash - current year disposals 1,089 375
Cash and cash equivalents disposed (33) (30)
Costs and other disposal habilities paid (26) (18)
Net cashi inflow 1030 327

Included tn the gain on safe of PowerSchoal is the write down of related software assets of E70m The write down
of the software assets reflects the reduced market opportunity for software which was to be integrated with
PowerSchool and the recognition that adopticn of such software in US schools 1s now uniikely to occur at the rate

onginally envisaged

Disposal of associates

On 16 October 2015, the Group sold 39% of its 50% stake i The Economist resulting in a gain on disposal of £473m
The gain comprises proceeds of £377m, gain on revaluatton of remalning 11% investrment to fair value of £92m and

habilities disposed of £4m
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

32 Cash generated from operations

All figuresinEmillions Notes 2015 2014
Profit 823 470
Adjustments for

tncome tax (24) 110
Depreciation 10 75 74
Amortisation and imparwrment of acquired intangibles and goodwill Ll 1,051 264
Amortisation of software 11 74 63
Net finance costs 29 93
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 12 (68} {51)
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries, associates, mvestments and fixed assets (1,194) (272}
Acquisition costs -~ 6
Net foreigh exchange adjustment from transactions 22 27
Share-based payment costs 26 26 32
Pre-publication (57} (52}
Inventories 10 6
Trade and other recevables (99} 69}
Trade and other hiabilitles (80} 72
Retirement benefit obligations {57) (58)
Provisions for other liabilities and charges {13 (11)
Net cash generated from operations 518 704
Dividends from joint ventures and assoclates 162 120
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (86} (75)
Purchase of intangible assets {161} {107)
Proceeds from sale of property, piant and equipment 2 9
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 1 2
Finance lease principal payments {1) 4)
Operating cash flow 435 649
Operating tax patd (129) (163)
Net operating finance costs paid (51} (73)
Operating free cash flow 255 43
Non operating tax paid (103} -
Free cash flow 152 413
Dividends pawd (including to non-controlling interests) (423} (398)
Net movement of funds from operations {271) 15
Acquisitlons and disposals 1,395 (137)
Loans repaid/{advanced) (including to related parties) 7 (12)
Purchase of treasury shares 28 (23) 9)
New equity Ll kil
Other movements on financal instruments {1) i5
Net movement of funds 1,118 {117)
£xchange movements on net debt (133) (143)
Total movement in net debt 985 {260}
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32 Cash generated from operations continued

Net cash generated from operations 1s translated at an exchange rate approximating the rate at the date of cash
flow The difference between this rate and the average rate used to translate profit gives rise to a currency
adjustment in the reconciliation between net profit and net cash generated from operations This adjustment
reflects the timing difference between recognition of profit and the related cash receipts or payments

Qperating cash flow, operating free cash flow and total free cash flow are noen-GAAP measures and have been
disclosed as they are part of Pearson's corporate and operating measures

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment compnse

Allfigures in £ millions 2015 2014
Net book amount 6 12
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 4} (3)
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2 9

33 Contingencies

There are contingent Group liabilities that arise in the normal course of business in respect of indemnities,
warranties and guarantees in refation to former subsidiaries and in respect of guarantees in relation to subsidiares,
jointventures and associates In addition there are contingent liabilities of the Group in respect of legal claims,
contract disputes, royalties, copyright fees, permissions and other rights None of these claims are expected to resuit
In @ material gain or loss to the Group

34 Commitments

At the balance sheet date there were no commitments for capital expenditure contracted for butnot yet incurred

The Group leases vartous offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases
have varying terms and renewal nghts The Group also leases various plant and equipment under operating lease
agreements, also with varying terms Lease expenditure charged to the iIncome statement was £156m (2014 £157m)

The future aggregate mirumum lease payments m respect of operating leases are as follows

All figures in £ millions 2018 2014
Not later than one year 164 161
Later than one year and not later than two years 146 150
Later than two years and not later than three years 143 126
Later than three years and not later than four years 130 122
Later than four years and not later than five years 123 115
Later than five years 685 701

1,3N 1,375
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

35 Related party transactions

Jointventures and associates

Amounts advanced to joint ventures and associates during the year and at the balance sheet date are set outin
note 12 Apart from transactions with the Group's jownt ventures and assoclates, there were no ather matenal
related party transactions

Key management persennel

Key management personnel are deemed to be the members of the Pearson Executive {see page 7) It1s this
committee which had responsibiiity for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group in 2015
Key management personnel compensation is disclosed below

All figures in £millons 2015 2014
Short-term employee benefits 7 10
Retirement benefits 1 1
Share-based payment costs 1 2

g 13

Total

There were no other matenal related party transacttons No guarantees have been provided to related parties

36 Events after the balance sheet date

InJanuary 2016, Pearsen announced that it was embarking on a restructuring programme to sumplify the business,
reduice costs and position the company for growth in its major markets The majority of the programme 1s expected
to be complete by mid-year 2016 and will involve nmplementation costs in 2016 of approximately £320m
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37 Accounts and audit exemptions (_c?
The Pearson plc subsidiary companies listed below are exempt from the requirements of the Comparies Act 2006 g
relating to the audit of Indviduat accounts by virtue of section 473A - g
Company number Company number
Aldwych Finance Limited 04720439 Pearson Education Limited 00872828
ASET Limited 04231636 Pearson Funding Four pic 07970304
ASET Group Limited 03964551 Pearson Funding Cne plc 02911143
ASET Management Limited 03139404 Pearson Funding Two plc 07210654
Blue Wharf Limited 04344573 Pearson Heinemann Limited 03099304 g
Burmedia Investments Limited 03060487 Pearson In Practice ATA Limited 07679091 §
Edexcel Limited 04496750 Pearson In Practice Holdings Lumited 06337129 §
Fducation Development International plc 03914767 Pearson in Practice Skills Based %
Embankment Finance Limited 04460625 Learning Limited 03755464
EQL Assessment Lemited 05224778 Pearson in Pract:ce Technology Limited 03786589
GreenWharf Limited 07009228 Pearson International Finance Limited 02496206
lcodeon Limited 05068195 Pearson Loan Finance No 2 Unlimited 05632021
Longman Group (Overseas Holdings) Pearson Lean Finance No 3 Lirmited 05052661 o
Limited 00690236 Pearson Loan Finance No 4 Limited 02635107
a
Midiands Educational TechnologyLimited 01448842 Pearson Loan Finance Unlimited 05144467 &
Pearson Affordable Learming Fund Limited 08038068 Pearson Management Services Limited 00096263 g
Pearson Arnsterdam Finance Limited 03041245 Pearson Overseas Holdings Limited 00145205 =
Pearson Australia Finance Unhmited 05578463 Pearson PRH Holdings Limited 08561316
Pearson Books Limited 02512075 Pearson Services Limited 01341060
Pearson Brazil Finance Ltd 08848874 Pearson Shared Services Limited 04623186
Pearson Canada Finance Unlimited 05578491 Testchange Limited 02496240 ps
Pearson Doilar Finance pic 05111013 The Coaching Space Limited 05333023 %
Pearson Dollar Fiance Two plc 06507766 TQ Catalis Lirnited 07307943 E
Pearson Education Holdings Limited 00210859 TQ Clapham Limited 07307925 -
Pearson Education Investments Limited (084445933 TQ Global Limited 07802458
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Company balance sheet

As at 31 December 2015

Al! figures in £ milions Notes 2015 204
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 2 7.744 8,740
Amounts due from subsidiaries 3,953 27
Financial assets - dervative financial instruments 6 78 84
Other financial assets 7 92 -
11,867 8,851
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries 44p 5,220
Amounts due from related partres 47 54
Current income tax assets - 28
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 6 3 24
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 4 1,168 13
Other assets - 2
1,664 5,341
Total assets 13,531 14,192
Liabilities
Non-current habihties
Amounts due to subsiciaries (3,760) (2,346}
Financial liabihties - borrowings 5 (218) {210}
Financat liabilittes - derivative financial instruments & (136) {73)

{4,114) {2,629)

Current habilities

Amaunts due to subsidiaries (1,431) 4,414)
Currentincome tax habihties (108) -
Financial labilites - borrowings 5 (580) (629)
Financal habilities - derivative financial instruments & (29) (1}
Other liabilities 12) (2)
(2,160) (5,046)
Total liabilities (6,274) (7,675)
Net assets 7,257 6,517
Equity
Share capital 8 205 205
Share premium 8 2,590 2,579
Treasuryshares g (27} 1
Special reserve 447 447
Retained earnings 4,042 3,285
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 7,257 6,517

These finanaal statements have been approved for issue by the board of directers on 4 March 2016 and signed on its
behaif by

Coram Willlams
Chief financial officer

=
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Company statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2015

Equity attnbutable to equity holders of the company g
Share Share Treasury Special Retained g
Allflgures in £ milhons capltal premum shares reserve earnings Total g
At 1january 2015 205 2,579 1 447 3,285 6,517 a
Profit for the year - - - - 1,206 1,206
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes* - " - - - n
Purchase of treasury shares - - (23 - - (23}
Contribution refund to substdiaries - - (31 - - (31
Release of treasury shares - - 26 - (26) - 9
Dividends -~ - - - (423) (423) g‘
At 31 December 2015 205 2,580 (27) 447 4,042 7.257 g
Equity attributable to eguity hotders of the company
Share Share Treasury Special Retained
all figures in £ milons capltal premium shares reserve earnings Total
At 1January 2014 205 2,568 {22) 447 2,447 5,645
Profit for the year - - - - 1.267 1.267 o
lssue of ordinary shares under gg-
share option schemes* - 7" - - - n g
Purchase of treasury shares - - (9) - - @ 3
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - {32) - 8
Dividends - - - - (397) {397)
At 31 December 2014 205 2,579 1 447 3,285 6,317
The special reserve represents the cumulative effect of cancellation of the company’s share premium account
included within retained earmings is an amount of £162m {2014 £131m) relating to profit on intra-Group disposals éi—
that s not distributable 3
* Fult details of the share-based payment plans are disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial staterments g
m
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Company cash flow statement

Year ended 31 December 2015

Allfigures in £ millions Notes 2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit 1,206 1,267
Adjustments for,

fncome tax {154} {9)
Net finance costs 68 24
Impairment charges 736 -
Profiton disposals (279) -
Amounts due to subsidiaries (909) {1,058)
Net cash generated from operations 668 224
Interest paid (56} (73)
Tax receved 289 6
Net cash generated from operating activities 901 157
Cash flows from investing activities

Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 747 -
Loans repaid by/{advanced to) related parties 7 (10)
Interest received M 15
Net cash receved from investing activities 765 5
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary shares 8 1 1"
Net purchase of treasury shares (53) 9)
Proceeds from/repayment of) borrowings 17 {250)
Dividends paid to company's shareholders (423) (397)
Net cash used In financing activities (448) {645)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (14) {15)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,204 (498)
Cash and cash equivafents at beginning of year (616) (118)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4 588 (616)
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Company balance sheet

Asat 31 Cecember 2015

All figures in £ milllons Notes 2015 204
Assets
Non-current assets
Investrents in subsidianes 2 7,744 8,740
Amounts due from subsidlaries 3,953 27
Financtal assets - denvative financlal instruments 6 78 84
Other financial assets 7 92 -
11,867 8,851
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidianes 446 5,220
Amounts due from related parties 47 54
Current incorme tax assets - 28
Financial assets - derivative financlal instruments 6 3 24
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding overdrafts) 4 1,168 13
Other assets - 2
1,664 5,341
Total assets 13,531 14,192
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidianies (3,760) {2,346)
Financial liabilities - borrowings 5 (218) (210}
Finanaal hiabilittes - dervative financial instruments 6 (136) (73)
{4,114) {2,629)
Current labilities
Amounts due to subsidiares {1,431} 4,414}
Current income tax habtlities (108) -
Financial habilities - borrowings 5 (580) (629)
Financial habihties - derivative financal instruments 6 (29) {1}
Other habilities (12) {2)
{2,160) {5,046}
Total habilittes (6,274) (7.675)
Net assets 7,257 6,517
Equity
Share capital 8 205 205
Share premium 8 2,590 2,579
Treasury shares g (27) 1
Special reserve 447 447
Retained earnings 4,042 3,285
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 7.257 6,517

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 4 March 2016 and signed onits

behalf by

CoramWilliarms
Chief financial officer
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Company statement of changes in equity

Year ended 3t December 2015

Equity attributable to equity holders of the company

Share Share Treasury Special Retained

All figures In £ millions capltal premium shares reserve earnings Total
At 1january 2015 205 2,579 1 447 3,285 6,517
Profit for the year - - - - 1,206 1,206
Issue of ordinary shares under

share option schemes* - " - - - "
Purchase of treasury shares - - (23) - - (23)
Contribution refund to subsidiaries - - (31 - - (31)
Release of treasury shares - - 26 - (26) -
Dividends - - - - (423) (423}
At 31 December 2015 205 2,590 27) 447 4,042 7,257

Equity attributable to equity holders of the company

Share Share Treasury Special Retained

All figures in £ millions caphtal premium shares reserve earnings Total
At 1 January 2014 205 2,568 (22) 447 2,447 5,645
Profitfor the year - - - - 1,267 1,267
Issue of ordinary shares under

share option schemes* - 1 - - - 1
Purchase of treasury shares - - (9) - - &)}
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - (32) -
Dividends - - - - (397) {397}
At 31 December 2014 205 2,579 1 447 3,285 6,517

The special reserve represents the cumnulative effect of cancellabon of the company’s share premium account

included within retained earmings 1s an amount of £162m (2014 £131m)relating to profiton intra-Group disposals
that is not distributable

* Full details of the share-based payment plans are disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements
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Company cash flow statement

Year ended 31 December 2015

Allfigures in £ millions Notes 2015 2014
Cash fiows from operating activities

Net profit 1,206 1,267
Adjustments for

Income tax (154) )]
Net finance costs 68 24
Impairment charges 736 -
profitondisposals T T T o1 -
Amounts due to subsicharies o (909) ) (1,058)
Net cash generated from operations 668 224
Interest paid (56) (73}
Tax receved 289 6
Net cash generated from operating activities 201 157
Cash flows from investing activities

Disposatl of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 747 -
Loans repaid by/(advanced to) refated parties 7 (10)
interest received 11 15
Net cash received from investing activities 765 5
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 8 1 1
Net purchase of treasury shares (53} 9
Proceeds from/{repayment of) borrowings 17 {250}
Dividends paid to company’s shareholders (423) (397}
Met cash used in financing activities (448} {645)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 4) (15)
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,204 (498)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year {616} (118)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4 588 {616)
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Five-year summary

Allfigures tn Emillions 201 202 2013 2014 2015
Sales By geography*

North Amenica 3,008 2,906 2,240
Core 1,008 ¢10 836
Growth 712 724 692
Continuing 4,330 4,615 4,728 4,540 4,468
Discontinued 1,472 1,497 962 343 312
Total sales 5,862 6112 5,690 4,883 4,780
Sales By line of business*

School 2,303 2,027 1,880
Higher Education 1,664 1,695 1,736
Professional 761 818 852
Continuing 4,390 4,615 4,728 4,540 4,468
Discontinued 1472 1,497 962 343 312
Total sales 5,862 6,112 5,690 4,883 4,780
Adjusted operating profit By geography*

Narth America 464 444 480
Core 103 122 114
Growth 35 32 (12
Penguin Random House S0 69 90
Contmuing 751 785 652 667 672
Discontinued 187 147 B84 55 51
Total adjusted operating profit 938 932 736 722 723
Adjusted operating profit. By line of business*

School 268 236 183
Higher Education 295 309 354
Professional 39 53 45
Penguin Random House - - 50 69 20
Continuing 751 785 652 667 672
Discontinued 187 147 84 55 51
Total adjusted operating profit 938 932 736 722 723

* Periods prior 1o 2013 have not beenrestated to reflect the new organisation structure as there 1s no approprlate basis for restatement of those

periods 2011 onwards reflect the adoption of 1AS 19revised and have beenrestated, as appropriate Prior periods have not been rastated
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All figures in £ milkons

omm

2072

2013

2014

2015

QCperating margin - contimuing 171% 170% 13 8% 14 7% 15 0%

Adjusted earnings

Total adjusted operating profit 938 932 736 722 723

Net finance costs (55) (65) {73) (64) (46)
Income tax {196} (200) {97) (118} (105)
Non-controlling interest 1 (3} (N 1 -

Adjusted earmngs 688 664 566 541 572

Weighted average number of shares (millions) 8002 8043 8078 8109 8133

Adjusted earnings per share 86 0p 826p 701p 667p 70 3p

All figures In £ mlllions 201 2012 2013 204 2015

Cash fiow

Operating cash flow 983 788 588 649 435

Operating cash conversion 105% 85% 80% 90% 60%

Operating free cash flow 772 657 324 M3 255

Operating free cash flow per share 96 5p 817p 401p 509p 314p

Total free cash flow 772 657 269 413 152

Total free cash flow per share 96 5p 817p 333p 509p 18 7p

Net assets 5,962 5710 5,706 5,985 6,418

Net debt 459 918 1,379 1,639 654

Return on invested capital (gross basis)

Total adjusted operating profit 938 932 736 722 723

Cash tax paid (151 (65) (191) (163) 129)
Return 787 867 545 559 594

Average invested capital 87 9,578 10,130 9,900 10,317

Return on invested capital 9 0% S 1% 5 4% 5 6% 5 8%

Dwidend per share 420p 450p 48 0p 510p 52 0p
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Corporate and operating measures

Sales ~ underlying and constant exchange rate movement

Underlying sales movements exclude the impact of acquisiuions/disposals, movements i exchange rates and
changes in revente recognition policies

All figures In £ millions 2015
Underlying decrease (80)
Portfolio changes (129)
Exchange differences 137
Total sales decrease (72)
Underlying decrease (2)%
Censtant exchange rate decrease (5)%

Adjusted income statement

Reconciliation of the consolidated Income statement to the adjusted numbers presented as non-GAAP measures

In the financial statements

2015
Other net
Statutory Other finance Tax  Adjusted
income Discontinued netgalns Acguisition Incangible Income/ amartisation income
All figuresin E millions statement  operations andjosses costs charges €osts benefit statoment
Operating (foss)/profit {404) 51 (13) - 1,089 - - 723
Net finance costs (29) - - - - (17) - {46)
(Loss)/profit before tax {433) 51 (13) - 1,089 7N - 677
Income tax 81 9) 40 - {257} 7 33 (105)
(Loss)/profit for the year
from continuing operations (352) 42 27 - 832 (10) 33 572
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 1,175 (42) (1135) - 2 - - -
Profit for the year 823 - {1.108) - 834 {10) 33 572
Naon-controlling interest - - - - - - - -
Earmings 823 - (1.108) - 834 {10) 33 572
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Adjusted mncome statement continued E:"
04 &
=1
Other net [
Statutory Other finance Tax  Adjusted w
income Discontinued  netgains Acquisition  Intangible income/  amortisation income
All figures in £millions statement  operations andlosses costs charges costs benefit  statement
QOperating profit 398 2 (2) 6 318 - - 722
Net finance costs {93) - - - - 29 - (64)
Profit before tax 305 2 (2} 6 318 28 - 658
Income tax (63) (N 1 (1) {73) (5) 24 (118) S
Profit for the year from 5
continuing operations 242 1 (1) 5 245 24 24 540 ]
=]
Profit for the year from 3
discontinued operations 228 (M (227) - - - - - §
1]
Prafit for the year 470 - (228) 5 245 24 24 540
Non-controlling interest 1 - - - - - - 1
Earnings a7t - {228) 5 245 24 24 541
Adjusted operating profit - underlying and constant exchange rate movement
Operating profit movement excluding the impact of acquisitions, disposals and movements in exchange rates E-’
v
All figures tn £millions 2015 §
Underlying decrease {12) §
Portfolio changes (9 2
Exchange differences 22
Total adjusted operating profit increase 1
Underlying decrease (2)%
Constant exchange rate decrease (3)%
o
H
3
ES
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Corporate and operating measures contimied

Free cash flow per share

Operating cash flow for continuing and discontinued operations before tax and finance charges, divided by the
weighted average number of shares inissue

All figures In £ milllons 2015 2014
Adjusted operating profit 723 722
Cash conversion 60% 90%
Operating cash flow 435 649
Qperating tax patd {129) (163)
Net operatng finance costs paid (51) (73)
Total operating free cash flow 255 413
Non operating tax paid (103) -
Total free cash flow 152 43
Weighted average number of shares in issue{millions) 8133 8109
Operating free cash flow per share 3.4p 509p
Totai free cash flow per share 18 7p 509p

Return on invested capital

Invested capital

Afl figuresin £ millions 2015 2014
Total adjusted operating profit 723 722
Operating tax paid {129) {(163)
Return 594 559
Average goodwili and other intangibles 8,715 8,557
Average net operating assets 1,602 1,343
Average invested capital 10,317 9,900
Return on invested capital 5 8% 5 6%

Return on Invested capital s calcutated as total adjusted operating profit less operating cash tax paid expressed as a
percentage of average invested capital Invested capital includes the onginalunamortised goodwill and intangibles
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Pearson ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock
Exchange and on the New York Stock Exchange in the
form of American Depositary Receipts

Corporate website

The investors’ section of our corporate website

www pearson com/investors provides awealth

of information for shareholders Itis also possible

to sign up to recelve e-matl alerts for reports and

press releases relaling to Pearson at

www pearson com/news/newsletter-subscnbe html é

Shareholder information online

Shareholder information can be found on our website
WWW pearson corn/investors/
investor-information html

Our registrar, Equinit, also provides a range of
shareholder information anftne You can check your
holding and find practical help on transferring shares
or updating your details at www shareview co uk

For mere information, please contact our registrar,
Equtniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing,

West Sussex BN99 60A Telephone 0371 3842233*
or, for those shareholders with hearing difficulties,
textphone number 0371 384 2255*%

Information about the Pearsan share price

The company’s share price can be found on our website
atwww pearson com Italso appears In the finanaal
columns of the national press

2015 dwidends

Paymeni date Amount pershare
Internim 11 September 2015 18 pence
Final 6 May 2016 34 pence

Payment of dividends to mandated accounts

Should you elect to have your dividends paid through
BACS, this can be done directly into a bank or bullding
sogiety account, with the tax voucher sent to the
shareholder's registered address £quiniti can be
contacted forinfarmation on 0371 384 2043*

Dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP)

The DRIP gives shareholders the night to buy the
campany’s shares on the London stock market with
thew cash dividend For furtherinfarmation, please
contact Equiniti on 0371 384 2268*%

Individual Savings Accounts (1SAs)

Equimiti offers ISAs in Pearson shares For more
information, please go to www shareview co uk/dealing
or call customer services on 0345 300 0430+

Share dealing facilities

Equiniti offers telephone and internet services for
dealing in Pearson shares For further information,
please contact their telephone dealing helpline on
03456 037 037* or, for online dealing, logon to
www shareview co uk/dealing You wilt need your
shareholder reference number as shown on your
share certificate

A postal dealing servicels also avaitable through
Equiniti Please telephone 0371 384 2248* for details or
log on to www shareview co uk to download a form

ShareGift

Shareholders with small holdings of shares, whose
value makes them uneconomic to sell, may wish

to donate them to ShareGift, the share donation
charity {registered charity number 1052686)

Further iInformation about ShareGiftand the charities
it has supported may be obtatned from ther website,
www ShareGift org or by contacting them at ShareGift,
PO Box 72253, London, SW1P 9LQ

American Depositary Recelpts (ADRs)

Pearson's ADRs are listed on the New York Stock
Exchange and traded under the symbot PSO Each ADR
represents cne crdinary share Forenquiries regarding
registered ADR holder accounts and dividends,

please contact Bank of New York Meilon, Shareholder
Correspondence (ADR], PO Box 30170, College Station,
TX77842-3170, telephone 1 (866) 2592289 (toli free
within the US) or 001 201 680 6825 {outside the US)
Alternatively, you may e-mail ,
shrrelations@cpushareownerservices comg

Voung rights for registered ADR holders can be
exercised through Bank of New York Mellon, and for
heneficial ADR holders (and/or nominee accounts)
through your US brokerage institution Pearson will
file with the Securities and Exchange Commission
aForm 20-F

*Lines open 8 302m to 5 30pm Monday to Friday (excluding UK
public holigays}
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Shareholder information continued

Share register fraud protecting your investment

2016 financial calendar

Pearson does not contact its shareholders directly

to provide recommendation advice and nesther does
itappoint third parties to do so As required by law,

our shareholder register is available for public
inspection butwe cannot control the use of information
obtamned by persons inspecting the register Please
treat any approaches purporting to originate from
Pearsonwith caution

For more information, please log on to our website at
WWW pearson com/mvesto;‘sl
investor-lnformation html @

Tips on protecting your shares

Ex-dividend date 7 April

Record date 8April

» Keep any documentation that contains your
shareholder reference numberin a safe place
and shred any unwanted documentation

» inform our registrar, Equiniti, premptly when you
change address

> Be aware of dvidend payment dates and contact the
registrar if you do not receive your dividend cheque or
better stiil, make arrangements to have the dwidend
paid directly into your bank account

» Consider holding your shares electronically ina CREST
accountwvia a nominee

Last date for dividend reinvestment election 14 April

Annual General Meeting 29 Aprd

Payment date for dividend and share
purchase date for dividend reinvestment 6 May

Interim resuits the*

Payment date for intenim dividend the*

*to be announced during 2016




Reliance cn thus document

The intention of this document 1s to provide
tnformation to shareholders and is not designed to be
relied upon by any other party or for any other purpose

Forward-looking statements

Except for the histonical information contained
herein, the matters discussed in this document
include forward-looking statements In particular,

all statements that express forecasts, expectations
and projections with respect to future matters,
mncluding trends in results of operations, margins,
growth rates, overall market trends, the impact,

of interest or exchange rates, the availability of
financing, anticipated costs savings and synergies
and the execution of Pearson's strategy, are forward-
looking staternents By their nature, forward-looking
statements involve nsks and uncertainties because
they relate to events and depend on arcumstances
that wiii occur in future They are based on numerous

assumptions regarding Pearscn's present and future
business strategies and the environment i which it
will operate inthe future There are a number of factors
which couid cause actual results and developments

to differ matenially frem those expressed or implied

by these forward-looking statements, including a
number of factors outside Pearson's control These
include international, national andlocal conditons,

as well as competitton They also inclide other risks
detaled from time to time in Pearson's pubhdy-filed
documents and you are advised to read, in particular,
the risk factors set outin this document Anyforward-
looking statements speak only as of the date they are
made, and Pearson gives no undertaking to update
forward-looking statements to reflect any changes in
its expectations with regard thereto or any changes to
events, conditions or circumstances on which any such
staternent s based No rellance should be placed on
forward-looking statements
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